
AGENDA
SEWARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, January 5, 2016 @ 7:00 PM 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the City Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska will 
be held at 7:00 PM  on Tuesday, January 5, 2016, in the Municipal Building Council Chambers, 142 
North 7th Street, Seward, Nebraska, which meeting will be open to the public.  The Mayor and City 
Council reserve the right to adjourn into Closed Session as per Section 84-1410 of the Nebraska Revised 
Statutes. An Agenda for such meeting, kept continually current, is available at the Office of the City 
Clerk, 537 Main Street, Seward, Nebraska, during normal business hours. Individuals requiring physical 
or sensory accommodations, who desire to attend or participate, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 
402.643.2928 no later than 3:30p.m.on the Friday preceding the Council Meeting.  

City financial claims and related invoices will be available for Councilmember review, audit and 
voluntary signatures at Council Chambers beginning 30 minutes prior to the scheduled meeting time. 

AGENDA ITEMS

CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Eickmeier

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE-MOMENT OF SILENCE - Mayor Eickmeier

DISCLOSURE OF OPEN MEETINGS ACT & OTHER NOTIFICATIONS - Mayor Eickmeier
This is an Open Meeting of the Seward Nebraska Governing Body. The City of Seward abides by the 
Nebraska Open Meetings Act in conducting business.  A copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act is 
displayed on the north wall of this meeting room facility as required. Disclosure of meeting recording 
processes is posted in the Meeting Room.  A participant sign-in sheet is available for use by any Citizen 
addressing the Council. Presenters shall approach the podium, state their name & address for the Clerk’s 
record and are asked to limit remarks to five minutes.  All remarks shall be directed to the Mayor who 
shall determine by whom any appropriate response shall be made.  The City of Seward reserves the right 
to adjust the order of items on this Agenda if necessary and may elect to take action on any of the items 
listed.

ROLL CALL - Mayor Eickmeier

1. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF DRAFT MINUTES OF DECEMBER 15, 2015 - 
Bonnie Otte

2. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF DRAFT SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES OF 
DECEMBER 21, 2015 - Bonnie Otte

3. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA
A. Claims & Payables Reports
B. Seward County Economic Development Corporation Director's Report
C. Infrastructure Cost Items Reimbursable Back to the City

4. CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS OF THE CITY 
OF SEWARD - Bruce Smith & Paul Grieger

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 1 / 266



A. AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 
REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED ONE MILLION ONE HUNDRED 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,100,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF REFUNDING ALL 
OR A PORTION OF $1,050,000 OF GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 
BONDS, SERIES 2011, AND RELATED MATTERS

B. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE OF ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY 
OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
NOT TO EXCEED FOUR MILLION NINE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($4,900,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF (A) REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF 
$1,595,000 OF ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011 AND 
$390,000 OF ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011B, (B) PAYING THE 
COSTS OF IMPROVEMENTS TO AND EXPANSION OF THE CITY’S ELECTRIC 
SYSTEM, INCLUDING PAYING AND REDEEMING CERTAIN SHORT TERM 
INDEBTEDNESS ISSUED FOR SUCH PURPOSES, AND RELATED MATTERS

C. AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF HIGHWAY ALLOCATION 
FUND PLEDGE BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, SERIES 2016, 
IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED NINE HUNDRED FIFTY 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($950,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS 
OF CONSTRUCTING CERTAIN STREET IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY, AND 
RELATED MATTERS

D. AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF SANITARY SEWER 
SYSTEM REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016, OF THE CITY OF 
SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED 
FOUR MILLION TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,200,000), FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF (A) REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF $300,000 OF 
OUTSTANDING SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2010, $3,430,000 OF OUTSTANDING SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011 AND $150,000 OF OUTSTANDING SANITARY 
SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011B; (B) PAYING THE COSTS 
OF IMPROVEMENTS TO AND EXPANSION OF THE CITY’S SANITARY SEWER 
SYSTEM, AND RELATED MATTERS

E. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE OF WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY 
OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED 
ONE MILLION TWO HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($1,275,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF 
$1,255,000 OF OUTSTANDING WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING 
BONDS, SERIES 2011, AND RELATED MATTERS

5. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF LOT 4, 
REYNOLDS ADDITION TO SCOTT & TAMMY KOCIAN - City Atty Hoffschneider

6. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE FOR FINANCING THE PURCHASE OF 
THE GOLF COURSE CLUBHOUSE THROUGH A DIRECT BORROWING WITH A 
BANK PURSUANT TO  SECTION 18-201, R.R.S. NEB - City Attorney Hoffschneider

7. CONSIDERATION OF NAMING THE GOLF COURSE - Bruce Smith

8. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FEES AT THE GOLF 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 2 / 266



COURSE - Bruce Smith

9. CONSIDERATION OF GOLF CART LEASE FROM NEBRASKA GOLF & TURF- 
Bruce Smith

10. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 11 OF 
THE SEWARD CITY CODE TO RETITLE THE ARTICLE, TO ESTABLISH A 
GENERAL EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN COMMITTEE AND TO APPOINT CITY 
COUNCIL DESIGNATED MEMBERS - Bonnie Otte

11. CONSIDERATION OF INSTALLING AN EMERGENCY VEHICLE PRE-EMPTION 
SYSTEM - John Hughes

12. CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT-  Bruce Smith

13. FUTURE REQUESTS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS OR ADMINISTRATIVE 
ACTION - Mayor Eickmeier

14. ANNOUNCEMENT OF UPCOMING EVENTS - Mayor Eickmeier

15. MOTION TO ADJOURN

I, Bonnie Otte, the duly appointed, qualified and acting Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/Budget 
& Human Resource Director of the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certify:

That the foregoing Notice of Meeting and Agenda for such meeting has been posted in the 
following places: Seward City Hall, Seward County Courthouse, Seward Memorial Library and 
CityofSewardNE.com  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand officially and affixed the seal of the City 
this 31st day of December, 2015.

_________________________________
Bonnie Otte
Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/Budget & Human Resource Director

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 3 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G1

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF DRAFT MINUTES OF 
DECEMBER 15, 2015 - Bonnie Otte

Administrative Report: A motion to approve the minutes as written or with modifications would be 
in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 4 / 266



December 15, 2015 

 

1 

 

The Seward City Council met at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, December 15, 2015, 

with Mayor Joshua Eickmeier presiding and Assistant Administrator /Clerk-Treasurer 

/Budget & Human Resources Director Bonnie Otte recording the proceedings.  Upon 

roll call, the following Councilmembers were present: Jon Wilken, Sid Kamprath, 

Dean Fritz, Barbara Pike, and Chris Schmit. Other officials present: City 

Administrator Bruce Smith and Attorney City Attorney Kelly Hoffschneider. Absent: 

Ellen Beck, Dick Hans and John Singleton. 

 

Notice of the meeting was given in advance thereof by the method of 

communicating advance notice of the regular and special meetings of the City Council 

of the City of Seward, Nebraska, as stated in Ordinance No. 2015-08, which was 

adopted on the 5th day of May, 2015; said method stating that the notice of such 

meeting, with the agenda thereon, be posted in the following places:  City Hall, 

Seward County Courthouse, Municipal Building, and Seward Public Library.  The 

certificate of posting notice is attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting 

was simultaneously given to the Mayor and all members of the City Council and 

a copy of their acknowledgment of receipt of notice and the agenda are attached 

to these minutes.  Availability of the agenda was communicated in the advance 

notice and in the notice to the Mayor and Council of this meeting.  All proceedings 

hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance 

of the public. 

 

THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Mayor Eickmeier announced that a copy of the Agenda for this meeting is 

posted on the north wall of the Municipal Building and copies are available on 

the north wall where a copy of the Open Meetings Act is also posted for public 

inspection.  He also noted that any citizen wishing to address the Council should 

come to the podium, state their name and address and limit their comments to five 

minutes.  All remarks should be directed to the Mayor/Chairperson, who will then 

determine who will make any appropriate response.  The City of Seward reserves 

the right to adjust the order of items on this agenda if necessary and may elect 

to take action on any of the items listed.  

  

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF DECEMBER 1, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 

      Councilmember Pike moved, seconded by Councilmember  

Fritz, that the minutes of the December 1, 2015 City Council meeting be approved. 

 

 Aye:  Wilken, Pike, Fritz, Schmit, Kamprath 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: Beck, Hans, Singleton. Motion carried. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA CONSIDERATION ITEMS 

 

 Councilmember Pike moved, seconded by Councilmember Wilken, that the 

following Consent Agenda items be approved in one single motion:  

 

A. Claims & Payables Reports 
B. City Clerk-Treasurer Report 
C. City Codes Director Report 
D. Police Department Report 
E. Infrastructure Cost Items Reimbursable Back to the City. 

 

CLAIMS LIST 

12-15-15 

COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Abbreviations: Bu, Building Upkeep; Eq, Equipment; Ex, Expense; Ma, 

Maintenance; Mi, Mileage; Misc, Miscellaneous; Re, Repairs; Sa, Salaries, Se, 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 5 / 266



December 15, 2015 

 

2 

 

Services; Su, Supplies; Ut, Utilities, CI, Capital Improvements; GU, Grounds 

Upkeep. 

 

Advanced Floor Care Inc Ma  

 

500.00 

All Road Barricades Inc Su 

 

77.40 

Alliance Technologies Se 

 

250.36 

Amazon.Com Credit Service Su 

 

2,237.92 

Ameritas Life Insurance Co Ins  

 

5,609.06 

Awe Digital Learning Solutions Eq 

 

5,333.00 

Baker & Taylor Su 

 

1,305.96 

Baldinger Charlotte Mi   

 

26.45 

Barco Municipal Products Su 

 

400.96 

Black Hills Energy Ut 

 

896.75 

Bornkamp Technology Group Bu 

 

115.00 

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Misc 

 

597.02 

Capital Business-Cheyenne Ma  

 

91.00 

Capital Business-Dallas Ma  

 

225.00 

City Seward Electric Fund Ut, Incentive 

 

44,790.01 

City Seward Library Petty Su 

 

105.26 

City Seward Merchant Services Exp 

 

1,430.24 

City Seward Payroll Account Payroll 

 

111,507.32 

Continental Fire/Alarm/De Se 

 

190.00 

Core Robert Exp 

 

250.00 

Creative Prod Sourcing Su 

 

428.66 

Demco Inc Su 

 

139.65 

Dutton-Lainson Co Su 

 

34,600.00 

Ehlers James Su 

 

341.15 

Emergency Medical Product Su 

 

595.63 

Farmers Coop Seward Su, Gu, Re 

 

3,241.02 

Fast Mart Su, Ex 

 

54.01 

Fastenal Company Re, Su 

 

378.48 

Gabriel Burger Else CPA Se 

 

14,000.00 

General Fire & Safety Equip Se 

 

107.00 

Gerhold Concrete Co Inc Su, Re 

 

1,997.97 

Graham Tire Re 

 

206.44 

Greiner Dan Incentive 

 

600.00 

Hamilton Equipment Company Re 

 

131.00 

Hartmann Custom Service C Se 

 

485.00 

Husker Electric Supply Co Bu, Re 

 

741.84 

Hydraulic Equipment Services Su 

 

82.96 

I E S Commercial Inc Ci 

 

79,482.22 

Interstate All Battery Ce Re 

 

144.39 

J K Energy Consulting LLC Se 

 

2,350.00 

Jackson Services Inc Ma  

 

188.04 

Jones National Bank & Trust Misc 

 

70.00 

Kimbrough Shane Incentive 

 

75.00 

Last Mile Network Consult Ut 

 

56.40 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 6 / 266



December 15, 2015 

 

3 

 

Lee'S Refrigeration Bu 

 

113.96 

Make:  Magazine Su 

 

59.95 

Matheson Tri-Gas Inc Su 

 

102.00 

Memorial Health-Drug Ex, Se 

 

743.00 

Memorial Health-Meals Su 

 

352.63 

Menards Su 

 

23.90 

Mid-American Benefits Inc Ins  

 

318.17 

Midwest Auto Parts Re, Su 

 

522.67 

Midwest Automotive Re 

 

1,179.57 

Midwest Laboratories Inc Se 

 

645.00 

Municipal Pipe Services I Re 

 

500.00 

N M C Exchange Inc Re 

 

1,066.98 

Nebraska Arborists Association Dues 

 

65.00 

Nebraska Equipment Inc Re 

 

81.10 

Nebraska Fire Marshal Ex 

 

120.00 

Nebraska Health Environment Se 

 

272.00 

Nebraska Notary Association Ex 

 

100.00 

Nebraska Pub Pow-Desmoine Incentive, Ut 

 

434,315.30 

Nelson Contracting LLC Re 

 

359.00 

Niemann'S Port-A-Pot LLC Gu 

 

105.00 

Northern Safety Co Inc Su 

 

194.49 

O C L C Inc Se 

 

180.69 

Odeys Inc Re, Su 

 

1,528.71 

Olsson Associates Eq 

 

2,000.00 

One Call Concepts Inc Se 

 

64.30 

O'Reilly Auto Parts Se 

 

274.60 

Orscheln Farm & Home Su, Gu 

 

91.08 

Otte Donna Mi 

 

37.38 

Pac 'N' Save Discount Foo Su 

 

3.39 

Pankoke Henry W Se 

 

220.00 

Pavers Inc Su 

 

692.15 

Plains Equipment Group In Re, Su 

 

585.86 

Precision Tool & Machine Su 

 

24.00 

Quill Corp Su 

 

266.94 

Richters Inc Bu 

 

74.95 

Rose Equipment Inc Su 

 

1,219.64 

Rumery Lawn & Landscape Gu 

 

230.00 

S & S Design Eq 

 

275.00 

Sack Lumber Company Re 

 

82.32 

Sam'S Club (Lib-Rec-Pool) Su, Gu 

 

55.22 

Sam'S Club (Sen Center) Su 

 

44.68 

Schoepf Josh Ex 

 

100.00 

Schulz Ed LLC Su 

 

3,309.00 

Seward County Independent Ex 

 

136.97 

Seward County Public Power Ut 

 

2,012.90 

Seward County Treasurer Se, Prop Tax 

 

17,474.12 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 7 / 266



December 15, 2015 

 

4 

 

Seward Family Pharmacy Su 

 

843.00 

Seward Lumber & Home Cent Su, Re, Gu 

 

832.32 

Seward School District Fines, Lic 

 

165.00 

Skarshaug Testing Laboratory Su 

 

277.85 

Time Warner Cable Se 

 

79.38 

Union Bank & Trust Company Interest 

 

7,905.60 

Verizon Wireless Ut 

 

163.90 

Visa - Pinnacle Bank   

 

148.60 

  Marriott Cornhusker Trng 16.24 

   WalMart Su 8.88 

   Nova Solutions Eq 123.48 

 Wesco Distribution Inc Ci 

 

1,862.87 

Windstream Nebraska Inc Se 

 

2,376.23 

Wolter Gary Ut 

 

171.88 

 

Claims Total 

 

$803,485.82 

 

 Aye:  Fritz, Wilken, Pike, Schmit, Kamprath 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: Beck, Hans, Singleton. Motion carried. 

 

3. CONFIRMATION OF MAYOR’S APPOINTMENTS 

 

 Councilmember Schmit moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

reappointment of Jan Matzke to the Civic Center Commission for a  3-year term 

be approved. 

 

 Aye:  Fritz, Wilken, Pike, Schmit, Kamprath 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: Beck, Hans, Singleton. Motion carried. 

 

Councilmember Pike moved, seconded by Councilmember Kamprath, that the 

reappointment of Charles Matzke to the Tree Board for a  3-year term be approved. 

 

 Aye:  Fritz, Wilken, Pike, Schmit, Kamprath 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: Beck, Hans, Singleton. Motion carried. 

 

4. PUBLIC HEARING – 7:00 P.M. – CONSIDERATION OF PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT 

OF UNDERWOOD COMMERCIAL ADDITION (SE CORNER OF S 7TH STREET AND SOUTH STREET) 

 

  Mayor Eickmeier stated that due to a lack of quorum at the December 14 Planning 

Commission scheduled meeting, the Public Hearings to consider the preliminary 

and final plat for the Underwood Commercial Addition and the Lyle and Elaine Mueller 

Addition were not held and therefore, there is no action by the Planning Commission 

to consider either plat. However, since the public hearings have been advertised 

for consideration by the City Council, the City Council could choose to move forward 

with the public hearings, and discuss the item, but could not take any action.  

 

  Public Facilities/Capital Improvements and GIS Director John Hughes stated 

that since the property has previously been re-platted, City Zoning regulations 

require that it go through the Major Subdivision process requiring a preliminary 

and final plant. The plat involves three parcels, and the owner is only moving 

one property line.  

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 8 / 266



December 15, 2015 

 

5 

 

  Mayor Eickmeier opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comment, Mayor 

Eickmeier closed the public hearing. No action was taken.  

  

5. PUBLIC HEARING – 7:00 P.M. – CONSIDERATION OF PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT 

OF LYLE AND ELAINE MUELLER ADDITION (SE CORNER OF EAST BRADFORD STREET & 

EASTRIDGE DRIVE 

 

  Public Facilities/Capital Improvements and GIS Director John Hughes stated 

the existing large parcel currently has a house located on it and the Muellers 

are requesting to replat the property into three separate parcels; one with the 

house on it, an adjacent lot, and an additional outlot, to be subdivided into 

four lots at a later date. 

 

  Mayor Eickmeier opened the public hearing. Hearing no comment, Mayor 

Eickmeier closed the public hearing. No action was taken. 

   

 6.  CONSIDERATION OF AWARDING BID FOR ROBERTS STREET AREA DISTRIBUTION UPGRADES 

 

 Garrett Klein, Olsson Associates Engineer, stated the Roberts Street 

project includes the rebuild of approximately 5,300 feet of distribution pole 

line, replacing ten distribution transformers and rebuild of the 34.5 kV pole 

line. On October 20, 2015, based on the engineer’s recommendation, the City 

Council rejected the single bid received, which was $692,875. The project was 

readvertised and three bidders provided bids, which were opened on December 

3. He stated the engineer’s adjusted project estimate is $504,000; however, 

the lowest bid is from Schmader Electric in the amount of $571,800. He stated 

the bidders were contacted and it appears the project is more time-consuming 

than projected. Schmader Electric is proposing a completion date of December, 

2016, which is later than preferred; however, the delay does not present any 

issues beyond the additional months that the existing facilities remain in 

service. The recommendation is to award the project to the low bidder.  

    

 Councilmember Pike moved, seconded by Councilmember Fritz, that Schmader 

Electric be awarded the bid for the Robert’s Street project in the amount of 

$571,800. 

 

Aye: Fritz, Pike, Wilken, Schmit, Kamprath 

Nay: None 

Absent: Beck, Hans, Singleton. Motion carried. 

 

 7.  CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 11 OF THE SEWARD 

CITY CODE TO RETITLE THE ARTICLE, TO ESTABLISH A GENERAL EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN 

COMMITTEE AND TO APPOINT CITY COUNCIL DESIGNATED MEMBERS 

  

 Mayor Eickmeier stated there are not enough Council Members present to 

suspend the readings for the proposed ordinance. The Council could choose to 

discuss the item and take action at a later date or table it. 

 

 Councilmember Kamprath moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

Ordinance amending Chapter 1, Article 11 of the Seward City Code to retitle 

the article, to establish a General Employees Pension Plan Committee and to 

appoint City Council designated members be tabled. 

 

Aye:  Pike, Fritz, Schmit, Wilken, Kamprath 

Nay:  None 

Absent:  Beck, Hans, Singleton.  Motion carried. 

 

 8.  CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING DEVELOPER AND BUILDER OR HOMEOWNER 

CONSTRUCTION FEES 

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 9 / 266



December 15, 2015 

 

6 

 

 Public Facilities/Capital Improvements and GIS Director John Hughes 

stated that in May 2007, the City established “Aid to Construction Fees” for 

the Electric Department. Prior to this date, the City was not charging a 

developer fee to assist with offsetting the cost of the development. In addition, 

the Electric Department also uses the term “Aid to Construction” for a different 

purpose and it was confusing to the developers. He stated the proposed 

resolution: 1)Changes the name of the fee from Aid to Construction Fee to 

Developer and Builder or Homeowner Construction Fee; 2)Removes the $400 

Commercial Fee; and 3) Adds the note indicating $100 per each 100 amps of service. 

 

 Councilmember Fritz introduced the following resolution:  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-25 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska may by resolution 

fix the amount of fees charged by the City of Seward Utilities, and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is deemed advisable to establish Developer and Builder or 

Homeowner Construction Fees for the Electric Department; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA THAT: 

 

 The amount of Developer and Builder or Homeowner Construction Fees for 

the Electric Department shall henceforth be and are hereby fixed as follows 

to be in full force and effect on and after January 1, 2016: 

 

 Developer Fees:    Builder or Homeowner Fees: 

$400 dollars per lot,    $100 per 100 amp service 

 plus $4 per foot on line   $200 per 200 amp service 

 installation for lots   $300 per 300 amp service 

        $400 per 400 amp service 

        ($100 per each additional  

100 amps service or fraction 

thereof) 

  

 All previous resolutions including Resolution 8-07 which are in conflict 

with this resolution are hereby revoked. 

 

 Councilmember Schmit moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

resolution be adopted.  Upon vote, the following Councilmembers voted Aye: 

Fritz, Wilken, Kamprath, Pike, Schmit. Nay: None. Absent: Beck, Hans, Singleton. 

 

 The Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

 Dated: December 15, 2015. 

 

  THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

ATTEST: ____________________________ 

Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor  

 _______________________________ 

 Bonnie Otte,  

 Assistant Administrator 

 City Clerk-Treasurer 

 Budget & HR Director 

 

(SEAL) 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 10 / 266



December 15, 2015 

 

7 

 

 

 9.  CONSIDERATION OF NAMING THE GOLF COURSE 

  

 Mayor Eickmeier stated the City has internally been referring to the golf 

course as the Seward Community Golf Course, pending finalizing the purchase; 

however, it is time to consider officially renaming the course. He said he 

wants to make sure the name reflects the intent that the public knows it is 

a public course.  

 

 Councilmember Fritz, Pike, and Kamprath all stated they liked the name 

of Seward Community Golf Course.  

 

 Councilmember Fritz moved, seconded by Councilmember Wilken, that naming 

of the soon-to-be City-owned golf course be tabled to a meeting when the absent 

Councilmembers are present.  

 

Aye: Fritz, Pike, Wilken, Schmit, Kamprath 

Nay: None 

Absent: Beck, Hans, Singleton. Motion carried.  

  

 10.  CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

  

 Councilmember Pike moved, seconded by Councilmember Kamprath, that the 

City Administrator’s Report dated December 15, 2015 be accepted.  

 

Aye: Fritz, Pike, Wilken, Schmit, Kamprath 

Nay: None 

Absent: Beck, Hans, Singleton. Motion carried. 

 

11.  FUTURE REQUESTS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS OR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION 

  

 None. 

  
12.  ANNOUNCEMENT OF UPCOMING EVENTS 

  

 None. 

  

13.   MOTION TO ADJOURN 

 

Councilmember Schmit moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

December 15, 2015 City Council Meeting adjourns. 

 

Aye: Fritz, Wilken, Schmit, Pike, Kamprath 

Nay: None 

Absent: Beck, Hans, Singleton. Motion carried. 

 

                                 THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

__________________________________ 

                                     Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

___________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator 

Clerk-Treasurer 

Budget & Human Resources Director 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 11 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G2

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF DRAFT SPECIAL 
MEETING MINUTES OF DECEMBER 21, 2015 - Bonnie Otte

Administrative Report: A motion to approve the minutes as written or with modifications would be 
in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 12 / 266



December 21, 2015 Special 

 

1 

 

The Seward City Council met in special session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, 

December 21, 2015, with Mayor Joshua Eickmeier presiding and Marilyn D. Varner, 

Deputy Clerk/Finance Director/Assistant Treasurer recording the proceedings.  

Upon roll call, the following Councilmembers were present: Sid Kamprath, Dean 

Fritz, Barbara Pike, John Singleton, Chris Schmit. Other officials present: City 

Administrator Bruce Smith, City Attorney Kelly Hoffschneider (present at 8:15 

p.m.) Absent:  Jonathon Wilken, Ellen Beck, Richard Hans, Assistant Administrator 

/Clerk-Treasurer/Budget & Human Resources Director Bonnie Otte. 

 

Notice of the meeting was given in advance thereof by the method of 

communicating advance notice of the regular and special meetings of the City Council 

of the City of Seward, Nebraska, as stated in Ordinance No. 2015-08, which was 

adopted on the 5th day of May, 2015; said method stating that the notice of such 

meeting, with the agenda thereon, be posted in the following places:  City Hall, 

Seward County Courthouse, Municipal Building, and Seward Public Library.  The 

certificate of posting notice is attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting 

was simultaneously given to the Mayor and all members of the City Council and 

a copy of their acknowledgment of receipt of notice and the agenda are attached 

to these minutes.  Availability of the agenda was communicated in the advance 

notice and in the notice to the Mayor and Council of this meeting.  All proceedings 

hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance 

of the public. 

 

THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Mayor Eickmeier announced that a copy of the Agenda for this meeting is 

posted on the north wall of the Municipal Building and copies are available on 

the north wall where a copy of the Open Meetings Act is also posted for public 

inspection.  He also noted that any citizen wishing to address the Council should 

come to the podium, state their name and address and limit their comments to five 

minutes.  All remarks should be directed to the Mayor/Chairperson, who will then 

determine who will make any appropriate response.  The City of Seward reserves 

the right to adjust the order of items on this agenda if necessary and may elect 

to take action on any of the items listed. 

 

Mayor Eickmeier explained that since the City Attorney would be late, the 

order of the agenda items would be arranged.  

 

 6.  CONSIDERATION OF PURCHASING A HYBRID VEHICLE FOR CITY ADMINISTRATION 

 

 Administrator Smith explained that the Nebraska Community Energy Alliance 

has $6,000.00 funding left for calendar year 2015 for purchase of an 

energy-efficient vehicle.  The City is considering the purchase of a 2013 

Chevrolet Volt with approximately 30,000 miles for $16,000.00, so the total 

City cost would be $10,000.00 after receipt of grant funding.  This amount 

is not specifically budgeted, but cost savings could be achieved in other areas 

if the purchase were made.   

 

 Some discussion was held on the two 2015 Nissan Leafs (total electric 

vehicles) that were purchased in the last fiscal year, and when the final 

payments would be made (in Fiscal Year 2016-2017).  Mr. Smith explained that 

if the Chev. Volt were purchased, possibly one of the older vans (Chev. Venture 

or Pontiac Montana) would be eliminated. 

    

 Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

purchase of a Chevrolet Volt be approved, with the receipt of $6,000.00 funding 

from the Nebraska Community Energy Alliance. 

 

 Aye:  Schmit, Kamprath, Fritz, Pike, Singleton 

 Nay:  None 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 13 / 266



December 21, 2015 Special 

 

2 

 

Absent: Wilken, Beck, Hans. Motion carried. 

 

 3. CONSIDERATION OF AWARDING FINANCING FOR SEWARD GOLF COURSE 

 

Mr. Smith explained that in order for the City to award financing for the 

proposed golf course, an ordinance is required, but no ordinance was prepared 

for this meeting. 

 

Moved by Councilmember Pike, seconded by Councilmember Schmit, that the 

financing for the Seward Golf Course be tabled until the necessary ordinance is 

available.   

 

 Aye:  Singleton, Schmit, Kamprath, Fritz, Pike 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: Wilken, Beck, Hans. Motion carried. 

 

1. PUBLIC HEARING – 7:00 P.M. – CONSIDERATION OF CITY OF SEWARD ACQUISITION OF 

SEWARD COUNTRY CLUB REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY 

      

 Mayor Eickmeier opened the public hearing.  No public comment was received. 

Mayor Eickmeier closed the public hearing. 

 

 Due to the late arrival of the City Attorney, Item Two will be continued 

later in the meeting.  

 

4. PRESENTATION & CONSIDERATION OF POWER SUPPLY PROPOSALS 

 

  John Krajewski, JK Energy Consulting LLC, Lincoln, Nebraska, reviewed his 

findings regarding a power Supply Evaluation completed by his firm.  Power supply 

proposals were solicited, and reviewed to ensure these proposals met minimum 

requirements.  An initial economic assessment was prepared, with a short list 

developed.  Proposers were provided the opportunity to update proposals, and a 

recommendation was prepared.   

  

  The Request for Proposals was initially sent to 17 suppliers, with 6 entities 

providing proposals that were responsive for power supply:  American Electric 

Power, Big Rivers Electric Corp., First Security Power (disqualified), Heartland 

Consumers Power Dist., Municipal Energy Agency of NE and Nebraska Public Power 

District.  Two service providers offered market participant services.   

 

  Three options were presented in layout of the RFP for consideration:  1) 

30 percent in 2019-2021; 2) 50-90 percent in 2021 and 3) Total requirements 

beginning in 2022.  Evaluation Parameters were:  No NPPD production rate increase 

through 2027, no City load growth, and for alternate suppliers, 3.7 percent NPPD 

adder through 2021 for customers who do not sign a new wholesale contract, 30 

percent reduction in 2019 and 100 percent reduction in 2022. 

 

  An assessment of initial responses revealed that alternate suppliers provide 

lower costs beginning in 2019 (30 percent reduction), $300,000 annual savings 

in 2019-2021, with approximately 5 percent savings.  Larger savings resulted in 

2022, $1.0 million per year, decreasing over time, with 16 percent savings in 

2022.  A comparison of alternatives graph was included in the analysis.   

 

  Potential strategies were:  Option One – Do nothing, with approximately 

$200,000 per year more expensive through 2022, preserving right to reduce or limit 

purchases for any reason or terminate agreement on five years’ notice (NPPD has 

option to terminate with five years’ notice, also).  Option Two:  Sign a new 

contract with lower cost than Option One, based on surcharge NPPD is assessing 

(subject to outcome of litigation).  Lowest cost contract would provide for option 

to reduce if NPPD does not meet rate thresholds, providing long-term stability 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 14 / 266



December 21, 2015 Special 

 

3 

 

option in exchange for long-term commitment.  The City forgoes opportunity to 

purchase from third party in 2019 and beyond (potential savings in power supply); 

Option Three (Reduce/Terminate)includes higher cost ($200,000) through 2018 

(subject to litigation outcome), potential savings in 2018-2021 of $300,000 

annually in 2019-2021 because of NPPD surcharge and savings of more than $1 million 

in 2022, decreasing over time.  The scenario based on a 30 percent reduction in 

2019-2021 may be able to reduce purchases by more based on litigation outcome, 

with notice required by December 31, 2015 to reduce purchases from NPPD.  City 

would need to give notice before December 31, 2016 if it wants to terminate agreement 

at end of 2021.  Giving respondents an opportunity to refine proposals may result 

in further energy cost reductions.   

 

  Conclusions were:  NPPD new contract is best long-term (greater than 10-year 

initial term), cost-based arrangement (low rate cost escalation, resource 

stability); Option One (staying on existing contract) provides City with 

flexibility over next six years (observe NPPD rate changes, ability to reduce 

purchases with three-year notice, ability to terminate with five years’ notice); 

Cost for Option One compared to Option Two is $200,000 per year; City could save 

approximately $3.2 million in 2016-2027 (2016 NPV) by selecting new supplier (based 

on 30 percent reduction & termination of NPPD GFPS at end of 2021, supplier offered 

fixed prices through 2027). 

 

  Mr. Krajewski made the following recommendations:  If long-term power supply 

stability at low cost is most important factor to the City, they should consider 

signing the new NPPD 20-Year Agreement.  If City prefers terms of existing 

agreement, including reduce and limit options, it should do nothing monitor NPPD 

developments, particularly if it gives notice to terminate the GFPS. If lowest 

cost after 2019 is most important to City, notice to reduce purchases and terminate 

agreement should be given (provide notice to NPPD for reduction, subject to outcome 

of litigation, provide termination notice effective December 31, 2021 and commence 

negotiations with one or more short-listed providers). 

 

  Nebraska Public Power Representatives Chad Podolak (Wholesale Account 

Manager), John McClure (Vice President of Governmental Affairs & General Counsel), 

Traci Bender (Chief Financial Officer) and Mary Harding (Board of Directors) were 

present.  A handout was distributed which outlined the history of partnership 

with the City of Seward and other Nebraska communities.  These representatives 

reviewed short-term versus long-term power supply commitments, methods of power 

generation (maintaining diverse mix of fuel types), financial considerations for 

the future, and all services provided to communities (equipment, labor during 

storm damage, etc.)   

 

  Two wholesale contract options were included in NPPD’s information:  Option 

A: 20-year term, with up to 10 percent renewable behind the meter, ability to 

reduce if NPPD’s average wholesale cost exceeds 45th CFRC percentile; allows NPPD 

to “bank” credits if NPPD is below the CFC 25th percentile, lowest cost option; 

and Option B:  20-year term, up to 1 percent renewable behind the meter, can reduce 

down to 50 percent with maximum of 10 percent per year for any reason, below 50 

percent reductions can occur with exit payment, 3 percent premium above Option 

A. 

 

  Mayor Eickmeier mentioned that the City’s current contract is valid for 

another five years (expires in 2021) and expressed concern that NPPD was asking 

the City to begin a new 20-year contract while the previous contract would still 

be in effect.   

 

  An inquiry was made about the percentage of NPPD’s energy generated by coal. 

Mr. Podolak responded that about 51.7 percent is coal-generated.  In 2014, about 

20 percent of energy generated exceeded NPPD’s needs, with excess being sold to 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 15 / 266



December 21, 2015 Special 

 

4 

 

market.  NPPD is working to have a diversified portfolio of energy generation 

methods, managing emission standards for the future. 

 

 

  NPPD’s increased costs due to retirees/spouses benefits were briefly 

discussed.  All of NPPD’s customers are paying for catch-up costs related to NPPD’s 

underfunded benefit packages for retirees. 

 

  Ken Schmieding, Seward resident who was a former NPPD Board member, felt 

that NPPD continues to do work for the people of the state of Nebraska.  He feels 

they have quality employees and the Council should reflect on their past history.  

 

  Moved by Councilmember Pike, seconded by Councilmember Kamprath, that the 

City accept the Nebraska Public Power District 20-Year Wholesale Contract Option 

A as described previously. 

 

 Aye:  Singleton, Schmit, Kamprath, Fritz, Pike 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent:  Wilken, Beck, Hans.  Motion carried.  

   

5. CONSIDERATION OF ISSUING NOTICE TO NEBRASKA PUBLIC POWER TO REDUCE ENERGY 

PURCHASE 

  

 No action was taken on this item, since the Council approved a contract with Nebraska 

Public Power District in the previous agenda item. 

   

2. CONSIDERATION OF CITY OF SEWARD ACQUISITION OF SEWARD COUNTRY CLUB REAL & 

PERSONAL PROPERTY 

 

 At 8:40 p.m., Councilmember Kamprath moved, seconded by Councilmember 

Schmit, that the Council enter into executive session not to exceed twenty minutes, 

to include Mayor, City Administrator, City Attorney and all Councilmembers present 

to discuss possible acquisition of Seward Country Club real and personal property. 

 

 Aye:  Fritz, Pike, Singleton, Schmit, Kamprath 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent:  Wilken, Beck, Hans.  Motion carried. 

 

  At 8:57 p.m., a motion was made by Councilmember Schmit, seconded by 

Councilmember Pike, that the meeting be reconvened in open session. 

 

 Aye:  Kamprath, Fritz, Pike, Singleton, Schmit 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent:  Wilken, Beck, Hans.  Motion carried. 

 

  Mayor Eickmeier explained that during executive session, the City’s 

acquisition of Seward Country Club real and personal property was discussed.  

No action was taken. 

  

7.   MOTION TO ADJOURN 

 

Moved by Councilmember Singleton, seconded by Councilmember Kamprath, 

that the December 21, 2015 Special City Council meeting be adjourned. 

 

 Aye:  Schmit, Kamprath, Fritz, Pike, Singleton 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent:  wilken, Beck, Hans. Motion carried. 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 16 / 266



December 21, 2015 Special 

 

5 

 

                                 THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

 

                                   __________________________________ 

                                        Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor  

                                            

___________________________________ 

   Marilyn D. Varner 

   Deputy Clerk/Finance Director/ 

   Assistant Treasurer 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 17 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G3

CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA
Claims & Payables Reports

Seward County Economic Development Corporation Director's Report

Infrastructure Cost Items Reimbursable Back to the City

Administrative Report: After review of listed Consent Agenda items and supporting 
documents/reports, one motion to approve the consent agenda would be in order. Council may 
choose to pull any item from the Consent Agenda and consider/act on it separately.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 18 / 266



CLAIMS LIST 

      1-5-16 

COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Abbreviations: Bu, Building Upkeep; Eq, Equipment; Ex, Expense; Ma, 

Maintenance; Mi, Mileage; Misc, Miscellaneous; Re, Repairs; Sa, Salaries, Se, 

Services; Su, Supplies; Ut, Utilities, CI, Capital Improvements, Gu, Grounds 

Upkeep. 

     

Alliance Technologies Se 

 

2,850.85 

Alamar Uniforms Uniforms 

 

12.60 

Aldrich Melvin L Ex 

 

90.00 

Allied Surveying & Mapping Se 

 

168.00 

Ameritas Life Insurance Co Ins 

 

5,479.22 

Bloebaum Nickalas Ex 

 

90.00 

Broeker Duane Se 

 

250.00 

Carroll Dist/Const Supply Su 

 

557.10 

Chase Card Service 

  

2,123.57 

  Walmart Su, Bu, Uniform 573.49 

   Best Western Trng 572.82 

   Cabelas Su 314.96 

   Best Buy Su 525.70 

   Sports Turf Managers Dues 75.00 

   Supersaas Su 61.60 

 City Seward Buildings/Grounds Operations 

 

3,000.00 

City Seward Electric Fund Ut 

 

36,623.89 

City Seward Library Petty Su 

 

186.00 

City Seward Payroll Account Payroll 

 

108,987.23 

Commonwealth Electric Co Ut 

 

3,164.71 

Constellation Newengergy Ut 

 

1,469.83 

Cummins Central Power LLC Re 

 

120.38 

Danko Emergency Equipment Re, Eq 

 

807.19 

Davis Instruments Eq 

 

560.19 

Delta Dental Ins 

 

1,335.80 

Donnelley R R Eq 

 

56.56 

Dutton-Lainson Co LED Lights, Su, Re 

 

36,053.92 

Farmers Coop Seward Su 

 

9,660.00 

Fast Mart Su 

 

12.05 

Fastenal Company Su, Re 

 

975.96 

Gerhold Concrete Co Inc Re 

 

533.57 

Great Plains Communication Se 

 

586.00 

H & S Plumbing Heating & AC Bu 

 

83.15 

Hansen Dan Ex 

 

116.50 

Helmink Printing Inc Su 

 

522.00 

Herpolsheimer'S Inc Re 

 

15.60 

Husker Electric Supply Co Re, Su 

 

1,400.73 

Hydraulic Equipment Service Re 

 

87.90 

Int'L Code Council Dues 

 

135.00 

Jackson Services Inc Ma 

 

123.60 

Jacobsen Rock & Gravel Ma 

 

6,401.10 

Johner Randy Meals 

 

43.18 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 19 / 266



Kriz-Davis Co Re, Eq, Uniform 

 

1,363.87 

Last Mile Network Consultant Se 

 

235.30 

Latsch'S Su 

 

559.43 

Lincoln Patio & Awning Re 

 

100.00 

Marlin'S Plumbing Heating Re 

 

40.50 

Matheson Tri-Gas Inc Su 

 

45.40 

Mattson Ricketts Law Firm Se 

 

4,000.00 

Memorial Health-Meals Meals 

 

5,347.49 

Menards Bu 

 

84.27 

Meyer Automotive Chev Volt 

 

15,200.00 

Mid-American Benefits Inc Ins 

 

1,039.62 

Midwest Service & Sales Re 

 

197.00 

Midwest Turf & Irrigation Re 

 

723.54 

Miers Robert M Ex 

 

90.00 

Municipal Supply Nebraska Re, Eq 

 

5,783.37 

Nebraska Health Environment Se 

 

688.00 

Nebraska Nursery & Landscape Trng 

 

230.00 

Nebraska Rural Electric A Trng 

 

900.00 

Nebraska Sports Eq 

 

636.86 

Northern Safety Co Inc Su 

 

77.39 

Odeys Inc Gu 

 

870.00 

Olsson Associates Se 

 

12,629.52 

O'Reilly Auto Parts Su 

 

93.13 

Orscheln Farm & Home Su, Re 

 

1,000.04 

Plunkett'S Pest Control Bu 

 

114.64 

Pollak Cody Ex 

 

90.00 

Pollak Douglas W Meals 

 

57.75 

Precision Tool & Machine Re 

 

453.11 

Principal Financial Group Ins 

 

656.46 

Quill Corp Su 

 

822.80 

R D J Specialties Inc Su 

 

486.63 

Racom Corporation Se 

 

260.50 

Richters Inc Bu 

 

193.37 

Rose Equipment Inc Re 

 

162.42 

Ruether Larry L Misc 

 

26.50 

Salt Creek Software Inc Se 

 

2,140.00 

Sam'S Club (Sen Center) Su, Dues 

 

30.30 

Sanley Patricia Meals 

 

50.60 

Schaefer Troy Ex 

 

90.00 

Smith Bruce Ex 

 

100.00 

Sports Express Su 

 

87.00 

Stutzman Digging Re 

 

4,000.00 

Supplyworks Su 

 

114.39 

Tech Products Inc Su 

 

194.63 

Tiger Direct Inc Eq 

 

79.99 

Time Warner Cable Ut 

 

79.38 

U S A Bluebook - Cust 812 Su 

 

405.89 

U S Cellular Ut 

 

228.22 

U S Postal Service Permit 

 

225.00 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 20 / 266



United Health Care Ins 

 

50,560.71 

Verizon Wireless Ex 

 

30.48 

Wesco Distribution Inc Re, Su 

 

   1,583.04 

  CLAIMS TOTAL 

 

$339,941.92 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 21 / 266



  Seward County Economic Development Corporation 
Activities Report – Jonathan Jank 

 
Director’s Report – December 16, 2015              Report period:  11/11/2015-12/16/2015 

 
Presentations 
 Submitted articles, quotes, and/or press releases for the Seward County Independent 
 Promoting SCEDC via Facebook page and website updates 
 Promoted the SCEDC at Seward County Government Day (11/18) 
 Monthly SCEDC Update to the Seward County Commissioners (12/1) 
 Testified at the Transportation and Telecommunications Sub-Committee Meeting about Expanding Nebraska Expressway System (12/1) 
 Coffee Networking Event at Southeast Community College in Lincoln (12/3) 
  
Financial Information  
 Seward County Economic Development Corporation Primary Account Balance: $35,836.95 
 Seward County Economic Development Corporation Secondary Account Balance: $131,411.07 
 Fundraising: 

 Recent donations/grants: 
o Private and Public Sector Annual Contributions (Pledges, Cash, and Donation of Facilities) to the SCEDC – City of Seward ($40,000) 
o Debit Card Dime-A-Time – $0.20 

 Events: 
o SCEDC Board Meeting in Beaver Crossing at Bayer CropScience – November 12 
o Connecting Young Professionals Regional training/networking event in Seward County – November 18 
o University of Oklahoma Economic Development Institute – December 6 – 10 
o Community Venture Network recruitment event – December 11 
o Downtown Seward Development Meeting – December 14 

 Upcoming Events: 
o Nebraska Builders Home and Garden Show – February 14-16 

 
Administration 
 Meetings: 

o Seward County Bridges Board (Board Meeting – 11/23) 
o Seward Area Development Corporation (Luncheon Meeting – 12/3) 
o Seward County Economic Development Corporation (Board Meeting – 11/12; Meeting with Board Chair – 11/13 and 11/23) 
o Seward City Council Meeting (Bi-Monthly Meeting – 11/17 & 12/15; Rail Campus Committee Mtgs – 11/19 & 11/30; LB 840 Committee Meeting – 11/19) 
o Milford City Council Meeting (None) 
o Village of Utica Trustees Meeting (None) 
o Seward County Commissioners Meeting (Presentation about SCEDC – 12/1) 

 
Membership Meetings 

 Milford Chamber of Commerce (Monthly Luncheon – 11/12) 
 Utica Commercial Club (Monthly Luncheon – 11/24) 
 Seward Area Chamber of Commerce (Multiple Meetings with Director) 
 Seward Kiwanis Club (Singing with the Kitones) 
 Seward County Interagency Council (None) 
 Milford Community Development (None) 
 Utica NEDED Downtown Revitalization Application (None) 
 Lincoln Area Development Partnership (Annual Meeting – 11/23) 
 Southeast Nebraska Development District/Southeast Resource Network (None) 
 UNL President’s Advisory Council (None) 
 Community Change Catalyst with the Sherwood Foundation (Meeting – 12/4) 
 

Trainings 

 Graduated from Oklahoma University Economic Development Institute (12/6 – 12/10) 
 
Projects (works in progress) 

 Working with multiple entrepreneurs expanding in downtown Seward (and Danbred Building) 
 Working with Concordia University to collaborate on multiple projects 
 Working on updating the Rail Campus marketing flier 
 Working on organizing downtown building and business owners in Seward for revitalization efforts 
 Working on Project House and regional agricultural support project 
 Following up with multiple companies met at Community Venture Network session in Minnesota 
 Researching a statewide museum to bring to Seward County 
 Working in partnership with NEDED with local entrepreneur to expand in Seward County 
 Working with local building owners to fill their empty buildings in Seward 
 Providing development data for church in Seward to expand their child care center 
 Providing local and statewide incentives information to multiple entrepreneurs in Seward County 
 Answered multiple questions from regional stakeholders needing economic information about Seward County 
 Working with the Seward County Vision Working Group 
 Working on planning for many upcoming events (see above) in Seward County and to promote Seward County… 

 
Holiday and Vacation – November 11, 26, 27 (Holiday); November 25 (Half-Day Vacation) 
 
Signature:     Date: 12/16/15 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 22 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G4

CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD - Bruce Smith & Paul 
Grieger
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 
BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 
EXCEED ONE MILLION ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,100,000) FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF $1,050,000 OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011, AND RELATED MATTERS

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN 
THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED FOUR MILLION NINE 
HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,900,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF (A) REFUNDING ALL 
OR A PORTION OF $1,595,000 OF ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011 
AND $390,000 OF ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011B, (B) PAYING THE COSTS OF 
IMPROVEMENTS TO AND EXPANSION OF THE CITY’S ELECTRIC SYSTEM, INCLUDING 
PAYING AND REDEEMING CERTAIN SHORT TERM INDEBTEDNESS ISSUED FOR SUCH 
PURPOSES, AND RELATED MATTERS

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF HIGHWAY ALLOCATION FUND PLEDGE 
BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, SERIES 2016, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
OF NOT TO EXCEED NINE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($950,000) FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF CONSTRUCTING CERTAIN STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
IN THE CITY, AND RELATED MATTERS

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE 
AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016, OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED FOUR MILLION TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($4,200,000), FOR THE PURPOSE OF (A) REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF 
$300,000 OF OUTSTANDING SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 23 / 266



SERIES 2010, $3,430,000 OF OUTSTANDING SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES 2011 AND $150,000 OF OUTSTANDING SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES 2011B; (B) PAYING THE COSTS OF IMPROVEMENTS TO AND EXPANSION OF THE 
CITY’S SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM, AND RELATED MATTERS

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN 
THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED ONE MILLION TWO HUNDRED SEVENTY-
FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,275,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF REFUNDING ALL OR A 
PORTION OF $1,255,000 OF OUTSTANDING WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2011, AND RELATED MATTERS

Administrative Report: Highway Allocation Bond Summary

Cedar Street Improvements            $183,540 (completed)

Jackson Ave                                    $126,684 (completed)

Highway 34 Overlay                        $  37,206 (bonds were received in the amount of $700,060 on 
8/1/13;  however, the State NDOR continues to bill additional costs and has not closed out the project

Columbia Ave Paving                    $298,998 (completed)

Izaak Walton Road Project            $  72,947 (completed)

Orscheln/Dollar Gen Driveway      $  40,219 (completed)

Karol Kay (Bader to Hillcrest)        $  50,000 (not completed – project set to complete in 2017 – only 
bonding $50,000 at this time

   Total                                             $  809,594 

Plum Creek Sewer Siphon           $100,000 (not completed) 

  Protection

   Total                                             $100,000 

Electric                                             

              14th Street Sub              $1,986,000 (anticipation notes to be permanently funded)

Roberts Street Project                  $   625,000 (project just awarded - $571,800 plus engineering – 
scheduled for completion 12-31-2016)

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 24 / 266



34.5 Underground to Water       $   500,000 (not completed – Fall, 2016; (engineer rough est; already 
purchased cable at a cost of $122,867. Dept purchased for the project when they purchased for 14th 
Street to save on costs)

              

  Total                                              $2,733,867 

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 25 / 266



1111 North 102nd Court, Suite 300  |  Omaha, NE 68114  |  (800) 206-7523  |  FAX: (402) 392-7908 

www.davidsoncompanies.com/ficm  
D.A. Davidson & Co. member SIPC 

City of Seward, NE 
Proposed 2016 Bond Issues 

 
 
Highway Allocation Fund Pledge Bonds: 
Par:  $825,000 
Projected Rate: 4.25% 
Final Maturity:  No later than 12/31/31 
Purpose:  Reimbursement 
 
Refunding of 2011 General Obligation Bonds: 
Par:  $1,085,000 
Current Rate: 3.30% 
Projected Rate: 1.89% (True Interest Cost) 
Net Present Value Savings: $44,000 (4.2% of Refunded Debt) 
Final Maturity:  December 15, 2022 
Purpose:  Refunded Series 2006 Bonds 
 
 

Refunding of 2011 Water System Revenue Bonds: 
Par:  $1,220,000 
Current Rate: 4.03% 
Projected Rate:  2.40% (True Interest Cost) 
Net Present Value Savings:  $119,000 (10.1% of Refunded Debt) 
Final Maturity:  June 1, 2026 
Purpose:  Refunded Series 2006 Bonds 

 

Refunding of 2010, 2011, 2011B Sewer Bonds and New Plum Creek Project: 
Par:  $4,155,000 
Current Rate: 3.59% 
Projected Rate: 2.65% (True Interest Cost) 
Net Present Value Savings: $205,000 (5.7% of Refunded Debt) 
Final Maturity:  September 15, 2031 
Purpose:  Funded improvements to the Sanitary Sewer System 
 
 

Refunding of Electric System 2011, 2011B Bonds and 2014 BANs and Roberts St. Project: 
Par:  $4,815,000 
Net Present Value Savings: $114,000 (5.9% of Refunded Debt) 
Current Rate: 3.60% 
Projected Rate: 2.33% (True Interest Cost) 
Final Maturity:  February 15, 2026 
Purpose: 1) Series 2011A Bonds refunded the Series 2005 Bonds; and 
               2) Series 2011B Bonds funded replacement of an underground feeder for the water substation. 
 3) 2014 BANs refunded the Series 2013 BANs, which funded improvements to the Electric System  
  consisting of the 14th Street substation rebuild. 

D.A. Davidson & Co. 
member SIPC 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 26 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 1,085,000.00

1,085,000.00

Uses:

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 1,065,281.72

Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance 2,648.75
Underwriter's Discount 13,562.50

16,211.25

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding 3,507.03

1,085,000.00

Note:  Escrow cost assumes SLGS are available or represent a proxy for the cost of open market USTs.

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 27 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 2

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016
Arbitrage yield 1.553037%
Escrow yield 0.000000%
Value of Negative Arbitrage

Bond Par Amount 1,085,000.00
True Interest Cost 1.895529%
Net Interest Cost 1.556345%
All-In TIC 1.963139%
Average Coupon 1.556345%
Average Life 3.829

Par amount of refunded bonds 1,050,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 3.302918%
Average life of refunded bonds 3.898

PV of prior debt to 03/08/2016 @ 1.553037% 1,125,874.22
Net PV Savings 44,381.25
Percentage savings of refunded bonds 4.226786%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 28 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 3

SAVINGS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Present Value
Prior Refunding Refunding Refunding Annual to 03/08/2016

Date Debt Service Debt Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  1.5530373%

03/08/2016 3,507.03 -3,507.03 3,507.03 3,507.03
06/15/2016 15,992.50 4,018.76 4,018.76 11,973.74 11,923.93
09/30/2016 15,480.77
12/15/2016 155,992.50 157,457.50 157,457.50 -1,465.00 -1,447.66
06/15/2017 14,487.50 6,895.00 6,895.00 7,592.50 7,444.85
09/30/2017 6,127.50
12/15/2017 149,487.50 151,895.00 151,895.00 -2,407.50 -2,342.49
06/15/2018 12,800.00 6,133.75 6,133.75 6,666.25 6,436.26
09/30/2018 4,258.75
12/15/2018 157,800.00 161,133.75 161,133.75 -3,333.75 -3,193.93
06/15/2019 10,770.00 5,165.00 5,165.00 5,605.00 5,328.55
09/30/2019 2,271.25
12/15/2019 160,770.00 160,165.00 160,165.00 605.00 570.73
06/15/2020 8,407.50 4,080.00 4,080.00 4,327.50 4,050.90
09/30/2020 4,932.50
12/15/2020 163,407.50 164,080.00 164,080.00 -672.50 -624.67
06/15/2021 5,811.25 2,840.00 2,840.00 2,971.25 2,738.64
09/30/2021 2,298.75
12/15/2021 165,811.25 162,840.00 162,840.00 2,971.25 2,717.54
06/15/2022 3,011.25 1,480.00 1,480.00 1,531.25 1,389.71
09/30/2022 4,502.50
12/15/2022 168,011.25 161,480.00 161,480.00 6,531.25 5,881.86
09/30/2023 6,531.25

1,192,560.00 1,149,663.76 3,507.03 1,146,156.73 46,403.27 46,403.27 44,381.25

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 44,381.25

Net PV Savings 44,381.25

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 29 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 4

SAVINGS BY MATURITY

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Adjusted
Maturity Interest Par Adjusted Savings

Bond Date Rate Amount Savings Percent

Ser 2011 GO NR Cur Ref of '06 (callable 6/7/16), 11RFGO06:
SERIAL 12/15/2016 2.150% 140,000.00 -1,404.22 -1.003%

12/15/2017 2.500% 135,000.00 476.88 0.353%
12/15/2018 2.800% 145,000.00 2,826.28 1.949%
12/15/2019 3.150% 150,000.00 6,148.15 4.099%
12/15/2020 3.350% 155,000.00 9,145.13 5.900%
12/15/2021 3.500% 160,000.00 12,066.98 7.542%
12/15/2022 3.650% 165,000.00 15,122.05 9.165%

1,050,000.00 44,381.25

Note:  Calculated Using Remaining Maturities

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 30 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 5

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bond:
12/15/2016 150,000 0.750% 0.750% 100.000
12/15/2017 145,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
12/15/2018 155,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
12/15/2019 155,000 1.400% 1.400% 100.000
12/15/2020 160,000 1.550% 1.550% 100.000
12/15/2021 160,000 1.700% 1.700% 100.000
12/15/2022 160,000 1.850% 1.850% 100.000

1,085,000

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016
First Coupon 06/15/2016

Par Amount 1,085,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 1,085,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -13,562.50 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 1,071,437.50 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 1,071,437.50

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 31 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 6

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016
First Coupon 06/15/2016
Last Maturity 12/15/2022

Arbitrage Yield 1.553037%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.895529%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.556345%
All-In TIC 1.963139%
Average Coupon 1.556345%

Average Life (years) 3.829
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 3.829
Duration of Issue (years) 3.698

Par Amount 1,085,000.00
Bond Proceeds 1,085,000.00
Total Interest 64,663.76
Net Interest 78,226.26
Bond Years from Dated Date 4,154,847.22
Bond Years from Delivery Date 4,154,847.22
Total Debt Service 1,149,663.76
Maximum Annual Debt Service 166,920.00
Average Annual Debt Service 169,831.33

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bond 1,085,000.00 100.000 1.556% 3.829 396.75

1,085,000.00 3.829 396.75

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 1,085,000.00 1,085,000.00 1,085,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -13,562.50 -13,562.50
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -2,648.75
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 1,071,437.50 1,068,788.75 1,085,000.00

Target Date 03/08/2016 03/08/2016 03/08/2016
Yield 1.895529% 1.963139% 1.553037%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 32 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 7

BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

06/15/2016 4,018.76 4,018.76
09/30/2016 4,018.76
12/15/2016 150,000 0.750% 7,457.50 157,457.50
06/15/2017 6,895.00 6,895.00
09/30/2017 164,352.50
12/15/2017 145,000 1.050% 6,895.00 151,895.00
06/15/2018 6,133.75 6,133.75
09/30/2018 158,028.75
12/15/2018 155,000 1.250% 6,133.75 161,133.75
06/15/2019 5,165.00 5,165.00
09/30/2019 166,298.75
12/15/2019 155,000 1.400% 5,165.00 160,165.00
06/15/2020 4,080.00 4,080.00
09/30/2020 164,245.00
12/15/2020 160,000 1.550% 4,080.00 164,080.00
06/15/2021 2,840.00 2,840.00
09/30/2021 166,920.00
12/15/2021 160,000 1.700% 2,840.00 162,840.00
06/15/2022 1,480.00 1,480.00
09/30/2022 164,320.00
12/15/2022 160,000 1.850% 1,480.00 161,480.00
09/30/2023 161,480.00

1,085,000 64,663.76 1,149,663.76 1,149,663.76

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 33 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 8

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Ser 2011 GO NR Cur Ref of '06 (callable 6/7/16):
SERIAL 12/15/2016 2.150% 140,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000

12/15/2017 2.500% 135,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
12/15/2018 2.800% 145,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
12/15/2019 3.150% 150,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
12/15/2020 3.350% 155,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
12/15/2021 3.500% 160,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
12/15/2022 3.650% 165,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000

1,050,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 34 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 9

ESCROW REQUIREMENTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016

Period Principal
Ending Interest Redeemed Total

06/07/2016 15,281.72 1,050,000.00 1,065,281.72

15,281.72 1,050,000.00 1,065,281.72

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 35 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:03 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16GNC11E,16GNC11E)   Page 10

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2022 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

06/15/2016 15,992.50 15,992.50
09/30/2016 15,992.50
12/15/2016 140,000 2.150% 15,992.50 155,992.50
06/15/2017 14,487.50 14,487.50
09/30/2017 170,480.00
12/15/2017 135,000 2.500% 14,487.50 149,487.50
06/15/2018 12,800.00 12,800.00
09/30/2018 162,287.50
12/15/2018 145,000 2.800% 12,800.00 157,800.00
06/15/2019 10,770.00 10,770.00
09/30/2019 168,570.00
12/15/2019 150,000 3.150% 10,770.00 160,770.00
06/15/2020 8,407.50 8,407.50
09/30/2020 169,177.50
12/15/2020 155,000 3.350% 8,407.50 163,407.50
06/15/2021 5,811.25 5,811.25
09/30/2021 169,218.75
12/15/2021 160,000 3.500% 5,811.25 165,811.25
06/15/2022 3,011.25 3,011.25
09/30/2022 168,822.50
12/15/2022 165,000 3.650% 3,011.25 168,011.25
09/30/2023 168,011.25

1,050,000 142,560.00 1,192,560.00 1,192,560.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 36 / 266



 ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 

BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 

EXCEED ONE MILLION ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,100,000) FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF $1,050,000 OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011; DIRECTING THE APPLICATION OF THE PROCEEDS OF 

SAID BONDS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND 

COLLECTION OF TAXES TO PAY THE SAME; PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF THE BONDS; 

AUTHORIZING THE DELIVERY OF THE BONDS TO THE PURCHASER; AND ORDERING THE 

ORDINANCE PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA: 

 

Section 1.  The Mayor and City Council hereby find and determine that there have been 

heretofore issued and are now outstanding and unpaid valid and interest bearing bonds of the City of Seward, 

Nebraska, as follows: 

 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, date of original issue – June 11, 2011, in 

the principal amount of One Million Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,050,000), numbered as 

shown on the books of the Paying Agent becoming due and bearing interest as follows: 

 

 

Principal  

Amount 

Maturing  

December 15 

Of Year  

 

Interest  

Rate 

 

 

CUSIP No. 

$140,000 2016 2.15% 81847E KR6 

135,000 2017 2.50 81847E KS4 

145,000 2018 2.80 81847E KT2 

150,000 2019 3.15 81847E KU9 

155,000 2020 3.35 81847E KV7 

160,000 2021 3.50 81847E KW5 

165,000 2022 3.65 81847E KX3 

 

Said bonds are hereinafter referred to as the “2011 Bonds”.  The 2011 Bonds are subject to 

redemption at any time on or after June 7, 2016, at the principal amount thereof plus accrued 

interest, and said interest is payable semiannually.  The proceeds of the 2011 Bonds were 

issued for the purpose of refunding the City’s outstanding General Obligation Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2006, dated July 21, 2006, in the principal amount of $1,440,000 maturing in 

the years 2011 through 2022, and to pay costs of issuance and underwriting associated with 

issuance of the 2011 Bonds;  

 

that the 2011 Bonds are valid, interest bearing obligations of the City of Seward, Nebraska, and that all or a 

portion of the 2011 Bonds are authorized herein to be irrevocably called for redemption on such date as 

determined by the Authorized Officers (defined herein); that since the 2011 Bonds were issued, the rates of 

interest available in the market have declined such that by taking up and paying off all or a portion of the 2011 

Bonds through the issuance of refunding bonds as provided herein, a savings in the amount of yearly running 

interest will be made to the City;  for the purpose of making said redemption, it is for the best interest of the 

City to issue general obligation refunding bonds of the City in the principal amount of not to exceed 

$1,100,000 (the “Bonds”), pursuant to Section 10-142, R.R.S. Neb. 2012, and all laws amendatory thereof or 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 37 / 266



 2 

supplementary thereto, and all conditions, acts and things required by law to exist or to be done precedent to 

the issuance of such refunding bonds do exist and have been done as required by law. 

 

 Section 2.   To provide funds for the purpose of refinancing the Refunded Bonds as set out in 

Section 1 hereof, there shall be and there are hereby ordered issued the Bonds, in one or more series, in the 

aggregate stated principal amount of not to exceed $1,100,000.  The Bonds or any portion thereof are hereby 

authorized to be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale with D.A. Davidson & Co., as initial purchaser (the 

“Underwriter”).  In connection with such sale, the Mayor, City Administrator or City Clerk-Treasurer (each, an 

“Authorized Officer”) are hereby authorized to specify, determine, designate, establish and appoint, as the case 

may be, in one or more written designations which may be included in a bond purchase agreement (each, a 

“Designation”), (i) the aggregate purchase price of the Bonds and the underwriting discount which shall not 

exceed 1.25% of the aggregate stated principal amount thereof, (ii) the form and contents of any bond purchase 

agreement in connection with such sale, (iii) the title (including series designation), dated date (which shall not 

be later than December 31, 2016), aggregate principal amount (including the aggregate principal amounts of 

serial Bonds and term Bonds, if any), which aggregate stated principal amount shall not exceed $1,100,000, 

and the final maturity date, which shall not be later than December 31, 2022, (iv) the principal amounts 

maturing in each year, (v) the rate or rates of interest to be borne by each principal maturity, provided that 

present value savings results from refunding the Refunded Bonds, (vi) the principal payment dates and interest 

payment dates, (vii) whether the Bonds will be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity, and if 

subject to such optional redemption, the provisions governing such redemption, including a redemption price 

not to exceed 104% of the principal amount then being redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of 

redemption, (viii) the amount and due date of each sinking fund installment for any of the Bonds issued as term 

Bonds, (ix) the designation of the Paying Agent and Registrar and the form and content of any agreement 

between the City and such entity and (x) all other terms and provisions of the Bonds not otherwise specified or 

fixed by this Ordinance.    

 

 The Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby authorized to irrevocably call any or all of 

the 2011 Bonds (as called for redemption, the “Refunded Bonds”) for redemption on such date or dates he or 

she determines appropriate on and after June 7, 2016, which date or dates shall be the Redemption Dates 

hereunder.  The Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby authorized to designate, approve, execute 

and deliver, as the case may be (i) the form, content, terms and provisions of any published and/or mailed 

notice of redemption with respect to the payment and redemption of the Refunded Bonds, (ii) an Escrow 

Agent, (iii) the form, content, terms and provisions of an Escrow Agreement with the Escrow Agent for the 

purpose of providing for the deposit in trust with the Escrow Agent a portion of the net proceeds of the Bonds, 

the investment of such net proceeds pending their application, the application of such proceeds and any 

investment income to the payment of all of the principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds maturing on or 

before the Redemption Date and the application of the balance of such proceeds and any investment income 

thereof to the redemption and retirement of the Refunded Bonds on the Redemption Date. 

 

 The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral 

multiple thereof.  The date of original issue for the Bonds shall be the date of delivery thereof.  Interest on the 

Bonds, at the respective rates for each maturity, shall be payable as determined in the Designation, (each of 

said dates an "Interest Payment Date") and the Bonds shall bear such interest from the date of original issue or 

the most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later.  The interest due on each Interest Payment Date shall 

be payable to the registered owners of record as of the close of business on the fifteenth day immediately 

preceding the Interest Payment Date (or such other date as may be determined in the Designation, the "Record 

Date"), subject to the provisions of Section 4 hereof.  The Bonds shall be numbered from 1 upwards in the 

order of their issuance.  No Bond shall be issued originally or upon transfer or partial redemption having more 

than one principal maturity.  The initial bond numbering and principal amounts for each of the Bonds issued 

shall be designated by the City's Treasurer as directed by the initial purchaser thereof.  Payments of interest due 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 38 / 266



 3 

on the Bonds prior to maturity or date of redemption shall be made by the Paying Agent and Registrar, as 

designated pursuant to Section 3 hereof, by mailing a check or draft in the amount due for such interest on each 

Interest Payment Date to the registered owner of each Bond, as of the Record Date for such Interest Payment 

Date, to such owner's registered address as shown on the books of registration as required to be maintained in 

Section 3 hereof.  Payments of principal and accrued interest thereon due at maturity or at any date fixed for 

redemption prior to maturity shall be made by said Paying Agent and Registrar to the registered owners upon 

presentation and surrender of the Bonds to said Paying Agent and Registrar.  The City and said Paying Agent 

and Registrar may treat the registered owner of any Bond as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose 

of making payments thereon and for all other purposes and neither the City nor the Paying Agent and Registrar 

shall be affected by any notice or knowledge to the contrary, whether such Bond or any installment of interest 

due thereon shall be overdue or not. All payments on account of interest or principal made to the registered 

owner of any Bond in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance shall be valid and effectual and shall be a 

discharge of the City and said Paying Agent and Registrar, in respect of the liability upon the Bonds or claims 

for interest to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

 

 Section 3.  The Paying Agent and Registrar designated pursuant to the Designation shall serve in 

such capacities under the terms of an agreement entitled "Paying Agent and Registrar's Agreement" between 

the City and said Paying Agent and Registrar, in a form approved by an Authorized Officer.  The Paying Agent 

and Registrar shall keep and maintain for the City books for the registration and transfer of the Bonds at its 

principal corporate trust office.  The names and registered addresses of the registered owner or owners of the 

Bonds shall at all times be recorded in such books. Any Bond may be transferred pursuant to its provisions at 

the principal corporate trust office of said Paying Agent and Registrar by surrender of such Bond for 

cancellation, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, in form satisfactory to said Paying Agent and 

Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner in person or by such owner's duly authorized agent, and 

thereupon the Paying Agent and Registrar on behalf of the City will deliver at its office (or send by registered 

mail to the transferee owner or owners thereof at such transferee owner's or owners' risk and expense), 

registered in the name of such transferee owner or owners, a new Bond or Bonds of the same interest rate, 

aggregate principal amount and maturity.  To the extent of the denominations authorized for the Bonds by this 

Ordinance, one such bond may be transferred for several such bonds of the same interest rate and maturity, and 

for a like aggregate principal amount, and several such bonds may be transferred for one or several such bonds, 

respectively, of the same interest rate and maturity and for a like aggregate principal amount.  In every case of 

transfer of a Bond, the surrendered Bond or Bonds shall be canceled and destroyed.  All Bonds issued upon 

transfer of the Bonds so surrendered shall be valid obligations of the City evidencing the same obligations as 

the Bonds surrendered and shall be entitled to all the benefits and protection of this Ordinance to the same 

extent as the Bonds upon transfer of which they were delivered.  The City and said Paying Agent and Registrar 

shall not be required to transfer any Bond during any period from any Record Date until its immediately 

following Interest Payment Date or to transfer any Bond called for redemption for a period of 30 days next 

preceding the date fixed for redemption. 

 

Section 4.  In the event that payments of interest due on the Bonds on an Interest Payment Date 

are not timely made, such interest shall cease to be payable to the registered owners as of the Record Date for 

such Interest Payment Date and shall be payable to the registered owners of the Bonds as of a special date of 

record for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be designated by the Paying Agent and Registrar 

whenever monies for the purpose of paying such defaulted interest become available. 

 

Section 5.   If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, 

Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal corporate trust 

office of the Paying Agent and Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the 

date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day 

on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such day shall have the same force 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 39 / 266



 4 

and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

 

 Section 6.   In addition to any mandatory sinking fund redemptions as may be provided for as set 

out in Section 2 of this Ordinance, the Bonds shall be subject to redemption at the option of the City, in whole 

or in part, prior to maturity at any time on or after such date as may be provided in the Designation, at par plus 

accrued interest on the principal amount redeemed to the date fixed for redemption. The City may select the 

Bonds to be redeemed for optional redemption in its sole discretion.  Bonds for mandatory redemption shall be 

selected by the Paying Agent and Registrar using any random method of selection determined appropriate by 

the Paying Agent and Registrar.  Bonds redeemed pursuant to the requirements for mandatory redemption shall 

be redeemed at par plus accrued interest on the principal amount redeemed.  The Bonds shall be redeemed only 

in amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof.  Bonds redeemed in part only shall be surrendered to said 

Paying Agent and Registrar in exchange for a new Bond evidencing the unredeemed principal thereof.  Notice 

of redemption of any Bond called for redemption shall be given, at the direction of the City in the case of 

optional redemption and without further direction in the case of mandatory redemption, by said Paying Agent 

and Registrar by mail not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, first class, postage prepaid, 

sent to the registered owner of such Bond at said owner's registered address.  Such notice shall designate the 

Bond or Bonds to be redeemed by maturity or otherwise, the date of original issue, series and the date fixed for 

redemption and shall state that such Bond or Bonds are to be presented for prepayment at the office of said 

Paying Agent and Registrar.  In case of any Bond partially redeemed, such notice shall specify the portion of 

the principal amount of such Bond to be redeemed.  No defect in the mailing of notice for any Bond shall 

affect the sufficiency of the proceedings of the City designating the Bonds called for redemption or the 

effectiveness of such call for Bonds for which notice by mail has been properly given and the City shall have 

the right to further direct notice of redemption for any such Bond for which defective notice has been given.  

 

Section 7.   The Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 40 / 266



 5 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

COUNTY OF SEWARD 

  

 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND OF 

 THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 SERIES 2016 

  

No. R-___   $__________ 

 

Interest Date Maturity Date Date of  Original Issue CUSIP No. 

% ________,  __________, 2016  

 

Registered Owner: Cede & Co. 

  13-2555119 
   

Principal Amount:   

 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  That the City of Seward, in the County of Seward, 

in the State of Nebraska, hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay to the 

registered owner specified above, or registered assigns, the principal amount specified above in lawful money 

of the United States of America on the date of maturity specified above with interest thereon to maturity (or 

earlier redemption) from the date of original issue or most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later, at 

the rate per annum specified above, payable semiannually on ________ and ________ of each year, 

commencing ___________, 2016 (each of said dates an "Interest Payment Date").  Said interest shall be 

computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.  The principal hereof and unpaid 

accrued interest thereon due at maturity or upon redemption prior to maturity are payable upon presentation 

and surrender of this bond at the principal corporate trust office of ____________________________, the 

Paying Agent and Registrar, in Seward, Nebraska. Interest on this bond due prior to maturity or earlier 

redemption will be paid on each Interest Payment Date by a check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar to the registered owner of this bond, as shown on the books of record maintained by the Paying 

Agent and Registrar, at the close of business on the fifteenth day immediately preceding the Interest Payment 

Date, to such owner's registered address as shown on such books and records.  Any interest not so timely paid 

shall cease to be payable to the person entitled thereto as of the record date such interest was payable, and shall 

be payable to the person who is the registered owner of this bond (or of one or more predecessor bonds hereto) 

on such special record date for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be fixed by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar whenever monies for such purpose become available.  For the prompt payment of this bond, principal 

and interest, as the same become due, the full faith, credit and resources of said City are hereby irrevocably 

pledged. 

 

This bond is one of an issue of fully registered bonds of the total principal amount of ______________ 

________________________________________ Dollars ($_________), of even date and like tenor except as 

to date of maturity, rate of interest and denomination which were issued by the City for the purpose of paying 

and redeeming the City’s General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, dated June 7, 2011, in the 

principal amount of $_________ maturing in the years ________ through _______, in strict compliance with 

Section 10-142, R.R.S. Neb. 2012, as amended.  The issuance of said bonds has been authorized by 

proceedings duly had and an ordinance legally passed, approved and published by the Mayor and Council of 

said City.  

 

 All Bonds of this issue are subject to redemption at the option of the City, in whole or in part, at any 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 41 / 266



 6 

time on or after _______________, at par plus interest accrued on the principal amount redeemed to the date 

fixed for redemption.   

 

[ In addition, the Bonds maturing in the years ____, ____ and ____ shall be subject to mandatory 

sinking fund redemption payments (with bonds being redeemed at par plus accrued interest) as follows: 

 

$             Principal Maturing                   , 20 

$        to be called ________, 20   

$       to be called ________, 20   

$             Payable ________, 20   

 

$             Principal Maturing                   , 20 

$        to be called ________, 20   

$       to be called ________, 20   

$             Payable ________, 20   

 

$             Principal Maturing                  5, 20 

$        to be called ________, 20   

$       to be called ________, 20   

$             Payable ________, 20    ] 

 

Such mandatory redemptions shall be at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus interest 

accrued on the principal amount being redeemed to the date fixed for redemption.  The Paying Agent and 

Registrar shall select the Term Bonds for mandatory redemption using any random method of selection 

deemed appropriate by the Paying Agent and Registrar.] 

 

 Notice of redemption shall be given by mail to the registered owner of any bond to be redeemed at said 

registered owner's address in the manner specified in the Ordinance authorizing said issue of bonds. Individual 

bonds may be redeemed in part but only in $5,000 amounts or integral multiples thereof. 

 

This bond is transferable by the registered owner or such owner's attorney duly authorized in writing at 

the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent and Registrar upon surrender and cancellation of this 

bond, and thereupon a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate principal amount, interest rate and maturity 

will be issued to the transferee as provided in the ordinance authorizing said issue of bonds, subject to the 

limitations therein prescribed. The City, the Paying Agent and Registrar and any other person may treat the 

person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving 

payment due hereunder and for all purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary, whether 

this bond be overdue or not. 

 

If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on this bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal corporate trust office of the 

Paying Agent and Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such 

payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which 

such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such day shall have the same force and effect 

as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND WARRANTED that all conditions, acts and things required by law 

to exist or to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this bond and in the issuance of the bonds refunded 

hereby did exist, did happen and were done and performed in regular and due form and time as required by law 

and that the indebtedness of said City, including this bond and the bonds refunded hereby, does not exceed any 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 42 / 266



 7 

limitation imposed by law.  The City agrees that it will cause to be levied and collected annually a tax by 

valuation on all the taxable property in the City, in addition to all other taxes, sufficient in rate and amount to 

fully pay the principal and interest of this bond and the other bonds of this issue as the same become due. 

 

AS PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE REFERRED TO HEREIN, UNTIL THE TERMINATION 

OF THE SYSTEM OF BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY TRANSFERS THROUGH THE DEPOSITORY TRUST 

COMPANY, NEW YORK, NEW YORK (TOGETHER WITH ANY SUCCESSOR SECURITIES 

DEPOSITORY APPOINTED PURSUANT TO THE ORDINANCE, "DTC"), AND NOTWITHSTANDING 

ANY OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE TO THE CONTRARY, A PORTION OF THE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS BOND MAY BE PAID OR REDEEMED WITHOUT SURRENDER 

HEREOF TO THE PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR.  DTC OR A NOMINEE, TRANSFEREE OR 

ASSIGNEE OF DTC OF THIS BOND MAY NOT RELY UPON THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT INDICATED 

HEREON AS THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT HEREOF OUTSTANDING AND UNPAID.  THE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT HEREOF OUTSTANDING AND UNPAID SHALL FOR ALL PURPOSES BE THE AMOUNT 

DETERMINED IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE. 

 

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF DTC (A) TO THE 

PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER OR EXCHANGE OR (B) 

TO THE PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR FOR PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL, AND ANY BOND 

ISSUED IN REPLACEMENT HEREOF OR SUBSTITUTION HEREOF IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME 

OF DTC AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR 

OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSONS IS WRONGFUL 

BECAUSE ONLY THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, HAS AN INTEREST 

HEREIN. 

 

This bond shall not be valid and binding on the City until authenticated by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, have caused this 

bond to be executed on behalf of the City with the facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk and by 

causing the official seal of the City to be imprinted hereon or affixed hereto, all as of the date of original issue 

specified above. 

 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

_________________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

(SEAL) 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 43 / 266



 8 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

  

This bond is one of the bonds authorized by the Ordinance of the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Seward, in the State of Nebraska, described in the foregoing bond. 

 

______________________________,  

Seward, Nebraska 

Paying Agent and Registrar 

 

By: ______________________________________ 

               Authorized Signature  

  

 

 

(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT) 

 

 

For value received hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto_________________________________ 

__________________________________________ (Social Security or Taxpayer I.D. No. ___________ 

______________________) the within bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

________________________________________________________, attorney, to transfer the same on the 

books of registration in the principal corporate trust office of the within mentioned Paying Agent and Registrar 

with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

Dated: ___________________________________ 

 

 

                                    Registered Owner(s) 

_________________________________________   

_________________________________________ 

_________________________________________ 

Signature Guaranteed 

 

By ___________________________________ 

______________________________________ 

Authorized Officer(s) 

 

Note:  The signature(s) on this assignment MUST CORRESPOND with the name(s) as written on the 

face of the within bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever, and must 

be guaranteed by a commercial bank or a trust company or by a firm having membership on the New York, 

Midwest or other stock exchange. 

 

 

*     *     *     *     * 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 44 / 266



 9 

Section 8.   Each of the Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City with the facsimile 

signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk and shall have imprinted thereon the City's seal. The Bonds shall be 

issued initially as "book-entry-only" bonds under the services of The Depository Trust Company (the 

"Depository"), with one typewritten bond per maturity being issued to the Depository.  In such connection said 

officers are authorized to execute and deliver a Letter of Representations (the "Letter of Representations") in 

the form required by the Depository (which may be in the form of a blanket letter, including any such letter 

previously executed and delivered), for and on behalf of the City, which shall thereafter govern matters with 

respect to registration, transfer, payment and redemption of the Bonds.  With respect to the issuance of the 

Bonds as "book-entry-only" bonds, the following provisions shall apply: 

 

(a)  The City and the Paying Agent and Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any 

broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the Depository holds Bonds as securities depository 

(each, a "Bond Participant") or to any person who is an actual purchaser of a Bond from a Bond Participant 

while the Bonds are in book-entry form (each, a "Beneficial Owner") with respect to the following: 

 

      (i)  the accuracy of the records of the Depository, any nominees of the Depository or 

any Bond Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, 

 

    (ii)  the delivery to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial Owner or any other person, 

other than the Depository, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of 

redemption, or 

 

    (iii)  the payment to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial Owner or any other person, 

other than the Depository, of any amount with respect to the Bonds.  The Paying Agent and 

Registrar shall make payments with respect to the Bonds only to or upon the order of the 

Depository or its nominee, and all such payments shall be valid and effective fully to satisfy 

and discharge the obligations with respect to such Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so 

paid.  No person other than the Depository shall receive an authenticated Bond, except as 

provided in (e) below. 

 

(b)  Upon receipt by the Paying Agent and Registrar of written notice from the Depository to the effect 

that the Depository is unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall 

issue, transfer and exchange Bonds requested by the Depository in appropriate amounts.  Whenever the 

Depository requests the Paying Agent and Registrar to do so, the Paying Agent and Registrar will cooperate 

with the Depository in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice (i) to arrange, with the prior written 

consent of the City, for a substitute depository willing and able upon reasonable and customary terms to 

maintain custody of the Bonds or (ii) to make available Bonds registered in whatever name or names as the 

Beneficial Owners transferring or exchanging such Bonds shall designate. 

 

(c)  If the City determines that it is desirable that certificates representing the Bonds be delivered to the 

ultimate beneficial owners of the Bonds and so notifies the Paying Agent and Registrar in writing, the Paying 

Agent and Registrar shall so notify the Depository, whereupon the Depository will notify the Bond Participants 

of the availability through the Depository of bond certificates representing the Bonds.  In such event, the 

Paying Agent and Registrar shall issue, transfer and exchange bond certificates representing the Bonds as 

requested by the Depository in appropriate amounts and in authorized denominations. 

 

(d)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any Bond is 

registered in the name of the Depository or any nominee thereof, all payments with respect to such Bond and 

all notices with respect to such Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to the Depository as provided in 

the Letter of Representations. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 45 / 266



 10 

 

(e)  Registered ownership of the Bonds may be transferred on the books of registration maintained by 

the Paying Agent and Registrar, and the Bonds may be delivered in physical form to the following: 

 

(i)   any successor securities depository or its nominee; or 

 

(ii)   any person, upon (A) the resignation of the Depository from its functions as 

depository or (B) termination of the use of the Depository pursuant to this Section and the 

terms of the Paying Agent and Registrar's Agreement. 

 

(f)  In the event of any partial redemption of a Bond unless and until such partially redeemed bond has 

been replaced in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, the books and records of the Paying Agent 

and Registrar shall govern and establish the principal amount of such bond as is then outstanding and all of the 

Bonds issued to the Depository or its nominee shall contain a legend to such effect. 

 

If for any reason the Depository is terminated or resigns and is not replaced, the City shall immediately 

provide a supply of printed bond certificates for issuance upon the transfers from the Depository and 

subsequent transfers or in the event of partial redemption.  In the event that such supply of certificates shall be 

insufficient to meet the requirements of the Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance of replacement certificates 

upon transfer or partial redemption, the City agrees to order printed an additional supply of such certificates 

and to direct their execution by manual or facsimile signatures of its then duly qualified and acting Mayor and 

City Clerk and by imprinting thereon or affixing thereto the City's seal.  In case any officer whose signature or 

facsimile thereof shall appear on any Bond shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such bond 

(including such certificates delivered to the Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance upon transfer or partial 

redemption), such signature or such facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all 

purposes the same as if such officer or officers had remained in office until the delivery of such bond.  The 

Bonds shall not be valid and binding on the City until authenticated by the Paying Agent and Registrar.  The 

Bonds shall be delivered to the Paying Agent and Registrar for registration and authentication.  Upon 

execution, registration and authentication of the Bonds, they shall be delivered to the City Treasurer, who is 

authorized to deliver them to the Underwriter upon receipt of the total stated principal amount of the Bonds, 

plus accrued interest thereon to date of payment for the Bonds, less Underwriter’s discount in an amount 

determined in the Designation.  Such purchaser and its agents, representatives and counsel (including the 

City’s bond counsel) are hereby authorized to take such actions on behalf of the City as are necessary to 

effectuate the closing of the issuance and sale of the Bonds, including without limitation, authorizing the 

release of the Bonds by the Depository at closing.  Said initial purchaser shall have the right to direct the 

registration of the Bonds and the denominations thereof within each maturity, subject to the restrictions of this 

Ordinance. The City Clerk shall make and certify a transcript of the proceedings of the Mayor and Council 

with respect to the Bonds, a copy of which shall be delivered to the initial purchaser of the Bonds.  The 

Authorized Officers are hereby each individually authorized to execute the Bond Purchase Agreement, in the 

form such Authorized Officers may deem necessary and appropriate, and are further authorized to do any and 

all things necessary and appropriate in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and the redemption of the 

Refunded Bonds. 

 

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 46 / 266



 11 

Section 9.  The net sale proceeds of the Bonds, along with any necessary funds of the City on 

hand, shall be applied to the payment and satisfaction of all of the principal of and the interest on the Refunded 

Bonds falling due prior to, and as called for redemption on, the Redemption Date.  Accrued interest received 

from the sale of the Bonds, if any, shall be applied to pay interest first falling due on the Bonds.  Expenses of 

issuance of the Bonds may be paid from the proceeds of the Bonds.  In order to satisfy the City's obligation on 

the Refunded Bonds, if determined necessary and appropriate by an Authorized Officer, such proceeds of the 

Bonds along with funds of the City on hand shall be set aside and held and invested in a special trust account 

which is hereby ordered established with such bank or trust company as determined by an Authorized Officer 

to act as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”).  The Escrow Agent shall have custody and safekeeping of the 

funds and investments which are to be set aside for the payment of the Refunded Bonds.  For purposes of 

governing such escrow account and the holding and application of such funds and investments, the City shall 

enter into a contract entitled "Escrow Agreement" with the Escrow Agent.  The Authorized Officers, or each 

individually, are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver on behalf of the City said Escrow 

Agreement, including necessary counterparts, in substantially the form and content as presented to the meeting 

at which this resolution is adopted, but with such changes and modifications therein as to them seem necessary, 

desirable, or appropriate for and on behalf of the City.  Said Authorized Officers are further authorized to 

approve the investments provided for in said Escrow Agreement, and to make any necessary subscriptions for 

United States Treasury Securities, State and Local Government Series, or to contract for the purchase of 

securities in the open market.  Said proceeds shall be invested in obligations of the United States Government, 

direct or guaranteed, including United States Treasury Securities, State and Local Government Series.  To the 

extent that such proceeds are held in a bank depository account, such deposits shall be insured by insurance of 

the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or, to the extent not fully insured, fully collateralized in the same 

manner as is required for deposit of public funds.  Any investment from the proceeds of the Bonds herein 

authorized shall mature not later than the Redemption Date.  As provided in said Escrow Agreement, the 

proceeds of the Bonds herein authorized and investment earnings thereon shall be applied to the payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds as the same become due on and prior to the Redemption Date, 

and as called for redemption on the Redemption Date.  The City agrees that on the date of original issue of the 

Bonds, or as soon thereafter as practicable, it shall deposit or otherwise have on hand with the Escrow Agent, 

from tax levy or other available sources, funds sufficient after taking into consideration available proceeds of 

the Bonds and investment earnings to provide funds for all payments due on the Refunded Bonds on or before 

the Redemption Date, and as called for redemption on the Redemption Date.    

 

Section 10.  The holders of the Bonds shall be subrogated to all rights of the holders of the 

Refunded Bonds including the right to have special assessments set aside as a sinking fund for the payment of 

principal thereof and interest thereon, from and after their payment and redemption on each Redemption Date.  

The City agrees that it shall cause to be levied and collected annually a special levy of taxes on all the taxable 

property in this City, in addition to all other taxes, sufficient in rate and amount to fully pay the principal of and 

interest on the Bonds when and as such principal and interest become due. 

 

Section 11.   The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will make no use of the proceeds of the 

Bonds which would cause the Bonds to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Sections 103(b)(2) and 148 

of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and further covenants to comply with said 

Sections 103(b)(2) and 148 and all applicable regulations thereunder throughout the term of said issue, 

including all requirements with respect to payment and reporting of rebates, if applicable.  The City hereby 

covenants to take all action necessary to preserve the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds for federal 

income tax purposes under the Code with respect to taxpayers generally.  The City further agrees that it will not 

take any actions which would cause the Bonds to constitute “private activity bonds” within the meaning of 

Section 141 of the Code.  The City hereby designates the Bonds as its “qualified tax-exempt obligations” 

pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) of the Code and covenants and warrants that it does not reasonably 

expect to issue bonds or other obligations aggregating in principal amount more than $10,000,000 during the 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 47 / 266



 12 

calendar year or years in which the Bonds are issued (taking into consideration the exception for current 

refunding issues). The Mayor is hereby authorized to make, or cause to be made, any and all certifications 

deemed necessary in connection with the designation of the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations”, 

including “deemed designating” the Bonds. 

 

Section 12.   The City's obligations under this Ordinance with respect to any or all of the Bonds 

herein authorized shall be fully discharged and satisfied as to any or all of such Bonds and any such Bond shall 

no longer be deemed to be outstanding hereunder if such Bond has been purchased by the City and canceled or 

when the payment of the principal of and interest thereon to the respective date of maturity or redemption (a) 

shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof or (b) shall have been 

provided for by depositing with the Paying Agent and Registrar, or with a national or state bank having trust 

powers, or trust company, in trust, solely for such payment (i) sufficient money to make such payment and/or 

(ii) direct general obligations (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books of the 

Department of Treasury of the United States of America) of or obligations the principal and interest of which 

are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America (herein referred to as "U.S. Government 

Obligations") in such amount and bearing interest payable and maturing or redeemable at stated fixed prices at 

the option of the holder as to principal, at such time or times, as will ensure the availability of sufficient money 

to make such payment; provided, however, that with respect to any Bond to be paid prior to maturity, the City 

shall have duly called such bond for redemption and given notice of such redemption as provided by law or 

made irrevocable provision for the giving of such notice.  Any money so deposited with a bank or trust 

company or the Paying Agent and Registrar may be invested or reinvested in U.S. Government Obligations at 

the direction of the City, and all interest and income from U.S. Government Obligations in the hands of such 

bank or trust company or Paying Agent and Registrar in excess of the amount required to pay principal of and 

interest on the Bonds for which such monies or U.S. Government Obligations were deposited shall be paid 

over to the City as and when collected. 

 

 Section 13.   The Authorized Officers or any one or more of them is authorized to approve, deem final 

and deliver a Preliminary Official Statement and a final Official Statement with respect to the Bonds for and on 

behalf of the City, all in accordance with the requirements of Reg. Sec. 240.15c2-12 of the Securities and 

Exchange Commission. 

 

 Section 14.   The City hereby (a) authorizes and directs that an Authorized Officer execute and 

deliver, on the date of issue of the Bonds, a continuing disclosure undertaking in accordance with the 

requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission in such form as 

determined necessary and appropriate by such Authorized Officer (the “Continuing Disclosure Undertaking”) 

and (b) covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing 

Disclosure Undertaking.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this ordinance, failure of the City to comply 

with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall not be considered an event of default hereunder; however, 

any Participating Underwriter (as such term is defined in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking) or any 

Beneficial Owner or any Registered Owner of a Bond (as such terms are defined in the Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking) may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or 

specific performance by court order, to cause the City to comply with its obligations under this section, and 

under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  An Authorized Officer may appoint a Dissemination Agent for 

the Bonds in the Authorized Officer’s discretion. 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 48 / 266



 13 

Section 15. This Ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after its passage and 

publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 5th day of January, 2016. 

 

 

 

              

ATTEST:      Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

 

       

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

  

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 49 / 266



 14 

Motion for adjournment was duly made, seconded and on roll call vote was declared adopted by the Mayor. 

 

 I, Bonnie Otte, the undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certify that the 

foregoing is a true and correct copy of the proceedings had and done by the Mayor and Council on January 5, 

2016; that all of the subjects included in the foregoing proceedings were contained in the agenda for the meeting, 

kept continually current and readily available for public inspection at the office of the City Clerk; that such 

subjects were contained in said agenda for at least twenty-four hours prior to said meeting; that a current copy of 

the Nebraska Open Meetings Act was available and accessible to members of the public, posted during such 

meeting in the room in which such meeting was held; that at least one copy of all reproducible material discussed 

at the meeting was available at the meeting for examination and copying by members of the public; that the said 

minutes from which the foregoing proceedings have been extracted were in written form and available for public 

inspection within ten working days and prior to the next convened meeting of said body; that all news media 

requesting notification concerning meetings of said body were provided advance notification of the time and place 

of said meeting and the subjects to be discussed at said meeting. 

 

 

 

             

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/ Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

[SEAL] 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 50 / 266



 

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 

IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 

Public Notice is hereby given that at a meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, 

held at _____ p.m. on Tuesday, January 5, 2016, there was passed and adopted Ordinance No. _____ entitled: 

 

  

ORDINANCE NO. _________  

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 

BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 

EXCEED ONE MILLION ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,100,000) FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF $1,050,000 OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011; DIRECTING THE APPLICATION OF THE PROCEEDS OF 

SAID BONDS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND 

COLLECTION OF TAXES TO PAY THE SAME; PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF THE BONDS; 

AUTHORIZING THE DELIVERY OF THE BONDS TO THE PURCHASER; AND ORDERING THE 

ORDINANCE PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM. 

 

 

 

Said Ordinance was published in pamphlet form on January ___, 2016.  Copies of said Ordinance as published in 

pamphlet form are available for inspection and distribution at the Office of the City Clerk, in the City of Seward, 

Nebraska. 

 

 

             

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:  Please publish the Ordinance in Title Form one time after passage and approval. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 51 / 266



CERTIFICATE AS TO PUBLICATION IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 The undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certifies that Ordinance No. 

________ as passed and approved by the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, at their meeting 

held on January 5, 2016, was published in pamphlet form on January ___, 2016 and that a true and correct copy of 

such Ordinance as so passed and published is attached hereto. 

 

 Dated this _____ day of January, 2016. 

 

 

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

 (SEAL) 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 52 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011 & Ser. 2011B
New Money Project

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Advance
Refunding Pay & Cancel

of Ser. 2011 Refunding of
Sources: & Ser. 2011B New Money Ser. 2014 BAN Total

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 1,940,000.00 690,000.00 2,185,000.00 4,815,000.00

Other Sources of Funds:
DSRF, Series 2011 39,000.00 39,000.00
DSRF, Ser. 2011B 175,000.00 175,000.00

214,000.00 214,000.00

2,154,000.00 690,000.00 2,185,000.00 5,029,000.00

Advance
Refunding Pay & Cancel

of Ser. 2011 Refunding of
Uses: & Ser. 2011B New Money Ser. 2014 BAN Total

Project Fund Deposits:
Roberts St. Project 625,000.00 625,000.00

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 0.94 1,982,717.00 1,982,717.94
SLGS Purchases 1,969,893.00 1,969,893.00

1,969,893.94 1,982,717.00 3,952,610.94

Other Fund Deposits:
Debt Service Reserve Fund 151,203.57 53,778.59 170,298.86 375,281.02

Cost of Issuance:
Paying Agent 302.18 107.48 340.34 750.00
Bond Counsel 3,395.00 1,207.50 3,823.75 8,426.25
Escrow Agent 1,000.00 1,000.00
Escrow Verification 2,000.00 2,000.00

6,697.18 1,314.98 4,164.09 12,176.25

Delivery Date Expenses:
Underwriter's Discount 24,250.00 8,625.00 27,312.50 60,187.50

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding 1,955.31 1,281.43 507.55 3,744.29

2,154,000.00 690,000.00 2,185,000.00 5,029,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 53 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 2

BOND MATURITY TABLE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011 & Ser. 2011B
New Money Project

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Advance
Refunding Pay & Cancel

Maturity of Ser. 2011 Refunding of
Date & Ser. 2011B New Money Ser. 2014 BAN Total

02/15/2017 150,000 30,000 90,000 270,000
02/15/2018 150,000 30,000 90,000 270,000
02/15/2019 175,000 30,000 90,000 295,000
02/15/2020 175,000 30,000 95,000 300,000
02/15/2021 180,000 30,000 95,000 305,000
02/15/2022 180,000 30,000 95,000 305,000
02/15/2023 185,000 30,000 100,000 315,000
02/15/2024 190,000 30,000 100,000 320,000
02/15/2025 235,000 30,000 100,000 365,000
02/15/2026 320,000 35,000 105,000 460,000
02/15/2027 35,000 105,000 140,000
02/15/2028 35,000 110,000 145,000
02/15/2029 35,000 115,000 150,000
02/15/2030 35,000 115,000 150,000
02/15/2031 35,000 120,000 155,000
02/15/2032 40,000 125,000 165,000
02/15/2033 40,000 130,000 170,000
02/15/2034 40,000 130,000 170,000
02/15/2035 45,000 135,000 180,000
02/15/2036 45,000 140,000 185,000

1,940,000 690,000 2,185,000 4,815,000

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 54 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 3

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011 & Ser. 2011B
New Money Project

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bonds:
02/15/2017 270,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
02/15/2018 270,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
02/15/2019 295,000 1.400% 1.400% 100.000
02/15/2020 300,000 1.550% 1.550% 100.000
02/15/2021 305,000 1.700% 1.700% 100.000
02/15/2022 305,000 1.850% 1.850% 100.000
02/15/2023 315,000 2.050% 2.050% 100.000
02/15/2024 320,000 2.200% 2.200% 100.000
02/15/2025 365,000 2.350% 2.350% 100.000
02/15/2026 460,000 2.500% 2.500% 100.000
02/15/2027 140,000 2.600% 2.600% 100.000
02/15/2028 145,000 2.750% 2.750% 100.000
02/15/2029 150,000 2.850% 2.850% 100.000
02/15/2030 150,000 2.950% 2.950% 100.000
02/15/2031 155,000 3.050% 3.050% 100.000
02/15/2032 165,000 3.100% 3.100% 100.000
02/15/2033 170,000 3.200% 3.200% 100.000
02/15/2034 170,000 3.250% 3.250% 100.000
02/15/2035 180,000 3.300% 3.300% 100.000
02/15/2036 185,000 3.350% 3.350% 100.000

4,815,000

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/15/2016

Par Amount 4,815,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 4,815,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -60,187.50 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 4,754,812.50 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 4,754,812.50

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 55 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 4

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011 & Ser. 2011B
New Money Project

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/15/2016
Last Maturity 02/15/2036

Arbitrage Yield 2.366979%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.792954%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.669980%
All-In TIC 2.825698%
Average Coupon 2.669980%

Average Life (years) 9.149
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 9.149
Duration of Issue (years) 7.945

Par Amount 4,815,000.00
Bond Proceeds 4,815,000.00
Total Interest 1,176,152.94
Net Interest 1,236,340.44
Bond Years from Dated Date 44,051,000.00
Bond Years from Delivery Date 44,051,000.00
Total Debt Service 5,991,152.94
Maximum Annual Debt Service 515,022.50
Average Annual Debt Service 300,224.81

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bonds 4,815,000.00 100.000 2.670% 9.149 3,696.35

4,815,000.00 9.149 3,696.35

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 4,815,000.00 4,815,000.00 4,815,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -60,187.50 -60,187.50
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -12,176.25
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 4,754,812.50 4,742,636.25 4,815,000.00

Target Date 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 03/01/2016
Yield 2.792954% 2.825698% 2.366979%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 56 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 5

BOND DEBT SERVICE BREAKDOWN

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011 & Ser. 2011B
New Money Project

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Advance
Refunding Pay & Cancel

of Ser. 2011 Refunding of Annual
Date & Ser. 2011B New Money Ser. 2014 BAN Total Total

08/15/2016 16,626.64 7,870.86 25,005.44 49,502.94
09/30/2016 49,502.94
02/15/2017 168,248.75 38,638.75 117,445.00 324,332.50
08/15/2017 17,461.25 8,481.25 26,972.50 52,915.00
09/30/2017 377,247.50
02/15/2018 167,461.25 38,481.25 116,972.50 322,915.00
08/15/2018 16,523.75 8,293.75 26,410.00 51,227.50
09/30/2018 374,142.50
02/15/2019 191,523.75 38,293.75 116,410.00 346,227.50
08/15/2019 15,298.75 8,083.75 25,780.00 49,162.50
09/30/2019 395,390.00
02/15/2020 190,298.75 38,083.75 120,780.00 349,162.50
08/15/2020 13,942.50 7,851.25 25,043.75 46,837.50
09/30/2020 396,000.00
02/15/2021 193,942.50 37,851.25 120,043.75 351,837.50
08/15/2021 12,412.50 7,596.25 24,236.25 44,245.00
09/30/2021 396,082.50
02/15/2022 192,412.50 37,596.25 119,236.25 349,245.00
08/15/2022 10,747.50 7,318.75 23,357.50 41,423.75
09/30/2022 390,668.75
02/15/2023 195,747.50 37,318.75 123,357.50 356,423.75
08/15/2023 8,851.25 7,011.25 22,332.50 38,195.00
09/30/2023 394,618.75
02/15/2024 198,851.25 37,011.25 122,332.50 358,195.00
08/15/2024 6,761.25 6,681.25 21,232.50 34,675.00
09/30/2024 392,870.00
02/15/2025 241,761.25 36,681.25 121,232.50 399,675.00
08/15/2025 4,000.00 6,328.75 20,057.50 30,386.25
09/30/2025 430,061.25
02/15/2026 324,000.00 41,328.75 125,057.50 490,386.25
08/15/2026 5,891.25 18,745.00 24,636.25
09/30/2026 515,022.50
02/15/2027 40,891.25 123,745.00 164,636.25
08/15/2027 5,436.25 17,380.00 22,816.25
09/30/2027 187,452.50
02/15/2028 40,436.25 127,380.00 167,816.25
08/15/2028 4,955.00 15,867.50 20,822.50
09/30/2028 188,638.75
02/15/2029 39,955.00 130,867.50 170,822.50
08/15/2029 4,456.25 14,228.75 18,685.00
09/30/2029 189,507.50
02/15/2030 39,456.25 129,228.75 168,685.00
08/15/2030 3,940.00 12,532.50 16,472.50
09/30/2030 185,157.50
02/15/2031 38,940.00 132,532.50 171,472.50
08/15/2031 3,406.25 10,702.50 14,108.75
09/30/2031 185,581.25
02/15/2032 43,406.25 135,702.50 179,108.75
08/15/2032 2,786.25 8,765.00 11,551.25
09/30/2032 190,660.00
02/15/2033 42,786.25 138,765.00 181,551.25
08/15/2033 2,146.25 6,685.00 8,831.25
09/30/2033 190,382.50
02/15/2034 42,146.25 136,685.00 178,831.25
08/15/2034 1,496.25 4,572.50 6,068.75
09/30/2034 184,900.00
02/15/2035 46,496.25 139,572.50 186,068.75
08/15/2035 753.75 2,345.00 3,098.75
09/30/2035 189,167.50
02/15/2036 45,753.75 142,345.00 188,098.75
09/30/2036 188,098.75

2,186,872.89 912,337.11 2,891,942.94 5,991,152.94 5,991,152.94

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 57 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 6

AGGREGATE DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011 & Ser. 2011B
New Money Project

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Advance Advance Advance
Refunding Refunding Refunding Pay & Cancel Pay & Cancel Pay & Cancel

of Ser. 2011 of Ser. 2011 of Ser. 2011 Refunding of Refunding of Refunding of
& Ser. 2011B & Ser. 2011B & Ser. 2011B New Money New Money New Money Ser. 2014 BAN Ser. 2014 BAN Ser. 2014 BAN Aggregate

Date Principal Interest Debt Service Principal Interest Debt Service Principal Interest Debt Service Debt Service less DSRF Annual Total

09/30/2016 16,626.64 16,626.64 7,870.86 7,870.86 25,005.44 25,005.44 49,502.94 -341.92 49,161.02
09/30/2017 150,000 35,710.00 185,710.00 30,000 17,120.00 47,120.00 90,000 54,417.50 144,417.50 377,247.50 -750.56 376,496.94
09/30/2018 150,000 33,985.00 183,985.00 30,000 16,775.00 46,775.00 90,000 53,382.50 143,382.50 374,142.50 -750.56 373,391.94
09/30/2019 175,000 31,822.50 206,822.50 30,000 16,377.50 46,377.50 90,000 52,190.00 142,190.00 395,390.00 -750.56 394,639.44
09/30/2020 175,000 29,241.25 204,241.25 30,000 15,935.00 45,935.00 95,000 50,823.75 145,823.75 396,000.00 -750.56 395,249.44
09/30/2021 180,000 26,355.00 206,355.00 30,000 15,447.50 45,447.50 95,000 49,280.00 144,280.00 396,082.50 -750.56 395,331.94
09/30/2022 180,000 23,160.00 203,160.00 30,000 14,915.00 44,915.00 95,000 47,593.75 142,593.75 390,668.75 -750.56 389,918.19
09/30/2023 185,000 19,598.75 204,598.75 30,000 14,330.00 44,330.00 100,000 45,690.00 145,690.00 394,618.75 -750.56 393,868.19
09/30/2024 190,000 15,612.50 205,612.50 30,000 13,692.50 43,692.50 100,000 43,565.00 143,565.00 392,870.00 -750.56 392,119.44
09/30/2025 235,000 10,761.25 245,761.25 30,000 13,010.00 43,010.00 100,000 41,290.00 141,290.00 430,061.25 -750.56 429,310.69
09/30/2026 320,000 4,000.00 324,000.00 35,000 12,220.00 47,220.00 105,000 38,802.50 143,802.50 515,022.50 -750.56 514,271.94
09/30/2027 35,000 11,327.50 46,327.50 105,000 36,125.00 141,125.00 187,452.50 -750.56 186,701.94
09/30/2028 35,000 10,391.25 45,391.25 110,000 33,247.50 143,247.50 188,638.75 -750.56 187,888.19
09/30/2029 35,000 9,411.25 44,411.25 115,000 30,096.25 145,096.25 189,507.50 -750.56 188,756.94
09/30/2030 35,000 8,396.25 43,396.25 115,000 26,761.25 141,761.25 185,157.50 -750.56 184,406.94
09/30/2031 35,000 7,346.25 42,346.25 120,000 23,235.00 143,235.00 185,581.25 -750.56 184,830.69
09/30/2032 40,000 6,192.50 46,192.50 125,000 19,467.50 144,467.50 190,660.00 -750.56 189,909.44
09/30/2033 40,000 4,932.50 44,932.50 130,000 15,450.00 145,450.00 190,382.50 -750.56 189,631.94
09/30/2034 40,000 3,642.50 43,642.50 130,000 11,257.50 141,257.50 184,900.00 -750.56 184,149.44
09/30/2035 45,000 2,250.00 47,250.00 135,000 6,917.50 141,917.50 189,167.50 -750.56 188,416.94
09/30/2036 45,000 753.75 45,753.75 140,000 2,345.00 142,345.00 188,098.75 -375,656.30 -187,557.55

1,940,000 246,872.89 2,186,872.89 690,000 222,337.11 912,337.11 2,185,000 706,942.94 2,891,942.94 5,991,152.94 -390,258.86 5,600,894.08

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 58 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 7

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 1,940,000.00

Other Sources of Funds:
DSRF, Series 2011 39,000.00
DSRF, Ser. 2011B 175,000.00

214,000.00

2,154,000.00

Uses:

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 0.94
SLGS Purchases 1,969,893.00

1,969,893.94

Other Fund Deposits:
Debt Service Reserve Fund 151,203.57

Cost of Issuance:
Paying Agent 302.18
Bond Counsel 3,395.00
Escrow Agent 1,000.00
Escrow Verification 2,000.00

6,697.18

Delivery Date Expenses:
Underwriter's Discount 24,250.00

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding 1,955.31

2,154,000.00

Note:  Escrow cost assumes SLGS are available or represent a proxy for the cost of open market USTs.

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 59 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 8

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
Arbitrage yield 2.366979%
Escrow yield 0.371279%
Value of Negative Arbitrage 14,287.89

Bond Par Amount 1,940,000.00
True Interest Cost 2.326807%
Net Interest Cost 2.110245%
All-In TIC 2.389887%
Average Coupon 2.110245%
Average Life 6.030

Par amount of refunded bonds 1,945,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 3.605227%
Average life of refunded bonds 6.202

PV of prior debt to 03/01/2016 @ 2.043923% 2,121,202.86
Net PV Savings 114,180.02
Percentage savings of refunded bonds 5.870438%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 60 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 9

SAVINGS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Present Value
Prior Refunding Refunding Refunding Annual to 03/01/2016

Date Debt Service Debt Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  2.0439226%

03/01/2016 1,955.31 -1,955.31 1,955.31 1,955.31
08/15/2016 33,372.50 16,626.64 16,626.64 16,745.86 16,591.44
09/30/2016 18,701.17
02/15/2017 168,372.50 168,248.75 168,248.75 123.75 121.37
08/15/2017 31,752.50 17,461.25 17,461.25 14,291.25 13,874.44
09/30/2017 14,415.00
02/15/2018 166,752.50 167,461.25 167,461.25 -708.75 -681.12
08/15/2018 29,930.00 16,523.75 16,523.75 13,406.25 12,753.25
09/30/2018 12,697.50
02/15/2019 194,930.00 191,523.75 191,523.75 3,406.25 3,207.56
08/15/2019 27,455.00 15,298.75 15,298.75 12,156.25 11,331.35
09/30/2019 15,562.50
02/15/2020 197,455.00 190,298.75 190,298.75 7,156.25 6,603.16
08/15/2020 24,692.50 13,942.50 13,942.50 10,750.00 9,818.81
09/30/2020 17,906.25
02/15/2021 204,692.50 193,942.50 193,942.50 10,750.00 9,719.48
08/15/2021 21,587.50 12,412.50 12,412.50 9,175.00 8,211.54
09/30/2021 19,925.00
02/15/2022 201,587.50 192,412.50 192,412.50 9,175.00 8,128.47
08/15/2022 18,347.50 10,747.50 10,747.50 7,600.00 6,665.01
09/30/2022 16,775.00
02/15/2023 208,347.50 195,747.50 195,747.50 12,600.00 10,938.10
08/15/2023 14,785.00 8,851.25 8,851.25 5,933.75 5,099.00
09/30/2023 18,533.75
02/15/2024 209,785.00 198,851.25 198,851.25 10,933.75 9,300.56
08/15/2024 10,982.50 6,761.25 6,761.25 4,221.25 3,554.39
09/30/2024 15,155.00
02/15/2025 260,982.50 241,761.25 241,761.25 19,221.25 16,021.01
08/15/2025 6,037.50 4,000.00 4,000.00 2,037.50 1,681.09
09/30/2025 21,258.75
02/15/2026 351,037.50 324,000.00 324,000.00 27,037.50 22,082.24
09/30/2026 27,037.50

2,382,885.00 2,186,872.89 1,955.31 2,184,917.58 197,967.42 197,967.42 176,976.45

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 176,976.45
Less: Prior funds on hand -214,000.00
Plus: Refunding funds on hand 151,203.57

Net PV Savings 114,180.02

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 61 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 10

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bonds:
02/15/2017 150,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
02/15/2018 150,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
02/15/2019 175,000 1.400% 1.400% 100.000
02/15/2020 175,000 1.550% 1.550% 100.000
02/15/2021 180,000 1.700% 1.700% 100.000
02/15/2022 180,000 1.850% 1.850% 100.000
02/15/2023 185,000 2.050% 2.050% 100.000
02/15/2024 190,000 2.200% 2.200% 100.000
02/15/2025 235,000 2.350% 2.350% 100.000
02/15/2026 320,000 2.500% 2.500% 100.000

1,940,000

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/15/2016

Par Amount 1,940,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 1,940,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -24,250.00 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 1,915,750.00 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 1,915,750.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 62 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 11

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/15/2016
Last Maturity 02/15/2026

Arbitrage Yield 2.366979%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.326807%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.110245%
All-In TIC 2.389887%
Average Coupon 2.110245%

Average Life (years) 6.030
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 6.030
Duration of Issue (years) 5.620

Par Amount 1,940,000.00
Bond Proceeds 1,940,000.00
Total Interest 246,872.89
Net Interest 271,122.89
Bond Years from Dated Date 11,698,777.78
Bond Years from Delivery Date 11,698,777.78
Total Debt Service 2,186,872.89
Maximum Annual Debt Service 324,000.00
Average Annual Debt Service 219,663.57

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bonds 1,940,000.00 100.000 2.110% 6.030 1,071.35

1,940,000.00 6.030 1,071.35

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 1,940,000.00 1,940,000.00 1,940,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -24,250.00 -24,250.00
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -6,697.18
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 1,915,750.00 1,909,052.82 1,940,000.00

Target Date 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 03/01/2016
Yield 2.326807% 2.389887% 2.366979%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 63 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 12

BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

08/15/2016 16,626.64 16,626.64
09/30/2016 16,626.64
02/15/2017 150,000 1.050% 18,248.75 168,248.75
08/15/2017 17,461.25 17,461.25
09/30/2017 185,710.00
02/15/2018 150,000 1.250% 17,461.25 167,461.25
08/15/2018 16,523.75 16,523.75
09/30/2018 183,985.00
02/15/2019 175,000 1.400% 16,523.75 191,523.75
08/15/2019 15,298.75 15,298.75
09/30/2019 206,822.50
02/15/2020 175,000 1.550% 15,298.75 190,298.75
08/15/2020 13,942.50 13,942.50
09/30/2020 204,241.25
02/15/2021 180,000 1.700% 13,942.50 193,942.50
08/15/2021 12,412.50 12,412.50
09/30/2021 206,355.00
02/15/2022 180,000 1.850% 12,412.50 192,412.50
08/15/2022 10,747.50 10,747.50
09/30/2022 203,160.00
02/15/2023 185,000 2.050% 10,747.50 195,747.50
08/15/2023 8,851.25 8,851.25
09/30/2023 204,598.75
02/15/2024 190,000 2.200% 8,851.25 198,851.25
08/15/2024 6,761.25 6,761.25
09/30/2024 205,612.50
02/15/2025 235,000 2.350% 6,761.25 241,761.25
08/15/2025 4,000.00 4,000.00
09/30/2025 245,761.25
02/15/2026 320,000 2.500% 4,000.00 324,000.00
09/30/2026 324,000.00

1,940,000 246,872.89 2,186,872.89 2,186,872.89

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 64 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 13

NET DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Total Debt Service Net
Ending Principal Interest Debt Service Reserve Fund Debt Service

09/30/2016 16,626.64 16,626.64 -137.76 16,488.88
09/30/2017 150,000 35,710.00 185,710.00 -302.40 185,407.60
09/30/2018 150,000 33,985.00 183,985.00 -302.40 183,682.60
09/30/2019 175,000 31,822.50 206,822.50 -302.40 206,520.10
09/30/2020 175,000 29,241.25 204,241.25 -302.40 203,938.85
09/30/2021 180,000 26,355.00 206,355.00 -302.40 206,052.60
09/30/2022 180,000 23,160.00 203,160.00 -302.40 202,857.60
09/30/2023 185,000 19,598.75 204,598.75 -302.40 204,296.35
09/30/2024 190,000 15,612.50 205,612.50 -302.40 205,310.10
09/30/2025 235,000 10,761.25 245,761.25 -302.40 245,458.85
09/30/2026 320,000 4,000.00 324,000.00 -302.40 323,697.60
09/30/2027 -302.40 -302.40
09/30/2028 -302.40 -302.40
09/30/2029 -302.40 -302.40
09/30/2030 -302.40 -302.40
09/30/2031 -302.40 -302.40
09/30/2032 -302.40 -302.40
09/30/2033 -302.40 -302.40
09/30/2034 -302.40 -302.40
09/30/2035 -302.40 -302.40
09/30/2036 -151,354.77 -151,354.77

1,940,000 246,872.89 2,186,872.89 -157,238.13 2,029,634.76

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 65 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 14

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Ser 2011B Elect, $381,298 Proj (callable 12/8/16):
SERIAL 02/15/2025 3.300% 45,000.00 12/08/2016 100.000

02/15/2026 3.500% 345,000.00 12/08/2016 100.000
390,000.00

Ser 2011 Elec Revs NR P&C Refg of 05 (callable 6/7/16):
SERIAL 02/15/2017 2.400% 135,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000

02/15/2018 2.700% 135,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
02/15/2019 3.000% 165,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
02/15/2020 3.250% 170,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
02/15/2021 3.450% 180,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
02/15/2022 3.600% 180,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
02/15/2023 3.750% 190,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
02/15/2024 3.900% 195,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
02/15/2025 4.100% 205,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000

1,555,000.00

1,945,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 66 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 15

ESCROW REQUIREMENTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Period Principal
Ending Interest Redeemed Total

06/07/2016 16,546.44 1,555,000.00 1,571,546.44
08/15/2016 6,780.00 6,780.00
12/08/2016 4,256.33 390,000.00 394,256.33

27,582.77 1,945,000.00 1,972,582.77

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 67 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 16

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Full Advance Refunding of Series 2011 and 2011B
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

08/15/2016 33,372.50 33,372.50
09/30/2016 33,372.50
02/15/2017 135,000 2.400% 33,372.50 168,372.50
08/15/2017 31,752.50 31,752.50
09/30/2017 200,125.00
02/15/2018 135,000 2.700% 31,752.50 166,752.50
08/15/2018 29,930.00 29,930.00
09/30/2018 196,682.50
02/15/2019 165,000 3.000% 29,930.00 194,930.00
08/15/2019 27,455.00 27,455.00
09/30/2019 222,385.00
02/15/2020 170,000 3.250% 27,455.00 197,455.00
08/15/2020 24,692.50 24,692.50
09/30/2020 222,147.50
02/15/2021 180,000 3.450% 24,692.50 204,692.50
08/15/2021 21,587.50 21,587.50
09/30/2021 226,280.00
02/15/2022 180,000 3.600% 21,587.50 201,587.50
08/15/2022 18,347.50 18,347.50
09/30/2022 219,935.00
02/15/2023 190,000 3.750% 18,347.50 208,347.50
08/15/2023 14,785.00 14,785.00
09/30/2023 223,132.50
02/15/2024 195,000 3.900% 14,785.00 209,785.00
08/15/2024 10,982.50 10,982.50
09/30/2024 220,767.50
02/15/2025 250,000 **   % 10,982.50 260,982.50
08/15/2025 6,037.50 6,037.50
09/30/2025 267,020.00
02/15/2026 345,000 3.500% 6,037.50 351,037.50
09/30/2026 351,037.50

1,945,000 437,885.00 2,382,885.00 2,382,885.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 68 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 17

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 690,000.00

690,000.00

Uses:

Project Fund Deposits:
Roberts St. Project 625,000.00

Other Fund Deposits:
Debt Service Reserve Fund 53,778.59

Cost of Issuance:
Paying Agent 107.48
Bond Counsel 1,207.50

1,314.98

Delivery Date Expenses:
Underwriter's Discount 8,625.00

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding 1,281.43

690,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 69 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 18

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bonds:
02/15/2017 30,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
02/15/2018 30,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
02/15/2019 30,000 1.400% 1.400% 100.000
02/15/2020 30,000 1.550% 1.550% 100.000
02/15/2021 30,000 1.700% 1.700% 100.000
02/15/2022 30,000 1.850% 1.850% 100.000
02/15/2023 30,000 2.050% 2.050% 100.000
02/15/2024 30,000 2.200% 2.200% 100.000
02/15/2025 30,000 2.350% 2.350% 100.000
02/15/2026 35,000 2.500% 2.500% 100.000
02/15/2027 35,000 2.600% 2.600% 100.000
02/15/2028 35,000 2.750% 2.750% 100.000
02/15/2029 35,000 2.850% 2.850% 100.000
02/15/2030 35,000 2.950% 2.950% 100.000
02/15/2031 35,000 3.050% 3.050% 100.000
02/15/2032 40,000 3.100% 3.100% 100.000
02/15/2033 40,000 3.200% 3.200% 100.000
02/15/2034 40,000 3.250% 3.250% 100.000
02/15/2035 45,000 3.300% 3.300% 100.000
02/15/2036 45,000 3.350% 3.350% 100.000

690,000

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/15/2016

Par Amount 690,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 690,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -8,625.00 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 681,375.00 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 681,375.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 70 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 19

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/15/2016
Last Maturity 02/15/2036

Arbitrage Yield 2.366979%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.976351%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.872820%
All-In TIC 2.997254%
Average Coupon 2.872820%

Average Life (years) 11.216
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 11.216
Duration of Issue (years) 9.383

Par Amount 690,000.00
Bond Proceeds 690,000.00
Total Interest 222,337.11
Net Interest 230,962.11
Bond Years from Dated Date 7,739,333.33
Bond Years from Delivery Date 7,739,333.33
Total Debt Service 912,337.11
Maximum Annual Debt Service 47,250.00
Average Annual Debt Service 45,718.45

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bonds 690,000.00 100.000 2.873% 11.216 627.75

690,000.00 11.216 627.75

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 690,000.00 690,000.00 690,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -8,625.00 -8,625.00
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -1,314.98
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 681,375.00 680,060.02 690,000.00

Target Date 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 03/01/2016
Yield 2.976351% 2.997254% 2.366979%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 71 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 20

BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

08/15/2016 7,870.86 7,870.86
09/30/2016 7,870.86
02/15/2017 30,000 1.050% 8,638.75 38,638.75
08/15/2017 8,481.25 8,481.25
09/30/2017 47,120.00
02/15/2018 30,000 1.250% 8,481.25 38,481.25
08/15/2018 8,293.75 8,293.75
09/30/2018 46,775.00
02/15/2019 30,000 1.400% 8,293.75 38,293.75
08/15/2019 8,083.75 8,083.75
09/30/2019 46,377.50
02/15/2020 30,000 1.550% 8,083.75 38,083.75
08/15/2020 7,851.25 7,851.25
09/30/2020 45,935.00
02/15/2021 30,000 1.700% 7,851.25 37,851.25
08/15/2021 7,596.25 7,596.25
09/30/2021 45,447.50
02/15/2022 30,000 1.850% 7,596.25 37,596.25
08/15/2022 7,318.75 7,318.75
09/30/2022 44,915.00
02/15/2023 30,000 2.050% 7,318.75 37,318.75
08/15/2023 7,011.25 7,011.25
09/30/2023 44,330.00
02/15/2024 30,000 2.200% 7,011.25 37,011.25
08/15/2024 6,681.25 6,681.25
09/30/2024 43,692.50
02/15/2025 30,000 2.350% 6,681.25 36,681.25
08/15/2025 6,328.75 6,328.75
09/30/2025 43,010.00
02/15/2026 35,000 2.500% 6,328.75 41,328.75
08/15/2026 5,891.25 5,891.25
09/30/2026 47,220.00
02/15/2027 35,000 2.600% 5,891.25 40,891.25
08/15/2027 5,436.25 5,436.25
09/30/2027 46,327.50
02/15/2028 35,000 2.750% 5,436.25 40,436.25
08/15/2028 4,955.00 4,955.00
09/30/2028 45,391.25
02/15/2029 35,000 2.850% 4,955.00 39,955.00
08/15/2029 4,456.25 4,456.25
09/30/2029 44,411.25
02/15/2030 35,000 2.950% 4,456.25 39,456.25
08/15/2030 3,940.00 3,940.00
09/30/2030 43,396.25
02/15/2031 35,000 3.050% 3,940.00 38,940.00
08/15/2031 3,406.25 3,406.25
09/30/2031 42,346.25
02/15/2032 40,000 3.100% 3,406.25 43,406.25
08/15/2032 2,786.25 2,786.25
09/30/2032 46,192.50
02/15/2033 40,000 3.200% 2,786.25 42,786.25
08/15/2033 2,146.25 2,146.25
09/30/2033 44,932.50
02/15/2034 40,000 3.250% 2,146.25 42,146.25
08/15/2034 1,496.25 1,496.25
09/30/2034 43,642.50
02/15/2035 45,000 3.300% 1,496.25 46,496.25
08/15/2035 753.75 753.75
09/30/2035 47,250.00
02/15/2036 45,000 3.350% 753.75 45,753.75
09/30/2036 45,753.75

690,000 222,337.11 912,337.11 912,337.11

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 72 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 21

NET DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Total Debt Service Net
Ending Principal Interest Debt Service Reserve Fund Debt Service

09/30/2016 7,870.86 7,870.86 -49.00 7,821.86
09/30/2017 30,000 17,120.00 47,120.00 -107.56 47,012.44
09/30/2018 30,000 16,775.00 46,775.00 -107.56 46,667.44
09/30/2019 30,000 16,377.50 46,377.50 -107.56 46,269.94
09/30/2020 30,000 15,935.00 45,935.00 -107.56 45,827.44
09/30/2021 30,000 15,447.50 45,447.50 -107.56 45,339.94
09/30/2022 30,000 14,915.00 44,915.00 -107.56 44,807.44
09/30/2023 30,000 14,330.00 44,330.00 -107.56 44,222.44
09/30/2024 30,000 13,692.50 43,692.50 -107.56 43,584.94
09/30/2025 30,000 13,010.00 43,010.00 -107.56 42,902.44
09/30/2026 35,000 12,220.00 47,220.00 -107.56 47,112.44
09/30/2027 35,000 11,327.50 46,327.50 -107.56 46,219.94
09/30/2028 35,000 10,391.25 45,391.25 -107.56 45,283.69
09/30/2029 35,000 9,411.25 44,411.25 -107.56 44,303.69
09/30/2030 35,000 8,396.25 43,396.25 -107.56 43,288.69
09/30/2031 35,000 7,346.25 42,346.25 -107.56 42,238.69
09/30/2032 40,000 6,192.50 46,192.50 -107.56 46,084.94
09/30/2033 40,000 4,932.50 44,932.50 -107.56 44,824.94
09/30/2034 40,000 3,642.50 43,642.50 -107.56 43,534.94
09/30/2035 45,000 2,250.00 47,250.00 -107.56 47,142.44
09/30/2036 45,000 753.75 45,753.75 -53,832.37 -8,078.62

690,000 222,337.11 912,337.11 -55,925.01 856,412.10

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 73 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 22

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 2,185,000.00

2,185,000.00

Uses:

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 1,982,717.00

Other Fund Deposits:
Debt Service Reserve Fund 170,298.86

Cost of Issuance:
Paying Agent 340.34
Bond Counsel 3,823.75

4,164.09

Delivery Date Expenses:
Underwriter's Discount 27,312.50

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding 507.55

2,185,000.00

Note:  Escrow cost assumes SLGS are available or represent a proxy for the cost of open market USTs.

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 74 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 23

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bonds:
02/15/2017 90,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
02/15/2018 90,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
02/15/2019 90,000 1.400% 1.400% 100.000
02/15/2020 95,000 1.550% 1.550% 100.000
02/15/2021 95,000 1.700% 1.700% 100.000
02/15/2022 95,000 1.850% 1.850% 100.000
02/15/2023 100,000 2.050% 2.050% 100.000
02/15/2024 100,000 2.200% 2.200% 100.000
02/15/2025 100,000 2.350% 2.350% 100.000
02/15/2026 105,000 2.500% 2.500% 100.000
02/15/2027 105,000 2.600% 2.600% 100.000
02/15/2028 110,000 2.750% 2.750% 100.000
02/15/2029 115,000 2.850% 2.850% 100.000
02/15/2030 115,000 2.950% 2.950% 100.000
02/15/2031 120,000 3.050% 3.050% 100.000
02/15/2032 125,000 3.100% 3.100% 100.000
02/15/2033 130,000 3.200% 3.200% 100.000
02/15/2034 130,000 3.250% 3.250% 100.000
02/15/2035 135,000 3.300% 3.300% 100.000
02/15/2036 140,000 3.350% 3.350% 100.000

2,185,000

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/15/2016

Par Amount 2,185,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 2,185,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -27,312.50 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 2,157,687.50 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 2,157,687.50

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 75 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 24

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/15/2016
Last Maturity 02/15/2036

Arbitrage Yield 2.366979%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.975602%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.872247%
All-In TIC 2.996411%
Average Coupon 2.872247%

Average Life (years) 11.264
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 11.264
Duration of Issue (years) 9.425

Par Amount 2,185,000.00
Bond Proceeds 2,185,000.00
Total Interest 706,942.94
Net Interest 734,255.44
Bond Years from Dated Date 24,612,888.89
Bond Years from Delivery Date 24,612,888.89
Total Debt Service 2,891,942.94
Maximum Annual Debt Service 145,823.75
Average Annual Debt Service 144,919.19

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bonds 2,185,000.00 100.000 2.872% 11.264 1,997.25

2,185,000.00 11.264 1,997.25

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 2,185,000.00 2,185,000.00 2,185,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -27,312.50 -27,312.50
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -4,164.09
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 2,157,687.50 2,153,523.41 2,185,000.00

Target Date 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 03/01/2016
Yield 2.975602% 2.996411% 2.366979%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 76 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 25

BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

08/15/2016 25,005.44 25,005.44
09/30/2016 25,005.44
02/15/2017 90,000 1.050% 27,445.00 117,445.00
08/15/2017 26,972.50 26,972.50
09/30/2017 144,417.50
02/15/2018 90,000 1.250% 26,972.50 116,972.50
08/15/2018 26,410.00 26,410.00
09/30/2018 143,382.50
02/15/2019 90,000 1.400% 26,410.00 116,410.00
08/15/2019 25,780.00 25,780.00
09/30/2019 142,190.00
02/15/2020 95,000 1.550% 25,780.00 120,780.00
08/15/2020 25,043.75 25,043.75
09/30/2020 145,823.75
02/15/2021 95,000 1.700% 25,043.75 120,043.75
08/15/2021 24,236.25 24,236.25
09/30/2021 144,280.00
02/15/2022 95,000 1.850% 24,236.25 119,236.25
08/15/2022 23,357.50 23,357.50
09/30/2022 142,593.75
02/15/2023 100,000 2.050% 23,357.50 123,357.50
08/15/2023 22,332.50 22,332.50
09/30/2023 145,690.00
02/15/2024 100,000 2.200% 22,332.50 122,332.50
08/15/2024 21,232.50 21,232.50
09/30/2024 143,565.00
02/15/2025 100,000 2.350% 21,232.50 121,232.50
08/15/2025 20,057.50 20,057.50
09/30/2025 141,290.00
02/15/2026 105,000 2.500% 20,057.50 125,057.50
08/15/2026 18,745.00 18,745.00
09/30/2026 143,802.50
02/15/2027 105,000 2.600% 18,745.00 123,745.00
08/15/2027 17,380.00 17,380.00
09/30/2027 141,125.00
02/15/2028 110,000 2.750% 17,380.00 127,380.00
08/15/2028 15,867.50 15,867.50
09/30/2028 143,247.50
02/15/2029 115,000 2.850% 15,867.50 130,867.50
08/15/2029 14,228.75 14,228.75
09/30/2029 145,096.25
02/15/2030 115,000 2.950% 14,228.75 129,228.75
08/15/2030 12,532.50 12,532.50
09/30/2030 141,761.25
02/15/2031 120,000 3.050% 12,532.50 132,532.50
08/15/2031 10,702.50 10,702.50
09/30/2031 143,235.00
02/15/2032 125,000 3.100% 10,702.50 135,702.50
08/15/2032 8,765.00 8,765.00
09/30/2032 144,467.50
02/15/2033 130,000 3.200% 8,765.00 138,765.00
08/15/2033 6,685.00 6,685.00
09/30/2033 145,450.00
02/15/2034 130,000 3.250% 6,685.00 136,685.00
08/15/2034 4,572.50 4,572.50
09/30/2034 141,257.50
02/15/2035 135,000 3.300% 4,572.50 139,572.50
08/15/2035 2,345.00 2,345.00
09/30/2035 141,917.50
02/15/2036 140,000 3.350% 2,345.00 142,345.00
09/30/2036 142,345.00

2,185,000 706,942.94 2,891,942.94 2,891,942.94

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 77 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 26

NET DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Total Debt Service Net
Ending Principal Interest Debt Service Reserve Fund Debt Service

09/30/2016 25,005.44 25,005.44 -155.16 24,850.28
09/30/2017 90,000 54,417.50 144,417.50 -340.60 144,076.90
09/30/2018 90,000 53,382.50 143,382.50 -340.60 143,041.90
09/30/2019 90,000 52,190.00 142,190.00 -340.60 141,849.40
09/30/2020 95,000 50,823.75 145,823.75 -340.60 145,483.15
09/30/2021 95,000 49,280.00 144,280.00 -340.60 143,939.40
09/30/2022 95,000 47,593.75 142,593.75 -340.60 142,253.15
09/30/2023 100,000 45,690.00 145,690.00 -340.60 145,349.40
09/30/2024 100,000 43,565.00 143,565.00 -340.60 143,224.40
09/30/2025 100,000 41,290.00 141,290.00 -340.60 140,949.40
09/30/2026 105,000 38,802.50 143,802.50 -340.60 143,461.90
09/30/2027 105,000 36,125.00 141,125.00 -340.60 140,784.40
09/30/2028 110,000 33,247.50 143,247.50 -340.60 142,906.90
09/30/2029 115,000 30,096.25 145,096.25 -340.60 144,755.65
09/30/2030 115,000 26,761.25 141,761.25 -340.60 141,420.65
09/30/2031 120,000 23,235.00 143,235.00 -340.60 142,894.40
09/30/2032 125,000 19,467.50 144,467.50 -340.60 144,126.90
09/30/2033 130,000 15,450.00 145,450.00 -340.60 145,109.40
09/30/2034 130,000 11,257.50 141,257.50 -340.60 140,916.90
09/30/2035 135,000 6,917.50 141,917.50 -340.60 141,576.90
09/30/2036 140,000 2,345.00 142,345.00 -170,469.16 -28,124.16

2,185,000 706,942.94 2,891,942.94 -177,095.72 2,714,847.22

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 78 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 27

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date CUSIP Rate Amount Date Price

Ser 2014 NR Elec Rev Cur Refg of '13 BANs (callable 3/15/15):
SERIAL 06/15/2016 818483 EU9 0.650% 1,980,000.00 03/01/2016 100.000

1,980,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 79 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 28

ESCROW REQUIREMENTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Period Principal
Ending Interest Redeemed Total

03/01/2016 2,717.00 1,980,000.00 1,982,717.00

2,717.00 1,980,000.00 1,982,717.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 80 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:37 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:ELECRN)   Page 29

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2014 BANs
Non-Rated, BQ, 2036 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Annual
Period Debt Debt
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Service Service

06/15/2016 1,980,000 0.650% 6,435 1,986,435
09/30/2016 1,986,435

1,980,000 6,435 1,986,435 1,986,435

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 81 / 266



 ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 

OF ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED FOUR 

MILLION NINE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,900,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF (A) 

REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF $1,595,000 OF ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING 

BONDS, SERIES 2011 AND $390,000 OF ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011B, (B) 

PAYING THE COSTS OF IMPROVEMENTS TO AND EXPANSION OF THE CITY’S 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM, INCLUDING PAYING AND REDEEMING CERTAIN SHORT TERM 

INDEBTEDNESS ISSUED FOR SUCH PURPOSES, (C) PROVIDING FOR NECESSARY 

RESERVE FUNDS AND (D) PAYING COSTS OF ISSUANCE OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING 

FOR THE SALE OF SAID BONDS AND DESIGNATION OF CERTAIN TERMS; PROVIDING 

FOR THE REDEMPTION OF BONDS AND INDEBTEDNESS BEING REFUNDED; 

PRESCRIBING THE FORM, TERMS AND DETAILS OF SAID BONDS; PLEDGING AND 

HYPOTHECATING THE REVENUE AND EARNINGS OF THE ELECTRIC PLANT AND 

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OF SAID CITY FOR THE PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS AND 

INTEREST THEREON; PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION, SEGREGATION AND 

APPLICATION OF THE REVENUE OF SAID ELECTRIC SYSTEM; ENTERING INTO A 

CONTRACT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY WITH THE HOLDERS OF SAID BONDS; 

REPEALING ANY CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVENESS 

AND OPERATION OF THIS ORDINANCE AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF THE 

ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM.  

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA: 

 

 Section 1.  The Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska (the “City”), hereby 

find and determine as follows:  

 

(a) that the City owns and operates an electric plant and distribution system (the “Electric System”), 

which represents a revenue-producing undertaking of the City.  Reference herein to the Electric 

System shall include all additions and improvements thereto hereafter acquired by the City; 

 

(b) that the City has previously issued and there are outstanding as of the date of this ordinance, the 

following issues of revenue bonds for which the revenues of the Electric System have been pledged: 

 

Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, date of original issue—June 7, 

2011, issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 7-11 (the “2011 Ordinance”) of which 

there remain outstanding and unpaid bonds in the principal amount of $1,595,000 

(the “2011 Bonds”); and 

 

Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B, date of original issue—December 8, 

2011, issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 30-11 (the “2011B Ordinance”) of which 

there remain outstanding and unpaid bonds in the principal amount of $390,000 

(the “2011B Bonds”) 

 

Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, date of original issue—March 

27, 2012, issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 3-12 (the “2012 Ordinance”) of 

which there remain outstanding and unpaid bonds in the principal amount of 

$1,250,000 (the “2012 Bonds”) 

 

The 2011 Ordinance, the 2011B Ordinance and the 2012 Ordinance are sometimes hereinafter referred to 

collectively as the “Prior Ordinances”, the 2011 Bonds and the 2011B Bonds which are called for 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 82 / 266



 2 

redemption pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance are sometimes hereinafter referred to as the 

“Refunded Bonds” and the 2012 Bonds and that portion of the 2011 Bonds and the 2011B Bonds not 

called for redemption are sometimes hereinafter referred to as the “Outstanding Bonds”;  

 

(c) that the 2011 Bonds are subject to redemption at any time on or after June 7, 2016 and the 2011B 

Bonds are subject to redemption at any time on or after December 8, 2016, at par plus accrued interest 

to the date fixed for redemption,  that the Refunded Bonds are herein authorized to be irrevocably 

called for redemption in accordance with their call provisions on a date or dates to be determined 

pursuant to the Designation described herein (such date or dates referred to herein as  the 

“Redemption Dates”); that since the 2011 Bonds and the 2011B Bonds were issued, the rates of 

interest available in the market have declined such that by taking up and paying off the Refunded 

Bonds through the issuance of refunding bonds as provided herein, a savings in the amount of yearly 

running interest will be made to the City. 

 

(d)  that certain improvements, enlargements and expansions of the City’s Electric System (the 

“Project”) are necessary in order to continue to provide the City and its residents with adequate 

electric service, that the costs of such improvements, enlargements and expansions are not less than 

$2,670,000 and that of such costs the City has issued and outstanding $1,980,000 of its Electric 

System Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 2014, date of original issue December 15, 2014, 

(the “Refunded Notes”) of junior lien and standing to the Refunded Bonds and the Outstanding 

Bonds, which notes mature on June 15, 2016, are subject to redemption any time on or after March 

15, 2015 and are authorized to be called for redemption herein; 

 

(d) that under the terms of the Prior Ordinances, bonds of equal lien with the Outstanding Bonds may 

be issued provided that certain revenues have been experienced by the Electric System for its most 

recent fiscal year; that the Authorized Officers (as defined herein) are hereby authorized to and shall 

certify prior to the issuance of the bonds authorized herein that said Net Revenues are not less than 

1.25 times the average annual debt service requirements (as described in the Prior Ordinances) of the 

Outstanding Bonds and the bonds herein authorized; that said Outstanding Bonds and the Refunded 

Bonds represent the only outstanding indebtedness of the City for which the revenues of the Electric 

System have been pledged; that, upon the issuance of the bonds herein authorized, all payment 

requirements of said Refunded Bonds will be paid and satisfied; that all conditions required under the 

terms of the Prior Ordinances for the issuance of the bonds herein authorized as “additional bonds” of 

equal lien and standing with the Outstanding Bonds do exist and have happened; and 

 

(e) that for the purpose of making said redemption of the Refunded Bonds on the Redemption Dates, 

paying the costs of the Project (including paying the Refunded Notes in full), providing for necessary 

reserve funds and paying costs of issuance of the 2016 Bonds, it is in the best interest of the City to 

issue revenue and refunding bonds of the City in the principal amount of not to exceed $4,900,000;  

 

(f) that all conditions, acts and things required to exist or to be done precedent to the issuance of 

Electric System Revenue and Refunding Bonds of the City of Seward, Nebraska, in the principal 

amount of not to exceed Four Million Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($4,900,000) pursuant to 

Sections 18-1803 to 18-1805, R.R.S. Neb. 2012, do exist and have been done as required by law. 

 

 

 Section 2. In addition to the definitions provided in parentheses elsewhere in this Ordinance, 

the following definitions of terms shall apply, unless the context shall clearly indicate otherwise: 

 

  (a) the term “revenues” shall mean all of the rates, rentals, fees and charges, 

earnings and other monies, including investment income, from any source derived by the 

City of Seward, Nebraska, through its ownership and operation of the Electric System. 

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 83 / 266



 3 

  (b) the term “Additional Bonds” shall mean any and all bonds hereafter issued by 

the City pursuant to the terms of this Ordinance and the Prior Ordinances which are equal 

in lien to the bonds herein authorized and the Outstanding Bonds, including all such bonds 

issued pursuant to Section 15 and refunding bonds issued pursuant to Section 16. 

 

  (c) the term “Average Annual Debt Service Requirements” shall mean that number 

computed by adding all of the principal and interest due when computed to the absolute 

maturity of the bonds for which such computation is required and dividing by the number 

of years remaining that the longest bond of any issue for which such computation is 

required has to run to maturity.  In making such computation, the principal of any bonds for 

which mandatory redemptions are scheduled shall be treated as maturing in accordance 

with such schedule of mandatory redemptions. 

 

  (d) the term “Deposit Securities” shall mean obligations of the United States of 

America, direct or unconditionally guaranteed, including any such obligations issued in 

book entry form. 

 

  (e) the term “Net Revenues” shall mean the revenues (as defined above), not 

including any income from the sale or other disposition of any property belonging to or 

forming a part of the Electric System, less the ordinary expenses for operating and 

maintaining the Electric System payable from the Operation and Maintenance Account 

described in Section 13 of this Ordinance.  Operation and Maintenance expenses for 

purposes of determining “Net Revenues” shall not include depreciation, amortization of 

financing expenses or interest on any bonds or other indebtedness.  Net Revenues for all 

purposes of this Ordinance shall be shown by an audit for the fiscal year in question as 

conducted by an independent certified public accountant or firm of such accountants, or if 

an audit is not yet available, Net Revenues may be shown by the most recent audit available 

so long as a certificate from the City Treasurer is delivered indicating no material adverse 

change has occurred to the Net Revenues of the Electric System of the City. 

 

  (f) the term “Paying Agent and Registrar” shall mean a bank or trust company, as 

appointed to act as paying agent and registrar for the 2016 Bonds pursuant to the 

Designation, or any successor thereto. 

 

 Section 3.   To provide for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds and paying costs of the 

Project as described in Sections 1 and 2 hereof, including providing for necessary reserve funds and costs 

of issuance hereof, there shall be and there are hereby ordered issued Electric System Revenue and 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2016, of the City of Seward, Nebraska, in the principal amount of not to exceed 

Four Million Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($4,900,000) (the “2016 Bonds”).  The 2016 Bonds or any 

portion thereof are hereby authorized to be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale with D.A. Davidson & Co., as 

initial purchaser (the “Underwriter”).  In connection with such sale, the Mayor, City Administrator or City 

Clerk-Treasurer (each, an “Authorized Officer”) are hereby authorized to specify, determine, designate, 

establish and appoint, as the case may be, in one or more written designations which may be included in a 

bond purchase agreement (each, a “Designation”), (i) the aggregate purchase price of the Bonds and the 

underwriting discount which shall not exceed 1.25% of the aggregate stated principal amount thereof, (ii) 

the form and contents of any bond purchase agreement in connection with such sale, (iii) the title (including 

series designation), dated date (which shall not be later than December 31, 2016), aggregate principal 

amount (including the aggregate principal amounts of serial Bonds and term Bonds, if any), which 

aggregate stated principal amount shall not exceed $4,900,000, and the final maturity date, which shall not 

be later than December 31, 2036, (iv) the principal amounts maturing in each year, (v) the rate or rates of 

interest to be borne by each principal maturity, provided that present value savings results from refunding 

the Refunded Bonds and provided that the true interest cost of the 2016 Bonds shall not exceed 3.50% (vi) 

the principal payment dates and interest payment dates, (vii) whether the 2016 Bonds will be subject to 

redemption prior to their stated maturity, and if subject to such optional redemption, the provisions 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 84 / 266



 4 

governing such redemption, including a redemption price not to exceed 104% of the principal amount then 

being redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, (viii) the amount and due date of each 

sinking fund installment for any of the 2016 Bonds issued as term Bonds, (ix) the designation of the Paying 

Agent and Registrar and the form and content of any agreement between the City and such entity and (x) all 

other terms and provisions of the 2016 Bonds not otherwise specified or fixed by this Ordinance.    

 

 The Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby authorized to irrevocably call any or all of 

the 2011 Bonds and the 2011B Bonds (as called for redemption, the “Refunded Bonds”) for redemption on 

such date or dates he or she determines appropriate, which date or dates shall be the Redemption Dates 

hereunder.  The Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby authorized to designate, approve, 

execute and deliver, as the case may be (i) the form, content, terms and provisions of any published and/or 

mailed notice of redemption with respect to the payment and redemption of the Refunded Bonds, (ii) an 

Escrow Agent, (iii) the form, content, terms and provisions of an Escrow Agreement with the Escrow Agent 

for the purpose of providing for the deposit in trust with the Escrow Agent a portion of the net proceeds of 

the 2016 Bonds, the investment of such net proceeds pending their application, the application of such 

proceeds and any investment income to the payment of all of the principal of and interest on the Refunded 

Bonds maturing on or before the Redemption Date and the application of the balance of such proceeds and 

any investment income thereof to the redemption and retirement of the Refunded Bonds on the Redemption 

Date. 

 

 The 2016 Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form in the denomination of $5,000 or any 

integral multiple thereof.  The date of original issue for the 2016 Bonds shall be Date of Delivery.  

Interest on the 2016 Bonds, at the respective rates for each maturity, shall be payable as determined in the 

Designation (each an “Interest Payment Date”), and the 2016 Bonds shall bear such interest from the date 

of original issue or the most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later.  The interest due on each 

Interest Payment Date shall be payable to the registered owners of record as of the fifteenth day 

immediately preceding the Interest Payment Date (the “Record Date”), subject to the provision of Section 

5 hereof.  The 2016 Bonds shall be numbered from 1 upwards in the order of their issuance.  No 2016 

Bond shall be issued originally or upon transfer or partial redemption having more than one principal 

maturity.  The initial bond numbering and principal amounts for each of the 2016 Bonds issued shall be as 

directed by the Underwriter.  Payments of interest due on the 2016 Bonds prior to maturity or earlier 

redemption shall be made by the Paying Agent and Registrar, as designated pursuant to Section 4 hereof, 

by mailing a check or draft in the amount due for such interest on each Interest Payment Date, to such 

owner’s registered address as shown on the books of registration as required to be maintained in Section 4 

hereof.  Payments of principal due at maturity or at any date fixed for redemption prior to maturity, 

together with any unpaid interest accrued thereon, shall be made by the Paying Agent and Registrar upon 

presentation and surrender of the 2016 Bonds to said Paying Agent and Registrar.  The City and said 

Paying Agent and Registrar may treat the registered owner of any 2016 Bond as the absolute owner of 

such bond for the purpose of making payments thereon and for all other purposes and neither the City nor 

the Paying Agent and Registrar shall be affected by any notice or knowledge to the contrary, whether 

such bond or any installment of interest due thereon shall be overdue or not.  All payments on account of 

interest or principal made to the registered owner of any 2016 Bond in accordance with the terms of this 

Ordinance shall be valid and effectual and shall be a discharge of the City and said Paying Agent and 

Registrar, in respect of the liability upon the 2016 Bonds or claims for interest to the extent of the sum or 

sums so paid. 

 

 Section 4. The Paying Agent and Registrar designated pursuant to the Designation shall 

serve in such capacities under the terms of an agreement entitled "Paying Agent and Registrar's 

Agreement" between the City and said Paying Agent and Registrar, in a form approved by an Authorized 

Officer.  The Paying Agent and Registrar shall keep and maintain for the City books for the registration and 

transfer of the 2016 Bonds at its principal corporate trust office in Seward, Nebraska. The names and 

registered addresses of the registered owner or owners of the 2016 Bonds shall at all times be recorded in 

such books.  Any 2016 Bond may be transferred pursuant to its provisions at the office of said Paying Agent 

and Registrar by surrender of such 2016 Bond for cancellation, accompanied by a written instrument of 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 85 / 266



 5 

transfer, in form satisfactory to said Paying Agent and Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner in 

person or by such owner’s duly authorized agent, and thereupon the Paying Agent and Registrar, on behalf 

of the City, will deliver at its office (or send by registered mail to the transferee owner or owners thereof at 

such transferee owner’s or owners’ risk and expense), registered in the name of the transferee owner or 

owners, a new 2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds of the same series, interest rate, aggregate principal amount and 

maturity. To the extent of the denominations authorized for the 2016 Bonds by this Ordinance, one 2016 

Bond may be transferred for several such 2016 Bonds of the same series, interest rate and maturity, and for a 

like aggregate principal amount, and several such 2016 Bonds may be transferred for one or several such 

2016 Bonds, respectively, of the same series, interest rate and maturity and for a like aggregate principal 

amount. In every case of transfer of a 2016 Bond, the surrendered 2016 Bond shall be canceled and 

destroyed. All 2016 Bonds issued upon transfer of the 2016 Bonds so surrendered shall be valid obligations 

of the City evidencing the same obligations as the 2016 Bonds surrendered and shall be entitled to all the 

benefits and protection of this Ordinance to the same extent as the 2016 Bonds upon transfer of which they 

were delivered. The City and said Paying Agent and Registrar shall not be required to transfer any 2016 

Bond during any period from any Record Date until its immediately following Interest Payment Date or to 

transfer any 2016 Bond called for redemption for a period of 30 days next preceding the date fixed for 

redemption. 

 

 Section 5.  In the event that payments of interest due on the 2016 Bonds on an Interest 

Payment Date are not timely made, such interest shall cease to be payable to the registered owners as of the 

Record Date for such Interest Payment Date and shall be payable to the registered owners of the 2016 Bonds 

as of a special date of record for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be designated by the Paying 

Agent and Registrar whenever monies for the purpose of paying such defaulted interest become available. 

 

 Section 6. In addition to any mandatory sinking fund redemptions as may be provided for as 

set out in Section 3 of this Ordinance, the 2016 Bonds shall be subject to redemption at the option of the 

City, in whole or in part, prior to maturity at any time on or after such date as may be provided in the 

Designation, at par plus accrued interest on the principal amount redeemed to the date fixed for 

redemption. The City may select the 2016 Bonds for such optional redemption in its sole discretion. The 

2016 Bonds shall be redeemed only in amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof.  Any 2016 Bond 

redeemed in part only shall be surrendered to said Paying Agent and Registrar in exchange for a new 2016 

Bond evidencing the unredeemed principal thereof. Notice of redemption of any 2016 Bond called for 

redemption shall be given, at the direction of the City in the case of optional redemption and without further 

direction in the case of mandatory sinking fund redemption, by said Paying Agent and Registrar by mail not 

less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, first class, postage prepaid, sent to the registered 

owner of such 2016 Bond at said owner’s registered address. Such notice shall designate the 2016 Bond or 

2016 Bonds to be redeemed by maturity or otherwise, the date of original issue and the date fixed for 

redemption and shall state that such 2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds are to be presented for prepayment at the 

principal corporate trust office of said Paying Agent and Registrar. In case of any 2016 Bond partially re-

deemed, such notice shall specify the portion of the principal amount of such 2016 Bond to be redeemed. 

No defect in the mailing of notice for any 2016 Bond shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings of the 

City designating the 2016 Bonds called for redemption or the effectiveness of such call for the 2016 Bonds 

for which notice by mail has been properly given and the City shall have the right to direct further notice of 

redemption for any such 2016 Bond for which defective notice has been given. 

 

 Section 7. If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on the 2016 Bonds shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which the banking institutions in the City of Seward, Nebraska, 

are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next 

succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions 

are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the 

nominal date of payment. 

 

 Section 8. The 2016 Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 86 / 266



 6 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

COUNTY OF SEWARD 

 

CITY OF SEWARD 

 

ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BOND 

SERIES 2016 

 

No. R- $__________ 

 

Interest Rate Maturity Date Date of Original Issue CUSIP 

% ___________, __________, 2016  

 

Registered Owner: Cede & Co. 

 13-2555119 

Principal Amount:  

 

 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the City of Seward, in the County of 

Seward, in the State of Nebraska, hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay, 

but only from the special sources hereinafter described, to the registered owner specified above, or 

registered assigns, the principal amount specified above in lawful money of the United States of America on 

the date of maturity specified above with interest thereon to maturity (or earlier redemption) from the date of 

original issue or most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later, at the rate per annum specified 

above, payable semiannually on ____________ and ___________ of each year commencing 

____________, 20___ (each, an “Interest Payment Date”). Such interest shall be computed on the basis of a 

360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The principal of this bond together with interest thereon 

unpaid and accrued at maturity (or earlier redemption) is payable upon presentation and surrender of this 

bond at the principal corporate trust office of ____________________________________, in Seward, 

Nebraska, as Paying Agent and Registrar. Interest on this bond due prior to maturity or earlier redemption 

will be paid on each Interest Payment Date by a check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent and Registrar to 

the registered owner of this bond, as shown on the books of record maintained by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar, at the close of business on the fifteenth day immediately preceding the Interest Payment Date, to 

such owner’s address as shown on such books and records. Any interest not so timely paid shall cease to be 

payable to the person entitled thereto as of the record date such interest was payable, and shall be payable to 

the person who is the registered owner of this bond (or of one or more predecessor bonds hereto) on such 

special record date for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be fixed by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar whenever monies for such purpose become available. 

 

 This bond is one of an issue of fully registered bonds of the total principal amount of ___________ 

_________________________________Dollars ($_________) of even date and like tenor, except as to the 

date of maturity, rate of interest and denomination (the “Series 2016 Bonds”), which were issued by the City 

for the purpose of refunding $___________ of _______________, Series ______, date of original issue – 

__________, 20___, $___________ of _______________, Series ______, date of original issue – 

__________, 20___, paying the costs of improvements to the Electric System of the City, and paying costs 

of issuance thereof, and is issued pursuant to the terms of an ordinance (the “Ordinance”) passed and 

approved by the Mayor and Council of said City in accordance with and under the provisions of Sections 

18-1803 to 18-1805, R.R.S. Neb. 2012.    

 

[ The bonds of this issue due as term bonds in the years 20__ and 20__ (the “Term Bonds”) are 

required to be redeemed prior to their stated maturity, commencing on ____________, 20__  and 

continuing on ____________ of each year thereafter through and including payment at maturity, in part, 

which redemptions and payment at maturity shall be in the years and for the principal amounts set forth 

below: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 87 / 266



 7 

 

 

 

20__ Term Bonds 

Year of Redemption Amount Required to be Redeemed 

__________, 20__ $__,000 

__________, 20__ __,000 

__________,20__ (final maturity) __,000 

 

20__ Term Bonds 

Year of Redemption Amount Required to be Redeemed 

__________,20__ $__,000 

__________,20__ (final maturity) __,000 

 

Such mandatory redemptions shall be at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus 

interest accrued on the principal amount being redeemed to the date fixed for redemption.  The Paying 

Agent and Registrar shall select the Term Bonds for mandatory redemption using any random method of 

selection deemed appropriate by the Paying Agent and Registrar.] 

 

 Any or all of the bonds of said issue maturing on or after ____________, 20__, are subject to 

redemption at the option of the City, in whole or in part, on _______________________or at any time 

thereafter, at the principal amount thereof together with accrued interest on the principal amount redeemed 

to the date fixed for redemption. Such optional redemption shall be made from time to time as shall be 

directed by the Mayor and Council of the City. The City may select the Series 2016 Bonds for optional 

redemption in its sole discretion. 

 

 Notice of redemption shall be given by mail to the registered owner of any Series 2016 Bond called 

for redemption in the manner specified in the Ordinance authorizing said issue of bonds. Individual bonds 

may be redeemed in part but only in the amount of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof. 

 

 This bond is transferable by the registered owner or such owner’s attorney duly authorized in 

writing at the office of the Paying Agent and Registrar upon surrender and cancellation of this bond, and 

thereupon a new bond or bonds of the same series, aggregate principal amount, interest rate and maturity 

will be issued to the transferee as provided in the Ordinance, subject to the limitations therein prescribed. 

The City, the Paying Agent and Registrar and any other person may treat the person in whose name this 

bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment due hereunder and for 

all other purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary, whether this bond be overdue or 

not. 

 

 If the day for payment of the principal of or interest on this bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of Seward, Nebraska, are authorized by law or 

executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a 

Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and 

payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

 

 The revenues and earnings of the electric system of the City, including all improvements and 

additions thereto hereafter constructed or acquired (the “Electric System”), are pledged and hypothecated by 

the City for the payment of this bond and the other Series 2016 Bonds, for the payment of the City’s Electric 

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, date of original issue—June 7, 2011, presently outstanding in the 

principal amount of $___________ (the “Series 2011 Bonds”), the City’s Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 

2011B, date of original issue—December 8, 2011, presently outstanding in the principal amount of 

$________ (the “Series 2011B Bonds”), the City’s Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, date of original 

issue—March 27, 2012, presently outstanding in the principal amount of $________ (the “Series 2012 

Bonds”)  and for the payment of any additional bonds of equal priority issued in accordance with the terms 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 88 / 266



 8 

of the Ordinance authorizing the 2016 Bonds. The Series 2016 Bonds are a lien only upon said revenues and 

earnings and are not general obligations of the City of Seward, Nebraska. 

 

 The Ordinance authorizing the Series 2016 Bonds sets forth the covenants and obligations of the 

City with respect to the Electric System and the applications of the revenues and earnings thereof, which 

revenues and earnings under the terms of the Ordinance are required to be deposited to the “Seward Electric 

Fund” as established under the Ordinance and disbursed to pay costs of operation and maintenance of the 

Electric System, make payments of principal and interest on the Series 2016 Bonds, the Series 2011 Bonds, 

the Series 2011B Bonds, the Series 2012 Bonds and any additional bonds of equal priority with said Series 

2016 Bonds, Series 2011 Bonds and Series 2011B Bonds, the Series 2012 Bonds and other payments as 

specified in the Ordinance authorizing the Series 2016 Bonds. The Ordinance authorizing the Series 2016 

Bonds also designates the terms and conditions under which additional bonds of equal priority with the 

Series 2016 Bonds, Series 2011 Bonds, the Series 2011B Bonds and the Series 2012 Bonds may be issued. 

The Ordinance also designates the terms and conditions upon which this bond shall cease to be entitled to 

any lien, benefit or security under the Ordinance and all covenants, agreements and obligations of the City 

under the Ordinance may be discharged and satisfied at or prior to the maturity or redemption of this bond 

or bonds of equal lien if monies or certain specified securities shall have been deposited with a trustee bank. 

In the Ordinance authorizing the Series 2016 Bonds, the City also reserves the right to issue bonds or notes 

junior in lien to the Series 2016 Bonds, the Series 2011 Bonds, the Series 2011B Bonds, the Series 2012 

Bonds and any additional bonds of equal priority, the principal and interest of which shall be payable from 

monies in the “Surplus Account” of the Seward Electric Fund as described in the Ordinance authorizing the 

Series 2016 Bonds. 

 

 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND WARRANTED that all conditions, acts and things required by 

law to exist or to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this bond did exist, did happen and were done 

and performed in regular and due form and time as provided by law. 

 

 AS PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE REFERRED TO HEREIN, UNTIL THE TERMINA-

TION OF THE SYSTEM OF BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY TRANSFERS THROUGH THE DEPOSITORY 

TRUST COMPANY, NEW YORK, NEW YORK (TOGETHER WITH ANY SUCCESSOR SECURITIES 

DEPOSITORY APPOINTED PURSUANT TO THE ORDINANCE, “DTC”), AND NOTWITHSTAND-

ING ANY OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE TO THE CONTRARY, A PORTION OF THE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS BOND MAY BE PAID OR REDEEMED WITHOUT SURRENDER 

HEREOF TO THE REGISTRAR. DTC OR A NOMINEE, TRANSFEREE OR ASSIGNEE OF DTC OF 

THIS BOND MAY NOT RELY UPON THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT INDICATED HEREON AS THE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT HEREOF OUTSTANDING AND UNPAID. THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

HEREOF OUTSTANDING AND UNPAID SHALL FOR ALL PURPOSES BE THE AMOUNT 

DETERMINED IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE. 

 

 UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF DTC (A) TO 

THE REGISTRAR FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER OR EXCHANGE OR (B) TO THE 

REGISTRAR FOR PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL, AND ANY BOND ISSUED IN REPLACEMENT 

HEREOF OR SUBSTITUTION HEREFOR IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF DTC AND ANY 

PAYMENT IS MADE TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE 

HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL BECAUSE 

ONLY THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, HAS AN INTEREST 

HEREIN. 

 

 This bond shall not be valid and binding on the City until authenticated by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, have caused 

this bond to be executed on behalf of the City with the facsimile signatures of the Mayor and City Clerk of 

the City, all as of the Date of Original Issue shown above. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 89 / 266



 9 

 

 

 

       CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

ATTEST:         (facsimile signature)                  

       Mayor 

  (facsimile signature)                   

City Clerk 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

 This bond is one of the bonds authorized by Ordinance passed and approved by the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, as described in said bond. 

 

_________________________________, 

Seward, Nebraska 

       as Paying Agent and Registrar 

 

       ______________________________________ 

       Authorized Signature 

 

(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT) 

 

 For value received ____________________________________________ hereby sells, assigns, and 

transfers unto _____________________________________ the within bond and hereby irrevocably 

constitutes and appoints ______________________________________, Attorney, to transfer the same on 

the books of registration in the office of the within mentioned Paying Agent and Registrar with full power of 

substitution in the premises. 

 

      Date: ________________________________________ 

  

      _____________________________________________ 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

       Registered Owner 

Signature Guaranteed 

 

By: ___________________________________ 

 

 ________________________________ 

  Authorized Officer 

 

 Note: The signature(s) on this assignment MUST CORRESPOND with the name(s) as written on 

the face of the within bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever, 

and must be guaranteed by a commercial bank or a trust company or by a firm having membership on the 

New York, Midwest or other stock exchange. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 90 / 266



 10 

 Section 9. Each of the 2016 Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City with the manual or 

facsimile signatures of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City. The 2016 Bonds shall be issued initially as 

“book-entry-only” bonds using the services of The Depository Trust Company (the “Depository”), with one 

typewritten bond certificate per maturity being issued to the Depository. In such connection said officers are 

authorized to execute and deliver a letter of representations (the “Letter of Representations”) in the form 

required by the Depository (which may be in the form of a blanket letter, including any blanket letter 

previously executed and delivered), for and on behalf of the City, which shall thereafter govern matters with 

respect to registration, transfer, payment and redemption of the 2016 Bonds. Upon the issuance of the 2016 

Bonds as “book-entry-only” bonds, the following provisions shall apply: 

 

 (a) The City and the Paying Agent and Registrar shall have no responsibility or 

obligation to any broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the Depository 

holds 2016 Bonds as securities depository (each, a “Bond Participant”) or to any person 

who is an actual purchaser of a 2016 Bond from a Bond Participant while the 2016 Bonds 

are in book-entry form (each, a “Beneficial Owner”) with respect to the following: 

 

   (i) the accuracy of the records of the Depository, any 

nominees of the Depository or any Bond Participant with respect to any 

ownership interest in the 2016 Bonds, 

 

   (ii) the delivery to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial 

Owner or any other person, other than the Depository, of any notice with 

respect to the 2016 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or 

 

   (iii) the payment to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial 

Owner or any other person, other than the Depository, of any amount with 

respect to the 2016 Bonds. The Paying Agent and Registrar shall make 

payments with respect to the 2016 Bonds only to or upon the order of the 

Depository or its nominee, and all such payments shall be valid and 

effective fully to satisfy and discharge the obligations with respect to such 

2016 Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than 

the Depository shall receive an authenticated 2016 Bond, except as 

provided in (e) below. 

 

  (b) Upon receipt by the Paying Agent and Registrar of written notice from the 

Depository to the effect that the Depository is unable or unwilling to discharge its 

responsibilities, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall issue, transfer and exchange 2016 

Bonds requested by the Depository in appropriate amounts. Whenever the Depository 

requests the Paying Agent and Registrar to do so, the Paying Agent and Registrar will 

cooperate with the Depository in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice (i) to 

arrange, with the prior written consent of the City, for a substitute depository willing and 

able upon reasonable and customary terms to maintain custody of the 2016 Bonds or (ii) to 

make available 2016 Bonds registered in whatever name or names the Beneficial Owners 

transferring or exchanging such 2016 Bonds shall designate. 

 

  (c) If the City determines that it is desirable that certificates representing the 

2016 Bonds be delivered to the Bond Participants and/or Beneficial Owners of the 2016 

Bonds and so notifies the Paying Agent and Registrar in writing, the Paying Agent and 

Registrar shall so notify the Depository, whereupon the Depository will notify the Bond 

Participants of the availability through the Depository of bond certificates representing the 

2016 Bonds. In such event, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall issue, transfer and 

exchange bond certificates representing the 2016 Bonds as requested by the Depository in 

appropriate amounts and in authorized denominations. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 91 / 266



 11 

  (d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so 

long as any 2016 Bond is registered in the name of the Depository or any nominee thereof, 

all payments with respect to such 2016 Bond and all notices with respect to such 2016 

Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to the Depository as provided in the Letter of 

Representations. 

 

  (e) Registered ownership of the 2016 Bonds may be transferred on the books 

of registration maintained by the Paying Agent and Registrar, and the 2016 Bonds may be 

delivered in physical form to the following: 

 

   (i) any successor securities depository or its nominee; 

 

   (ii) any person, upon (A) the resignation of the Depository 

from its functions as depository or (B) termination of the use of the 

Depository pursuant to this Section. 

 

  (f) In the event of any partial redemption of a 2016 Bond unless and until 

such partially redeemed 2016 Bond has been replaced in accordance with the provisions of 

this Ordinance, the books and records of the Paying Agent and Registrar shall govern and 

establish the principal amount of such 2016 Bond as is then outstanding and all of the 2016 

Bonds issued to the Depository or its nominee shall contain a legend to such effect. 

 

If for any reason the Depository resigns and is not replaced or upon termination by the City of book-entry-

only form, the City shall immediately provide a supply of bond certificates for issuance upon subsequent 

transfers or in the event of partial redemption. In the event that such supply of certificates shall be 

insufficient to meet the requirements of the Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance of replacement bond 

certificates upon transfer or partial redemption, the City agrees to order printed an additional supply of bond 

certificates and to direct their execution by manual or facsimile signature of its then duly qualified and 

acting officers. In case any officer whose signature or facsimile thereof shall appear on any 2016 Bond shall 

cease to be such officer before the delivery of such 2016 Bond (including any bond certificates delivered to 

the Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance upon transfer or partial redemption), such signature or such 

facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer or 

officers had remained in office until the delivery of such 2016 Bond. The 2016 Bonds shall not be valid and 

binding on the City until authenticated by the Paying Agent and Registrar. The 2016 Bonds shall be 

delivered to the Paying Agent and Registrar for registration and authentication. Upon execution, registration 

and authentication of the 2016 Bonds, they shall be delivered to the City’s Treasurer, acting on behalf of the 

City, who is authorized to deliver them to the Underwriter upon receipt of the total stated principal amount 

of the 2016 Bonds, plus accrued interest thereon to date of payment for the 2016 Bonds, less Underwriter’s 

discount in an amount determined in the Designation. A record of information with respect to the 2016 

Bonds shall also be filed with the office of the Auditor of Public Accounts as required under Section 10-140, 

R.R.S. Neb. 2012, as amended. The Underwriter shall have the right to direct the registration of the 2016 

Bonds and the denominations thereof for each series and for each maturity, subject to the restrictions of this 

Ordinance. The City Clerk, acting on behalf of the City, shall make and certify a transcript of the 

proceedings of the governing body with respect to the 2016 Bonds, a copy of which shall be delivered to the 

Underwriter.  The Underwriter and its agents, representatives and counsel (including the City’s bond 

counsel) are hereby authorized to take such actions on behalf of the City as are necessary to effectuate the 

closing of the issuance and sale of the 2016 Bonds, including, without limitation, authorizing the release of 

the 2016 Bonds by the Depository at closing.  The Authorized Officers are hereby each individually 

authorized to execute the Bond Purchase Agreement, in the form such Authorized Officers may deem 

necessary and appropriate, and are further authorized to do any and all things necessary and appropriate in 

connection with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds and the redemption of the Refunded Bonds. 

 

 Section 10. For the payment of the 2016 Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds both principal and 

interest, together with any Additional Bonds, both principal and interest, the City hereby pledges and 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 92 / 266



 12 

hypothecates the entire revenues and earnings of the Electric System of the City as a first and prior pledge 

and encumbrance of such revenues, in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance.  The pledge and 

hypothecation provided for the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds in this 

Ordinance is intended to be and shall provide for a first and prior pledge or lien upon and security interest 

in the revenues of the Electric System (now or hereafter existing) superior to any pledge, lien or security 

interest made or given with respect to any other indebtedness of the City as to its Electric System and is 

intended as a full exercise of the powers of the City provided for in Sections 18-1803 to 18-1805, R.R.S. 

Neb. 2012, as now or hereafter amended, with respect to the City’s Electric System and the revenues and 

earnings thereof. 

 

 Section 11. The City hereby agrees that it will impose and maintain and shall revise from time 

to time when necessary and shall collect such rentals, rates, fees and charges for the use and services of the 

Electric System which in the aggregate shall be sufficient at all times to enable the City to pay the principal 

and interest on the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Bonds as the same become due. 

 

 Section 12. The City will maintain and collect rates and charges for all services furnished from 

its Electric System adequate to produce revenues and earnings sufficient at all times: 

 

   (a) to provide for the payment of interest on and principal of 

the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Bonds as such 

interest and principal become due; 

 

   (b) to pay all reasonable costs of operation and maintenance 

of the Electric System, including adequate insurance as provided by this 

Ordinance and to pay for the necessary and reasonable repairs, 

replacements and extensions of said Electric System; and 

 

   (c) to establish and maintain the 2016 Debt Service Reserve 

Account as hereinafter set forth, the debt service reserve accounts required 

for the Outstanding Bonds under the terms of the Prior Ordinances and any 

debt service reserve account hereafter required for Additional Bonds. 

 

 Section 13. In connection with the pledge of the revenues and earnings of the Electric System 

for the payment of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Bonds as authorized by this 

Ordinance and interest on such 2016 Bonds, Outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds, as set forth in 

Section 10 of this Ordinance, the City does hereby agree with the holders of said 2016 Bonds, Outstanding 

Bonds as follows: 

 

  (a) SEWARD ELECTRIC FUND - The entire gross revenues and income 

derived from the operation of the Electric System shall be set aside as collected and 

deposited in a separate fund which has been previously ordered established (and which is 

hereby confirmed) designated as the “Seward Electric Fund.”  For purposes of allocating 

the monies in the Seward Electric Fund, the City shall maintain the following accounts (as 

previously established and by the terms of this Ordinance directed to be established:  (1) 

Operation and Maintenance Account; (2) Bond Payment Account; (3) reserve accounts 

established under the Prior Ordinances and the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account; and 

(4) Surplus Account. 

 

  (b) OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT - Out of the Seward 

Electric Fund there shall be monthly credited into the Operation and Maintenance Account 

such amounts as the City shall from time to time determine to be necessary to pay the 

reasonable and necessary expenses of operating and maintaining the Electric System, and 

the City may withdraw funds credited to the Operation and Maintenance Account as 

necessary from time to time to pay such expenses. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 93 / 266



 13 

 

  (c) BOND PAYMENT ACCOUNT - Out of the Seward Electric Fund there 

shall be deposited monthly on or before the first day of each month, as described below, 

to the Bond Payment Account the following amounts (or such other amounts on such 

other dates as may be determined in the Designation): 

 

(1) Beginning on the first day of the month immediately following 

the month in which the 2016 Bonds are issued and continuing the first 

day of each month thereafter so long as any of the 2016 Bonds herein 

authorized remain outstanding and unpaid, an amount not less than the 

amount which, if the same amount were deposited each month, would 

be sufficient to pay the interest becoming due on the 2016 Bonds on the 

next succeeding Interest Payment Date. 

 

(2) Beginning on the first day of the month twelve months 

preceding the month in which the first principal payment is due and 

continuing the first day of each month thereafter so long as any of the 

2016 Bonds herein authorized remain outstanding and unpaid, an 

amount equal to 1/12th of the next maturing principal payment for the 

2016 Bonds.  

 

(3) During the periods and in the amounts specified for the 

Outstanding Bonds in the Prior Ordinances. 

 

 The City Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed, without further authorization, to 

withdraw monies credited to the Bond Payment Account, or if the monies in such Account 

are insufficient, then from the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account (or reserve accounts 

established under the Prior Ordinances for the appropriate series of Outstanding Bonds, 

or the appropriate debt service reserve account in the case of each issue of Additional 

Bonds) and next from the Surplus Account, in an amount sufficient to pay, when due, the 

principal of and interest on the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds or any Additional 

Bonds and to transfer such amounts due to the Paying Agent and Registrar (or other paying 

agent for the Outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds) at least five (5) business days before 

each principal and interest payment date.  Upon the issuance of any Additional Bonds 

pursuant to this Ordinance appropriate additional credits to the Bond Payment Account 

shall be provided sufficient to pay principal and interest on said Additional Bonds. 

 

  (d) 2016 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCOUNT - The City has 

previously established debt service reserve accounts for the Outstanding Bonds under the 

terms of the Prior Ordinances and shall continue to maintain such accounts so long as the 

Outstanding Bonds remain outstanding in accordance with a the terms of the Prior 

Ordinances.  Concurrently with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds (or in such other manner 

as may be determined in the Designation), the City agrees that is shall deposit to the 2016 

Reserve Account from funds on hand or proceeds of the 2016 Bonds a sum (which may 

be $0.00) not greater than the least of (a) 10 percent of the stated principal amount of the 

original principal amount of the 2016 Bonds; (b) 125% of the average annual principal 

and interest requirements of the 2016 Bonds; or (c) the maximum annual principal and 

interest requirements of the 2016 Bonds, (the “Required Balance”).  Such Required 

Balance shall be the amount required to be maintained as the required balance in said 

account, so long as the 2016 Bonds remain outstanding.  Monies credited to the 2016 Debt 

Service Reserve Account may be withdrawn, as needed to provide funds to pay, when due, 

the principal and interest on the 2016 Bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance, if the Bond 

Payment Account contains insufficient funds for that purpose, and the City Treasurer is 

hereby authorized and directed to make such withdrawal if and when needed.  In the event 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 94 / 266



 14 

of a withdrawal from the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account, there shall be credited to the 

2016 Debt Service Reserve Account in the month following such withdrawal all monies in 

the Seward Electric Fund remaining after making the payments required to be made in such 

month to the Operation and Maintenance Account and Bond Payment Account and each 

month thereafter all such remaining monies shall be credited to the 2016 Debt Service 

Reserve Account until such account has been restored to the Required Balance.  In the 

event of withdrawal from or deficiency in the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account and/or  

reserve accounts created pursuant to the Prior Ordinances, monies available to be credited 

to restore such reserves shall be allocated between such reserve accounts pro rata in 

accordance with the respective outstanding principal amounts of the Outstanding Bonds 

and the 2016 Bonds.  Upon the issuance of any Additional Bonds a separate debt service 

reserve account shall be established (in such amount as the Mayor and Council shall 

determine appropriate, including no such reserve, if deemed appropriate) and any such 

separate debt service reserve account shall have the right to share, in the event of drawings 

upon the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account and/or reserve accounts set up for the 

Outstanding Bonds pursuant to the Prior Ordinances and such reserve account for 

Additional Bonds, in revenues available in the Seward Electric Fund upon a pro rata basis 

in accordance with the respective outstanding principal amounts for each such issue.  

Anything in this Subsection 13(d) to the contrary notwithstanding, the amount required to 

be maintained in the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account with respect to the 2016 Bonds, 

in the reserve accounts created for the Outstanding Bonds pursuant to the Prior Ordinances 

or in any debt service reserve account for any issue of Additional Bonds shall not be 

required to exceed at any time the maximum amount permitted to be invested without yield 

restriction under Section 103(b) and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended, and applicable regulations of the United States Treasury Department. 

 

  (e) SURPLUS ACCOUNT - Monies from the Seward Electric Fund 

remaining after the credits required in the foregoing Subsections 13(b), 13(c) and 13(d) 

shall be credited to the Surplus Account.  Monies in the Surplus Account may be used to 

make up any deficiencies in the preceding accounts, to retire any of the 2016 Bonds, the 

Outstanding Bonds or any Additional Bonds prior to their maturity, to pay principal of and 

interest on any junior lien indebtedness incurred with respect to the Electric System, to 

provide for replacements or improvements for the Electric System or to provide for any 

other lawful purpose of the City determined upon by the Mayor and Council. 

 

The provisions of this Section shall require the City to maintain a set of books and records in accordance 

with such accounting methods and procedures as are generally applicable to a municipal utility enterprise, 

which books and records shall show credits to and expenditures from the several accounts required by this 

Section.  Monies credited to the Seward Electric Fund or any of the accounts therein as established by this 

Ordinance shall be deposited or invested separate and apart from other City funds.  Except as specified 

below for the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account, the reserve accounts created for the Outstanding Bonds 

pursuant to the Prior Ordinances and any reserve account for Additional Bonds, the City shall not be 

required to establish separate bank or investment accounts for the accounts described in Subsection 13(b), 

13(c), 13(d) and 13(e).  Monies credited to the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account, the reserve accounts 

created pursuant to the Prior Ordinances or any reserve account for Additional Bonds (unless otherwise 

directed in their authorizing ordinance) shall, if maintained in a demand or time deposit account, be kept in a 

separate account and not commingled with other Electric System funds or accounts.  If invested, monies 

credited to the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account, the reserve accounts created pursuant to the Prior 

Ordinances or any reserve account established for Additional Bonds may be commingled with other Electric 

System funds or accounts so long as the City maintains books and records clearly identifying the specific 

investments, or portions thereof, which belong to the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account, the reserve 

accounts created pursuant to the Prior Ordinances or reserve account for Additional Bonds. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 95 / 266



 15 

 Section 14. So long as any 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds are 

outstanding, the City hereby covenants and agrees as follows: 

 

(a) The City will maintain the Electric System in good condition and will 

continuously operate the same in a reasonable and efficient manner, and the City will 

punctually perform all duties with reference to said system required by the Constitution 

and statutes of the State of Nebraska, but this covenant shall not prevent the City from 

discontinuing the use and operation of all or any portion of the Electric System so long as 

the revenue derived from the City’s ownership of the properties constituting the Electric 

System shall be sufficient to fulfill the City’s obligations under Sections 11, 12 and 13 of 

this Ordinance and the obligations provided for in the similar provisions of the Prior 

Ordinances. 

 

(b) The City will not grant any franchise or right to any person, firm or 

corporation to own or operate an electric system in competition with the Electric System. 

 

(c) The City will maintain insurance on the property constituting the Electric 

System (other than such portions of the system as are not normally insured) against risks 

customarily carried by similar utilities, but including fire and extended coverage insurance 

in an amount which would enable the City to repair, restore or replace the property 

damaged to the extent necessary to make the Electric System operable in an efficient and 

proper manner to carry out the City’s obligations under this Ordinance.  The Mayor and 

Council shall annually examine the amount of insurance carried with respect to the Electric 

System and shall evidence approval of such insurance by resolution.  The proceeds of any 

such insurance received by the City shall be used to repair, replace or restore the property 

damaged or destroyed to the extent necessary to make the Electric System operable in an 

efficient and proper manner, and any amount of insurance proceeds not so used shall be 

credited to the Surplus Account.  In the event of any such insured casualty loss, the City 

may advance funds to make temporary repairs or provide for an advance on costs of the 

permanent repair, restoration or replacement from the Operation and Maintenance Account 

and any such advances shall be repaid from insurance proceeds received. 

 

(d) The City will keep proper books, records and account separate from all 

other records and accounts in which complete and correct entries will be made of all 

transactions relating to the Electric System.  The City will have its operating and financial 

statements related to the Electric System audited annually by a certified public accountant 

or firm of certified public accountants.  The City will furnish to the Underwriter and the 

original purchasers of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and and to the original 

purchaser or purchasers of each series of Additional Bonds issued hereunder, within four 

months after the end of each fiscal year of the Electric System, a copy of the financial 

statements of the Electric System and the report thereon of the certified public accountants. 

 

(e) The City shall cause each person handling any of the monies in the Seward 

Electric Fund to be bonded by an insurance company licensed to do business in Nebraska in 

an amount or amounts deemed sufficient by the Mayor and Council to cover the amount of 

money belonging to said system reasonably expected to be in the possession or control of 

any such person.  The amount of such bond or bonds shall be fixed by the Mayor and 

Council and the costs thereof shall be paid as an operating and maintenance expense from 

the Operation and Maintenance Account. 

 

Section 15.   To provide funds for any purpose related to the Electric System, the City may 

issue Additional Bonds (other than Additional Bonds issued for refunding purposes which are governed 

by Section 16 of this Ordinance) payable from the revenues of the Electric System having equal priority 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 96 / 266



 16 

and on a parity with the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Bonds then outstanding, 

only upon compliance with the following conditions: 

 

  (a) Such Additional Bonds shall be issued only pursuant to an ordinance 

which shall provide for an increase in the monthly credits into the Bond Payment 

Account in amounts sufficient to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the 2016 

Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Bonds then outstanding and the 

proposed Additional Bonds and for any monthly credits to the debt service reserve 

accounts as may be required to be established with respect to any then-outstanding bonds 

and such Additional Bonds. 

 

  (b) The City shall have complied with one or the other of the two following 

requirements: 

 

   1) The Net Revenues derived by the City from its Electric System 

for the fiscal year next preceding the issuance of the Additional Bonds shall have 

been at least equal to 1.25 times the Average Annual Debt Service Requirements 

of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Bonds, all as then 

outstanding, and of the proposed Additional Bonds; or 

 

   2) The City shall have received a projection made by a consulting 

engineer or firm of consulting engineers, recognized as having experience and 

expertise in municipal utility systems, projecting that the Net Revenues of the 

Electric System in each of the three full fiscal years after the issuance of such 

Additional Bonds will be at least equal to 1.25 times the Average Annual Debt 

Service Requirements of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any 

Additional Bonds, all as then outstanding, and of the proposed Additional Bonds.  

In making such projection, the consulting engineer shall use as a basis the Net 

Revenues of the Electric System during the last fiscal year for which an 

independent audit has been prepared and shall adjust such Net Revenues as 

follows: (A) to reflect changes in rates which have gone into effect since the 

beginning of the fiscal year for which the audit was made, (B) to reflect such 

engineer’s estimate of the net increase over or net decrease under the Net 

Revenues of the Electric System for the fiscal year for which the audit was made 

by reason of: (i) changes of amounts payable under existing contracts for 

services; (ii) additional general income from sales to customers under existing 

rate schedules for various classes of customers or as such schedules may be 

revised under a program of changes which has been adopted by the Mayor and 

Council of the City; (iii) projected revisions in costs for labor, wages, salaries, 

machinery, equipment, supplies and other operational items; (iv) revisions in the 

amount of service to be supplied and any related administrative or other costs 

associated with such increases due to increased supply from the acquisition of 

any new facility; and (v) such other factors affecting the projections of revenues 

and expenses as the consulting engineer deems reasonable and proper. Annual 

debt service on any proposed Additional Bonds to be issued may be estimated by 

the consulting engineer in projecting Average Annual Debt Service 

Requirements, but no Additional Bonds shall be issued requiring any annual debt 

service payment in excess of the amount so estimated by the consulting engineer. 

 

The City hereby covenants and agrees that so long as any of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and 

any Additional Bonds are outstanding, it will not issue any bonds or notes payable from the revenues of 

the Electric System except in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance and the Prior Ordinances 

so long as the appropriate Outstanding Bonds remain outstanding, provided, however, the City reserves 

the right to issue bonds or notes which are junior in lien to the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 97 / 266



 17 

any such Additional Bonds with the principal and interest of such bonds or notes to be payable from 

monies credited to the Surplus Account as provided in Subsection 13(e) of this Ordinance. 

 

 Section 16.   The City may issue refunding bonds which shall qualify as Additional Bonds of 

equal lien to refund any 2016 Bonds, Outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds then outstanding, provided, 

that if any such 2016 Bonds, Outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds are to remain outstanding after the 

issuance of such refunding bonds, the principal payments due in any calendar year in which those bonds 

which are to remain outstanding mature, or in any calendar year prior thereto, shall not be increased over 

the amount of such principal payments due in such calendar years immediately prior to such refunding.  

Refunding Bonds issued in accordance with this paragraph of this Section 16 may be issued as Additional 

Bonds of equal lien without compliance with the conditions set forth in Subsection 15(b) of this 

Ordinance. 

 

 The City may also issue refunding bonds which shall qualify as Additional Bonds of equal lien to 

refund any 2016 Bonds, Outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds then outstanding provided, that, if any 

such 2016 Bonds, Outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds are to remain outstanding after the application 

of the proceeds of the refunding bonds to the payment of the bonds which are to be refunded, such 

issuance must comply with the Net Revenues test set forth in Subsection 15(b)(1) of this Ordinance and, 

if the proceeds of such refunding bonds are not to be applied immediately to the satisfaction of the bonds 

which are to be refunded, then such refunding bonds must provide by their terms that they shall be junior 

in lien to all 2016 Bonds, Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Bonds outstanding at the time of 

issuance of such refunding bonds until the time of application of their proceeds to the satisfaction of the 

bonds which are to be refunded.  In computing Average Annual Debt Service Requirements to show 

compliance with said Net Revenues test for such refunding bonds, all payments of principal and interest 

due on such refunding bonds from the time of their issuance to the time of application of the proceeds of 

such refunding bonds to the satisfaction of the bonds which are to be refunded shall be excluded from 

such computation to the extent that such principal and interest are payable from sources other than the 

revenues of the Electric System, such as proceeds of refunding bonds and earnings on the investment of 

the proceeds of said refunding bonds, or from monies in the Surplus Account, and all payments of 

principal and interest due on the bonds which are to be refunded from and after the time of such 

application shall also be excluded.  For purposes of this paragraph of this Section 16, the time of 

application of the proceeds of the refunding bonds to the satisfaction of the bonds which are to be 

refunded shall be the time of deposit with the paying agent for such bonds which are to be refunded 

pursuant to Section 10-126 R.R.S. Neb. 2012 (or any successor statutory provision thereto) or the time 

when such bonds which are to be refunded under the terms of their authorizing ordinance or ordinances 

are no longer deemed to be outstanding, whichever occurs sooner. 

 

 Section 17. The City’s obligations under this Ordinance and the liens, pledges, dedications, 

covenants and agreements of the City herein made or provided for shall be fully discharged and satisfied as 

to any of the 2016 Bonds issued hereunder, and said bonds shall no longer be deemed outstanding hereunder 

if such bonds shall have been purchased and canceled by the City or, as to any of said bonds not theretofore 

purchased and canceled by the City, when payment of the principal of and any applicable redemption 

premium, if any, on such bonds plus interest thereon to the respective dates of maturity or redemption (a) 

shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof; or (b) shall have been 

provided for by depositing with a state or national bank having trust powers or trust company in trust solely 

for such payment (i) sufficient moneys to make such payment and/or (ii) Deposit Securities in such amount 

and bearing interest payable and maturing or redeemable at stated fixed prices at the option of the holder as 

to principal at such times as will ensure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment and such 

bonds shall cease to draw interest from the date fixed for their redemption or maturity and, except for the 

purposes of such payment, shall no longer be entitled to the benefits of this Ordinance; provided that, with 

respect to any such bonds called or to be called for redemption, the City shall have duly given notice of 

redemption or made irrevocable provision for such notice. Any such moneys so deposited with the aforesaid 

state or national bank or trust company as provided in this section may be invested and reinvested in Deposit 

Securities at the direction of the City and all interest and income from all such Deposit Securities in the 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 98 / 266



 18 

hands of the aforesaid trustee bank or trust company which are not required to pay principal and interest on 

the 2016 Bonds for which such deposit has been made shall be paid to the City as and when realized and 

collected.  

 

 Section 18. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held 

invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the other 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

 Section 19. All ordinances, resolutions or orders or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 

of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 20. The Authorized Officers or any one or more of them is authorized to approve, 

deem final and deliver a Preliminary Official Statement and a final Official Statement with respect to the 

2016 Bonds for and on behalf of the City, all in accordance with the requirements of Reg. Sec. 240.15c2-12 

of the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 

 Section 21. The City hereby (a) authorizes and directs that an Authorized Officer execute and 

deliver, on the date of issue of the 2016 Bonds, a continuing disclosure undertaking in accordance with 

the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission in such form 

as determined necessary and appropriate by such Authorized Officer (the “Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking”) and (b) covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of 

the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution, failure of 

the City to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall not be considered an event of 

default hereunder; however, any Participating Underwriter (as such term is defined in the Continuing 

Disclosure Undertaking) or any Beneficial Owner or any Registered Owner of a Bond (as such terms are 

defined in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking) may take such actions as may be necessary and 

appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the City to 

comply with its obligations under this section, and under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  An 

Authorized Officer may appoint a Dissemination Agent for the 2016 Bonds in the Authorized Officer’s 

discretion. 

 

 Section 22. The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will make no use of the proceeds of 

the 2016 Bonds which would cause the 2016 Bonds to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Sections 

103(b)(2) and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and further covenants to 

comply with said Sections 103(b)(2) and 148 and all applicable regulations thereunder throughout the term 

of said issue, including all requirements with respect to payment and reporting of rebates, if applicable.  The 

City hereby covenants to take all action necessary to preserve the tax-exempt status of the interest on the 

2016 Bonds for federal income tax purposes under the Code with respect to taxpayers generally.  The City 

further agrees that it will not take any actions which would cause the 2016 Bonds to constitute “private 

activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code.  The City hereby designates the 2016 Bonds 

as its “qualified tax-exempt obligations” pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) of the Code and covenants 

and warrants that it does not reasonably expect to issue bonds or other obligations aggregating in principal 

amount more than $10,000,000 during the calendar year or years in which the 2016 Bonds are issued (taking 

into consideration the exception for current refunding issues). The Mayor is hereby authorized to make, or 

cause to be made, any and all certifications deemed necessary in connection with the designation of the 

2016 Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations”, including “deemed designating” the 2016 Bonds. 

 

 Section 23. The net sale proceeds of the 2016 Bonds required to redeem the Refunded Bonds 

and the Refunded Notes (the “Redemption Proceeds”), along with any necessary funds of the City on 

hand, shall be applied to the payment and satisfaction of all of the principal of and the interest on the 

Refunded Bonds and the Refunded Notes falling due prior to, and as called for redemption on, each 

respective Redemption Date.  The remaining net principal proceeds of the 2016 Bonds shall be applied on 

order of the Mayor and Council to the payment of costs of improvements to the Electric System.  Accrued 

interest received from the sale of the 2016 Bonds, if any, shall be applied to pay interest first falling due 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 99 / 266



 19 

on the 2016 Bonds.  Expenses of issuance of the 2016 Bonds may be paid from the proceeds of the 2016 

Bonds.  In order to satisfy the City's obligation on the Refunded Bonds and the Refunded Notes, if 

determined necessary and appropriate by an Authorized Officer, such Redemption Proceeds, along with 

funds of the City on hand shall be set aside and held and invested in a special trust account which is 

hereby ordered established with such bank or trust company as determined by an Authorized Officer to 

act as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”).  The Escrow Agent shall have custody and safekeeping of the 

funds and investments which are to be set aside for the payment of the Refunded Bonds and the Refunded 

Notes.  For purposes of governing such escrow account and the holding and application of such funds and 

investments, the City shall enter into a contract entitled "Escrow Agreement" with the Escrow Agent.  

The Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver 

on behalf of the City said Escrow Agreement, including necessary counterparts, in substantially the form 

and content as presented to the meeting at which this resolution is adopted, but with such changes and 

modifications therein as to them seem necessary, desirable, or appropriate for and on behalf of the City.  

Said Authorized Officers are further authorized to approve the investments provided for in said Escrow 

Agreement, and to make any necessary subscriptions for United States Treasury Securities, State and 

Local Government Series, or to contract for the purchase of securities in the open market.  Said proceeds 

shall be invested in obligations of the United States Government, direct or guaranteed, including United 

States Treasury Securities, State and Local Government Series.  To the extent that such proceeds are held 

in a bank depository account, such deposits shall be insured by insurance of the Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation or, to the extent not fully insured, fully collateralized in the same manner as is required for 

deposit of public funds.  Any investment from the proceeds of the 2016 Bonds herein authorized shall 

mature not later than each respective Redemption Date.  As provided in said Escrow Agreement, the 

proceeds of the 2016 Bonds herein authorized and investment earnings thereon shall be applied to the 

payment of the principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds and the Refunded Notes as the same 

become due on and prior to each respective Redemption Date, and as called for redemption on each 

respective Redemption Date.  The City agrees that on the date of original issue of the 2016 Bonds, or as 

soon thereafter as practicable, it shall deposit or otherwise have on hand with the Escrow Agent, from 

other available sources, funds sufficient after taking into consideration available proceeds of the 2016 

Bonds and investment earnings to provide funds for all payments due on the Refunded Bonds and the 

Refunded Notes on or before each respective Redemption Date, and as called for redemption on each 

Redemption Date.  

 

 Section 24. This Ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after its passage and 

approval according to law.  This Ordinance shall be published in pamphlet form. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 5th day of January, 2016. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

ATTEST:      Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

[SEAL] 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 100 / 266



 Motion for adjournment was duly made, seconded and on roll call vote was declared adopted by the 

Mayor. 

 

 I, the undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certify that the foregoing is a 

true and correct copy of the proceedings had and done by the Mayor and Council on January 5, 2016; that 

all of the subjects included in the foregoing proceedings were contained in the agenda for the meeting, kept 

continually current and readily available for public inspection at the office of the City Clerk; that such 

subjects were contained in said agenda for at least twenty-four hours prior to said meeting; that a current 

copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act was available and accessible to members of the public, 

announced and posted during such meeting in the room in which such meeting was held; that at least one 

copy of all reproducible material discussed at the meeting was available at the meeting for examination and 

copying by members of the public; that the said minutes from which the foregoing proceedings have been 

extracted were in written form and available for public inspection within ten working days and prior to the 

next convened meeting of said body; that all news media requesting notification concerning meetings of said 

body were provided advance notification of the time and place of said meeting and the subjects to be 

discussed at said meeting. 

 

 

 

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 101 / 266



 

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 

 IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 

Public Notice is hereby given that at a meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Seward, 

Nebraska, held at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 5, 2016, there was passed and adopted Ordinance No. 

_________ entitled: 

 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. _________  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 

OF ELECTRIC REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED FOUR 

MILLION NINE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,900,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF (A) 

REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF $1,595,000 OF ELECTRIC REVENUE REFUNDING 

BONDS, SERIES 2011 AND $390,000 OF ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011B, (B) 

PAYING THE COSTS OF IMPROVEMENTS TO AND EXPANSION OF THE CITY’S 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM, INCLUDING PAYING AND REDEEMING CERTAIN SHORT TERM 

INDEBTEDNESS ISSUED FOR SUCH PURPOSES, (C) PROVIDING FOR NECESSARY 

RESERVE FUNDS AND (D) PAYING COSTS OF ISSUANCE OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING 

FOR THE SALE OF SAID BONDS AND DESIGNATION OF CERTAIN TERMS; PROVIDING 

FOR THE REDEMPTION OF BONDS AND INDEBTEDNESS BEING REFUNDED; 

PRESCRIBING THE FORM, TERMS AND DETAILS OF SAID BONDS; PLEDGING AND 

HYPOTHECATING THE REVENUE AND EARNINGS OF THE ELECTRIC PLANT AND 

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OF SAID CITY FOR THE PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS AND 

INTEREST THEREON; PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION, SEGREGATION AND 

APPLICATION OF THE REVENUE OF SAID ELECTRIC SYSTEM; ENTERING INTO A 

CONTRACT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY WITH THE HOLDERS OF SAID BONDS; 

REPEALING ANY CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVENESS 

AND OPERATION OF THIS ORDINANCE AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF THE 

ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM.  

 

Said Ordinance was published in pamphlet form on January __, 2016.  Copies of said Ordinance as published 

in pamphlet form are available for inspection and distribution at the Office of the City Clerk, in the City of 

Seward, Nebraska. 

 

 

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:  Please publish the Ordinance in Title Form one time after passage and approval. 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 102 / 266



CERTIFICATE AS TO PUBLICATION IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 The undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certifies that Ordinance No. 

________ as passed and approved by the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, at their 

meeting held on January 5, 2016, was published in pamphlet form on January __, 2016 and that a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance as so passed and published is attached hereto. 

 

 Dated this _____ day of January, 2016. 

 

 

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

 (SEAL) 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 103 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:30 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16THAFPE)   Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
TAXABLE HIGHWAY ALLOCATION FUND PLEDGE BONDS, SERIES 2016

Non-Rated, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 825,000.00
Original Issue Discount -3,568.00

821,432.00

Uses:

Project Fund Deposits:
Reimbursement Amount 809,594.00

Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance 1,237.50
Underwriter's Discount 10,312.50

11,550.00

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding 288.00

821,432.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 104 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:30 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16THAFPE)   Page 2

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
TAXABLE HIGHWAY ALLOCATION FUND PLEDGE BONDS, SERIES 2016

Non-Rated, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity Premium
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price (-Discount)

Term Bond due 2019:
10/01/2016 35,000 2.650% 2.650% 100.000
10/01/2017 40,000 2.650% 2.650% 100.000
10/01/2018 40,000 2.650% 2.650% 100.000
10/01/2019 45,000 2.650% 2.650% 100.000

160,000

Term Bond due 2022:
10/01/2020 45,000 3.400% 3.400% 100.000
10/01/2021 45,000 3.400% 3.400% 100.000
10/01/2022 45,000 3.400% 3.400% 100.000

135,000

Term Bond due 2024:
10/01/2023 50,000 3.800% 3.800% 100.000
10/01/2024 50,000 3.800% 3.800% 100.000

100,000

Term Bond due 2026:
10/01/2025 55,000 4.150% 4.150% 100.000
10/01/2026 55,000 4.150% 4.150% 100.000

110,000

Term Bond due 2031:
10/01/2027 60,000 4.400% 4.500% 98.885 -669.00
10/01/2028 60,000 4.400% 4.500% 98.885 -669.00
10/01/2029 65,000 4.400% 4.500% 98.885 -724.75
10/01/2030 65,000 4.400% 4.500% 98.885 -724.75
10/01/2031 70,000 4.400% 4.500% 98.885 -780.50

320,000 -3,568.00

825,000 -3,568.00

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 10/01/2016

Par Amount 825,000.00
Original Issue Discount -3,568.00

Production 821,432.00 99.567515%
Underwriter's Discount -10,312.50 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 811,119.50 98.317515%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 811,119.50

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 105 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:30 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16THAFPE)   Page 3

CALL PROVISIONS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
TAXABLE HIGHWAY ALLOCATION FUND PLEDGE BONDS, SERIES 2016

Non-Rated, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Call Table: CALL

Call Date Call Price

03/01/2021 100.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 106 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:30 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16THAFPE)   Page 4

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
TAXABLE HIGHWAY ALLOCATION FUND PLEDGE BONDS, SERIES 2016

Non-Rated, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 10/01/2016
Last Maturity 10/01/2031

Arbitrage Yield 4.142116%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.318498%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 4.160687%
All-In TIC 4.339882%
Average Coupon 4.112413%

Average Life (years) 8.959
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 8.939
Duration of Issue (years) 7.297

Par Amount 825,000.00
Bond Proceeds 821,432.00
Total Interest 303,958.75
Net Interest 317,839.25
Bond Years from Dated Date 7,391,250.00
Bond Years from Delivery Date 7,391,250.00
Total Debt Service 1,128,958.75
Maximum Annual Debt Service 72,760.00
Average Annual Debt Service 72,446.55

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.317515

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Term Bond due 2019 160,000.00 100.000 2.650% 2.177 54.40
Term Bond due 2022 135,000.00 100.000 3.400% 5.583 79.65
Term Bond due 2024 100,000.00 100.000 3.800% 8.083 73.00
Term Bond due 2026 110,000.00 100.000 4.150% 10.083 93.50
Term Bond due 2031 320,000.00 98.885 4.400% 13.661 355.20

825,000.00 8.959 655.75

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 825,000.00 825,000.00 825,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount) -3,568.00 -3,568.00 -3,568.00
  - Underwriter's Discount -10,312.50 -10,312.50
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -1,237.50
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 811,119.50 809,882.00 821,432.00

Target Date 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 03/01/2016
Yield 4.318498% 4.339882% 4.142116%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 107 / 266



Dec 29, 2015   8:30 am  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16THAFPE)   Page 5

BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
TAXABLE HIGHWAY ALLOCATION FUND PLEDGE BONDS, SERIES 2016

Non-Rated, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

10/01/2016 35,000 2.650% 18,243.75 53,243.75
04/01/2017 15,173.75 15,173.75
09/30/2017 68,417.50
10/01/2017 40,000 2.650% 15,173.75 55,173.75
04/01/2018 14,643.75 14,643.75
09/30/2018 69,817.50
10/01/2018 40,000 2.650% 14,643.75 54,643.75
04/01/2019 14,113.75 14,113.75
09/30/2019 68,757.50
10/01/2019 45,000 2.650% 14,113.75 59,113.75
04/01/2020 13,517.50 13,517.50
09/30/2020 72,631.25
10/01/2020 45,000 3.400% 13,517.50 58,517.50
04/01/2021 12,752.50 12,752.50
09/30/2021 71,270.00
10/01/2021 45,000 3.400% 12,752.50 57,752.50
04/01/2022 11,987.50 11,987.50
09/30/2022 69,740.00
10/01/2022 45,000 3.400% 11,987.50 56,987.50
04/01/2023 11,222.50 11,222.50
09/30/2023 68,210.00
10/01/2023 50,000 3.800% 11,222.50 61,222.50
04/01/2024 10,272.50 10,272.50
09/30/2024 71,495.00
10/01/2024 50,000 3.800% 10,272.50 60,272.50
04/01/2025 9,322.50 9,322.50
09/30/2025 69,595.00
10/01/2025 55,000 4.150% 9,322.50 64,322.50
04/01/2026 8,181.25 8,181.25
09/30/2026 72,503.75
10/01/2026 55,000 4.150% 8,181.25 63,181.25
04/01/2027 7,040.00 7,040.00
09/30/2027 70,221.25
10/01/2027 60,000 4.400% 7,040.00 67,040.00
04/01/2028 5,720.00 5,720.00
09/30/2028 72,760.00
10/01/2028 60,000 4.400% 5,720.00 65,720.00
04/01/2029 4,400.00 4,400.00
09/30/2029 70,120.00
10/01/2029 65,000 4.400% 4,400.00 69,400.00
04/01/2030 2,970.00 2,970.00
09/30/2030 72,370.00
10/01/2030 65,000 4.400% 2,970.00 67,970.00
04/01/2031 1,540.00 1,540.00
09/30/2031 69,510.00
10/01/2031 70,000 4.400% 1,540.00 71,540.00
09/30/2032 71,540.00

825,000 303,958.75 1,128,958.75 1,128,958.75

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 108 / 266



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF HIGHWAY ALLOCATION FUND 

PLEDGE BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, SERIES 2016, IN THE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED NINE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($950,000) 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF CONSTRUCTING CERTAIN STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY; PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF SAID BONDS; PLEDGING 

FUNDS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE CITY FROM THE STATE OF NEBRASKA HIGHWAY 

ALLOCATION FUND FOR THE PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY 

AND COLLECTION OF TAXES TO PAY THE SAME IF NECESSARY; PROVIDING FOR THE 

SALE OF THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE DELIVERY OF THE BONDS TO THE 

PURCHASER; PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSITION OF BOND PROCEEDS; AND ORDERING 

THE ORDINANCE PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM.  

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA:  

 

 Section 1. The Mayor and City Council hereby find and determine: that the City of Seward, 

Nebraska (the “City”) has constructed certain streets and other appurtenant related improvements within the 

City; specifically including improvements to certain portions of Cedar Street, Jackson Avenue, Columbia 

Avenue, Izaak Walton Road, City right of way on or adjacent to 6
th
 Street south of Ash Street, Karol Kay 

Blvd and the City’s portion of the Highway 34 overlay, together with other necessary street improvements 

all as set out in the project scope of improvements as prepared by the special engineers for the City; that the 

City’s Engineers heretofore prepared plans, specifications and estimates of cost for the said improvements; 

that bids have been taken and the Council has awarded contracts for the construction of the aforesaid street 

improvements and that the improvements have been completed; that the City expended funds the pay costs 

of construction of such improvements and planned to reimburse such funds from proceeds of a bond issue; 

that the City has the authority to fund the project costs through issuance of highway allocation fund pledge 

bonds and reimburse funds previously expended by the City for such improvements; that funds are required 

by the City with respect to said improvements, including issuance costs, in an amount not less than 

$950,000; and, that it is necessary and advisable for the City to provide financing for such street 

improvements and related improvements and appurtenances by the issuance of its bonds and it is necessary 

and advisable to borrow the sum of not to exceed $950,000  through the issuance of its Highway Allocation 

Fund Pledge Bonds, Series 2016 (the “2016 Bonds” or “Bonds”); that the City's  receipts from the Nebraska 

Highway Allocation Fund for the audited fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 totaled $649,027.64; that 

the City has $910,000 principal amount in bonds outstanding (the “Outstanding Bonds”) issued pursuant to 

Section 66-4,101, R.R.S. Neb. 2009 (or any predecessor statute thereto);  that based upon the City’s current 

receipts from the Nebraska Highway Allocation Fund, the City anticipates that future receipts will be 

sufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds as and when the same fall due; that 

all conditions, acts and things required by law to exist or to be done precedent to the issuance of Highway 

Allocation Fund Pledge Bonds, Series 2016 in the principal amount of not to exceed $950,000 pursuant to 

Section 66-4,101, R.R.S. Neb. 2009, do exist and have been done as required by law. 

 

 Section 2. To provide funds for the purpose of financing the costs of the street improvements 

as set out in Section 1 hereof, there shall be and there are hereby ordered issued the Bonds, in one or more 

series, in the aggregate stated principal amount of not to exceed Nine Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 

($950,000). The Bonds or any portion thereof are hereby authorized to be sold (a) through a private 

placement to a bank or (b) pursuant to a negotiated sale with D.A. Davidson & Co., as initial purchaser (the 

“Underwriter”).  In connection with such sale, the Mayor, City Administrator or City Clerk-Treasurer (each, 

an “Authorized Officer”) are hereby authorized to specify, determine, designate, establish and appoint, as 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 109 / 266



 2 

the case may be, in one or more written designations which may be included in a bond purchase agreement 

(each, a “Designation”), (i) whether the Bonds will be sold through a private placement to a bank or through 

a negotiated sale with the Underwriter, (ii) the aggregate purchase price of the Bonds and, if applicable, the 

placement agent fee or underwriting discount which shall not exceed 1.25% of the aggregate stated principal 

amount thereof, (iii) the form and contents of any bond purchase agreement in connection with such sale, 

(iv) the title (including series designation), dated date (which shall not be later than December 31, 2016), 

aggregate principal amount (including the aggregate principal amounts of serial Bonds and term Bonds, if 

any), which aggregate stated principal amount shall not exceed $950,000, and the final maturity date, which 

shall not be later than December 31, 2031, (v) the principal amounts maturing in each year, (v) the rate or 

rates of interest to be borne by each principal maturity, provided that the true interest cost of the Bonds shall 

not exceed 5.00%, (vii) the principal payment dates and interest payment dates, (viii) whether the Bonds 

will be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity, and if subject to such optional redemption, the 

provisions governing such redemption, including a redemption price not to exceed 104% of the principal 

amount then being redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, (ix) the amount and due date of 

each sinking fund installment for any of the Bonds issued as term Bonds, (x) the designation of the Paying 

Agent and Registrar and the form and content of any agreement between the City and such entity, as 

necessary, and (xi) all other terms and provisions of the Bonds not otherwise specified or fixed by this 

Ordinance.    

 

 The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form in the denomination of $1,000 or any integral 

multiple thereof.  The date of original issue for the Bonds shall be date of original delivery.  Interest on the 

Bonds, at the respective rates for each maturity, shall be payable as determined in the Designation (each an 

"Interest Payment Date"), and the Bonds shall bear interest from the date of original issue or the most recent 

Interest Payment Date, whichever is later.  The interest due on each Interest Payment Date shall be payable 

to the registered owners of record as of the fifteenth day immediately preceding the Interest Payment Date 

(or such other date as may be determined in the Designation, the "Record Date"), subject to the provisions 

of Section 4 hereof.  The Bonds shall be numbered from 1 upwards in the order of their issuance.  No Bond 

shall be issued originally or upon transfer or partial redemption having more than one principal maturity.  

The initial bond numbering and principal amounts for each of the Bonds issued shall be as directed by the 

initial purchaser thereof.  Payments of interest due on the Bonds prior to maturity or earlier redemption shall 

be made by the Paying Agent and Registrar, as designated pursuant to Section 3 hereof, by mailing a check 

or draft in the amount due for such interest on each Interest Payment Date to the registered owner of each 

Bond, as of the Record Date for such Interest Payment Date, to such owner's registered address as shown on 

the books of registration as required to be maintained in Section 3 hereof.  Payments of principal due at 

maturity or at any date fixed for redemption prior to maturity, together with unpaid accrued interest thereon, 

shall be made by said Paying Agent and Registrar to the registered owners upon presentation and surrender 

of the Bonds to said Paying Agent and Registrar.  The City and said Paying Agent and Registrar may treat 

the registered owner of any Bond as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of making payments 

thereon and for all other purposes and neither the City nor the Paying Agent and Registrar shall be affected 

by any notice or knowledge to the contrary, whether such Bond or any installment of interest due thereon 

shall be overdue or not.  All payments on account of interest or principal made to the registered owner of 

any Bond in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance shall be valid and effectual and shall be a 

discharge of the City and said Paying Agent and Registrar, in respect of the liability upon the Bonds or 

claims for interest to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

 

 Section 3.    The Paying Agent and Registrar designated pursuant to the Designation shall, if 

such Paying Agent and Registrar is a bank or trust company, serve in such capacities under the terms of 

an agreement entitled “Paying Agent and Registrar’s Agreement” between the City and said Paying 

Agent and Registrar in a form determined by an Authorized Officer. The Paying Agent and Registrar 

shall keep and maintain for the City books for the registration and transfer of the 2016 Bonds at its office. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 110 / 266



 3 

 The names and registered addresses of registered owner or owners of the 2016 Bonds shall at all times 

be recorded in such books.  Any 2016 Bond may be transferred  pursuant to its provisions at the office of 

said Paying Agent and Registrar by surrender of such bond for cancellation, accompanied by a written 

instrument of transfer, in form satisfactory to said Paying Agent and Registrar, duly executed by the 

registered owner in person or by such owner’s duly authorized agent, and thereupon the Paying Agent 

and Registrar on behalf of the City will deliver at its office (or send by registered mail to the transferee 

owner or owners thereof at such transferee owner’s or owners’ risk and expense), registered in the name 

of such transferee owner or owners, a new 2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds of the same interest rate, aggregate 

principal amount and maturity.  To the extent of the denominations authorized for the 2016 Bonds by this 

ordinance, one such bond may be transferred for several such bonds of the same interest rate and 

maturity, and for a like aggregate principal amount, and several such bonds may be transferred for one or 

several such bonds, respectively, of the same interest rate and maturity and for a like aggregate principal 

amount.  In every case of transfer of a 2016 Bond, the surrendered 2016 Bond shall be canceled and 

destroyed.  All Bonds issued upon transfer of the 2016 Bonds so surrendered shall be valid obligations of 

the City evidencing the same obligation as the 2016 Bonds surrendered and shall be entitled to all the 

benefits and protection of this ordinance to the same extent as the 2016 Bonds upon transfer of which 

they were delivered.  The City as said Paying Agent and Registrar shall not be required to transfer any 

2016 Bond during any period from any Record Date until its immediately following Interest Payment 

Date or to transfer any 2016 Bond called for redemption for a period of 30 days next preceding the date 

fixed for redemption. 

 

 Section 4.  In the event that payments of interest due on the Bonds on an Interest Payment 

Date are not timely made, such interest shall cease to be payable to the registered owners as of the Record 

Date for such Interest Payment Date and shall be payable to the registered owners of the Bonds as of a 

special date of record for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be designated by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar whenever monies for the purpose of paying such defaulted interest become available. 

 

 Section 5.  In addition to any mandatory sinking fund redemptions as may be provided for as 

set out in Section 2 of this Ordinance, Bonds shall be subject to redemption at the option of the City, in 

whole or in part, prior to maturity at any time on or after such date as may be provided in the Designation, at 

par plus accrued interest on the principal amount redeemed to the date fixed for redemption.  The City may 

select the Bonds to be redeemed for optional redemption in its sole discretion.  Bonds for mandatory 

redemption shall be selected by the Paying Agent and Registrar using any random method of selection 

determined appropriate by the Paying Agent and Registrar.  Bonds redeemed pursuant to the requirements 

for mandatory redemption shall be redeemed at par plus accrued interest on the principal amount redeemed. 

 The Bonds shall be redeemed only in amounts of $1,000 or integral multiples thereof.  Bonds redeemed in 

part only shall be surrendered to said Paying Agent and Registrar in exchange for a new Bond evidencing 

the unredeemed principal thereof.  Notice of redemption of any Bond called for redemption shall be given, 

at the direction of the City in the case of optional redemption and without further direction in the case of 

mandatory redemption, by said Paying Agent and Registrar by mail not less than 30 days prior to the date 

fixed for redemption, first class, postage prepaid, sent to the registered owner of such Bond at said owner's 

registered address.  Such notice shall designate the Bond or Bonds to be redeemed by maturity or otherwise, 

the date of original issue, series and the date fixed for redemption and shall state that such Bond or Bonds 

are to be presented for prepayment at the office of said Paying Agent and Registrar.  In case of any Bond 

partially redeemed, such notice shall specify the portion of the principal amount of such Bond to be 

redeemed.  No defect in the mailing of notice for any Bond shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings of 

the City designating the Bonds called for redemption or the effectiveness of such call for Bonds for which 

notice by mail has been properly given and the City shall have the right to further direct notice of 

redemption for any such Bond for which defective notice has been given. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 111 / 266



 4 

 Section 6.  If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in Seward, Nebraska, are authorized 

by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is 

not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, 

and payment on such day shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

 

 Section 7.  The Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 112 / 266



 5 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

COUNTY OF SEWARD 

 

HIGHWAY ALLOCATION FUND PLEDGE BOND OF 

THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

SERIES 2016 

No. R-__  

 

Interest Rate Maturity Date Date of Original Issue CUSIP 

% ,  _________ __, 2016  

 

Registered Owner:  

 

Principal Amount:  

 

 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby 

acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay to the registered owner specified above, 

or registered assigns, the principal amount specified above in lawful money of the United States of America 

on the date of maturity specified above with interest thereon to maturity (or earlier redemption) from the 

date of original issue or most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later, at the rate per annum 

specified above, payable on _________, 20___, and semiannually thereafter on ___________ and 

__________ of each year (each of said dates an "Interest Payment Date").  Said interest shall be computed 

on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The principal of this bond is payable 

upon presentation and surrender of the bond at the office of ____________________________________, 

the Paying Agent and Registrar, in Seward, Nebraska. Interest on this bond due prior to maturity or earlier 

redemption will be paid on each Interest Payment Date by a check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar to the registered owner of this bond, as shown on the books of record maintained by the Paying 

Agent and Registrar, at the close of business on the fifteenth day immediately preceding the Interest 

Payment Date, to such owner's registered address as shown on such books and records. Any interest not so 

timely paid shall cease to be payable to the person entitled thereto as of the record date such interest was 

payable, and shall be payable to the person who is the registered owner of this bond (or of one or more 

predecessor bonds hereto) on such special record date for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be 

fixed by the Paying Agent and Registrar whenever monies for such purposes become available. 

 

 This bond is one of an issue of fully registered bonds of the total principal amount of 

_________________________ Dollars ($_______), of even date and like tenor except as to date of 

maturity, rate of interest and denomination which were issued by the City for the purpose of paying the 

costs of constructing streets and other related and appurtenant improvement in said City, in strict 

compliance with Section 66–4,101, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska. The issuance of said bonds has 

been authorized by proceedings duly had and an ordinance legally passed and approved by the Mayor and 

City Council of said City (the "Ordinance"). 

 

 All Bonds of this issue are subject to redemption at the option of the City, in whole or in part, at 

any time on or after five years after the date of delivery, at par plus interest accrued on the principal 

amount redeemed to the date fixed for redemption.   

 

 In addition, the Bonds maturing ____________, 20__ shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund 

redemption payments (with bonds being redeemed at par plus accrued interest) as follows: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 113 / 266



 6 

 

$             Principal Maturing __________, 20 

$        to be called __________, 20   

$       to be called __________, 20   

$             Payable __________, 20   

 

 Notice of redemption shall be given by mail to the registered owner of any bond to be redeemed at 

said registered owner's address in the manner specified in the Ordinance authorizing said issue of bonds. 

Individual bonds may be redeemed in part but only in $1,000 amounts or integral multiples thereof. 

 

 This bond is transferable by the registered owner or such owner's attorney duly authorizing in 

writing at the office of the Paying Agent and Registrar upon surrender and cancellation of this bond, and 

thereupon a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate principal amount, interest rate and maturity will be 

issued to the transferee as provided in the Ordinance authorizing said issue of bonds, subject to the 

limitations therein prescribed.  The City, the Paying Agent and Registrar and any other person may treat the 

person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving 

payment due hereunder and for all purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary, whether 

this bond be overdue or not. 

 

 If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on this bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of Seward, Nebraska, are authorized by law or 

executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a 

Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and 

payment on such day shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

 

 For the prompt payment of the principal and interest on this bond and the other bonds of the same 

issue, the City of Seward, Nebraska, has pledged funds received and to be received from the Highway 

Allocation Fund of the State of Nebraska with receipts from such fund to be allocated by the City to 

payment of principal and interest as the same fall due. In addition, the City hereby covenants and agrees that 

it shall levy ad valorem taxes upon all the taxable property in the City of Seward, Nebraska, at such rate or 

rates, as will provide funds which together with receipts from the Highway Allocation Fund, as pledged to 

the payment of such principal and interest and any other money made available and used for such purpose, 

will be sufficient to make payment of the principal of and interest on this bond and the other bonds of the 

same issue as the same fall due. 

 

 [AS PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE REFERRED TO HEREIN, UNTIL THE TERMINA-

TION OF THE SYSTEM OF BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY TRANSFERS THROUGH THE DEPOSITORY 

TRUST COMPANY, NEW YORK, NEW YORK (TOGETHER WITH ANY SUCCESSOR SECURITIES 

DEPOSITORY APPOINTED PURSUANT TO THE ORDINANCE, "DTC"), AND NOTWITHSTAND-

ING ANY OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE TO THE CONTRARY, A PORTION OF THE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS BOND MAY BE PAID OR REDEEMED WITHOUT SURRENDER 

HEREOF TO THE REGISTRAR. DTC OR A NOMINEE, TRANSFEREE OR ASSIGNEE OF DTC OF 

THIS BOND MAY NOT RELY UPON THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT INDICATED HEREON AS THE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT HEREOF OUTSTANDING AND UNPAID. THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

HEREOF OUTSTANDING AND UNPAID SHALL FOR ALL PURPOSES BE THE AMOUNT 

DETERMINED IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE. 

 

 UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF DTC (A) TO THE 

REGISTRAR FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER OR EXCHANGE OR (B) TO THE REGISTRAR 

FOR PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL, AND ANY BOND ISSUED IN REPLACEMENT HEREOF OR 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 114 / 266



 7 

SUBSTITUTION HEREFOR IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF DTC AND ANY PAYMENT IS 

MADE TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR 

VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL BECAUSE ONLY THE 

REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.] 

 

 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND WARRANTED that all conditions, acts and things required by 

law to exist or to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this bond did exist, did happen and were done 

and performed in regular and due form and time as required by law and that the indebtedness of said City, 

including this bond, does not exceed any limitation imposed by law. 

 

 This bond shall not be valid and binding on the City until authenticated by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, have 

caused this bond to be executed on behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile signatures of the Mayor 

and the City Clerk and by causing the official seal of the City to be impressed or imprinted hereon, all as of 

the date of original issue specified above. 

 

       THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA  

 

              (facsimile signature)                 

ATTEST:      Mayor 

 

        (facsimile signature)                    (SEAL)    

City Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

 This bond is one of the bonds authorized by Ordinance of the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Seward, Nebraska, described in the foregoing bond. 

 

_________________________________________,  

Seward, Nebraska, Paying Agent and Registrar 

 

By: ______________________________________ 

               Authorized Signature 

  

(Form of Assignment) 

 

 For value received _____________________________________________________ hereby sells, 

assigns and transfers unto _____________________________________________________ (Social 

Security or Taxpayer I.D. No. _______________) the within bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and 

appoints ___________________________________________________, attorney, to transfer the same on 

the books of registration in the office of the within-mentioned Paying Agent and Registrar with full power 

of substitution in the premises. 

 

       Dated: ______________________________ 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 115 / 266



 8 

       ____________________________________ 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

        Registered Owner(s) 

Signature Guaranteed 

 

 

By ____________________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 Authorized Officer(s) 

 

 Note: The signature(s) on this assignment MUST CORRESPOND with the name(s) as written on 

the face of the within bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever, 

and must be guaranteed by a commercial bank or a trust company or by a firm having membership on the 

New York, Midwest or other stock exchange. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 116 / 266



 9 

Section 8. Each of the 2016 Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City with the manual or 

facsimile signatures of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City. If the 2016 Bonds are sold through a private 

placement with a bank, the following provisions involving The Depository Trust Company shall not apply 

to the Bonds.  If the 2016 Bonds are sold through a negotiated sale with the Underwriter, the 2016 Bonds 

shall be issued initially as “book-entry-only” bonds using the services of The Depository Trust Company 

(the “Depository”), with one typewritten bond per maturity being issued to the Depository. In such 

connection said officers are authorized to execute and deliver a letter of representations (the “Letter of 

Representations”) in the form required by the Depository, for and on behalf of the City, which shall 

thereafter govern matters with respect to registration, transfer, payment and redemption of the Bonds. Upon 

the issuance of the Bonds as “book-entry-only” bonds, the following provisions shall apply: 

 

 (a) The City and the Paying Agent and Registrar shall have no responsibility or 

obligation to any broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the Depository 

holds 2016 Bonds as securities depository (each, a “Bond Participant”) or to any person 

who is an actual purchaser of a 2016 Bond from a Bond Participant while the 2016 Bonds 

are in book-entry form (each, a “Beneficial Owner”) with respect to the following: 

 

   (i) the accuracy of the records of the Depository, any 

nominees of the Depository or any Bond Participant with respect to any 

ownership interest in the 2016 Bonds, 

 

   (ii) the delivery to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial 

Owner or any other person, other than the Depository, of any notice with 

respect to the 2016 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or 

 

   (iii) the payment to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial 

Owner or any other person, other than the Depository, of any amount with 

respect to the 2016 Bonds.  

 

The Paying Agent and Registrar shall make payments with respect to the 2016 Bonds only 

to or upon the order of the Depository or its nominee, and all such payments shall be valid 

and effective fully to satisfy and discharge the obligations with respect to such 2016 Bonds 

to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than the Depository shall receive 

an authenticated 2016 Bond, except as provided in (e) below. 

 

 (b) Upon receipt by the Paying Agent and Registrar of written notice from the 

Depository to the effect that the Depository is unable or unwilling to discharge its 

responsibilities, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall issue, transfer and exchange 2016 

Bonds requested by the Depository in appropriate amounts. Whenever the Depository 

requests the Paying Agent and Registrar to do so, the Paying Agent and Registrar will 

cooperate with the Depository in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice (i) to 

arrange, with the prior written consent of the City, for a substitute depository willing and 

able upon reasonable and customary terms to maintain custody of the 2016 Bonds or (ii) to 

make available 2016 Bonds registered in whatever name or names the Beneficial Owners 

transferring or exchanging such 2016 Bonds shall designate. 

 

 (c) If the City determines that it is desirable that certificates representing the 2016 

Bonds be delivered to the Bond Participants and/or Beneficial Owners of the 2016 Bonds 

and so notifies the Paying Agent and Registrar in writing, the Paying Agent and Registrar 

shall so notify the Depository, whereupon the Depository will notify the Bond Participants 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 117 / 266



 10 

of the availability through the Depository of bond certificates representing the 2016 Bonds. 

In such event, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall issue, transfer and exchange bond 

certificates representing the 2016 Bonds as requested by the Depository in appropriate 

amounts and in authorized denominations. 

 

 (d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as 

any 2016 Bond is registered in the name of the Depository or any nominee thereof, all 

payments with respect to such 2016 Bond and all notices with respect to such 2016 Bond 

shall be made and given, respectively, to the Depository as provided in the Letter of 

Representations. 

 

 (e) Registered ownership of the 2016 Bonds may be transferred on the books of 

registration maintained by the Paying Agent and Registrar, and the 2016 Bonds may be 

delivered in physical form to the following: 

 

   (i) any successor securities depository or its nominee; 

 

   (ii) any person, upon (A) the resignation of the Depository 

from its functions as depository or (B) termination of the use of the 

Depository pursuant to this Section. 

 

 (f) In the event of any partial redemption of a 2016 Bond unless and until such 

partially redeemed Bond has been replaced in accordance with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, the books and records of the Paying Agent and Registrar shall govern and 

establish the principal amount of such 2016 Bond as is then outstanding and all of the 2016 

Bonds issued to the Depository or its nominee shall contain a legend to such effect. 

 

If for any reason the Depository resigns and is not replaced or upon termination by the City of book-entry-

only form, the City shall immediately provide a supply of bond certificates for issuance upon subsequent 

transfers or in the event of partial redemption.  In the event that such supply of certificates shall be 

insufficient to meet the requirements of the Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance of replacement bond 

certificates upon transfer or partial redemption, the City agrees to order printed an additional supply of bond 

certificates and to direct their execution by manual or facsimile signature of its then duly qualified and 

acting officers.  In case any officer whose signature or facsimile thereof shall appear on any Bond shall 

cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Bond (including any bond certificates delivered to the 

Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance upon transfer or partial redemption) such signature or such 

facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer or 

officers had remained in office until the delivery of such Bond.  

 

Section 9. After being executed by the Mayor and City Clerk, said Bonds shall be delivered to the 

Treasurer of the City who shall be responsible therefor under his/her official bond and such Treasurer 

shall maintain a record of information with respect to said Bonds in accordance with the requirements of 

Section 10-140, R.R.S. Neb, 2012, as amended, and shall cause the same to be filed with the Auditor of 

Public Accounts of the State of Nebraska. The Bonds shall not be valid and binding on the City until 

authenticated by the Paying Agent and Registrar. The Bonds shall be delivered to the Paying Agent and 

Registrar for registration and authentication. Upon execution, registration and authentication of the Bonds, 

they shall be delivered to the City Treasurer, who is authorized to deliver them to the purchaser in the case 

of a private placement to a bank, or to the Underwriter, as initial purchaser, in the case of a negotiated sale, 

upon receipt of the total stated principal amount of the Bonds, plus accrued interest thereon to date of 

payment for the Bonds, less any applicable Underwriter’s discount or placement agent fee in an amount 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 118 / 266



 11 

determined in the Designation. In the case of a negotiated sale, such initial purchaser shall have the right to 

direct the registration of the Bonds and the denominations thereof within each maturity, subject to the 

restrictions of this Ordinance.  The Underwriter or placement agent and its agents, representatives and 

counsel (including the City’s bond counsel) are hereby authorized to take such actions on behalf of the 

City as are necessary to effectuate the closing of the issuance and sale of the Bonds, including, without 

limitation, authorizing the release of the Bonds by the Depository at closing, if necessary. The 

Authorized Officers, or any one or more of them are hereby further authorized to take any and all actions 

and enter into any and all agreements and execute any documents deemed necessary or appropriate in 

connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds either through a negotiated sale with the Underwriter 

or through a private placement to a bank, and any such actions previously taken are hereby ratified and 

confirmed. 

 

 Section 10. The City Clerk is directed to make and certify a transcript or transcripts of the 

proceedings of the Mayor and City Council precedent to the issuance of said Bonds, a copy of which shall 

be delivered to the initial purchaser of said Bonds.   

 

 Section 11. The proceeds of the Bonds shall be applied to the costs of construction of the 

improvements described in Section 1 hereof, including reimbursement of expenditures previously made and 

payment of any related warrant or note indebtedness and issuance expenses for the Bonds. Pending such 

application the City Treasurer shall hold such proceeds. 

 

 Section 12. For the prompt payment of the Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds, both principal 

and interest as the same fall due, the City hereby pledges all receipts now or hereafter received by the City 

from the State of Nebraska Highway Allocation Fund, as described and referred to in Section 66-4,101, 

Reissue Revised Statues of Nebraska. The pledge provided for in this Section 12 for the Bonds and the 

Outstanding Bonds provides, however, that such pledge shall not prevent the City from applying receipts 

from said fund in any year so long as sufficient receipts from such fund have been set aside for the payment 

of principal and interest falling due in such year on the Bonds or the Outstanding Bonds.  In addition, the 

City further reserves the right to issue additional highway allocation fund pledge bonds payable on par with 

the Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds and equally and ratably secured by a pledge of receipts from the 

Highway Allocation Fund. The City hereby further agrees that it shall levy ad valorem taxes upon all the 

taxable property in the City at such rate or rates within any applicable statutory and constitutional 

limitations as will provide funds which, together with receipts from the Highway Allocation Fund, as 

pledged to the payment of the Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds, and any other monies made available and 

used for such purpose, will be sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds and the 

Outstanding Bonds as the same fall due (including mandatory sinking fund redemptions). 

 

 Section 13. The Authorized Officers or any one or more of them is authorized to approve, 

deem final and deliver a Preliminary Official Statement and a final Official Statement with respect to the 

2016 Bonds for and on behalf of the City, all in accordance with the requirements of Reg. Sec. 240.15c2-12 

of the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 

 Section 14. The City hereby authorizes the Authorized Officers, or any one or more of them, to 

covenant and agree, if determined appropriate by such Authorized Officer(s), that the City will make no use 

of the proceeds of the 2016 Bonds which would cause the 2016 Bonds to be arbitrage bonds within the 

meaning of Sections 103(b)(2) and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and 

further covenant that the City will comply with said Sections 103(b)(2) and 148 and all applicable 

regulations thereunder throughout the term of said issue, including all requirements with respect to payment 

and reporting of rebates, if applicable. The City hereby authorizes the Authorized Officers, or any one or 

more of them, if determined appropriate by such Authorized Officer(s), to covenant that the City shall take 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 119 / 266



 12 

all action necessary to preserve the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds for federal income tax 

purposes under the Code with respect to taxpayers generally. The City further authorizes the Authorized 

Officers, or any one or more of them, to agree that the City will not take any actions which would cause the 

2016 Bonds to constitute "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code. The City 

hereby authorizes the 2016 Bonds to be designated as its "qualified tax-exempt obligations" pursuant to 

Section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) of the Code and, if the Bonds are designated as such, covenants and warrants 

that it does not reasonably expect to issue bonds or other obligations aggregating in principal amount more 

than $10,000,000 during calendar 2016 (taking into consideration the exception for current refunding 

issues). 

 

 Section 15. The City's obligations under this Ordinance with respect to any or all of the Bonds 

herein authorized shall be fully discharged and satisfied as to any or all of such Bonds and any such Bond 

shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding hereunder if such Bond has been purchased by the City and 

canceled or when the payment of principal of and interest thereon to the respective date of maturity or 

redemption (a) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof, (b) shall 

have been provided for by depositing with a national or state bank having trust powers, or trust company, in 

trust, solely for such payment (i) sufficient money to make such payment and/or (ii) direct general 

obligations (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books of the Department of 

Treasury of the United States of America) of or obligations the principal and interest of which are 

unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America (herein referred to as "U.S. Government 

Obligations") in such amount and bearing interest payable and maturing or redeemable at stated fixed prices 

at the option of the holder as to principal, at such time or times, as will ensure the availability of sufficient 

money to make such payments; provided, however, that with respect to any Bond to be paid prior to 

maturity, the City shall have duly called such Bond for redemption and given notice of such redemption as 

provided by law or made irrevocable provision for the giving of such notice.  Any money so deposited with 

such bank or trust company in excess of the amount required to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds 

for which such monies or U.S. Government Obligations were deposited shall be paid over to the City as and 

when collected. 

 

 Section 16. This Ordinance shall be published in pamphlet form and shall be in force and take 

effect from and after its adoption as provided by law. 

 

 ADOPTED this 5th day of January, 2016. 

 

 

ATTEST:      _________________________________ 

       Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 [SEAL] 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 120 / 266



 13 

Motion for adjournment was duly made, seconded and on roll call vote was declared adopted by the Mayor. 

 

 I, the undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certify that the foregoing is a 

true and correct copy of the proceedings had and done by the Mayor and Council on January 5, 2016; that 

all of the subjects included in the foregoing proceedings were contained in the agenda for the meeting, kept 

continually current and readily available for public inspection at the office of the City Clerk; kept 

continually current, was available for public inspection at the office of that such subjects were contained in 

said agenda for at least 24 hours prior to said meeting; that a current copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings 

Act was available and accessible to members of the public, posted during such meeting in the room in 

which such meeting was held; that at least one copy of all ordinances or other reproducible materials 

discussed at the meeting was available at the meeting for examination and copying by members of the 

public; that the said minutes from which the foregoing proceedings have been extracted were in written 

form and available for public inspection within ten working days and prior to the next convened meeting of 

said body; that all news media requesting notification concerning meetings of said body were provided 

advance notification of the time and place of said meeting and the subjects to be discussed at said meeting. 

 

 

  

       ___________________________________ 

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

[SEAL] 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 121 / 266



 14 

 NOTICE OF PUBLICATION 

 

OF ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 

IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 

Public Notice is hereby given that at a meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Seward, 

Nebraska, held at 7:00 p.m. on January 5, 2016, there was passed and adopted Ordinance No. _____ 

entitled: 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF HIGHWAY ALLOCATION FUND 

PLEDGE BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, SERIES 2016, IN THE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED NINE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($950,000) 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF CONSTRUCTING CERTAIN STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY; PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF SAID BONDS; PLEDGING 

FUNDS TO BE RECEIVED BY THE CITY FROM THE STATE OF NEBRASKA HIGHWAY 

ALLOCATION FUND FOR THE PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY 

AND COLLECTION OF TAXES TO PAY THE SAME IF NECESSARY; PROVIDING FOR THE 

SALE OF THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE DELIVERY OF THE BONDS TO THE 

PURCHASER; PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSITION OF BOND PROCEEDS; AND ORDERING 

THE ORDINANCE PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM.  

 

Said Ordinance was published in pamphlet form on January ___, 2016.  Copies of said Ordinance as 

published in pamphlet form are available for inspection and distribution at the Office of the City Clerk, in 

the City of Seward, Nebraska. 

 

 

              

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:  Publish one time in title form. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 122 / 266



 

CERTIFICATE AS TO PUBLICATION IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 The undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certifies that 

Ordinance No. _____ as passed and approved by the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, at 

their meeting held on January 5, 2016, was published in pamphlet form on January ___, 2016, and that a 

true and correct copy of such Ordinance as so passed and published is attached hereto. 

 Dated this _____ day of January, 2016. 

 

 

   _______________________________________ 

 Bonnie Otte 

 Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

 Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 (SEAL) 
 
 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 123 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Advance
Pay & Cancel Refunding
Refunding of of Two

Sources: Ser. 2010 Ser. 2011 New Money Total

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 335,000.00 3,710,000.00 110,000.00 4,155,000.00

Other Sources of Funds:
Debt Service Reserve Fund (11/10/11) 15,818.40 15,818.40
Debt Service Reserve Fund (9/15/11) 311,175.00 311,175.00

326,993.40 326,993.40

335,000.00 4,036,993.40 110,000.00 4,481,993.40

Advance
Pay & Cancel Refunding
Refunding of of Two

Uses: Ser. 2010 Ser. 2011 New Money Total

Project Fund Deposits:
Plum Creek Sewer Siphon Project 100,000.00 100,000.00

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 300,687.50 58,805.10 359,492.60
SLGS Purchases 3,628,900.00 3,628,900.00

300,687.50 3,687,705.10 3,988,392.60

Other Fund Deposits:
Debt Service Reserve Fund 26,610.53 294,701.68 8,737.79 330,050.00

Cost of Issuance:
Paying Agent 60.47 669.68 19.85 750.00
Bond Counsel 586.25 6,492.50 192.50 7,271.25
Escrow Agent 1,000.00 1,000.00
Escrow Verification 2,000.00 2,000.00

646.72 10,162.18 212.35 11,021.25

Delivery Date Expenses:
Underwriter's Discount 4,187.50 46,375.00 1,375.00 51,937.50

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding 2,867.75 -1,950.56 -325.14 592.05

335,000.00 4,036,993.40 110,000.00 4,481,993.40

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 124 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 2

BOND MATURITY TABLE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Advance
Pay & Cancel Refunding

Maturity Refunding of of Two
Date Ser. 2010 Ser. 2011 New Money Total

08/01/2016 110,000 110,000
09/15/2016 155,000 5,000 160,000
08/01/2017 115,000 115,000
09/15/2017 125,000 5,000 130,000
08/01/2018 110,000 110,000
09/15/2018 130,000 5,000 135,000
09/15/2019 225,000 5,000 230,000
09/15/2020 230,000 5,000 235,000
09/15/2021 230,000 5,000 235,000
09/15/2022 235,000 5,000 240,000
09/15/2023 240,000 5,000 245,000
09/15/2024 245,000 5,000 250,000
09/15/2025 250,000 5,000 255,000
09/15/2026 255,000 10,000 265,000
09/15/2027 265,000 10,000 275,000
09/15/2028 270,000 10,000 280,000
09/15/2029 275,000 10,000 285,000
09/15/2030 285,000 10,000 295,000
09/15/2031 295,000 10,000 305,000

335,000 3,710,000 110,000 4,155,000

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 125 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 3

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bond:
08/01/2016 110,000 0.750% 0.750% 100.000
09/15/2016 160,000 0.750% 0.750% 100.000
08/01/2017 115,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
09/15/2017 130,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
08/01/2018 110,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
09/15/2018 135,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
09/15/2019 230,000 1.400% 1.400% 100.000
09/15/2020 235,000 1.550% 1.550% 100.000
09/15/2021 235,000 1.700% 1.700% 100.000
09/15/2022 240,000 1.850% 1.850% 100.000
09/15/2023 245,000 2.050% 2.050% 100.000
09/15/2024 250,000 2.200% 2.200% 100.000
09/15/2025 255,000 2.350% 2.350% 100.000
09/15/2026 265,000 2.500% 2.500% 100.000
09/15/2027 275,000 2.600% 2.600% 100.000
09/15/2028 280,000 2.750% 2.750% 100.000
09/15/2029 285,000 2.850% 2.850% 100.000
09/15/2030 295,000 2.950% 2.950% 100.000
09/15/2031 305,000 3.050% 3.050% 100.000

4,155,000

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Par Amount 4,155,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 4,155,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -51,937.50 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 4,103,062.50 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 4,103,062.50

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 126 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 4

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/01/2016
Last Maturity 09/15/2031

Arbitrage Yield 2.261023%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.642052%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.493002%
All-In TIC 2.678957%
Average Coupon 2.493002%

Average Life (years) 8.335
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 8.335
Duration of Issue (years) 7.389

Par Amount 4,155,000.00
Bond Proceeds 4,155,000.00
Total Interest 863,404.78
Net Interest 915,342.28
Bond Years from Dated Date 34,633,138.89
Bond Years from Delivery Date 34,633,138.89
Total Debt Service 5,018,404.78
Maximum Annual Debt Service 330,050.00
Average Annual Debt Service 322,957.76

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bond 4,155,000.00 100.000 2.493% 8.335 2,989.60

4,155,000.00 8.335 2,989.60

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 4,155,000.00 4,155,000.00 4,155,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -51,937.50 -51,937.50
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -11,021.25
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 4,103,062.50 4,092,041.25 4,155,000.00

Target Date 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 03/01/2016
Yield 2.642052% 2.678957% 2.261023%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 127 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 5

BOND DEBT SERVICE BREAKDOWN

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Advance
Pay & Cancel Refunding
Refunding of of Two Annual

Date Ser. 2010 Ser. 2011 New Money Total Total

08/01/2016 111,419.79 111,419.79
09/15/2016 198,752.39 6,335.10 205,087.49
09/30/2016 316,507.28
02/01/2017 1,291.25 1,291.25
03/15/2017 40,013.75 1,220.00 41,233.75
08/01/2017 116,291.25 116,291.25
09/15/2017 165,013.75 6,220.00 171,233.75
09/30/2017 330,050.00
02/01/2018 687.50 687.50
03/15/2018 39,357.50 1,193.75 40,551.25
08/01/2018 110,687.50 110,687.50
09/15/2018 169,357.50 6,193.75 175,551.25
09/30/2018 327,477.50
03/15/2019 38,545.00 1,162.50 39,707.50
09/15/2019 263,545.00 6,162.50 269,707.50
09/30/2019 309,415.00
03/15/2020 36,970.00 1,127.50 38,097.50
09/15/2020 266,970.00 6,127.50 273,097.50
09/30/2020 311,195.00
03/15/2021 35,187.50 1,088.75 36,276.25
09/15/2021 265,187.50 6,088.75 271,276.25
09/30/2021 307,552.50
03/15/2022 33,232.50 1,046.25 34,278.75
09/15/2022 268,232.50 6,046.25 274,278.75
09/30/2022 308,557.50
03/15/2023 31,058.75 1,000.00 32,058.75
09/15/2023 271,058.75 6,000.00 277,058.75
09/30/2023 309,117.50
03/15/2024 28,598.75 948.75 29,547.50
09/15/2024 273,598.75 5,948.75 279,547.50
09/30/2024 309,095.00
03/15/2025 25,903.75 893.75 26,797.50
09/15/2025 275,903.75 5,893.75 281,797.50
09/30/2025 308,595.00
03/15/2026 22,966.25 835.00 23,801.25
09/15/2026 277,966.25 10,835.00 288,801.25
09/30/2026 312,602.50
03/15/2027 19,778.75 710.00 20,488.75
09/15/2027 284,778.75 10,710.00 295,488.75
09/30/2027 315,977.50
03/15/2028 16,333.75 580.00 16,913.75
09/15/2028 286,333.75 10,580.00 296,913.75
09/30/2028 313,827.50
03/15/2029 12,621.25 442.50 13,063.75
09/15/2029 287,621.25 10,442.50 298,063.75
09/30/2029 311,127.50
03/15/2030 8,702.50 300.00 9,002.50
09/15/2030 293,702.50 10,300.00 304,002.50
09/30/2030 313,005.00
03/15/2031 4,498.75 152.50 4,651.25
09/15/2031 299,498.75 10,152.50 309,651.25
09/30/2031 314,302.50

340,377.29 4,541,289.89 136,737.60 5,018,404.78 5,018,404.78

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 128 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 6

AGGREGATE DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Advance Advance Advance
Pay & Cancel Pay & Cancel Pay & Cancel Refunding Refunding Refunding
Refunding of Refunding of Refunding of of Two of Two of Two

Ser. 2010 Ser. 2010 Ser. 2010 Ser. 2011 Ser. 2011 Ser. 2011 New Money New Money New Money Aggregate
Date Principal Interest Debt Service Principal Interest Debt Service Principal Interest Debt Service Debt Service less DSRF Annual Total

09/30/2016 110,000 1,419.79 111,419.79 155,000 43,752.39 198,752.39 5,000 1,335.10 6,335.10 316,507.28 -355.72 316,151.56
09/30/2017 115,000 2,582.50 117,582.50 125,000 80,027.50 205,027.50 5,000 2,440.00 7,440.00 330,050.00 -660.10 329,389.90
09/30/2018 110,000 1,375.00 111,375.00 130,000 78,715.00 208,715.00 5,000 2,387.50 7,387.50 327,477.50 -660.10 326,817.40
09/30/2019 225,000 77,090.00 302,090.00 5,000 2,325.00 7,325.00 309,415.00 -660.10 308,754.90
09/30/2020 230,000 73,940.00 303,940.00 5,000 2,255.00 7,255.00 311,195.00 -660.10 310,534.90
09/30/2021 230,000 70,375.00 300,375.00 5,000 2,177.50 7,177.50 307,552.50 -660.10 306,892.40
09/30/2022 235,000 66,465.00 301,465.00 5,000 2,092.50 7,092.50 308,557.50 -660.10 307,897.40
09/30/2023 240,000 62,117.50 302,117.50 5,000 2,000.00 7,000.00 309,117.50 -660.10 308,457.40
09/30/2024 245,000 57,197.50 302,197.50 5,000 1,897.50 6,897.50 309,095.00 -660.10 308,434.90
09/30/2025 250,000 51,807.50 301,807.50 5,000 1,787.50 6,787.50 308,595.00 -660.10 307,934.90
09/30/2026 255,000 45,932.50 300,932.50 10,000 1,670.00 11,670.00 312,602.50 -660.10 311,942.40
09/30/2027 265,000 39,557.50 304,557.50 10,000 1,420.00 11,420.00 315,977.50 -660.10 315,317.40
09/30/2028 270,000 32,667.50 302,667.50 10,000 1,160.00 11,160.00 313,827.50 -660.10 313,167.40
09/30/2029 275,000 25,242.50 300,242.50 10,000 885.00 10,885.00 311,127.50 -660.10 310,467.40
09/30/2030 285,000 17,405.00 302,405.00 10,000 600.00 10,600.00 313,005.00 -660.10 312,344.90
09/30/2031 295,000 8,997.50 303,997.50 10,000 305.00 10,305.00 314,302.50 -330,710.10 -16,407.60

335,000 5,377.29 340,377.29 3,710,000 831,289.89 4,541,289.89 110,000 26,737.60 136,737.60 5,018,404.78 -340,307.22 4,678,097.56

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 129 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 7

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 335,000.00

335,000.00

Uses:

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 300,687.50

Other Fund Deposits:
Debt Service Reserve Fund 26,610.53

Cost of Issuance:
Paying Agent 60.47
Bond Counsel 586.25

646.72

Delivery Date Expenses:
Underwriter's Discount 4,187.50

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding 2,867.75

335,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 130 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 8

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
Arbitrage yield 2.261023%
Escrow yield 0.545544%
Value of Negative Arbitrage

Bond Par Amount 335,000.00
True Interest Cost 2.036082%
Net Interest Cost 1.133055%
All-In TIC 2.177337%
Average Coupon 1.133055%
Average Life 1.417

Par amount of refunded bonds 300,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 2.879412%
Average life of refunded bonds 1.417

PV of prior debt to 03/01/2016 @ 1.132619% 308,007.92
Net PV Savings 2,486.20
Percentage savings of refunded bonds 0.828733%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 131 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 9

SAVINGS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Prior Refunding Present Value
Debt Debt Refunding Refunding Annual to 03/01/2016

Date Service Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  1.1326189%

03/01/2016 2,867.75 -2,867.75 2,867.75 2,867.75
08/01/2016 104,125.00 111,419.79 111,419.79 -7,294.79 -7,260.54
09/30/2016 -4,427.04
02/01/2017 2,900.00 1,291.25 1,291.25 1,608.75 1,592.18
08/01/2017 102,900.00 116,291.25 116,291.25 -13,391.25 -13,178.69
09/30/2017 -11,782.50
02/01/2018 1,500.00 687.50 687.50 812.50 795.10
08/01/2018 101,500.00 110,687.50 110,687.50 -9,187.50 -8,940.12
09/30/2018 -8,375.00

312,925.00 340,377.29 2,867.75 337,509.54 -24,584.54 -24,584.54 -24,124.33

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow -24,124.33
Plus: Refunding funds on hand 26,610.53

Net PV Savings 2,486.20

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 132 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 10

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bond:
08/01/2016 110,000 0.750% 0.750% 100.000
08/01/2017 115,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
08/01/2018 110,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000

335,000

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/01/2016

Par Amount 335,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 335,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -4,187.50 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 330,812.50 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 330,812.50

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 133 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 11

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 08/01/2016
Last Maturity 08/01/2018

Arbitrage Yield 2.261023%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.036082%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.133055%
All-In TIC 2.177337%
Average Coupon 1.133055%

Average Life (years) 1.417
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 1.417
Duration of Issue (years) 1.400

Par Amount 335,000.00
Bond Proceeds 335,000.00
Total Interest 5,377.29
Net Interest 9,564.79
Bond Years from Dated Date 474,583.33
Bond Years from Delivery Date 474,583.33
Total Debt Service 340,377.29
Maximum Annual Debt Service 117,582.50
Average Annual Debt Service 140,845.78

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bond 335,000.00 100.000 1.133% 1.417 46.90

335,000.00 1.417 46.90

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 335,000.00 335,000.00 335,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -4,187.50 -4,187.50
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -646.72
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 330,812.50 330,165.78 335,000.00

Target Date 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 03/01/2016
Yield 2.036082% 2.177337% 2.261023%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 134 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 12

BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

08/01/2016 110,000 0.750% 1,419.79 111,419.79
09/30/2016 111,419.79
02/01/2017 1,291.25 1,291.25
08/01/2017 115,000 1.050% 1,291.25 116,291.25
09/30/2017 117,582.50
02/01/2018 687.50 687.50
08/01/2018 110,000 1.250% 687.50 110,687.50
09/30/2018 111,375.00

335,000 5,377.29 340,377.29 340,377.29

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 135 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 13

NET DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Total General Debt Service Net
Ending Principal Interest Debt Service Fund Reserve Fund Debt Service

09/30/2016 110,000 1,419.79 111,419.79 28.68 -28.68 111,419.79
09/30/2017 115,000 2,582.50 117,582.50 -2.07 -53.22 117,527.21
09/30/2018 110,000 1,375.00 111,375.00 -53.22 111,321.78
09/30/2019 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2020 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2021 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2022 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2023 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2024 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2025 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2026 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2027 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2028 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2029 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2030 53.22 -53.22
09/30/2031 -665.25 -26,663.75 -27,329.00

335,000 5,377.29 340,377.29 0.00 -27,437.51 312,939.78

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 136 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 14

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Ser 2010 Sewer NR P&C Refg of all Sewer Sys Revs (callable 8/20/15, mat. 8/1/18):
SERIAL 08/01/2016 2.450% 100,000.00 03/01/2016 100.000

08/01/2017 2.800% 100,000.00 03/01/2016 100.000
08/01/2018 3.000% 100,000.00 03/01/2016 100.000

300,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 137 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 15

ESCROW REQUIREMENTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Period Principal
Ending Interest Redeemed Total

03/01/2016 687.50 300,000.00 300,687.50

687.50 300,000.00 300,687.50

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 138 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 16

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015

Pay & Cancel Refunding of Series 2010
Non-Rated, BQ, 2018 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Annual
Period Debt Debt
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Service Service

08/01/2016 100,000 2.450% 4,125 104,125
09/30/2016 104,125
02/01/2017 2,900 2,900
08/01/2017 100,000 2.800% 2,900 102,900
09/30/2017 105,800
02/01/2018 1,500 1,500
08/01/2018 100,000 3.000% 1,500 101,500
09/30/2018 103,000

300,000 12,925 312,925 312,925

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 139 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 17

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 3,710,000.00

Other Sources of Funds:
Debt Service Reserve Fund (11/10/11) 15,818.40
Debt Service Reserve Fund (9/15/11) 311,175.00

326,993.40

4,036,993.40

Uses:

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 58,805.10
SLGS Purchases 3,628,900.00

3,687,705.10

Other Fund Deposits:
Debt Service Reserve Fund 294,701.68

Cost of Issuance:
Paying Agent 669.68
Bond Counsel 6,492.50
Escrow Agent 1,000.00
Escrow Verification 2,000.00

10,162.18

Delivery Date Expenses:
Underwriter's Discount 46,375.00

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding -1,950.56

4,036,993.40

Note:  Escrow cost assumes SLGS are available or represent a proxy for the cost of open market USTs.

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 140 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 18

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
Arbitrage yield 2.261023%
Escrow yield 0.545544%
Value of Negative Arbitrage 33,535.80

Bond Par Amount 3,710,000.00
True Interest Cost 2.649293%
Net Interest Cost 2.509609%
All-In TIC 2.684944%
Average Coupon 2.509609%
Average Life 8.928

Par amount of refunded bonds 3,580,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 3.587213%
Average life of refunded bonds 9.286

PV of prior debt to 03/01/2016 @ 2.287679% 4,008,137.03
Net PV Savings 204,954.87
Percentage savings of refunded bonds 5.724996%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 141 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 19

SAVINGS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Present Value
Prior Refunding Refunding Refunding Annual to 03/01/2016

Date Debt Service Debt Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  2.2876785%

03/01/2016 -1,950.56 1,950.56 -1,950.56 -1,950.56
03/15/2016 58,805.00 58,805.00 58,753.00
09/15/2016 153,805.00 198,752.39 198,752.39 -44,947.39 -44,399.78
09/30/2016 11,907.05
03/15/2017 58,120.00 40,013.75 40,013.75 18,106.25 17,683.39
09/15/2017 158,120.00 165,013.75 165,013.75 -6,893.75 -6,656.61
09/30/2017 11,212.50
03/15/2018 57,212.50 39,357.50 39,357.50 17,855.00 17,045.82
09/15/2018 162,212.50 169,357.50 169,357.50 -7,145.00 -6,744.05
09/30/2018 10,710.00
03/15/2019 56,038.75 38,545.00 38,545.00 17,493.75 16,325.34
09/15/2019 266,038.75 263,545.00 263,545.00 2,493.75 2,300.87
09/30/2019 19,987.50
03/15/2020 53,488.75 36,970.00 36,970.00 16,518.75 15,068.76
09/15/2020 268,488.75 266,970.00 266,970.00 1,518.75 1,369.77
09/30/2020 18,037.50
03/15/2021 50,675.00 35,187.50 35,187.50 15,487.50 13,810.29
09/15/2021 270,675.00 265,187.50 265,187.50 5,487.50 4,837.90
09/30/2021 20,975.00
03/15/2022 47,587.50 33,232.50 33,232.50 14,355.00 12,512.55
09/15/2022 272,587.50 268,232.50 268,232.50 4,355.00 3,753.11
09/30/2022 18,710.00
03/15/2023 44,297.50 31,058.75 31,058.75 13,238.75 11,280.04
09/15/2023 279,297.50 271,058.75 271,058.75 8,238.75 6,940.42
09/30/2023 21,477.50
03/15/2024 40,610.00 28,598.75 28,598.75 12,011.25 10,003.99
09/15/2024 280,610.00 273,598.75 273,598.75 7,011.25 5,773.52
09/30/2024 19,022.50
03/15/2025 36,672.50 25,903.75 25,903.75 10,768.75 8,767.41
09/15/2025 286,672.50 275,903.75 275,903.75 10,768.75 8,668.26
09/30/2025 21,537.50
03/15/2026 32,452.50 22,966.25 22,966.25 9,486.25 7,549.56
09/15/2026 287,452.50 277,966.25 277,966.25 9,486.25 7,464.18
09/30/2026 18,972.50
03/15/2027 28,026.25 19,778.75 19,778.75 8,247.50 6,416.09
09/15/2027 293,026.25 284,778.75 284,778.75 8,247.50 6,343.53
09/30/2027 16,495.00
03/15/2028 23,300.00 16,333.75 16,333.75 6,966.25 5,297.47
09/15/2028 298,300.00 286,333.75 286,333.75 11,966.25 8,996.80
09/30/2028 18,932.50
03/15/2029 17,800.00 12,621.25 12,621.25 5,178.75 3,849.60
09/15/2029 302,800.00 287,621.25 287,621.25 15,178.75 11,155.45
09/30/2029 20,357.50
03/15/2030 12,100.00 8,702.50 8,702.50 3,397.50 2,468.72
09/15/2030 307,100.00 293,702.50 293,702.50 13,397.50 9,624.89
09/30/2030 16,795.00
03/15/2031 6,200.00 4,498.75 4,498.75 1,701.25 1,208.37
09/15/2031 316,200.00 299,498.75 299,498.75 16,701.25 11,728.50
09/30/2031 18,402.50

4,826,772.50 4,541,289.89 -1,950.56 4,543,240.45 283,532.05 283,532.05 237,246.59

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 237,246.59
Less: Prior funds on hand -326,993.40
Plus: Refunding funds on hand 294,701.68

Net PV Savings 204,954.87

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 142 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 20

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bonds:
09/15/2016 155,000 0.750% 0.750% 100.000
09/15/2017 125,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
09/15/2018 130,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
09/15/2019 225,000 1.400% 1.400% 100.000
09/15/2020 230,000 1.550% 1.550% 100.000
09/15/2021 230,000 1.700% 1.700% 100.000
09/15/2022 235,000 1.850% 1.850% 100.000
09/15/2023 240,000 2.050% 2.050% 100.000
09/15/2024 245,000 2.200% 2.200% 100.000
09/15/2025 250,000 2.350% 2.350% 100.000
09/15/2026 255,000 2.500% 2.500% 100.000
09/15/2027 265,000 2.600% 2.600% 100.000
09/15/2028 270,000 2.750% 2.750% 100.000
09/15/2029 275,000 2.850% 2.850% 100.000
09/15/2030 285,000 2.950% 2.950% 100.000
09/15/2031 295,000 3.050% 3.050% 100.000

3,710,000

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 09/15/2016

Par Amount 3,710,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 3,710,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -46,375.00 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 3,663,625.00 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 3,663,625.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 143 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 21

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 09/15/2016
Last Maturity 09/15/2031

Arbitrage Yield 2.261023%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.649293%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.509609%
All-In TIC 2.684944%
Average Coupon 2.509609%

Average Life (years) 8.928
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 8.928
Duration of Issue (years) 7.899

Par Amount 3,710,000.00
Bond Proceeds 3,710,000.00
Total Interest 831,289.89
Net Interest 877,664.89
Bond Years from Dated Date 33,124,277.78
Bond Years from Delivery Date 33,124,277.78
Total Debt Service 4,541,289.89
Maximum Annual Debt Service 304,557.50
Average Annual Debt Service 292,253.19

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bonds 3,710,000.00 100.000 2.510% 8.928 2,854.40

3,710,000.00 8.928 2,854.40

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 3,710,000.00 3,710,000.00 3,710,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -46,375.00 -46,375.00
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -10,162.18
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 3,663,625.00 3,653,462.82 3,710,000.00

Target Date 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 03/01/2016
Yield 2.649293% 2.684944% 2.261023%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 144 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 22

BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

09/15/2016 155,000 0.750% 43,752.39 198,752.39
09/30/2016 198,752.39
03/15/2017 40,013.75 40,013.75
09/15/2017 125,000 1.050% 40,013.75 165,013.75
09/30/2017 205,027.50
03/15/2018 39,357.50 39,357.50
09/15/2018 130,000 1.250% 39,357.50 169,357.50
09/30/2018 208,715.00
03/15/2019 38,545.00 38,545.00
09/15/2019 225,000 1.400% 38,545.00 263,545.00
09/30/2019 302,090.00
03/15/2020 36,970.00 36,970.00
09/15/2020 230,000 1.550% 36,970.00 266,970.00
09/30/2020 303,940.00
03/15/2021 35,187.50 35,187.50
09/15/2021 230,000 1.700% 35,187.50 265,187.50
09/30/2021 300,375.00
03/15/2022 33,232.50 33,232.50
09/15/2022 235,000 1.850% 33,232.50 268,232.50
09/30/2022 301,465.00
03/15/2023 31,058.75 31,058.75
09/15/2023 240,000 2.050% 31,058.75 271,058.75
09/30/2023 302,117.50
03/15/2024 28,598.75 28,598.75
09/15/2024 245,000 2.200% 28,598.75 273,598.75
09/30/2024 302,197.50
03/15/2025 25,903.75 25,903.75
09/15/2025 250,000 2.350% 25,903.75 275,903.75
09/30/2025 301,807.50
03/15/2026 22,966.25 22,966.25
09/15/2026 255,000 2.500% 22,966.25 277,966.25
09/30/2026 300,932.50
03/15/2027 19,778.75 19,778.75
09/15/2027 265,000 2.600% 19,778.75 284,778.75
09/30/2027 304,557.50
03/15/2028 16,333.75 16,333.75
09/15/2028 270,000 2.750% 16,333.75 286,333.75
09/30/2028 302,667.50
03/15/2029 12,621.25 12,621.25
09/15/2029 275,000 2.850% 12,621.25 287,621.25
09/30/2029 300,242.50
03/15/2030 8,702.50 8,702.50
09/15/2030 285,000 2.950% 8,702.50 293,702.50
09/30/2030 302,405.00
03/15/2031 4,498.75 4,498.75
09/15/2031 295,000 3.050% 4,498.75 299,498.75
09/30/2031 303,997.50

3,710,000 831,289.89 4,541,289.89 4,541,289.89

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 145 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 23

NET DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Total Debt Service Net
Ending Principal Interest Debt Service Reserve Fund Debt Service

09/30/2016 155,000 43,752.39 198,752.39 -317.62 198,434.77
09/30/2017 125,000 80,027.50 205,027.50 -589.40 204,438.10
09/30/2018 130,000 78,715.00 208,715.00 -589.40 208,125.60
09/30/2019 225,000 77,090.00 302,090.00 -589.40 301,500.60
09/30/2020 230,000 73,940.00 303,940.00 -589.40 303,350.60
09/30/2021 230,000 70,375.00 300,375.00 -589.40 299,785.60
09/30/2022 235,000 66,465.00 301,465.00 -589.40 300,875.60
09/30/2023 240,000 62,117.50 302,117.50 -589.40 301,528.10
09/30/2024 245,000 57,197.50 302,197.50 -589.40 301,608.10
09/30/2025 250,000 51,807.50 301,807.50 -589.40 301,218.10
09/30/2026 255,000 45,932.50 300,932.50 -589.40 300,343.10
09/30/2027 265,000 39,557.50 304,557.50 -589.40 303,968.10
09/30/2028 270,000 32,667.50 302,667.50 -589.40 302,078.10
09/30/2029 275,000 25,242.50 300,242.50 -589.40 299,653.10
09/30/2030 285,000 17,405.00 302,405.00 -589.40 301,815.60
09/30/2031 295,000 8,997.50 303,997.50 -295,291.08 8,706.42

3,710,000 831,289.89 4,541,289.89 -303,860.30 4,237,429.59

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 146 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 24

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Ser 2011 Sewer, $170K Par, 2031 mat (callable 11/10/16):
TERM31 09/15/2016 4.000% 5,000.00

09/15/2017 4.000% 5,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2018 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2019 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2020 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2021 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2022 4.000% 5,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2023 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2024 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2025 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2026 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2027 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2028 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2029 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2030 4.000% 10,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000
09/15/2031 4.000% 15,000.00 11/10/2016 100.000

150,000.00

Ser 2011 Sewer P&C Refg of '10 BAN+new money (callable 9/15/16):
SERIAL 09/15/2016 1.300% 90,000.00

09/15/2017 1.700% 95,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2018 2.050% 95,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2019 2.350% 200,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2020 2.550% 205,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2021 2.750% 210,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2022 2.900% 220,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2023 3.100% 225,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2024 3.250% 230,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2025 3.350% 240,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2026 3.450% 245,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2027 3.550% 255,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000

TERM31 09/15/2028 4.000% 265,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2029 4.000% 275,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2030 4.000% 285,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000
09/15/2031 4.000% 295,000.00 09/15/2016 100.000

3,430,000.00

3,580,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 147 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 25

ESCROW REQUIREMENTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Period Principal
Ending Principal Interest Redeemed Total

03/15/2016 58,805.00 58,805.00
09/15/2016 95,000.00 58,805.00 3,340,000.00 3,493,805.00
11/10/2016 886.11 145,000.00 145,886.11

95,000.00 118,496.11 3,485,000.00 3,698,496.11

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 148 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 26

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
Advance Refunding of Ser. 2011s (9/15/2011 & 11/10/11)

Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution
[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

03/15/2016 58,805.00 58,805.00
09/15/2016 95,000 **   % 58,805.00 153,805.00
09/30/2016 212,610.00
03/15/2017 58,120.00 58,120.00
09/15/2017 100,000 **   % 58,120.00 158,120.00
09/30/2017 216,240.00
03/15/2018 57,212.50 57,212.50
09/15/2018 105,000 **   % 57,212.50 162,212.50
09/30/2018 219,425.00
03/15/2019 56,038.75 56,038.75
09/15/2019 210,000 **   % 56,038.75 266,038.75
09/30/2019 322,077.50
03/15/2020 53,488.75 53,488.75
09/15/2020 215,000 **   % 53,488.75 268,488.75
09/30/2020 321,977.50
03/15/2021 50,675.00 50,675.00
09/15/2021 220,000 **   % 50,675.00 270,675.00
09/30/2021 321,350.00
03/15/2022 47,587.50 47,587.50
09/15/2022 225,000 **   % 47,587.50 272,587.50
09/30/2022 320,175.00
03/15/2023 44,297.50 44,297.50
09/15/2023 235,000 **   % 44,297.50 279,297.50
09/30/2023 323,595.00
03/15/2024 40,610.00 40,610.00
09/15/2024 240,000 **   % 40,610.00 280,610.00
09/30/2024 321,220.00
03/15/2025 36,672.50 36,672.50
09/15/2025 250,000 **   % 36,672.50 286,672.50
09/30/2025 323,345.00
03/15/2026 32,452.50 32,452.50
09/15/2026 255,000 **   % 32,452.50 287,452.50
09/30/2026 319,905.00
03/15/2027 28,026.25 28,026.25
09/15/2027 265,000 **   % 28,026.25 293,026.25
09/30/2027 321,052.50
03/15/2028 23,300.00 23,300.00
09/15/2028 275,000 4.000% 23,300.00 298,300.00
09/30/2028 321,600.00
03/15/2029 17,800.00 17,800.00
09/15/2029 285,000 4.000% 17,800.00 302,800.00
09/30/2029 320,600.00
03/15/2030 12,100.00 12,100.00
09/15/2030 295,000 4.000% 12,100.00 307,100.00
09/30/2030 319,200.00
03/15/2031 6,200.00 6,200.00
09/15/2031 310,000 4.000% 6,200.00 316,200.00
09/30/2031 322,400.00

3,580,000 1,246,772.50 4,826,772.50 4,826,772.50

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 149 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 27

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 110,000.00

110,000.00

Uses:

Project Fund Deposits:
Plum Creek Sewer Siphon Project 100,000.00

Other Fund Deposits:
Debt Service Reserve Fund 8,737.79

Cost of Issuance:
Paying Agent 19.85
Bond Counsel 192.50

212.35

Delivery Date Expenses:
Underwriter's Discount 1,375.00

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding -325.14

110,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 150 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 28

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bonds:
09/15/2016 5,000 0.750% 0.750% 100.000
09/15/2017 5,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
09/15/2018 5,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
09/15/2019 5,000 1.400% 1.400% 100.000
09/15/2020 5,000 1.550% 1.550% 100.000
09/15/2021 5,000 1.700% 1.700% 100.000
09/15/2022 5,000 1.850% 1.850% 100.000
09/15/2023 5,000 2.050% 2.050% 100.000
09/15/2024 5,000 2.200% 2.200% 100.000
09/15/2025 5,000 2.350% 2.350% 100.000
09/15/2026 10,000 2.500% 2.500% 100.000
09/15/2027 10,000 2.600% 2.600% 100.000
09/15/2028 10,000 2.750% 2.750% 100.000
09/15/2029 10,000 2.850% 2.850% 100.000
09/15/2030 10,000 2.950% 2.950% 100.000
09/15/2031 10,000 3.050% 3.050% 100.000

110,000

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 09/15/2016

Par Amount 110,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 110,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -1,375.00 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 108,625.00 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 108,625.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 151 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 29

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/01/2016
Delivery Date 03/01/2016
First Coupon 09/15/2016
Last Maturity 09/15/2031

Arbitrage Yield 2.261023%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.720061%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.585147%
All-In TIC 2.744188%
Average Coupon 2.585147%

Average Life (years) 9.403
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 9.403
Duration of Issue (years) 8.224

Par Amount 110,000.00
Bond Proceeds 110,000.00
Total Interest 26,737.60
Net Interest 28,112.60
Bond Years from Dated Date 1,034,277.78
Bond Years from Delivery Date 1,034,277.78
Total Debt Service 136,737.60
Maximum Annual Debt Service 11,670.00
Average Annual Debt Service 8,799.70

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bonds 110,000.00 100.000 2.585% 9.403 88.30

110,000.00 9.403 88.30

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 110,000.00 110,000.00 110,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -1,375.00 -1,375.00
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -212.35
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 108,625.00 108,412.65 110,000.00

Target Date 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 03/01/2016
Yield 2.720061% 2.744188% 2.261023%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 152 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 30

BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

09/15/2016 5,000 0.750% 1,335.10 6,335.10
09/30/2016 6,335.10
03/15/2017 1,220.00 1,220.00
09/15/2017 5,000 1.050% 1,220.00 6,220.00
09/30/2017 7,440.00
03/15/2018 1,193.75 1,193.75
09/15/2018 5,000 1.250% 1,193.75 6,193.75
09/30/2018 7,387.50
03/15/2019 1,162.50 1,162.50
09/15/2019 5,000 1.400% 1,162.50 6,162.50
09/30/2019 7,325.00
03/15/2020 1,127.50 1,127.50
09/15/2020 5,000 1.550% 1,127.50 6,127.50
09/30/2020 7,255.00
03/15/2021 1,088.75 1,088.75
09/15/2021 5,000 1.700% 1,088.75 6,088.75
09/30/2021 7,177.50
03/15/2022 1,046.25 1,046.25
09/15/2022 5,000 1.850% 1,046.25 6,046.25
09/30/2022 7,092.50
03/15/2023 1,000.00 1,000.00
09/15/2023 5,000 2.050% 1,000.00 6,000.00
09/30/2023 7,000.00
03/15/2024 948.75 948.75
09/15/2024 5,000 2.200% 948.75 5,948.75
09/30/2024 6,897.50
03/15/2025 893.75 893.75
09/15/2025 5,000 2.350% 893.75 5,893.75
09/30/2025 6,787.50
03/15/2026 835.00 835.00
09/15/2026 10,000 2.500% 835.00 10,835.00
09/30/2026 11,670.00
03/15/2027 710.00 710.00
09/15/2027 10,000 2.600% 710.00 10,710.00
09/30/2027 11,420.00
03/15/2028 580.00 580.00
09/15/2028 10,000 2.750% 580.00 10,580.00
09/30/2028 11,160.00
03/15/2029 442.50 442.50
09/15/2029 10,000 2.850% 442.50 10,442.50
09/30/2029 10,885.00
03/15/2030 300.00 300.00
09/15/2030 10,000 2.950% 300.00 10,300.00
09/30/2030 10,600.00
03/15/2031 152.50 152.50
09/15/2031 10,000 3.050% 152.50 10,152.50
09/30/2031 10,305.00

110,000 26,737.60 136,737.60 136,737.60

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 153 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   2:44 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:SEWERRN)   Page 31

NET DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016

New Money Project
Non-Rated, BQ, 2031 Final Maturity, Level Debt Service

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Total Debt Service Net
Ending Principal Interest Debt Service Reserve Fund Debt Service

09/30/2016 5,000 1,335.10 6,335.10 -9.42 6,325.68
09/30/2017 5,000 2,440.00 7,440.00 -17.48 7,422.52
09/30/2018 5,000 2,387.50 7,387.50 -17.48 7,370.02
09/30/2019 5,000 2,325.00 7,325.00 -17.48 7,307.52
09/30/2020 5,000 2,255.00 7,255.00 -17.48 7,237.52
09/30/2021 5,000 2,177.50 7,177.50 -17.48 7,160.02
09/30/2022 5,000 2,092.50 7,092.50 -17.48 7,075.02
09/30/2023 5,000 2,000.00 7,000.00 -17.48 6,982.52
09/30/2024 5,000 1,897.50 6,897.50 -17.48 6,880.02
09/30/2025 5,000 1,787.50 6,787.50 -17.48 6,770.02
09/30/2026 10,000 1,670.00 11,670.00 -17.48 11,652.52
09/30/2027 10,000 1,420.00 11,420.00 -17.48 11,402.52
09/30/2028 10,000 1,160.00 11,160.00 -17.48 11,142.52
09/30/2029 10,000 885.00 10,885.00 -17.48 10,867.52
09/30/2030 10,000 600.00 10,600.00 -17.48 10,582.52
09/30/2031 10,000 305.00 10,305.00 -8,755.27 1,549.73

110,000 26,737.60 136,737.60 -9,009.41 127,728.19

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 154 / 266



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016, OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED FOUR MILLION TWO 

HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,200,000), FOR THE PURPOSE OF (A) REFUNDING 

ALL OR A PORTION OF $300,000 OF OUTSTANDING SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2010, $3,430,000 OF OUTSTANDING SANITARY 

SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011 AND $150,000 OF OUTSTANDING 

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011B; (B) PAYING THE COSTS 

OF IMPROVEMENTS TO AND EXPANSION OF THE CITY’S SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM; 

(C) PROVIDING FOR NECESSARY RESERVE FUNDS AND (D) PAYING COSTS OF 

ISSUANCE OF SAID BONDS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF SAID BONDS; ENTERING 

INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE REGISTERED OWNERS OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING 

FOR THE SALE OF SAID BONDS AND DESIGNATION OF CERTAIN TERMS; PROVIDING 

FOR THE REDEMPTION OF BONDS AND INDEBTEDNESS BEING REFUNDED; PROVIDING 

FOR THE APPLICATION OF THE PROCEEDS OF SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE 

DELIVERY OF SAID BONDS TO THE PURCHASER AND PROVIDING FOR THE 

PUBLICATION OF THE ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM.  

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska (the “City”) as 

follows:  

 

Section 1. The Mayor and Council of the City hereby find and determine that:   

 

(a) the City owns and operates a sanitary sewer system which constitutes a revenue producing 

facility and undertaking within the meaning of such term as set forth in Sections 18-1803 to 

18-1805 R.R.S. Neb, 2012, as amended; that said sanitary sewer system, taken together with 

all additions and improvements thereto hereafter acquired or constructed are herein referred 

to as the “Sanitary Sewer System”;  

 

(b) that the City has previously issued and there are now outstanding the following issues of 

revenue bonds for which the revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System have been pledged: 

 

Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010, date of original 

issue—August 20, 2010, in the original principal amount of $765,000, of which there 

remain outstanding and unpaid bonds in the amount of $300,000 (the "2010 Bonds"), 

all of which were authorized to be issued under the terms of Ordinance No. 16-10 as 

passed and approved by the Mayor and Council of the City on July 6, 2010 (the 

“2010 Ordinance”);  

 

Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, date of original issue – 

September 15, 2011, in the principal amount of $3,790,000 of which there remain 

outstanding and unpaid bonds in the amount of $3,430,000 (the “2011 Bonds”), all of 

which were authorized to be issued under the terms of Ordinance No. 13-11 as passed 

and approved by the Mayor and Council of the City on August 2, 2011 (the “2011 

Ordinance”); and 

 

Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B, date of original issue – 

November 10, 2011, in the principal amount of $170,000, of which there remain 

outstanding and unpaid bonds in the amount of $150,000 (the “2011B Bonds”), all of 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 155 / 266



 2 

which were authorized to be issued under the terms of Ordinance No. 27-11 as passed 

and approved by the Mayor and Council of the City on October 4, 2011 (the “2011B 

Ordinance”); 

 

Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, date of original issue – March 22, 

2013, in the principal amount of $50,000, all of which remain outstanding and unpaid 

(the “2013 Bonds”), all of which were authorized to be issued under the terms of 

Ordinance No. 2-13 as passed and approved by the Mayor and Council of the City on 

February 19, 2013 (the “2013 Ordinance”); 

 

The 2010 Ordinance, the 2011 Ordinance, the 2011B Ordinance and the 2013 Ordinance are sometimes 

hereinafter referred to collectively as the “Prior Ordinances”, the 2010 Bonds, the 2011 Bonds and the 

2011B Bonds which are called for redemption pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance are sometimes 

hereinafter referred to as the “Refunded Bonds” and the 2013 Bonds and that portion of the 2010 Bonds, the 

2011 Bonds and the 2011B Bonds not called for redemption are sometimes hereinafter referred to as the 

“Prior Bonds”;  

 

(a) that the 2010 Bonds are subject to redemption at any time on or after August 20, 2015, that 

the 2011 Bonds are subject to redemption at any time on or after September 15, 2016, and 

that the 2011B Bonds are subject to redemption at any time on or after November 10, 2016 at 

par plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption and are herein authorized to be 

irrevocably called for redemption in accordance with their call provisions on a date or dates 

to be determined (such date or dates referred to herein as  the “Redemption Dates”); that 

since the 2010 Bonds, the 2011 Bonds and the 2011B Bonds were issued, the rates of interest 

available in the market have declined such that by taking up and paying off the Refunded 

Bonds through the issuance of refunding bonds as provided herein, a savings in the amount of 

yearly running interest will be made to the City; 

 

(b) that certain improvements, enlargements and expansions of the City’s Sanitary Sewer System 

(the “Project”) are necessary in order to continue to provide the City and its residents with 

adequate sanitary sewer service, that the costs of such improvements, enlargements and 

expansions are not less than $107,000; and that it is necessary and advisable for the City to 

provide for the costs of such improvements to the Sanitary Sewer System by issuing the 2016 

Bonds; 

 

(c) that under the terms of the Prior Ordinances, bonds of equal lien with the Prior Bonds may be 

issued provided that certain revenues have been experienced by the Sanitary Sewer System 

for its most recent fiscal year; that the Authorized Officers (as defined herein) are hereby 

authorized to and shall certify prior to the issuance of the bonds authorized herein that said 

Net Revenues are not less than 1.25 times the average annual debt service requirements (as 

described in the Prior Ordinances) of the Prior Bonds and the bonds herein authorized; that 

said Prior Bonds and the Refunded Bonds represent the only outstanding indebtedness of the 

City for which the revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System have been pledged; that, upon the 

issuance of the bonds herein authorized, all payment requirements of said Refunded Bonds 

will be paid and satisfied; that all conditions required under the terms of the Prior Ordinances 

for the issuance of the bonds herein authorized as “additional bonds” of equal lien and 

standing with the Prior Bonds do exist and have happened; and 

 

(d) that for the purpose of making said redemption of the Refunded Bonds on the Redemption 

Dates, paying the costs of the Project, providing for necessary reserve funds and paying costs 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 156 / 266



 3 

of issuance of the 2016 Bonds, it is in the best interest of the City to issue revenue refunding 

bonds of the City in the principal amount of not to exceed $4,200,000;  

 

(e) that all conditions, acts and things required to exist or to be done precedent to the issuance of 

Sanitary Sewer System Revenue and Refunding Bonds of the City of Seward, Nebraska, in 

the principal amount of not to exceed Four Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($4,200,000) pursuant to Sections 18-1803 to 18-1805, R.R.S. Neb. 2012, do exist and have 

been done as required by law. 

 

 Section 2. In addition to the definitions provided in parentheses elsewhere in this 

Ordinance, the following definitions of terms shall apply, unless the context shall clearly indicate 

otherwise: 

 

(a)  the term “revenues” shall mean all of the rates, rentals, fees and charges, 

earnings and other monies, including investment income, from any source derived by the 

City through its ownership and operation of the Sanitary Sewer System. 

 

(b)  the term “Additional Bonds” shall mean any and all bonds hereafter issued 

by the City pursuant to the terms of this Ordinance which are equal in lien to the Prior 

Bonds, including all such bonds issued pursuant to Section 12 and refunding bonds issued 

pursuant to Section 13. 

 

(c)  the term “Average Annual Debt Service Requirements” shall mean that 

number computed by adding all of the principal and interest due when computed to the 

absolute maturity of the bonds for which such computation is required and dividing by 

the number of years remaining that the longest bond of any issue for which such 

computation is required had to run to maturity.  In making such computation, the 

principal of any bonds for which mandatory redemptions are scheduled shall be treated as 

maturing in accordance with such schedule of mandatory redemptions. 

 

(d)  the term “Deposit Securities” shall mean obligations of the United States of 

America, direct or unconditionally guaranteed, including any such obligations issued in 

book entry form. 

 

(e)  the term “Net Revenues” shall mean the revenues derived by the City from 

the ownership or operation of the Sanitary Sewer System, including investment income, 

but not including any income from the sale or other disposition of any property belonging 

to or forming a part of the Sanitary Sewer System, less the ordinary expenses for 

operating and maintaining the Sanitary Sewer System payable from the Operation and 

Maintenance Account described in Section 10 of this Ordinance.  Operation and 

Maintenance expenses for purposes of determining the “Net Revenues” shall not include 

depreciation, amortization of financing expenses or interest on any bonds or other 

indebtedness.  Net Revenues for all purposes of this Ordinance shall be shown by an 

audit for the fiscal year in question as conducted by an independent certified public 

accountant or firm of such accountants. 

 

(f)  the term “Paying Agent and Registrar” shall mean a bank or trust company, 

as appointed to act as paying agent and registrar for the Series 2016 Bonds pursuant to 

the Designation, or any successor thereto. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 157 / 266



 4 

 Section 3. To provide for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds and pay costs of the Project 

as described in Sections 1 and 2 hereof, including providing for necessary reserve funds and costs of 

issuance hereof, there shall be and there are hereby ordered issued Sanitary Sewer System Revenue and 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2016, of the City of Seward, Nebraska, in the principal amount of not to exceed 

Four Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($4,200,000) (the “2016 Bonds”).  The 2016 Bonds or any 

portion thereof are hereby authorized to be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale with D.A. Davidson & Co., 

as initial purchaser (the “Underwriter”).  In connection with such sale, the Mayor, City Administrator or 

City Clerk-Treasurer (each, an “Authorized Officer”) are hereby authorized to specify, determine, 

designate, establish and appoint, as the case may be, in one or more written designations which may be 

included in a bond purchase agreement (each, a “Designation”), (i) the aggregate purchase price of the 

Bonds and the underwriting discount which shall not exceed 1.25% of the aggregate stated principal 

amount thereof, (ii) the form and contents of any bond purchase agreement in connection with such sale, 

(iii) the title (including series designation), dated date (which shall not be later than December 31, 2016), 

aggregate principal amount (including the aggregate principal amounts of serial Bonds and term Bonds, if 

any), which aggregate stated principal amount shall not exceed $4,200,000, and the final maturity date, 

which shall not be later than December 31, 2031, (iv) the principal amounts maturing in each year, (v) the 

rate or rates of interest to be borne by each principal maturity, provided that present value savings results 

from refunding the Refunded Bonds and provided that the true interest cost of the Bonds shall not exceed 

3.50%, (vi) the principal payment dates and interest payment dates, (vii) whether the Bonds will be 

subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity, and if subject to such optional redemption, the 

provisions governing such redemption, including a redemption price not to exceed 104% of the principal 

amount then being redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, (viii) the amount and due 

date of each sinking fund installment for any of the Bonds issued as term Bonds, (ix) the designation of 

the Paying Agent and Registrar and the form and content of any agreement between the City and such 

entity and (x) all other terms and provisions of the Bonds not otherwise specified or fixed by this 

Ordinance.    

 

 The Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby authorized to irrevocably call any or all 

of the 2010 Bonds, the 2011 Bonds and the 2011B Bonds (as called for redemption, the “Refunded 

Bonds”) for redemption on such date or dates he or she determines appropriate, which date or dates shall 

be the Redemption Dates hereunder.  The Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby 

authorized to designate, approve, execute and deliver, as the case may be (i) the form, content, terms and 

provisions of any published and/or mailed notice of redemption with respect to the payment and 

redemption of the Refunded Bonds, (ii) an Escrow Agent, (iii) the form, content, terms and provisions of 

an Escrow Agreement with the Escrow Agent for the purpose of providing for the deposit in trust with the 

Escrow Agent a portion of the net proceeds of the Bonds, the investment of such net proceeds pending 

their application, the application of such proceeds and any investment income to the payment of all of the 

principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds maturing on or before the Redemption Date and the 

application of the balance of such proceeds and any investment income thereof to the redemption and 

retirement of the Refunded Bonds on the Redemption Dates.  

 

 The 2016 Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form in the denomination of $5,000 or any 

integral multiple thereof.  The date of original issue for the 2016 Bonds shall be Date of Delivery.  

Interest on the 2016 Bonds, at the respective rates for each maturity, shall be payable as determined in the 

Designation (each an “Interest Payment Date”), and the 2016 Bonds shall bear such interest from the date 

of original issue or the most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later.  The interest due on each 

Interest Payment Date shall be payable to the registered owners of record as of the fifteenth day 

immediately preceding the Interest Payment Date (the “Record Date”), subject to the provision of Section 

5 hereof.  The 2016 Bonds shall be numbered from 1 upwards in the order of their issuance.  No 2016 

Bond shall be issued originally or upon transfer or partial redemption having more than one principal 

maturity.  The initial bond numbering and principal amounts for each of the 2016 Bonds issued shall be as 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 158 / 266



 5 

directed by the Underwriter.  Payments of interest due on the 2016 Bonds prior to maturity or earlier 

redemption shall be made by the Paying Agent and Registrar, as designated pursuant to Section 4 hereof, 

by mailing a check or draft in the amount due for such interest on each Interest Payment Date, to such 

owner’s registered address as shown on the books of registration as required to be maintained in Section 4 

hereof.  Payments of principal due at maturity or at any date fixed for redemption prior to maturity, 

together with any unpaid interest accrued thereon, shall be made by the Paying Agent and Registrar upon 

presentation and surrender of the 2016 Bonds to said Paying Agent and Registrar.  The City and said 

Paying Agent and Registrar may treat the registered owner of any 2016 Bond as the absolute owner of 

such bond for the purpose of making payments thereon and for all other purposes and neither the City nor 

the Paying Agent and Registrar shall be affected by any notice or knowledge to the contrary, whether 

such bond or any installment of interest due thereon shall be overdue or not.  All payments on account of 

interest or principal made to the registered owner of any 2016 Bond in accordance with the terms of this 

Ordinance shall be valid and effectual and shall be a discharge of the City and said Paying Agent and 

Registrar, in respect of the liability upon the 2016 Bonds or claims for interest to the extent of the sum or 

sums so paid. 

 

 Section 4. The Paying Agent and Registrar designated pursuant to the Designation shall 

serve in such capacities under the terms of an agreement entitled "Paying Agent and Registrar's 

Agreement" between the City and said Paying Agent and Registrar, in a form approved by an Authorized 

Officer. The Paying Agent and Registrar shall keep and maintain for the City books for the registration 

and transfer of the 2016 Bonds at its office.  The names and registered addresses of registered owner or 

owners of the 2016 Bonds shall at all times be recorded in such books.  Any 2016 Bond may be 

transferred  pursuant to its provisions at the office of said Paying Agent and Registrar by surrender of 

such bond for cancellation, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, in form satisfactory to said 

Paying Agent and Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner in person or by such owner’s duly 

authorized agent, and thereupon the Paying Agent and Registrar on behalf of the City will deliver at its 

office (or send by registered mail to the transferee owner or owners thereof at such transferee owner’s or 

owners’ risk and expense), registered in the name of such transferee owner or owners, a new 2016 Bond 

or 2016 Bonds of the same interest rate, aggregate principal amount and maturity.  To the extent of the 

denominations authorized for the 2016 Bonds by this ordinance, one such bond may be transferred for 

several such bonds of the same interest rate and maturity, and for a like aggregate principal amount, and 

several such bonds may be transferred for one or several such bonds, respectively, of the same interest 

rate and maturity and for a like aggregate principal amount.  In every case of transfer of a 2016 Bond, the 

surrendered 2016 Bond shall be canceled and destroyed.  All Bonds issued upon transfer of the 2016 

Bonds so surrendered shall be valid obligations of the City evidencing the same obligation as the 2016 

Bonds surrendered and shall be entitled to all the benefits and protection of this ordinance to the same 

extent as the 2016 Bonds upon transfer of which they were delivered.  The City as said Paying Agent and 

Registrar shall not be required to transfer any 2016 Bond during any period from any Record Date until 

its immediately following Interest Payment Date or to transfer any 2016 Bond called for redemption for a 

period of 30 days next preceding the date fixed for redemption. 

 

 Section 5. In the event that payments of interest due on the 2016 Bonds on an Interest 

Payment Date are not timely made, such interest shall cease to be payable to the registered owners as of 

the Record Date for such Interest Payment Date and shall be payable to the registered owners of the 2016 

Bonds as of a special date of record for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be designated by the 

Paying Agent and Registrar whenever monies for the purpose of paying such defaulted interest become 

available. 

 

 Section 6. In addition to any mandatory sinking fund redemptions as may be provided for as 

set out in Section 3 of this Ordinance, the 2016 Bonds shall be subject to redemption at the option of the 

City, in whole or in part, prior to maturity at any time on or after such date as may be provided in the 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 159 / 266



 6 

Designation, at par plus accrued interest on the principal amount redeemed to the date fixed for 

redemption.   The City may select the 2016 Bonds to be redeemed in its sole discretion but the 2016 

Bonds shall be redeemed only in the amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof.  2016 Bonds 

redeemed in part only shall be surrendered to said Paying Agent and Registrar in exchange for a new 

2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds evidencing the unredeemed principal thereof.  Notice of redemption of any 

2016 Bond called for redemption shall be given at the direction of the City by said Paying Agent and 

Registrar by mail not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, first class, postage prepaid, 

sent to the registered owner of such 2016 Bond at said owner’s registered address.  Such notice shall 

designate the 2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds to be redeemed by maturity or otherwise, the date of original 

issue and the date fixed for redemption and shall state that such 2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds are to be 

presented for prepayment at the office of said Paying Agent and Registrar.  In case of any 2016 Bond 

being partially redeemed, such notice shall specify the portion of the principal amount of such 2016 Bond 

to be redeemed.  No defect in the mailing of notice for any 2016 Bond shall affect the sufficiency of the 

proceedings of the City designating the 2016 Bonds called for redemption or the effectiveness of such call 

for 2016 Bonds of which notice by mail has been properly given and the City shall have the right to 

further direct notice of redemption for any such bond for which defective notice has been given. 

 

 Section 7. If the date for payment of the principal or interest on the 2016 Bonds shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal 

corporate trust office of the Paying Agent and Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive 

order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, 

Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on 

such day shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

  

Section 8. The 2016 Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 160 / 266



 7 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

COUNTY OF SEWARD 

 

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE AND REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2016 

OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

No. R-__ $______ 

 

Interest 

Rate 

Maturity 

Date 

Date of  

Original Issue 

 

CUSIP 

% _________,  _______ __, 2016 ______ ___ 

 

Registered Owner: Cede & Co. 

 13-2555119 

Principal Amount:  

 

 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  That the City of Seward, in the County of 

Seward, in the State of Nebraska, hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to 

pay, but only from the special sources herein described, to the registered owner specified above, or 

registered assigns, the principal amount specified above in lawful money of the United States of America 

on the date of maturity specified above with interest thereon to maturity (or earlier redemption) from the 

date of original issuer most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later, at the rate per annum 

specified above, payable semi-annually on __________ and __________ of each year (each an “Interest 

Payment Date”), commencing __________, 20__.  Said interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-

day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.  The principal of this bond is payable upon presentation and 

surrender of the bond at the office of ____________________________________, the Paying Agent and 

Registrar, in ________, _________. Interest on this bond will be paid on each Interest Payment Date by a 

check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent and Registrar to the registered owner of this bond, as shown on 

the books of record maintained by the Paying Agent and Registrar, on the fifteenth day immediately 

preceding the Interest Payment Date, to such owner’s address as shown on such books and records.  Any 

interest not so timely paid shall cease to be payable to the person entitled thereto as of the record date 

such interest was payable, as shall be payable to the person who is the registered owner of this bond (or of 

one or more predecessor bonds hereto) on such special record date for payment of such defaulted interest 

as shall be fixed by the Paying Agent and Registrar whenever monies for such purpose become available. 

 

 This bond is one of an issue of fully registered bonds of the total principal amount of __________ 

Thousand Dollars ($______) of even date and like tenor except as to date of maturity, rate of interest and 

denomination which were issued by the City for the purpose of paying the costs of constructing additions 

and improvements to the Sanitary Sewer System, in strict compliance with Sections 18-1803 to 18-1805, 

R.R.S. Neb., 2012, as amended, and has been duly authorized by ordinance legally passed, approved and 

published and by proceedings duly had by the Mayor and Council of said City. 

 

Any or all of the bonds of said issue maturing on or after __________, 20__, are subject to 

redemption at the option of the City, in whole or in part, at any time on or after ________________, 

20__, at par plus interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  Notice of redemption shall be 

given by mail to the registered owner of any bond to be redeemed in the manner specified in the 

ordinance authorizing said issue of bonds.  Individual bonds may be redeemed in part buy only in the 

amount of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 161 / 266



 8 

 This bond is transferable by the registered owner or such owner’s attorney duly authorized in 

writing at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent and Registrar upon surrender and 

cancellation of this bond, and thereupon a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate principal amount, 

interest rate and maturity will be issued to the transferee as provided in the ordinance authorizing said 

issue of bonds, subject to the limitations therein prescribed.  The City, the Paying Agent and Registrar an 

any other person may treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof 

for the purpose of receiving payment due thereunder and for all other purposes and shall not be affected 

by any notice to the contrary, whether this bond be overdue or not. 

 

 If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on this bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, 

legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal corporate trust office 

of the Paying Agent and Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the 

date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or 

a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the 

same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

 

 The revenue and earnings of the sanitary sewer system of the City, including all improvements 

and additions thereto hereafter constructed or acquired (the “Sanitary Sewer System”), have been pledged 

and hypothecated for the payment of this bond and the other bonds of this issue, for the payment of the 

City’s outstanding Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, presently outstanding in the 

principal amount of $50,000 (the “2013 Bonds”), for the payment of the City’s outstanding 

______________________, Series 20_____, presently outstanding in the principal amount of $________ 

(the “__________”), for the payment of the City’s outstanding _________________________, Series 

20_____, presently outstanding in the principal amount of $_______ (the “___________”), and for the 

payment of any additional bonds of equal priority issued in accordance with the ordinance authorizing the 

bonds of this issue.  The bonds of this issue are a lien only upon said revenues and earnings and are not 

general obligations of the City of Seward, Nebraska. 

 

The ordinance authorizing the issuance of this bond and the other bonds of this issue sets forth the 

covenants and obligations of the City with respect to the Sanitary Sewer System and the application of the 

revenues to be derived therefrom, which revenues are by the terms of said ordinance to be deposited in 

the “Seward Sanitary Sewer Fund” and disbursed to pay costs of operation and maintenance, make 

payments of principal and interest on the bonds of the issue, the ____ Bonds, the ____ Bonds, the ______ 

Bonds and the _______ Bonds and make other payments as specified in said ordinance.  Said ordinance 

designates the terms and condition on which additional bonds of equal lien to the bonds of this issue, the 

____ Bonds, the ____ Bonds, the ____ Bonds and the ____ Bonds may be issued.  Said ordinance also 

designates the terms and conditions on which this bond shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or 

security under such ordinance and all covenants, agreements and obligations of the City under such 

ordinance may be discharged and satisfied at or prior to the maturity or redemption of this bond if moneys 

or certain specified securities shall have been deposited with the Paying Agent and Registrar or a 

designated trustee.  The City also reserves the right to issue bonds junior in lien to the bonds of this issue 

the principal and interest of which shall be payable from monies in the “Surplus Account” of the Seward 

Sanitary Sewer Fund as designated in said ordinance. 

 

 AS PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE REFERRED TO HEREIN, UNTIL THE 

TERMINATION OF THE SYSTEM OF BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY TRANSFERS THROUGH THE 

DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, NEW YORK, NEW YORK (TOGETHER WITH ANY 

SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY APPOINTED PURSUANT TO THE ORDINANCE, 

“DTC”), AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE TO THE 

CONTRARY, A PORTION OF THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS BOND MAY BE PAID OR 

REDEEMED WITHOUT SURRENDER HEREOF TO THE REGISTRAR.  DTC OR A NOMINEE, 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 162 / 266



 9 

TRANSFEREE OR ASSIGNEE OF DTC OF THIS BOND MAY NOT RELY UPON THE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT INDICATED HEREON AS THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT HEREOF AND THE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT HEREOF OUTSTANDING AND UNPAID SHALL FOR ALL PURPOSES BE THE 

AMOUNT DETERMINED IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE.  

 

 UNLESS THS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICE OF DTC (A) TO THE 

REGISTRAR FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER OR EXCHANGE OR (B) TO THE REGISTRAR 

FOR PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL, AND ANY BOND ISSUED IN REPLACEMENT HEREOF OR 

SUBSTITUTION HEREOF IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF DTC AND ANY PAYMENT IS 

MADE TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, ANY TRANSFER PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR 

VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSONS IS WRONGFUL BECAUSE ONLY THE 

REGISTERED OWNER HERE OF, DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN. 

 

 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND WARRANTED that all conditions, acts and things required 

by law to exist or to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this bond did exist, did happen and were 

done and performed in regular and due form and time as required by law and that the indebtedness of said 

City, including this bond and the indebtedness refunded hereby, does not now and did not at the time of 

the incurring of said indebtedness, exceed any limitation imposed by law. 

 

 This bond shall not be valid and binding on the City until authenticated by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, have caused 

this bond to be executed on behalf of the City with the facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City 

Clerk and by causing the official seal of the City to be imprinted hereon, all as of the date or original issue 

specified above. 

 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

_______________________________________ 

 Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________  [SEAL] 

City Clerk 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

 This bond is one of the bonds authorized by ordinance passed and approved by the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska as described in said bond. 

 

____________________________________, ________, 

_________ 

 

By:____________________________________  

       Authorized Officer  

 

 

 

(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT) 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 163 / 266



 10 

 For value received ____________________________________________________________ 

hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto __________________________________ 

_________________________ the within bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

____________________________________ , 

Attorney, to transfer the same on the books of registration in the office of the within mentioned Paying 

Agent and Registrar with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

       DATE: ________________________________ 

 

 

       _______________________________________ 

       Registered Owner 

 

 

       _______________________________________ 

       Registered Owner 

 

Witness: _____________________________________ 

 

 Note:  The signature of this assignment must correspond with the name as written on the face of 

the within bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement, or any change whatsoever. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 164 / 266



 11 

 Section 9. Each of the 2016 Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City with the facsimile 

signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk and shall have imprinted thereon the City’s seal.  The 2016 

Bonds shall be issued initially as “book-entry-only” bonds using the services of The Depository Trust 

Company ("DTC"), with one typewritten bond certificate per maturity being issued to DTC.  In such 

connection said officers are authorized to execute and deliver a Letter of Representations (including any 

blanket letter previously executed and delivered by the City) in the form required by DTC, for and on 

behalf of the City, which shall thereafter govern matters with respect to registration, transfer, payment and 

redemption of the 2016 Bonds.  Upon the issuance of the 2016 Bonds as “book-entry-only” bonds, the 

following provisions shall apply: 

 

(a) The City and the Paying Agent and Registrar shall have nor responsibility or 

obligation to any broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the 

Depository holds 2016 Bonds as securities depository (each, a “Bond Participant”) or to 

any person who is an actual purchaser of a 2016 Bond from a Bond Participant while the 

2016 Bonds are in book-entry form (each, a “Beneficial Owner”) with respect to the 

following: 

 

(i) the accuracy of the records of the Depository, any nominees of 

the Depository or any Bond Participant with respect to any ownership 

interest in the 2016 Bonds, 

 

(ii) the delivery to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial Owner or 

any other person, other than the Depository, of any notice with respect 

to the 2016 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or 

 

(iii) the payment to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial Owner or 

any other person, other than the Depository, or any amount with respect 

to the 2016 Bonds.  The Paying Agent and Registrar shall make 

payments with respect to the 2016 Bonds only to or upon the order of 

the Depository or its nominee, and all such payments shall be valid and 

effective fully to satisfy and discharge the obligations with respect to 

such bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person other 

than the Depository shall receive an authenticated 2016 Bond. 

 

(b) Upon receipt by the Paying Agent and Registrar of written notice from the 

Depository to the effect that the Depository is unable or unwilling to discharge its 

responsibilities, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall issue, transfer and exchange 2016 

Bonds requested by the Depository in appropriate amounts.  Whenever the Depository 

requests the Paying Agent and Registrar to do so, the Paying Agent and Registrar will 

cooperate with the Depository in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice (i) to 

arrange, with the prior written consent of the City, for a substitute depository willing and 

able upon reasonable and customary terms to maintain custody of the 2016 Bonds or (ii) 

to make available 2016 Bonds registered in whatever name or names the Beneficial 

Owners transferring or exchanging such 2016 Bonds shall designate. 

 

(c) If the City determines that it is desirable that certificates representing the 2016 

Bonds be delivered to the Bond Participants and/or Beneficial Owners of the 2016 

Bonds and so notifies the Paying Agent and Registrar in writing, the Paying Agent and 

Registrar shall so notify the Depository, whereupon the Depository will notify the Bond 

Participants of the availability through the Depository of bond certificates representing 

the 2016 Bonds.  In such event, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall issue, transfer and 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 165 / 266



 12 

exchange bond certificates representing the 2016 Bonds as requested by the Depository 

in appropriate amounts and in authorized denominations. 

 

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this ordinance to the contrary, so long as 

any 2016 Bond is registered in the name of the Depository or any nominee thereof, all 

payments with respect to such 2016 Bond and all notices with respect to such 2016 Bond 

shall be made a given, respectively, to the Depository as provided in the Letter of 

Representations. 

 

(e) Registered ownership of the 2016 Bonds may be transferred on the books of 

registration maintained by the Paying Agent and Registrar, and the 2016 Bonds may be 

delivered in physical form to the following: 

 

 (i)  any successor securities depository or its nominee: 

  

 (ii) any person upon (a) the resignation of the Depository from its 

functions as depository or (b) termination of the use of the Depository 

pursuant to this Section. 

 

(f) In the event of any partial redemption of a 2016 Bond unless and until such 

partially redeemed 2016 Bond has been replaced in accordance with the provisions of 

this ordinance, the books and records of the Paying Agent and Registrar shall govern and 

establish the principal amount of such 2016 Bond as is then outstanding and all of the 

2016 Bonds issued to the Depository or its nominee shall contain a legend to such effect. 

 

If for any reason the Depository resigns and is not replaced, the City shall immediately provide a supply 

of printed bond certificates for issuance upon the transfers from the Depository and subsequent transfers 

or in the event of partial redemption.  In the even that such supply of certificates shall be insufficient to 

meet the requirements of the Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance of replacement 2016 Bonds upon 

transfer or partial redemption, the City agrees to order printed an additional supply of certificates and to 

direct their execution by manual or facsimile signature of its then duly qualified and acting Mayor and 

City Clerk of such City.  In case any officer whose signature or facsimile thereof shall appear on any 2016 

Bond shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such 2016 Bond (including any bond certificates 

delivered to the Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance upon transfer or partial redemption), such 

signature or such facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as 

if such officer or officers had remained in office until the delivery of such 2016 Bond.  The 2016 Bonds 

shall not be valid and binding on the City until authenticated by the Paying Agent and Registrar.  The 

2016 Bonds shall be delivered to the Paying Agent and Registrar for registration and authentication.  

Upon execution, registration and authentication of the 2016 Bonds, they shall be delivered to the City 

Treasurer, who is authorized to deliver them to the Underwriter upon receipt of the total stated principal 

amount of the 2016 Bonds, plus accrued interest thereon to date of payment for the 2016 Bonds, less 

Underwriter’s discount in an amount determined in the Designation. The Underwriter shall have the right 

to direct the registration of the 2016 Bonds and the denominations thereof within each maturity, subject to 

the restrictions of this Ordinance.  The City Clerk, acting on behalf of the City, shall make and certify a 

transcript of the proceedings of the governing body with respect to the 2016 Bonds, a copy of which shall 

be delivered to the Underwriter.  The Underwriter and its agents, representatives and counsel (including 

the City’s bond counsel) are hereby authorized to take such actions on behalf of the City as are necessary 

to effectuate the closing of the issuance and sale of the 2016 Bonds, including, without limitation, 

authorizing the release of the 2016 Bonds by the Depository at closing.  The Authorized Officers, or each 

individually, are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase Agreement, in the form 

deemed appropriate by such Authorized Officers, for and on behalf of the City and are further authorized 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 166 / 266



 13 

to do any and all things necessary and appropriate in connection with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds and 

the redemption of the Refunded Bonds.  

 

 Section 10. The revenues and earnings of the Sanitary Sewer System are hereby pledged and 

hypothecated for the payment of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any Additional Bonds as authorized 

by this Ordinance and interest on such Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any such Additional Bonds, and 

the City does hereby agree with the holders of said Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and Additional Bonds as 

follows: 

 

(a) SEWARD SANITARY SEWER FUND - The entire gross revenues and income 

derived from the operation of the Sanitary Sewer System shall be set aside as collected 

and deposited in a separate fund which has been previously ordered established (and 

which is hereby confirmed) designated as the “Seward Sanitary Sewer Fund.”  For 

purposes of allocating the monies in the Seward Sanitary Sewer Fund, the City shall 

maintain the following accounts (as previously established and by the terms of this 

ordinance hereby confirmed or directed to be established): (1) Operation and 

Maintenance Account; (2) Bond Payment Account; (3) reserve accounts established 

under the Prior Ordinances and the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account and (4) Surplus 

Account. 

 

(b) OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT – Out of the Seward 

Sanitary Sewer Fund there shall be monthly credited into the Operation and Maintenance 

Account such amounts as the City shall from time to time determine to be necessary to 

pay the reasonable and necessary expenses of operating and maintaining the Sanitary 

Sewer System, and the City may withdraw funds credited to the Operation and 

Maintenance Account as necessary from time to time to pay such expenses. 

 

(c) BOND PAYMENT ACCOUNT - Out of the Seward Sanitary Sewer Fund there 

shall be deposited monthly on or before the first day of each month, as described below, 

to the Bond Payment Account the following amounts (or such other amounts on such 

other dates as may be determined in the Designation): 

 

(1) Beginning on the first day of the month immediately following 

the month in which the 2016 Bonds are issued and continuing the first 

day of each month thereafter so long as any of the 2016 Bonds herein 

authorized remain outstanding and unpaid, an amount not less than the 

amount which, if the same amount were deposited each month, would 

be sufficient to pay the interest becoming due on the 2016 Bonds on the 

next succeeding Interest Payment Date. 

 

(2) Beginning on the first day of the month twelve months 

preceding the month in which the first principal payment is due and 

continuing the first day of each month thereafter so long as any of the 

2016 Bonds herein authorized remain outstanding and unpaid, an 

amount equal to 1/12th of the next maturing principal payment for the 

2016 Bonds.  

 

(3) During the periods and in the amounts specified for the Prior 

Bonds in the Prior Ordinances. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 167 / 266



 14 

The City Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed, without further authorization, to 

withdraw monies credited to the Bond Payment Account, or if the monies in such 

Account are insufficient, then from the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account for the 2016 

Bonds (or reserve accounts established under the Prior Ordinances for the appropriate 

series of Prior Bonds, or the appropriate debt service reserve account in the case of each 

issue of Additional Bonds) and next from the Surplus Account, an amount sufficient to 

pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the 2016 Bonds, the Prior Bonds and any 

Additional Bonds and to transfer such amounts to the Paying Agent and Registrar (or 

other paying agent for the Prior Bonds or Additional Bonds) at least five (5) days before 

each principal and interest payment date.  Upon the issuance of any Additional Bonds 

pursuant to this ordinance appropriate additional credits to the Bond Payment Account 

shall be provided for sufficient to pay principal and interest on said Additional Bonds. 

 

(d) 2016 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCOUNT – The City has previously 

established debt service reserve accounts for the Prior Bonds under the terms of the Prior 

Ordinances and shall continue to maintain such accounts so long as the Prior Bonds 

remain outstanding in accordance with a the terms of the Prior Ordinances.  

Concurrently with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds (or in such other manner as may be 

determined in the Designation), the City agrees that is shall deposit to the 2016 Reserve 

Account from funds on hand or proceeds of the 2016 Bonds a sum (which may be $0.00) 

not greater than the least of (a) 10 percent of the stated principal amount of the original 

principal amount of the 2016 Bonds; (b) 125% of the average annual principal and 

interest requirements of the 2016 Bonds; or (c) the maximum annual principal and 

interest requirements of the 2016 Bonds, (the “Required Balance”).  Such Required 

Balance shall be the amount required to be maintained as the required balance in said 

account, so long as the 2016 Bonds remain outstanding.  Monies credited to the 2016 

Debt Service Reserve Account may be withdrawn, as needed to provide funds to pay, 

when due, the principal and interest on the 2016 Bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance, 

if the Bond Payment Account contains insufficient funds for that purpose, and the City 

Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to make such withdrawal if and when needed.  

In the event of withdrawal from or deficiency in the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account 

and/or  reserve accounts created pursuant to the Prior Ordinances, monies available to be 

credited to restore such reserves shall be allocated between such reserve accounts pro 

rata in accordance with the respective outstanding principal amounts of the Outstanding 

Bonds and the 2016 Bonds.  Upon the issuance of any Additional Bonds a separate debt 

service reserve account shall be established (in such amount as the Mayor and Council 

shall determine appropriate, including no such reserve, if deemed appropriate) and any 

such separate debt service reserve account shall have the right to share, in the event of 

drawings upon the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account and/or reserve accounts set up 

for the Prior Bonds pursuant to the Prior Ordinances and such reserve account for 

Additional Bonds, in revenues available in the Seward Sanitary Sewer Fund upon a pro 

rata basis in accordance with the respective outstanding principal amounts or each such 

issue.  Anything in this Subsection 10(d) to the contrary notwithstanding, the amount 

required to be maintained in the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account with respect to the 

2016 Bonds, in the reserve accounts created for the Prior Bonds pursuant to the Prior 

Ordinances or in any debt service reserve account for any issue of Additional Bonds 

shall not be required to exceed at any time the maximum amount permitted to be 

invested without yield restriction under Section 103(b) and 148 of the Internal Revenue 

Code of 1986, as amended, and applicable regulations of the United States Treasury 

Department. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 168 / 266



 15 

 

(e) SURPLUS ACCOUNT - Monies in the Seward Sanitary Sewer Fund remaining 

after the credits required in the foregoing Subsections 10(b), 10(c), and 10(d) shall be 

credited to the Surplus Account.  Monies in the Surplus Account may be used to make 

up any deficiencies in the preceding Accounts, to retire any of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 

Bonds or any Additional Bonds prior to their maturity, to pay principal of and interest on 

any junior lien indebtedness incurred with respect to the Sanitary Sewer System, to 

provide for replacements or improvements for the Sanitary Sewer System or to provide 

for any other lawful purposes of the City as determined upon by the Mayor and City 

Council. 

 

The provisions of this section shall require the City to maintain a set of books and records in accordance 

with such accounting methods and procedures as are generally applicable to municipal utility enterprises, 

which books and records shall show credits to and expenditures from the several accounts required by this 

Section.  Monies credited to the Seward Sanitary Sewer Fund or any of the Accounts therein as 

established by this Ordinance and the Prior Ordinances shall be deposited or invested separate and apart 

from other City funds.  Except as specified below for the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account, the reserve 

accounts created for the Prior Bonds pursuant to the Prior Ordinances and any reserve account for 

Additional Bonds, the City shall not be required to establish separate bank or investment accounts for the 

Accounts described in Subsections 10(b), 10(c), 10(d) and 10(e).  Monies credited to the 2016 Debt 

Service Reserve Account or any reserve account for Additional Bonds (unless otherwise directed in their 

authorizing ordinance) shall, if maintained in a demand or time deposit account, be kept in a separate 

account and not commingled with other Sanitary Sewer System funds or accounts.  If invested, monies 

credited to the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account or any reserve account established for Additional 

Bonds may be commingled with other Sanitary Sewer System funds or accounts so long as the City 

maintains books and records clearly identifying the specific investments, or portions thereof, which 

belong to the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account or reserve account for Additional Bonds.  The terms of 

the Prior Ordinances shall continue to govern the investment of amounts in the debt service reserve 

accounts for the Prior Bonds. 

 

 Monies in any of the accounts except the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account may be invested in 

investments permissible for a city of the first class.  Monies in the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account 

shall be invested in Deposit Securities.  Monies invested from the 2016 Debt Service Reserve account 

shall be invested to mature in not more than five years.  Investments held for the 2016 Debt Service 

Reserve Account will be valued at cost for purposed of determining compliance with the requirements of 

this Ordinance as to the amount required to be maintained in the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Account.  

Investment limitations and procedures for any debt service reserve account for Additional Bonds shall be 

established in the ordinance authorizing their issuance.  Income from or profit realized from investments 

for any Account shall be credited to such Account until such Account contains any amount then required 

to be therein, and thereafter such income or profit shall be transferred to the Seward Sanitary Sewer Fund 

and treated as other revenues from the operation of the Sanitary Sewer System. 

 

 The pledge and hypothecation provided for the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any Additional 

Bonds in this ordinance is intended to and shall provide for a first and prior pledge or lien upon and 

security interest in the revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System superior to any pledge, lien or security 

interest made or given with respect to any other indebtedness of the City as to its Sanitary Sewer System 

and is intended as a full exercise of the powers of the City provided for in Sections 18-1803 to 18-1805, 

R.R.S. Neb. 2012, as now or hereafter amended, with respect to the City’s Sanitary Sewer System and the 

revenues and earnings thereof. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 169 / 266



 16 

 Section 11. So long as any of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any Additional Bonds 

issued pursuant to this ordinance shall remain outstanding and unpaid, the City covenants and agrees to 

establish, revise from time to time as necessary and collect such rates and charges for the sewer service 

furnished form the Sanitary Sewer System adequate to produce revenues and earnings sufficient at all 

times: 

 

(a) to provide funds to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the Prior 

Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any Additional Bonds issued pursuant to the provisions of 

this Ordinance; 

 

(b) to pay all proper and necessary costs of operation and maintenance of the 

Sanitary Sewer System and to pay for the necessary and proper repairs, replacements, 

enlargements, extensions, and improvements to the Sanitary Sewer System; 

 

(c) to provide funds sufficient to make the credits into the accounts and at the times 

and in the amounts required by Section 10 of this ordinance and under the terms of the 

Prior Ordinances; and 

 

(d) to maintain Net Revenues in each fiscal year adopted by the City for the 

Sanitary Sewer System in an amount not less than 1.25 times the total amount of 

principal paid or payable (exclusive of any principal redeemed prior to maturity other 

than principal redeemed in accordance with any scheduled of mandatory redemption) 

and interest falling due during such fiscal year on the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and 

any Additional Bonds. 

 

 Section 12. To provide funds for any purpose related to the Sanitary Sewer System, the City 

may issue Additional Bonds, except for Additional Bonds issued for refunding purposes which are 

governed by Section 13 of this Ordinance, payable from the revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System 

having equal priority and on a parity with the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any Additional Bonds 

then outstanding, only upon compliance with the following conditions: 

 

(a) Such Additional Bonds shall be issued only pursuant to an ordinance which shall 

provide for an increase in the monthly deposits into the Bond Payment Account in 

amounts sufficient to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the Prior Bonds, the 

2016 Bonds, any Additional Bonds then outstanding and such Additional Bonds and for 

any monthly credits to the debt service reserve accounts as may be required to be 

established with respect to any then-outstanding bonds and such Additional Bonds. 

 

(b) The City shall have complied with one or the other of the two following 

requirements: 

 

(1) The Net Revenues derived by the City from its Sanitary Sewer 

System for the fiscal year next preceding the issuance of the additional 

bond shall have been at least equal to 1.25 times the Average Annual 

Debt Service Requirements of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any 

Additional Bonds previously issued, all as then outstanding, and on the 

proposed Additional Bonds; or   

 

(2) The City shall have received a projection made by a consulting 

engineer or firm of consulting engineers, recognized as having 

experience and expertise in municipal utility systems, projecting that the 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 170 / 266



 17 

Net Revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System in each of the three full 

fiscal years after the issuance of such Additional Bonds will be at least 

equal to 1.25 times the Average Annual Debt Service Requirements of 

the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any Additional Bonds previously 

issued, all as then outstanding, and the proposed Additional Bonds.  In 

making such projection, the consulting engineer shall use as a basis the 

Net Revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System during the last year for 

which an independent audit has been prepared and shall adjust such Net 

Revenues as follows: (A) to reflect changes in rates which have gone 

into effect since the beginning of the year for which the audit was made, 

(B) to reflect such engineer’s estimate of the net increase over or net 

decrease under the Net Revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System for the 

year for which the audit was made by reason if: (i) changes of amounts 

payable under existing contracts for services, (ii) additional general 

income from sales to customers under existing rate schedules for various 

classes of customers or as such schedules may be revised under a 

program of changes which has been adopted by the Mayor and Council 

of the City, (iii) projected revisions in costs for labor, wages, salaries, 

machinery, equipment, supplies and other operational items, (iv) 

revisions in amount of service to be supplied and any related 

administrative or other costs associated with such increases due to 

increased supply from the acquisition of any new facility and (v) such 

other projections of revenues and expenses as the consulting engineer 

deems reasonable and proper.  Annual debt service on any proposed 

Additional Bonds to be issued may be estimated by the consulting 

engineer, but no Additional Bonds shall be issued requiring any annual 

debt service payment in excess of the amount so estimated by the 

consulting engineer. 

 

The City hereby convenants and agrees that so long as any of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds or any 

Additional Bonds are outstanding, it will not issue any bonds or notes payable from the revenues of the 

Sanitary Sewer System except in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance and the Prior Ordinances 

so long as the applicable Prior Bonds remain outstanding, provided, however, the City reserves the right to 

issue bonds or notes which are junior in lien to the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any such Additional 

Bonds, with the principal and interest of such bonds or notes to be payable from monies deposited to the 

Surplus Account as provided in Subsection 10(e). 

 

 Section 13. The City may issue refunding bonds, which shall qualify as Additional Bonds of 

equal lien to refund any of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds or Additional Bonds then outstanding, 

provided that, if any such Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds or Additional Bonds are to remain outstanding after 

the issuance of such refunding bonds, the principal payments due in any calendar year in which those 

bonds which are to remain outstanding mature, or in any calendar year prior thereto, shall not be increased 

over the amount of such principal payments due in such calendar years immediately prior to such 

refunding.  Refunding bonds issued in accordance with this paragraph of this Section 13 may be issued as 

Additional Bonds of equal lien without compliance with the conditions set forth in Subsection 12(b) of this 

ordinance. 

 

 The City may also issue refunding bonds which shall qualify as Additional Bonds of equal lien to 

refund any of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds or Additional Bonds then outstanding provided that if any 

Prior Bonds 2016 Bonds or Additional Bonds then outstanding are to remain outstanding after the 

application of the proceeds of the refunding bonds to the payment of the bonds which are to be refunded, 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 171 / 266



 18 

such issuance must comply with the Net Revenues test set forth in Subsection 12(b)(1) of this ordinance 

and, if the proceeds of such refunding bonds are not to be applied immediately to the satisfaction of the 

bonds which are to be refunded, then such refunding bonds must provide by their terms that they shall be 

junior in lien to all Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and Additional Bonds outstanding at the time of issuance 

of such refunding bonds until the time of application of their proceeds to the satisfaction of the bonds 

which are to be refunded.  In computing Average Annual Debt Service Requirements to show compliance 

with said Net Revenues test for such refunding bonds, all payments of principal and interest due on such 

refunding bonds from the time of their issuance to the time of application of the proceeds of such refunding 

bonds to the satisfaction of the bonds which are to be refunded shall be excluded from such computation to 

the extent that such principal and interest are payable from sources other than the revenues of the Sanitary 

Sewer System (such as investment earnings on bond proceeds or bond proceeds themselves) or from 

monies in the Surplus Account and all payments of principal and interest due on the bonds which are to be 

refunded from and after the time of such application shall also be excluded.  For purposes of this paragraph 

of this Section 13, the time of application of the proceeds of the refunding bonds to the satisfaction of the 

bonds which are to be refunded shall be the time of deposit with the paying agent for such bonds which are 

to be refunded pursuant to Section 10-126, R.R.S. Neb. 2012 (or any successor statutory provision thereto) 

or the time when such bonds which are to be refunded under the terms of their authorizing ordinance or 

ordinances are no longer deemed to be outstanding, whichever comes sooner. 

 

 Section 14. So long as any 2016 Bonds remain outstanding, the City hereby covenants and 

agrees as follows: 

 

(a) The City will maintain the Sanitary Sewer System in good condition and will 

continuously operate the same in a reasonable and efficient manner, and the City will 

punctually perform all the duties with reference to said system required by the 

Constitution and statutes of the State of Nebraska, but this covenant shall not prevent the 

City from discontinuing the use and operation of all or any portion of the Sanitary Sewer 

System so long as the revenue derived from the City’s ownership of the properties 

constituting the Sanitary Sewer System shall be sufficient to fulfill the City’s obligations 

under Section 11 of this ordinance. 

 

(b) The City will not grant any franchise or right to any person, firm or corporation 

to own or operate a utilities system or systems in competition with the Sanitary Sewer 

System. 

 

(c) The City will maintain insurance on the property constituting the Sanitary Sewer 

System (other than such portions of said system as are not normally insured) against 

risks customarily carried by similar utilities, but including fire and extended coverage 

insurance in an amount which would enable the City to repair, restore or replace the 

property damaged to the extent necessary to make the Sanitary Sewer System operable 

in an efficient and proper manner to carry out the City’s obligations under this 

ordinance.  The Mayor and Council shall annually examine the amount of insurance 

carried with respect to the Sanitary Sewer System and shall evidence approval of such 

insurance by resolution.  The proceeds of any such insurance received by the City shall 

be used to repair, replace or restore the property damaged or destroyed to the extent 

necessary to make the Sanitary Sewer System operable in an efficient and proper 

manner, and any amount of insurance proceeds not so used shall be credited to the 

Surplus Account.  In the event of any such insured casualty loss, the City may advance 

funds to make temporary repairs or provide for an advance on costs of the permanent 

repair, restoration or replacement from the Operation and Maintenance Account and any 

such advances shall be repaid from insurance proceeds received. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 172 / 266



 19 

 

(d)  The City will keep proper books, records, and accounts separate from all other 

records and accounts in which complete and correct entries will be made of all 

transactions relating to the Sanitary Sewer System.  This City will have its operating and 

financial statements relating to the Sanitary Sewer System audited annually by a 

certified public account or firm of certified public accountants.  The City will furnish to 

the original purchaser of the 2016 Bonds and to the original purchaser or purchasers of 

each series of Additional Bonds issued hereunder, within four months after the end of 

each fiscal year of the Sanitary Sewer System, a copy of the financial statements of the 

Sanitary Sewer System and the report thereon of the certified public accountants. 

 

(e) The City shall cause each person handling any of the monies in the Seward 

Sanitary Sewer Fund to be bonded by an insurance company licensed to do business in 

Nebraska in an amount or amounts deemed sufficient by the Mayor and Council to cover 

the amount of money belonging to said system reasonably expected to be in the 

possession or control of any such person.  The amount of such bond or bonds shall be 

fixed by the Mayor and Council and the costs thereof shall be paid as an operating and 

maintenance expense from the Operation and Maintenance Account. 

 

 Section 15. The City’s obligations under this ordinance and the liens, pledges, covenants, and 

agreements of the City herein made or provided for, shall be fully discharged and satisfied as to the 2016 

Bonds and any such bonds shall no longer be deemed outstanding hereunder if such bonds shall have been 

purchased and canceled by the City, or when payment of the principal of and interest thereon to the 

respective date of maturity or redemption (a) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance 

with the terms thereof; or (b) shall have been provided for by depositing with the Paying Agent and 

Registrar or with another national or state bank having trust powers or trust company, in trust solely for 

such payment (i) sufficient money to make such payment and/or (ii) Deposit Securities in such amount 

and bearing interest at such rates and payable at such time or times and maturing or redeemable at stated 

fixed prices at the option of the holder as to principal at such time or times as will ensure the availability 

of sufficient money to make such payment; provided, however, that with respect to any 2016 Bonds to be 

paid prior to maturity, the City shall have duly given notice of redemption of such bonds as provided by 

law or made irrevocable provision for the giving of such notice.  Any such money so deposited with a 

bank, trust company or the Paying Agent and Registrar, may be invested and reinvested in Deposit 

Securities at the direction of the City, and all interest and income from such Deposit Securities in the 

hands of such bank, trust company or Paying Agent and Registrar in excess of the amount required to pay 

principal of and interest on the bonds for which such monies were deposited, shall be paid over to the City 

as and when collected.    

 

 Section 16. The terms and provisions of this Ordinance do and shall constitute a contract 

between the City and the holder or holders of the 2016 Bonds and no changes, variations or alterations of 

any kind, except for changes necessary to cure any ambiguity, formal defect or omission, shall be made to 

this ordinance without the written consent of the holders of two-thirds (2/3rds) in principal amount of the 

2016 Bonds then outstanding, provided, however, that neither the principal and interest to be paid upon 

any 2016 Bond nor the maturity date of any 2016 Bond shall be changed without the written consent of all 

holders of the 2016 Bonds then outstanding affected thereby.  The holder of any 2016 Bond or 2016 

Bonds may, either in law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus or other proceeding, enforce or compel 

performance of any and all of the acts and duties required by this ordinance, and any court of competent 

jurisdiction may, after default in compliance with the terms of this ordinance on application of any such 

holder, appoint a receiver to take charge of the Sanitary Sewer System and operate the same and apply the 

earnings thereof to the payment of the principal of an interest on the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds and any 

Additional Bonds then outstanding in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, the Prior 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 173 / 266



 20 

Ordinances and any ordinance or ordinances authorizing Additional Bonds.  Any and all actions brought 

by any registered owner or owners of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds or Additional Bonds shall be 

maintained for the equal and ratable benefit of all registered owners of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds 

and Additional Bonds outstanding and no registered owners of any of the Prior Bonds, the 2016 Bonds or 

Additional Bonds shall have any right in any manner whatsoever by any action or proceedings to affect, 

disturb or prejudice the pledge created by this Ordinance and the Prior Ordinances. 

 

 Section 17. The Mayor, City Clerk and Treasurer of the City are hereby authorized to do all 

things and execute all such documents as may by them be deemed necessary and proper to complete the 

issuance and sale of the 2016 Bonds as contemplated by this ordinance.  The Preliminary Official 

Statement in the form presented is hereby approved and deemed final as of its date under the terms of 

Reg. Sec. 240.15c2-12 of the Rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and such officers or any 

one of them are further authorized to approve a final Official Statement on behalf of the City. 

 

 Section 18. The net sale proceeds of the 2016 Bonds required to redeem the Refunded Bonds 

(the “Redemption Proceeds”), along with any necessary funds of the City on hand, shall be applied to the 

payment and satisfaction of all of the principal of and the interest on the Refunded Bonds falling due prior 

to, and as called for redemption on, each respective Redemption Date.  The remaining net principal 

proceeds of the 2016 Bonds shall be applied on order of the Mayor and Council to the payment of costs of 

improvements to the Sanitary Sewer System.  Accrued interest received from the sale of the 2016 Bonds, 

if any, shall be applied to pay interest first falling due on the 2016 Bonds.  Expenses of issuance of the 

2016 Bonds may be paid from the proceeds of the 2016 Bonds.  In order to satisfy the City's obligation on 

the Refunded Bonds, if determined necessary and appropriate by an Authorized Officer, such Redemption 

Proceeds, along with funds of the City on hand shall be set aside and held and invested in a special trust 

account which is hereby ordered established with such bank or trust company as determined by an 

Authorized Officer to act as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”).  The Escrow Agent shall have custody 

and safekeeping of the funds and investments which are to be set aside for the payment of the Refunded 

Bonds.  For purposes of governing such escrow account and the holding and application of such funds and 

investments, the City shall enter into a contract entitled "Escrow Agreement" with the Escrow Agent.  The 

Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver on 

behalf of the City said Escrow Agreement, including necessary counterparts, in substantially the form and 

content as presented to the meeting at which this resolution is adopted, but with such changes and 

modifications therein as to them seem necessary, desirable, or appropriate for and on behalf of the City.  

Said Authorized Officers are further authorized to approve the investments provided for in said Escrow 

Agreement, and to make any necessary subscriptions for United States Treasury Securities, State and 

Local Government Series, or to contract for the purchase of securities in the open market.  Said proceeds 

shall be invested in obligations of the United States Government, direct or guaranteed, including United 

States Treasury Securities, State and Local Government Series.  To the extent that such proceeds are held 

in a bank depository account, such deposits shall be insured by insurance of the Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation or, to the extent not fully insured, fully collateralized in the same manner as is required for 

deposit of public funds.  Any investment from the proceeds of the 2016 Bonds herein authorized shall 

mature not later than each Redemption Date.  As provided in said Escrow Agreement, the proceeds of the 

2016 Bonds herein authorized and investment earnings thereon shall be applied to the payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds as the same become due on and prior to each respective 

Redemption Date, and as called for redemption on each respective Redemption Date.  The City agrees 

that on the date of original issue of the 2016 Bonds, or as soon thereafter as practicable, it shall deposit or 

otherwise have on hand with the Escrow Agent, from other available sources, funds sufficient after taking 

into consideration available proceeds of the 2016 Bonds and investment earnings to provide funds for all 

payments due on the Refunded Bonds on or before each respective Redemption Date, and as called for 

redemption on each Redemption Date.  

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 174 / 266



 21 

 Section 19. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall be held 

invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the other 

provisions of this ordinance. All ordinances, resolutions or orders or parts thereof in conflict with the 

provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 20. The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will make no use of the proceeds of 

the 2016 Bonds which would cause the 2016 Bonds to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Sections 

103(b)(2) and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and further covenants 

to comply with said Sections 103(b)(2) and 148 and all applicable regulations thereunder throughout the 

term of said issue, including all requirements with respect to payment and reporting of rebates, if 

applicable.  The City hereby covenants to take all action necessary to preserve the tax-exempt status of the 

interest on the 2016 Bonds for federal income tax purposes under the Code with respect to taxpayers 

generally.  The City further agrees that it will not take any actions which would cause the 2016 Bonds to 

constitute “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code.  The City hereby 

designates the 2016 Bonds as its “qualified tax-exempt obligations” pursuant to Section 

265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) of the Code and covenants and warrants that it does not reasonably expect to issue 

bonds or other obligations aggregating in principal amount more than $10,000,000 during the calendar 

year or years in which the 2016 Bonds are issued (taking into consideration the exception for current 

refunding issues). The Mayor is hereby authorized to make, or cause to be made, any and all certifications 

deemed necessary in connection with the designation of the 2016 Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt 

obligations”, including “deemed designating” the 2016 Bonds. 

 

 Section 21. The City hereby (a) authorizes and directs that an Authorized Officer execute and 

deliver, on the date of issue of the 2016 Bonds, a continuing disclosure undertaking in accordance with 

the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission in such form 

as determined necessary and appropriate by such Authorized Officer (the “Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking”) and (b) covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of 

the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution, failure of 

the City to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall not be considered an event of 

default hereunder; however, any Participating Underwriter (as such term is defined in the Continuing 

Disclosure Undertaking) or any Beneficial Owner or any Registered Owner of a Bond (as such terms are 

defined in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking) may take such actions as may be necessary and 

appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the City to 

comply with its obligations under this section, and under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  An 

Authorized Officer may appoint a Dissemination Agent for the 2016 Bonds in the Authorized Officer’s 

discretion. 

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 175 / 266



 22 

 

Section 22. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after its passage and 

approval according to law.  This ordinance shall be published in pamphlet form. 

   

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 5th day of January, 2016.  

 

 

        

ATTEST:      _________________________________ 

       Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

[SEAL] 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 176 / 266



 23 

 Motion for adjournment was duly made, seconded and on roll call vote was declared adopted by the 

Mayor. 

 I the undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certify that the foregoing is a 

true and correct copy of the proceedings had and done by the Mayor and Council of said City on January 5, 

2016; that all of the subjects included in the foregoing proceedings were contained in the agenda for the 

meeting, kept continually current and readily available for public inspection at the office of the City Clerk; 

that such subjects were contained in said agenda for at least twenty-four hours prior to said meeting; that at 

least one copy of all reproducible material discussed at the meeting was available at the meeting for 

examination and copying by members of the public; that said minutes from which the foregoing proceedings 

have been extracted were in written form and available for public inspection within ten working days . the 

next convened meeting of said body; that a current copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act was available 

and accessible to members of the public, posted during the meeting or meetings reflected in the transcript 

described below in the room in which such meeting or meetings were held and that all in attendance at such 

meeting or meetings were informed that such copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act was available for 

review and were informed of the location of such copy in the room in which such meeting was being held; 

that all news media requesting notification concerning meetings of said body were provided advance 

notification of the time and place of said meeting and the subjects to be discussed at said meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

              

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

       Budget & Human Resource Director  

 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 177 / 266



 1 

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION 

 

OF ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 

Public Notice is hereby given that at a meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Seward, 

Nebraska, held at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 5, 2016, there was passed and adopted Ordinance No. 

_______ entitled: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016, OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED FOUR MILLION TWO 

HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,200,000), FOR THE PURPOSE OF (A) REFUNDING 

ALL OR A PORTION OF $300,000 OF OUTSTANDING SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2010, $3,430,000 OF OUTSTANDING SANITARY 

SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011 AND $150,000 OF OUTSTANDING 

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011B; (B) PAYING THE COSTS 

OF IMPROVEMENTS TO AND EXPANSION OF THE CITY’S SEWER SYSTEM; (C) 

PROVIDING FOR NECESSARY RESERVE FUNDS AND (D) PAYING COSTS OF ISSUANCE 

OF SAID BONDS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF SAID BONDS; ENTERING INTO A 

CONTRACT WITH THE REGISTERED OWNERS OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE 

SALE OF SAID BONDS AND DESIGNATION OF CERTAIN TERMS; PROVIDING FOR THE 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS AND INDEBTEDNESS BEING REFUNDED; PROVIDING FOR 

THE APPLICATION OF THE PROCEEDS OF SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE 

DELIVERY OF SAID BONDS TO THE PURCHASER AND PROVIDING FOR THE 

PUBLICATION OF THE ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM.  

 

 

Said Ordinance was published in pamphlet form on January __, 2016.  Copies of said Ordinance as published 

in pamphlet form are available for inspection and distribution at the Office of the City Clerk, in the City of 

Seward, Nebraska. 

 

 

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/  

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

NOTE TO PUBLISHER:  Publish one time in title form. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 178 / 266



 2 

CERTIFICATE AS TO PUBLICATION IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 The undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certifies that 

Ordinance No. _____ as passed and approved by the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, at 

their meeting held on January 5, 2016, was published in pamphlet form on January __,  2016 and that a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance as so passed and published is attached hereto. 

 Dated this _____ day of January, 2016. 

 

 

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/  

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 (SEAL) 
 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 179 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 1,220,000.00

1,220,000.00

Uses:

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 1,198,522.54

Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance 2,885.00
Underwriter's Discount 15,250.00

18,135.00

Other Uses of Funds:
Bond Rounding 3,342.46

1,220,000.00

Note:  Escrow cost assumes SLGS are available or represent a proxy for the cost of open market USTs.

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 180 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 2

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016
Arbitrage yield 2.211623%
Escrow yield 0.000000%
Value of Negative Arbitrage

Bond Par Amount 1,220,000.00
True Interest Cost 2.401103%
Net Interest Cost 2.218442%
All-In TIC 2.437294%
Average Coupon 2.218442%
Average Life 7.300

Par amount of refunded bonds 1,175,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 4.028119%
Average life of refunded bonds 7.682

PV of prior debt to 03/08/2016 @ 2.211623% 1,335,376.91
Net PV Savings 118,719.37
Percentage savings of refunded bonds 10.103776%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 181 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 3

SAVINGS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Present Value
Prior Refunding Refunding Refunding Annual to 03/08/2016

Date Debt Service Debt Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  2.2116231%

03/08/2016 3,342.46 -3,342.46 3,342.46 3,342.46
06/01/2016 22,763.75 20,735.65 20,735.65 2,028.10 2,017.84
09/30/2016 5,370.56
12/01/2016 22,763.75 12,382.50 12,382.50 10,381.25 10,215.77
06/01/2017 67,763.75 72,382.50 72,382.50 -4,618.75 -4,495.42
09/30/2017 5,762.50
12/01/2017 22,212.50 12,067.50 12,067.50 10,145.00 9,766.10
06/01/2018 72,212.50 72,067.50 72,067.50 145.00 138.06
09/30/2018 10,290.00
12/01/2018 21,450.00 11,692.50 11,692.50 9,757.50 9,188.73
06/01/2019 76,450.00 76,692.50 76,692.50 -242.50 -225.87
09/30/2019 9,515.00
12/01/2019 20,611.25 11,237.50 11,237.50 9,373.75 8,635.32
06/01/2020 75,611.25 76,237.50 76,237.50 -626.25 -570.61
09/30/2020 8,747.50
12/01/2020 19,662.50 10,733.75 10,733.75 8,928.75 8,046.43
06/01/2021 79,662.50 80,733.75 80,733.75 -1,071.25 -954.83
09/30/2021 7,857.50
12/01/2021 18,627.50 10,138.75 10,138.75 8,488.75 7,483.49
06/01/2022 73,627.50 75,138.75 75,138.75 -1,511.25 -1,317.71
09/30/2022 6,977.50
12/01/2022 17,582.50 9,537.50 9,537.50 8,045.00 6,938.00
06/01/2023 77,582.50 79,537.50 79,537.50 -1,955.00 -1,667.55
09/30/2023 6,090.00
12/01/2023 16,442.50 8,820.00 8,820.00 7,622.50 6,430.63
06/01/2024 271,442.50 253,820.00 253,820.00 17,622.50 14,704.40
09/30/2024 25,245.00
12/01/2024 11,342.50 6,125.00 6,125.00 5,217.50 4,305.92
06/01/2025 276,342.50 256,125.00 256,125.00 20,217.50 16,502.70
09/30/2025 25,435.00
12/01/2025 5,843.75 3,187.50 3,187.50 2,656.25 2,144.47
06/01/2026 280,843.75 258,187.50 258,187.50 22,656.25 18,091.03
09/30/2026 25,312.50

1,550,841.25 1,417,580.65 3,342.46 1,414,238.19 136,603.06 136,603.06 118,719.37

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 118,719.37

Net PV Savings 118,719.37

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 182 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 4

SAVINGS BY MATURITY

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Adjusted
Maturity Interest Par Adjusted Savings

Bond Date Rate Amount Savings Percent

Ser 2011 Water NR Cur Ref of '06 (callable 6/7/16), 11RFWT06:
SERIAL 06/01/2024 4.000% 255,000.00 28,401.86 11.138%

06/01/2025 4.150% 265,000.00 33,565.80 12.666%
06/01/2026 4.250% 275,000.00 37,758.90 13.731%

TERM17 06/01/2017 2.450% 45,000.00 -179.35 -0.399%
TERM19 06/01/2018 3.050% 50,000.00 795.46 1.591%

06/01/2019 3.050% 55,000.00 1,510.31 2.746%
TERM21 06/01/2020 3.450% 55,000.00 2,832.53 5.150%

06/01/2021 3.450% 60,000.00 3,683.97 6.140%
TERM23 06/01/2022 3.800% 55,000.00 4,824.95 8.773%

06/01/2023 3.800% 60,000.00 5,524.92 9.208%

1,175,000.00 118,719.37

Note:  Calculated Using Remaining Maturities

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 183 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 5

BOND PRICING

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Serial Bonds:
06/01/2016 15,000 0.750% 0.750% 100.000
06/01/2017 60,000 1.050% 1.050% 100.000
06/01/2018 60,000 1.250% 1.250% 100.000
06/01/2019 65,000 1.400% 1.400% 100.000
06/01/2020 65,000 1.550% 1.550% 100.000
06/01/2021 70,000 1.700% 1.700% 100.000
06/01/2022 65,000 1.850% 1.850% 100.000
06/01/2023 70,000 2.050% 2.050% 100.000
06/01/2024 245,000 2.200% 2.200% 100.000
06/01/2025 250,000 2.350% 2.350% 100.000
06/01/2026 255,000 2.500% 2.500% 100.000

1,220,000

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016
First Coupon 06/01/2016

Par Amount 1,220,000.00
Original Issue Discount

Production 1,220,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount -15,250.00 -1.250000%

Purchase Price 1,204,750.00 98.750000%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 1,204,750.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 184 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 6

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016
First Coupon 06/01/2016
Last Maturity 06/01/2026

Arbitrage Yield 2.211623%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.401103%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.218442%
All-In TIC 2.437294%
Average Coupon 2.218442%

Average Life (years) 7.300
Weighted Average Maturity (years) 7.300
Duration of Issue (years) 6.706

Par Amount 1,220,000.00
Bond Proceeds 1,220,000.00
Total Interest 197,580.65
Net Interest 212,830.65
Bond Years from Dated Date 8,906,277.78
Bond Years from Delivery Date 8,906,277.78
Total Debt Service 1,417,580.65
Maximum Annual Debt Service 262,640.00
Average Annual Debt Service 138,563.41

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
  Average Takedown
  Other Fee 12.500000

Total Underwriter's Discount 12.500000

Bid Price 98.750000

Par Average Average PV of 1 bp
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life change

Serial Bonds 1,220,000.00 100.000 2.218% 7.300 808.50

1,220,000.00 7.300 808.50

All-In Arbitrage
TIC TIC Yield

Par Value 1,220,000.00 1,220,000.00 1,220,000.00
  + Accrued Interest
  + Premium (Discount)
  - Underwriter's Discount -15,250.00 -15,250.00
  - Cost of Issuance Expense -2,885.00
  - Other Amounts

Target Value 1,204,750.00 1,201,865.00 1,220,000.00

Target Date 03/08/2016 03/08/2016 03/08/2016
Yield 2.401103% 2.437294% 2.211623%

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 185 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 7

BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

06/01/2016 15,000 0.750% 5,735.65 20,735.65
09/30/2016 20,735.65
12/01/2016 12,382.50 12,382.50
06/01/2017 60,000 1.050% 12,382.50 72,382.50
09/30/2017 84,765.00
12/01/2017 12,067.50 12,067.50
06/01/2018 60,000 1.250% 12,067.50 72,067.50
09/30/2018 84,135.00
12/01/2018 11,692.50 11,692.50
06/01/2019 65,000 1.400% 11,692.50 76,692.50
09/30/2019 88,385.00
12/01/2019 11,237.50 11,237.50
06/01/2020 65,000 1.550% 11,237.50 76,237.50
09/30/2020 87,475.00
12/01/2020 10,733.75 10,733.75
06/01/2021 70,000 1.700% 10,733.75 80,733.75
09/30/2021 91,467.50
12/01/2021 10,138.75 10,138.75
06/01/2022 65,000 1.850% 10,138.75 75,138.75
09/30/2022 85,277.50
12/01/2022 9,537.50 9,537.50
06/01/2023 70,000 2.050% 9,537.50 79,537.50
09/30/2023 89,075.00
12/01/2023 8,820.00 8,820.00
06/01/2024 245,000 2.200% 8,820.00 253,820.00
09/30/2024 262,640.00
12/01/2024 6,125.00 6,125.00
06/01/2025 250,000 2.350% 6,125.00 256,125.00
09/30/2025 262,250.00
12/01/2025 3,187.50 3,187.50
06/01/2026 255,000 2.500% 3,187.50 258,187.50
09/30/2026 261,375.00

1,220,000 197,580.65 1,417,580.65 1,417,580.65

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 186 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 8

AGGREGATE NET REFUNDING DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Debt Service of Proposed and Unrefunded Bonds

Proposed Debt
Service (net of Unrefunded

Date Accrued) Debt Service* Total Annual Total

06/01/2016 20,735.65 50,612.50 71,348.15
09/30/2016 71,348.15
12/01/2016 12,382.50 12,382.50
06/01/2017 72,382.50 72,382.50
09/30/2017 84,765.00
12/01/2017 12,067.50 12,067.50
06/01/2018 72,067.50 72,067.50
09/30/2018 84,135.00
12/01/2018 11,692.50 11,692.50
06/01/2019 76,692.50 76,692.50
09/30/2019 88,385.00
12/01/2019 11,237.50 11,237.50
06/01/2020 76,237.50 76,237.50
09/30/2020 87,475.00
12/01/2020 10,733.75 10,733.75
06/01/2021 80,733.75 80,733.75
09/30/2021 91,467.50
12/01/2021 10,138.75 10,138.75
06/01/2022 75,138.75 75,138.75
09/30/2022 85,277.50
12/01/2022 9,537.50 9,537.50
06/01/2023 79,537.50 79,537.50
09/30/2023 89,075.00
12/01/2023 8,820.00 8,820.00
06/01/2024 253,820.00 253,820.00
09/30/2024 262,640.00
12/01/2024 6,125.00 6,125.00
06/01/2025 256,125.00 256,125.00
09/30/2025 262,250.00
12/01/2025 3,187.50 3,187.50
06/01/2026 258,187.50 258,187.50
09/30/2026 261,375.00

1,417,580.65 50,612.50 1,468,193.15 1,468,193.15

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 187 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 9

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Ser 2011 Water NR Cur Ref of '06 (callable 6/7/16):
TERM17 06/01/2017 2.450% 45,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
TERM19 06/01/2018 3.050% 50,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000

06/01/2019 3.050% 55,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
TERM21 06/01/2020 3.450% 55,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000

06/01/2021 3.450% 60,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
TERM23 06/01/2022 3.800% 55,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000

06/01/2023 3.800% 60,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
SERIAL 06/01/2024 4.000% 255,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000

06/01/2025 4.150% 265,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000
06/01/2026 4.250% 275,000.00 06/07/2016 100.000

1,175,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 188 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 10

ESCROW REQUIREMENTS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Dated Date 03/08/2016
Delivery Date 03/08/2016

Period Principal
Ending Interest Redeemed Total

06/01/2016 22,763.75 22,763.75
06/07/2016 758.79 1,175,000.00 1,175,758.79

23,522.54 1,175,000.00 1,198,522.54

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 189 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 11

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

06/01/2016 22,763.75 22,763.75
09/30/2016 22,763.75
12/01/2016 22,763.75 22,763.75
06/01/2017 45,000 2.450% 22,763.75 67,763.75
09/30/2017 90,527.50
12/01/2017 22,212.50 22,212.50
06/01/2018 50,000 3.050% 22,212.50 72,212.50
09/30/2018 94,425.00
12/01/2018 21,450.00 21,450.00
06/01/2019 55,000 3.050% 21,450.00 76,450.00
09/30/2019 97,900.00
12/01/2019 20,611.25 20,611.25
06/01/2020 55,000 3.450% 20,611.25 75,611.25
09/30/2020 96,222.50
12/01/2020 19,662.50 19,662.50
06/01/2021 60,000 3.450% 19,662.50 79,662.50
09/30/2021 99,325.00
12/01/2021 18,627.50 18,627.50
06/01/2022 55,000 3.800% 18,627.50 73,627.50
09/30/2022 92,255.00
12/01/2022 17,582.50 17,582.50
06/01/2023 60,000 3.800% 17,582.50 77,582.50
09/30/2023 95,165.00
12/01/2023 16,442.50 16,442.50
06/01/2024 255,000 4.000% 16,442.50 271,442.50
09/30/2024 287,885.00
12/01/2024 11,342.50 11,342.50
06/01/2025 265,000 4.150% 11,342.50 276,342.50
09/30/2025 287,685.00
12/01/2025 5,843.75 5,843.75
06/01/2026 275,000 4.250% 5,843.75 280,843.75
09/30/2026 286,687.50

1,175,000 375,841.25 1,550,841.25 1,550,841.25

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 190 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 12

SUMMARY OF UNREFUNDED BONDS

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Maturity Interest Par
Bond Date Rate Amount

Ser 2011 Water NR Cur Ref of '06 (callable 6/7/16):
TERM17 06/01/2016 2.450% 50,000.00

50,000.00

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 191 / 266



Dec 28, 2015   1:15 pm  Prepared by D.A. Davidson & Co Quantitative Group~MK (Seward NE 15 II:EDEC2315-16WNC11E,16WNC11E)   Page 13

UNREFUNDED BOND DEBT SERVICE

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016

Partial Current Refunding of Series 2011
Non-Rated, BQ, 2026 Final Maturity, Proportional Solution

[ Preliminary -- for discussion only ]

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

06/01/2016 50,000 2.450% 612.50 50,612.50
09/30/2016 50,612.50

50,000 612.50 50,612.50 50,612.50

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 192 / 266



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 

OF WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED ONE MILLION TWO 

HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,275,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF $1,255,000 OF OUTSTANDING WATER SYSTEM 

REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011; PROVIDING FOR NECESSARY RESERVE 

FUNDS AND PAYING COSTS OF ISSUANCE OF SAID BONDS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM, 

TERMS AND DETAILS OF SAID BONDS; PLEDGING AND HYPOTHECATING THE 

REVENUE AND EARNINGS OF THE WATERWORKS PLANT AND WATER SYSTEM OF 

SAID CITY FOR THE PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS AND INTEREST THEREON; 

PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION, SEGREGATION AND APPLICATION OF THE 

REVENUE OF SAID WATERWORKS PLANT AND WATER SYSTEM; ENTERING INTO A 

CONTRACT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY WITH THE HOLDERS OF SAID BONDS; 

REPEALING ANY CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION 

OF THE ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM.  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA: 

 

 Section 1.  The Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska (the “City”), hereby 

find and determine as follows:  

 

(a) that the City owns and operates a waterworks plant and water system (the “Water System”), 

which represents a revenue-producing undertaking of the City.  Reference herein to the 

Water System shall include all additions and improvements thereto hereafter acquired by the 

City; 

 

(b) that the City has previously issued and there are now outstanding the following issues of 

revenue bonds for which the revenues of the Water System have been pledged: 

 

Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, date of original issue—June 7, 

2011, issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 8-11 (the “2011 Ordinance”) of which there 

remain outstanding and unpaid bonds in the principal amount of $1,255,000 (the “2011 

Bonds”);  

 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, date of original issue—March 22, 2013, 

issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 1-13 (the “2013 Ordinance”) of which there remain 

outstanding and unpaid bonds in the principal amount of $90,000 (the “2013 Bonds”); 

and 

 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B, date of original issue—December 13, 

2013, issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 15-13 (the “2013B Ordinance”) of which there 

remain outstanding and unpaid bonds in the principal amount of $1,455,000 (the “2013B 

Bonds”) 

 

Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015, date of original issue—April 15, 

2015, issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 2015-02 (the “2015 Ordinance”) of which there 

remain outstanding and unpaid bonds in the principal amount of $1,165,000 (the “2015 

Bonds”) 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 193 / 266



 2 

 

 

The 2011 Bonds which are called for redemption pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance are 

referred to herein as the “Refunded Bonds, 2013 Bonds, the 2013B Bonds, the 2015 Bonds  

and that portion of the 2011 Bonds not called for redemption are sometimes hereinafter 

referred to as the “Outstanding Bonds”, the 2011 Ordinance, the 2013 Ordinance, the 2013B 

Ordinance and the 2015 Ordinance are sometimes hereinafter referred to collectively as the 

“Prior Ordinances”; 

 

(c) that the 2011 Bonds are subject to redemption at any time on or after June 7, 2016, at par 

plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption and are herein authorized to be 

irrevocably called for redemption in accordance with their call provisions on a date to be 

determined (the “Redemption Date”); that since the 2011 Bonds were issued, the rates of 

interest available in the market have declined such that by taking up and paying off the all or 

a portion of the 2011 Bonds through the issuance of refunding bonds as provided herein, a 

savings in the amount of yearly running interest will be made to the City; 

 

(d) that under the terms of the Prior Ordinances, bonds of equal lien with the Outstanding Bonds 

may be issued provided that certain revenues have been experienced by the Water System for 

its most recent fiscal year; that the Authorized Officers (as defined herein) are hereby 

authorized to and shall certify prior to the issuance of the bonds authorized herein that said 

Net Revenues are not less than 1.25 times the average annual debt service requirements (as 

described in the Prior Ordinances) of the Outstanding Bonds and the bonds herein 

authorized; that said Outstanding Bonds and the Refunded Bonds represent the only 

outstanding indebtedness of the City for which the revenues of the Water System have been 

pledged; that, upon the issuance of the bonds herein authorized, all payment requirements of 

said Refunded Bonds will be paid and satisfied; that all conditions required under the terms 

of the Prior Ordinances for the issuance of the bonds herein authorized as “additional bonds” 

of equal lien and standing with the Outstanding Bonds do exist and have happened; and 

 

(e) that for the purpose of making said redemption of the Refunded Bonds on the Redemption 

Date, it is in the best interest of the City to issue revenue refunding bonds of the City in the 

principal amount of not to exceed $1,275,000;  

 

(f) that all conditions, acts and things required to exist or to be done precedent to the issuance of 

Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds of the City of Seward, Nebraska, in the principal 

amount of not to exceed One Million Two Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars 

($1,275,000) pursuant to Sections 18-1803 to 18-1805, R.R.S. Neb. 2012, do exist and have 

been done as required by law.  

 

 Section 2. The Mayor and City Council further find and determine in order to provide for 

the refunding as described in Section 1 hereof, the City is authorized to issue Water System Revenue 

Refunding Bonds of the City of Seward, Nebraska, pursuant to the Prior Ordinances and Sections 18-

1803 to 18-1805, R.R.S. Neb, 2012, as amended, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 

$1,275,000; that all conditions, acts and things required to exist or to be done precedent to the issuance of 

such Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds do exist and have been done as required by law and there 

shall be and there are hereby ordered issued Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds of the City of 

Seward, Nebraska, as aforesaid. 

 

 Section 3. To provide for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds as described in Sections 1 

and 2 hereof, including costs of issuance hereof, there shall be and there are hereby ordered issued Water 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 194 / 266



 3 

System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016, of the City of Seward, Nebraska, in the principal amount 

of not to exceed One Million Two Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($1,275,000) (the “2016 

Bonds”).  The 2016 Bonds or any portion thereof are hereby authorized to be sold pursuant to a negotiated 

sale with D.A. Davidson & Co., as initial purchaser (the “Underwriter”).  In connection with such sale, the 

Mayor, City Administrator or City Clerk-Treasurer (each, an “Authorized Officer”) are hereby authorized to 

specify, determine, designate, establish and appoint, as the case may be, in one or more written designations 

which may be included in a bond purchase agreement (each, a “Designation”), (i) the aggregate purchase 

price of the 2016 Bonds and the underwriting discount which shall not exceed 1.25% of the aggregate stated 

principal amount thereof, (ii) the form and contents of any bond purchase agreement in connection with 

such sale, (iii) the title (including series designation), dated date (which shall not be later than December 31, 

2016), aggregate principal amount (including the aggregate principal amounts of serial Bonds and term 

Bonds, if any), which aggregate stated principal amount shall not exceed $1,275,000, and the final maturity 

date, which shall not be later than December 31, 2026, (iv) the principal amounts maturing in each year, (v) 

the rate or rates of interest to be borne by each principal maturity, provided that present value savings results 

from refunding the Refunded Bonds, (vi) the principal payment dates and interest payment dates, (vii) 

whether the 2016 Bonds will be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity, and if subject to such 

optional redemption, the provisions governing such redemption, including a redemption price not to exceed 

104% of the principal amount then being redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, (viii) the 

amount and due date of each sinking fund installment for any of the 2016 Bonds issued as term Bonds, (ix) 

the designation of the Paying Agent and Registrar and the form and content of any agreement between the 

City and such entity and (x) all other terms and provisions of the 2016 Bonds not otherwise specified or 

fixed by this Ordinance.    

 

 The Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby authorized to irrevocably call any or all of 

the 2011 Bonds (as called for redemption , the “Refunded Bonds”) for redemption on such date or dates he 

or she determines appropriate on and after June 7, 2016, which date or dates shall be the Redemption Dates 

hereunder.  The Authorized Officers, or each individually, are hereby authorized to designate, approve, 

execute and deliver, as the case may be (i) the form, content, terms and provisions of any published and/or 

mailed notice of redemption with respect to the payment and redemption of the Refunded Bonds, (ii) an 

Escrow Agent, (iii) the form, content, terms and provisions of an Escrow Agreement with the Escrow Agent 

for the purpose of providing for the deposit in trust with the Escrow Agent a portion of the net proceeds of 

the 2016 Bonds, the investment of such net proceeds pending their application, the application of such 

proceeds and any investment income to the payment of all of the principal of and interest on the Refunded 

Bonds maturing on or before the Redemption Date and the application of the balance of such proceeds and 

any investment income thereof to the redemption and retirement of the Refunded Bonds on the Redemption 

Date. 

 

 The 2016 Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form in the denomination of $5,000 or any 

integral multiple thereof.  The date of original issue for the 2016 Bonds shall be Date of Delivery.  

Interest on the 2016 Bonds, at the respective rates for each maturity, shall be payable as determined in 

the Designation (each an “Interest Payment Date”), and the 2016 Bonds shall bear such interest from the 

date of original issue or the most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later.  The interest due on 

each Interest Payment Date shall be payable to the registered owners of record as of the fifteenth day 

immediately preceding the Interest Payment Date (the “Record Date”), subject to the provision of Section 

5 hereof.  The 2016 Bonds shall be numbered from 1 upwards in the order of their issuance.  No 2016 

Bond shall be issued originally or upon transfer or partial redemption having more than one principal 

maturity.  The initial bond numbering and principal amounts for each of the 2016 Bonds issued shall be 

as directed by the Underwriter.  Payments of interest due on the 2016 Bonds prior to maturity or earlier 

redemption shall be made by the Paying Agent and Registrar, as designated pursuant to Section 4 hereof, 

by mailing a check or draft in the amount due for such interest on each Interest Payment Date, to such 

owner’s registered address as shown on the books of registration as required to be maintained in Section 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 195 / 266



 4 

4 hereof.  Payments of principal due at maturity or at any date fixed for redemption prior to maturity, 

together with any unpaid interest accrued thereon, shall be made by the Paying Agent and Registrar upon 

presentation and surrender of the 2016 Bonds to said Paying Agent and Registrar.  The City and said 

Paying Agent and Registrar may treat the registered owner of any 2016 Bond as the absolute owner of 

such bond for the purpose of making payments thereon and for all other purposes and neither the City nor 

the Paying Agent and Registrar shall be affected by any notice or knowledge to the contrary, whether 

such bond or any installment of interest due thereon shall be overdue or not.  All payments on account of 

interest or principal made to the registered owner of any 2016 Bond in accordance with the terms of this 

Ordinance shall be valid and effectual and shall be a discharge of the City and said Paying Agent and 

Registrar, in respect of the liability upon the 2016 Bonds or claims for interest to the extent of the sum or 

sums so paid. 

 

 Section 4. The Paying Agent and Registrar designated pursuant to the Designation shall 

serve in such capacities under the terms of an agreement entitled "Paying Agent and Registrar's 

Agreement" between the City and said Paying Agent and Registrar, in a form approved by an Authorized 

Officer.  The Paying Agent and Registrar shall keep and maintain for the City books for the registration 

and transfer of the 2016 Bonds at its principal corporate trust office.  The names and registered addresses 

of registered owner or owners of the 2016 Bonds shall at all times be recorded in such books.  Any 2016 

Bond may be transferred  pursuant to its provisions at the office of said Paying Agent and Registrar by 

surrender of such bond for cancellation, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, in form 

satisfactory to said Paying Agent and Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner in person or by 

such owner’s duly authorized agent, and thereupon the Paying Agent and Registrar on behalf of the City 

will deliver at its office (or send by registered mail to the transferee owner or owners thereof at such 

transferee owner’s or owners’ risk and expense), registered in the name of such transferee owner or 

owners, a new 2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds of the same interest rate, aggregate principal amount and 

maturity.  To the extent of the denominations authorized for the 2016 Bonds by this Ordinance, one such 

bond may be transferred for several such bonds of the same interest rate and maturity, and for a like 

aggregate principal amount, and several such bonds may be transferred for one or several such bonds, 

respectively, of the same interest rate and maturity and for a like aggregate principal amount.  In every 

case of transfer of a 2016 Bond, the surrendered 2016 Bond shall be canceled and destroyed.  All 2016 

Bonds issued upon transfer of the 2016 Bonds so surrendered shall be valid obligations of the City 

evidencing the same obligation as the 2016 Bonds surrendered and shall be entitled to all the benefits and 

protection of this Ordinance to the same extent as the 2016 Bonds upon transfer of which they were 

delivered.  The City and said Paying Agent and Registrar shall not be required to transfer any 2016 Bond 

during any period from any Record Date until its immediately following Interest Payment Date or to 

transfer any 2016 Bond called for redemption for a period of 30 days next preceding the date fixed for 

redemption. 

 

 Section 5. In the event that payments of interest due on the 2016 Bonds on an Interest 

Payment Date are not timely made, such interest shall cease to be payable to the registered owners as of 

the Record Date for such Interest Payment Date and shall be payable to the registered owners of the 2016 

Bonds as of a special date of record for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be designated by the 

Paying Agent and Registrar whenever monies for the purpose of paying such defaulted interest become 

available. 

 

 Section 6. In addition to any mandatory sinking fund redemptions as may be provided for as 

set out in Section 3 of this Ordinance, the 2016 Bonds shall be subject to redemption at the option of the 

City, in whole or in part, prior to maturity at any time on or after such date as may be provided in the 

Designation, at par plus accrued interest on the principal amount redeemed to the date fixed for 

redemption. The City may select the 2016 Bonds to be redeemed for such optional redemption in its sole 

discretion.  The 2016 Bonds shall be redeemed only in the amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 196 / 266



 5 

thereof.  2016 Bonds redeemed in part only shall be surrendered to said Paying Agent and Registrar in 

exchange for a new 2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds evidencing the unredeemed principal thereof.  Notice of 

Redemption of any 2016 Bond called for redemption shall be given, at the direction of the City in the 

case of optional redemption and without further direction in the case of mandatory redemption, by said 

Paying Agent and Registrar by mail not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, first 

class, postage prepaid, sent to the registered owner of such 2016 Bond at said owner’s registered address.  

Such notice shall designate the 2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds to be redeemed by maturity or otherwise, the 

date of original issue and the date fixed for redemption and shall state that such 2016 Bond or 2016 

Bonds are to be presented for prepayment at the office of said Paying Agent and Registrar.  In case of any 

2016 Bond being partially redeemed, such notice shall specify the portion of the principal amount of such 

2016 Bond to be redeemed.  No defect in the mailing of notice for any 2016 Bond shall affect the 

sufficiency of the proceedings of the City designating the 2016 Bonds called for redemption or the 

effectiveness of such call for 2016 Bonds of which notice by mail has been properly given and the City 

shall have the right to further direct notice of redemption for any such bond for which defective notice 

has been given. 

 

 Section 7. If the date for payment of the principal or interest on the 2016 Bonds shall be a 

Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal 

corporate trust office of the Paying Agent and Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive 

order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, 

Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment 

on such day shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.  

 

Section 8. The 2016 Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 197 / 266



 6 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

COUNTY OF SEWARD 

 

WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2016 

OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

No. R-___          

 

Interest 

Rate 

Maturity 

Date 

Date of  

Original Issue 

 

CUSIP No. 

% _________, 20__ ____________, 2016  

 

Registered Owner: Cede & Co. 13-2555119 

 

Principal Amount:  

 

 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  That the City of Seward, in the County of 

Seward, in the State of Nebraska, hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to 

pay, but only from the special sources herein described, to the registered owner specified above, or 

registered assigns, the principal amount specified above in lawful money of the United States of America 

on the date of maturity specified above with interest thereon to maturity (or earlier redemption) from the 

date of original issuer most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later, at the rate per annum 

specified above, payable semi-annually on _________ and _________ of each year (each an “Interest 

Payment Date”), commencing _________, 2016.  Said interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-

day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.  The principal of this bond, together with any unpaid 

interest accrued thereon, is payable upon presentation and surrender of the bond at the office of 

_________________, the Paying Agent and Registrar, in Seward, Nebraska. Interest on this bond due 

prior to maturity or earlier redemption will be paid on each Interest Payment Date by a check or draft 

mailed by the Paying Agent and Registrar to the registered owner of this bond, as shown on the books of 

record maintained by the Paying Agent and Registrar, on the fifteenth day immediately preceding the 

Interest Payment Date, to such owner’s address as shown on such books and records.  Any interest not so 

timely paid shall cease to be payable to the person entitled thereto as of the record date such interest was 

payable, as shall be payable to the person who is the registered owner of this bond (or of one or more 

predecessor bonds hereto) on such special record date for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be 

fixed by the Paying Agent and Registrar whenever monies for such purpose become available. 

 

 The revenue and earnings of the waterworks plant and water system (the “Water System”) of the 

City of Seward, Nebraska, have been pledged and hypothecated for the payment of this bond and the 

other bonds of this issue and for the payment of the City’s outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2013, presently outstanding in the principal amount of $90,000 (the “Series 2013 Bonds”), and for 

the payment of the City’s outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B, presently 

outstanding in the principal amount of $1,455,000 (the “Series 2013B Bonds”) and for the payment of the 

City’s outstanding Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015, presently outstanding in the 

principal amount of $1,165,000 (the “Series 2015 Bonds”, and together with the Series 2013 Bonds and 

the Series 2013B Bonds, the “Outstanding Bonds”) and for the payment of any additional bonds of equal 

priority issued in accordance with the ordinance authorizing the bonds of this issue.  The bonds of this 

issue are payable from and a lien only upon said revenue and earnings, equal in standing and on a parity 

with the Outstanding Bonds, and are not general obligations of the City of Seward, Nebraska. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 198 / 266



 7 

 

The ordinance authorizing the issuance of this bond and the other bonds of this issue sets forth 

the covenants and obligations of the City with respect to the Water System and the application of the 

revenues to be derived therefrom, which revenues are by the terms of said ordinance to be deposited in 

the “Seward Water Department Fund” and disbursed to pay costs of operation and maintenance, make 

payments of principal and interest on the bonds of the issue and make other payments as specified in said 

ordinance.  Said ordinance designates the terms and conditions on which additional bonds of equal lien to 

the bonds of this issue may be issued.  Said ordinance also designates the terms and conditions on which 

this bond shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under such ordinance and all covenants, 

agreements and obligations of the City under such ordinance may be discharged and satisfied at or prior 

to the maturity or redemption of this bond if moneys or certain specified securities shall have been 

deposited with the Paying Agent and Registrar or a designated trustee.  The City also reserves the right to 

issue bonds junior in lien to the bonds of this issue the principal and interest of which shall be payable 

from monies in the “Surplus Account” of the Seward Water Department Fund as designated in said 

ordinance. 

 

 This bond is one of an issue of fully registered bonds of the total principal amount of 

______________________________ Dollars ($_________) of even date and like tenor except as to date 

of maturity, rate of interest and denomination which were issued by the City for the purpose of refunding 

the City’s outstanding Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, date of original issue – 

June 7, 2011, in the principal amount of $___________, in strict compliance with Sections 18-1803 to 

18-1805, R.R.S. Neb., 2012, as amended, and has been duly authorized by ordinance legally passed, 

approved and published and by proceedings duly had by the Mayor and Council of said City. 

 

[ The bonds of this issue due as term bonds in the years ____ and ____ (the “Term Bonds”) are 

required to be redeemed prior to their stated maturity, commencing on ______, 20__ and continuing on 

______ of each year thereafter through and including payment at maturity, in part, which redemptions 

and payment at maturity shall be in the years and for the principal amounts set forth below: 

 

20__ Term Bond 

Year of Redemption Amount Required to be Redeemed 

______, 20__ $__,000 

______, 20__ __,000 

______, 20__ __,000 

______, 20__ (Maturity) __,000 

 

20__ Term Bond 

Year of Redemption Amount Required to be Redeemed 

______, 20__ $__,000 

______, 20__ (Maturity) __,000 

 

Such mandatory redemptions shall be at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus 

interest accrued on the principal amount being redeemed to the date fixed for redemption.  The Paying 

Agent and Registrar shall select the Term Bonds for mandatory redemption using any random method of 

selection deemed appropriate by the Paying Agent and Registrar.] 

 

 Any or all of the bonds of said issue maturing on or after ______, 20___ are subject to 

redemption at the option of the City, in whole or in part, at any time on or after _____ __, 20____ at par 

plus interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 199 / 266



 8 

Notice of redemption shall be given by mail to the registered owner of any bond to be redeemed 

in the manner specified in the ordinance authorizing said issue of bonds.  Individual bonds may be 

redeemed in part but only in the amount of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof. 

 

 This bond is transferable by the registered owner or such owner’s attorney duly authorized in 

writing at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent and Registrar upon surrender and 

cancellation of this bond, and thereupon a new bond or bonds of the same aggregate principal amount, 

interest rate and maturity will be issued to the transferee as provided in the ordinance authorizing said 

issue of bonds, subject to the limitations therein prescribed.  The City, the Paying Agent and Registrar an 

any other person may treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof 

for the purpose of receiving payment due hereunder and for all other purposes and shall not be affected 

by any notice to the contrary, whether this bond be overdue or not. 

 

 If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on this bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, 

legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the principal corporate trust office 

of the Paying Agent and Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the 

date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or 

a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the 

same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

 

 AS PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE REFERRED TO HEREIN, UNTIL THE 

TERMINATION OF THE SYSTEM OF BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY TRANSFERS THROUGH THE 

DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, NEW YORK, NEW YORK (TOGETHER WITH ANY 

SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY APPOINTED PURSUANT TO THE ORDINANCE, 

“DTC”), AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE TO THE 

CONTRARY, A PORTION OF THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS BOND MAY BE PAID OR 

REDEEMED WITHOUT SURRENDER HEREOF TO THE REGISTRAR.  DTC OR NOMINEE, 

TRANSFEREE OR ASSIGNEE OF DTC OF THIS BOND MAY NOT RELY UPON THE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT INDICATED HEREON AS THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT HEREOF AND THE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT HEREOF OUTSTANDING AND UNPAID SHALL FOR ALL PURPOSES BE THE 

AMOUNT DETERMINED IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE.  

 

 UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF DTC (A) TO 

THE REGISTRAR FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER OR EXCHANGE OR (B) TO THE 

REGISTRAR FOR PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL, AND ANY BOND ISSUED IN REPLACEMENT 

HEREOF OR SUBSTITUTION HEREOF IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF DTC AND ANY 

PAYMENT IS MADE TO DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, ANY TRANSFER PLEDGE OR OTHER USE 

HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSONS IS WRONGFUL BECAUSE 

ONLY THE REGISTERED OWNER HERE OF, DTC OR ITS NOMINEE, HAS AN INTEREST 

HEREIN. 

 

 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND WARRANTED that all conditions, acts and things required 

by law to exist or to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this bond did exist, did happen and were 

done and performed in regular and due form and time as required by law and that the indebtedness of 

said City, including this bond and the indebtedness refunded hereby, does not now and did not at the time 

of the incurring of said indebtedness, exceed any limitation imposed by law. 

 

 This bond shall not be valid and binding on the City until authenticated by the Paying Agent and 

Registrar 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 200 / 266



 9 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, have caused 

this bond to be executed on behalf of the City with the facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City 

Clerk and by causing the official seal of the City to be imprinted hereon, all as of the date or original 

issue specified above. 

 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

_______________________________________ 

 Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

[SEAL] 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

 This bond is one of the bonds authorized by ordinance passed and approved by the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, as described in said bond. 

 

___________________________________, 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

By:____________________________________  

         Authorized Officer  

 

(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT) 

 

 For value received ____________________________________________________________ 

hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

___________________________________________________________ the within bond and hereby 

irrevocably constitutes and appoints ____________________________________ , 

Attorney, to transfer the same on the books of registration in the office of the within mentioned Paying 

Agent and Registrar with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

       DATE: ________________________________ 

 

 

       ______________________________________ 

       Registered Owner 

 

 

       _______________________________________ 

       Registered Owner 

 

Witness: _____________________________________ 

 

 Note:  The signature of this assignment must correspond with the name as written on the face of 

the within bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement, or any change whatsoever. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 201 / 266



 10 

 Section 9. Each of the 2016 Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City with the 

facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk and shall have imprinted thereon the City’s seal.  

The 2016 Bonds shall be issued initially as “book-entry-only” bonds using the services of The Depository 

Trust Company (DTC), with one typewritten bond per maturity being issued to DTC.  In such connection 

said officers are authorized to execute and deliver a Letter of Representations (including any blanket 

letter previously executed and delivered by the City) in the form required by DTC, for and on behalf of 

the City, which shall thereafter govern matters with respect to registration, transfer, payment and 

redemption of the 2016 Bonds.  Upon the issuance of the 2016 Bonds as “book-entry-only” bonds, the 

following provisions shall apply: 

 

(a) The City and the Paying Agent and Registrar shall have no responsibility or 

obligation to any broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the 

Depository holds 2016 Bonds as securities depository (each, a “Bond Participant”) or to 

any person who is an actual purchaser of a 2016 Bond from a Bond Participant while 

the 2016 Bonds are in book-entry form (each, a “Beneficial Owner”) with respect to the 

following: 

 

(i) the accuracy of the records of the Depository, any nominees of 

the Depository or any Bond Participant with respect to any ownership 

interest in the 2016 Bonds, 

 

(ii) the delivery to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial Owner or 

any other person, other than the Depository, of any notice with respect 

to the 2016 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or 

 

(iii) the payment to any Bond Participant, any Beneficial Owner or 

any other person, other than the Depository, or any amount with respect 

to the 2016 Bonds.  The Paying Agent and Registrar shall make 

payments with respect to the 2016 Bonds only to or upon the order of 

the Depository or its nominee, and all such payments shall be valid and 

effective fully to satisfy and discharge the obligations with respect to 

such 2016 Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person 

other than the Depository shall receive an authenticated 2016 Bond, 

except as provided in (e) below. 

 

(b) Upon receipt by the Paying Agent and Registrar of written notice from the 

Depository to the effect that the Depository is unable or unwilling to discharge its 

responsibilities, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall issue, transfer and exchange 2016 

Bonds requested by the Depository in appropriate amounts.  Whenever the Depository 

requests the Paying Agent and Registrar to do so, the Paying Agent and Registrar will 

cooperate with the Depository in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice (i) to 

arrange, with the prior written consent of the City, for a substitute depository willing 

and able upon reasonable and customary terms to maintain custody of the 2016 Bonds 

or (ii) to make available 2016 Bonds registered in whatever name or names the 

Beneficial Owners transferring or exchanging such 2016 Bonds shall designate. 

 

(c) If the City determines that it is desirable that certificates representing the 2016 

Bonds be delivered to the Bond Participants and/or Beneficial Owners of the 2016 

Bonds and so notifies the Paying Agent and Registrar in writing, the Paying Agent and 

Registrar shall so notify the Depository, whereupon the Depository will notify the Bond 

Participants of the availability through the Depository of bond certificates representing 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 202 / 266



 11 

the 2016 Bonds.  In such event, the Paying Agent and Registrar shall issue, transfer and 

exchange bond certificates representing the 2016 Bonds as requested by the Depository 

in appropriate amounts and in authorized denominations. 

 

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long 

as any 2016 Bond is registered in the name of the Depository or any nominee thereof, 

all payments with respect to such 2016 Bond and all notices with respect to such 2016 

Bond shall be made a given, respectively, to the Depository as provided in the Letter of 

Representations. 

 

(e) Registered ownership of the 2016 Bonds may be transferred on the books of 

registration maintained by the Paying Agent and Registrar, and the 2016 Bonds may be 

delivered in physical form to the following: 

 

 (i)  any successor securities depository or its nominee: 

  

 (ii) any person upon (a) the resignation of the Depository from its 

functions as depository or (b) termination of the use of the Depository 

pursuant to this Section. 

 

(f) In the event of any partial redemption of a 2016 Bond unless and until such 

partially redeemed 2016 Bond has been replaced in accordance with the provisions of 

this Ordinance, the books and records of the Paying Agent and Registrar shall govern 

and establish the principal amount of such 2016 Bond as is then outstanding and all of 

the 2016 Bonds issued to the Depository or its nominee shall contain a legend to such 

effect. 

 

If for any reason the Depository resigns and is not replaced, the City shall immediately provide a supply 

of printed bond certificates for issuance upon the transfers from the Depository and subsequent transfers 

or in the event of partial redemption.  In the even that such supply of certificates shall be insufficient to 

meet the requirements of the Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance of replacement 2016 Bonds upon 

transfer or partial redemption, the City agrees to order printed an additional supply of certificates and to 

direct their execution by manual or facsimile signature of its then duly qualified and acting Mayor and 

City Clerk of such City.  In case any officer whose signature or facsimile thereof shall appear on any 

2016 Bond shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such 2016 Bond (including any bond 

certificates delivered to the Paying Agent and Registrar for issuance upon transfer or partial redemption), 

such signature or such facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the 

same as if such officer or officers had remained in office until the delivery of such 2016 Bond.  The 2016 

Bonds shall not be valid and binding on the City until authenticated by the Paying Agent and Registrar.  

The 2016 Bonds shall be delivered to the Paying Agent and Registrar for registration and authentication.  

Upon execution, registration and authentication of the 2016 Bonds, they shall be delivered to the City 

Treasurer, who is authorized to deliver them to the Underwriter upon receipt of the total stated principal 

amount of the 2016 Bonds, plus accrued interest thereon to date of payment for the 2016 Bonds, less 

Underwriter’s discount in an amount determined in the Designation. The Underwriter shall have the right to 

direct the registration of the 2016 Bonds and the denominations thereof within each maturity, subject to 

the restrictions of this Ordinance.  The Underwriter and its agents, representatives and counsel (including 

the City’s bond counsel) are hereby authorized to take such actions on behalf of the City as are necessary 

to effectuate the closing of the issuance and sale of the 2016 Bonds, including, without limitation, 

authorizing the release of the 2016 Bonds by the Depository at closing.  The Authorized Officers are 

hereby each individually authorized to execute the Bond Purchase Agreement, in the form such 

Authorized Officers may deem necessary and appropriate, and are further authorized to do any and all 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 203 / 266



 12 

things deemed necessary and appropriate in connection with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds and the 

redemption of the Refunded Bonds. 

 

 Section 10. The City Clerk shall make and certify a transcript of the proceedings of the 

Mayor and Council with respect to the 2016 Bonds, a copy of which shall be delivered to the initial 

purchaser of the 2016 Bonds. 

 

 Section 11.   The net sale proceeds of the 2016 Bonds, along with any necessary funds of the 

City on hand, shall be applied to the payment and satisfaction of all of the principal of and the interest on 

the Refunded Bonds falling due prior to, and as called for redemption on, the Redemption Date.  Accrued 

interest received from the sale of the 2016 Bonds, if any, shall be applied to pay interest first falling due 

on the 2016 Bonds.  Expenses of issuance of the 2016 Bonds may be paid from the proceeds of the 2016 

Bonds.  In order to satisfy the City's obligation on the Refunded Bonds, if determined necessary and 

appropriate by an Authorized Officer, such proceeds of the 2016 Bonds along with funds of the City on 

hand shall be set aside and held and invested in a special trust account which is hereby ordered 

established with such bank or trust company as determined by an Authorized Officer to act as escrow 

agent (the “Escrow Agent”).  The Escrow Agent shall have custody and safekeeping of the funds and 

investments which are to be set aside for the payment of the Refunded Bonds.  For purposes of governing 

such escrow account and the holding and application of such funds and investments, the City shall enter 

into a contract entitled "Escrow Agreement" with the Escrow Agent.  The Authorized Officers, or each 

individually, are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver on behalf of the City said Escrow 

Agreement, including necessary counterparts, in substantially the form and content as presented to the 

meeting at which this resolution is adopted, but with such changes and modifications therein as to them 

seem necessary, desirable, or appropriate for and on behalf of the City.  Said Authorized Officers are 

further authorized to approve the investments provided for in said Escrow Agreement, and to make any 

necessary subscriptions for United States Treasury Securities, State and Local Government Series, or to 

contract for the purchase of securities in the open market.  Said proceeds shall be invested in obligations 

of the United States Government, direct or guaranteed, including United States Treasury Securities, State 

and Local Government Series.  To the extent that such proceeds are held in a bank depository account, 

such deposits shall be insured by insurance of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or, to the extent 

not fully insured, fully collateralized in the same manner as is required for deposit of public funds.  Any 

investment from the proceeds of the 2016 Bonds herein authorized shall mature not later than the 

Redemption Date.  As provided in said Escrow Agreement, the proceeds of the 2016 Bonds herein 

authorized and investment earnings thereon shall be applied to the payment of the principal of and 

interest on the Refunded Bonds as the same become due on and prior to the Redemption Date, and as 

called for redemption on the Redemption Date.  The City agrees that on the date of original issue of the 

2016 Bonds, or as soon thereafter as practicable, it shall deposit or otherwise have on hand with the 

Escrow Agent, from available sources, funds sufficient after taking into consideration available proceeds 

of the 2016 Bonds and investment earnings to provide funds for all payments due on the Refunded Bonds 

on or before the Redemption Date, and as called for redemption on the Redemption Date.    

 

 Section 12. The revenues and earnings of the Water System are hereby pledged and 

hypothecated for the payment of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any additional bonds of 

equal lien issued as authorized by this Ordinance and interest on such 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding 

Bonds and any such additional bonds, and the City does hereby agree with the holders of said 2016 

Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and additional bonds as follows: 

 

(a) WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - The entire gross revenues and income 

derived from the operation of the Water System shall be set aside as collected and 

deposited in a separate fund which has been previously created and has been confirmed 

under the Prior Ordinances and shall continue to be designated as the “Seward Water 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 204 / 266



 13 

Department Fund.”  For purposes of allocating the monies in the Seward Water 

Department Fund, the City shall continue to maintain (in accordance with the provisions 

of the Prior Ordinances and this Ordinance) the following accounts: (1) Bond Payment 

Account; (2) Operation and Maintenance Account; (3) Debt Service Reserve Account; 

and (4) Surplus Account. 

 

(b) BOND PAYMENT ACCOUNT - Out of the Seward Water Department Fund 

there shall be deposited monthly on or before the first day of each month, as described 

below, to the Bond Payment Account the following amounts (or such other amounts on 

such other dates as may be determined in the Designation): 

 

(1) Beginning on the first day of the month immediately following 

the month in which the 2016 Bonds are issued and continuing the first 

day of each month thereafter so long as any of the 2016 Bonds herein 

authorized remain outstanding and unpaid, an amount not less than the 

amount which, if the same amount were deposited each month, would 

be sufficient to pay the interest becoming due on the 2016 Bonds on the 

next succeeding Interest Payment Date. 

 

(2) Beginning on the first day of the month twelve months 

preceding the month in which the first principal payment is due and 

continuing the first day of each month thereafter so long as any of the 

2016 Bonds herein authorized remain outstanding and unpaid, an 

amount equal to 1/12th of the next maturing principal payment for the 

2016 Bonds.  

 

(3) During the periods and in the amounts specified for the 

Outstanding Bonds in the Prior Ordinances. 

 

The City Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed, without further authorization, to 

withdraw monies deposited to the Bond Payment Account, or if the monies in such 

Account are insufficient, then from the Debt Service Reserve Account and next from the 

Surplus Account, an amount sufficient to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on 

the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any additional bonds and to transfer such 

amounts to the Paying Agent and Registrar, in Seward, Nebraska, (or the designated 

paying agent for the Outstanding Bonds and any additional bonds) at least five (5) days 

before each principal and interest payment date.  Upon the issuance of any additional 

bonds pursuant to this Ordinance appropriate additional deposits to the Bond Payment 

Account shall be provided for sufficient to pay principal and interest on said additional 

bonds. 

 

(c) OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT - Out of the Seward Water 

Department Fund, after making the deposits required by Subsection 10(b), there shall be 

monthly deposited into the Operation and Maintenance account such amounts as the 

City shall, from time to time, determine to be necessary to pay the reasonable and 

necessary expenses of operating and maintaining the Water System. 

 

(d) DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCOUNT - The City has previously established 

under the terms of the Prior Ordinances provisions governing separate reserve sub-

accounts for the Outstanding Bonds, which provisions shall continue in effect so long as 

the Outstanding Bonds remain outstanding.  There is hereby established within the Debt 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 205 / 266



 14 

Service Reserve Account the 2016 Sub-account (the “2016 Reserve Account”).  

Concurrently with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds (or in such other manner as may be 

determined in the Designation), the City agrees that is shall deposit to the 2016 Reserve 

Account from funds on hand or proceeds of the 2016 Bonds a sum (which may be 

$0.00) not greater than the least of (a) 10 percent of the stated principal amount of the 

original principal amount of the 2016 Bonds; (b) 125% of the average annual principal 

and interest requirements of the 2016 Bonds; or (c) the maximum annual principal and 

interest requirements of the 2016 Bonds, (the “Required Balance”).  Such Required 

Balance shall be the amount required to be maintained as the required balance in said 

account, so long as the 2016 Bonds remain outstanding.  Monies deposited to the 2016 

Reserve Account may be withdrawn, as needed, to provide funds to pay, when due, the 

principal of and interest on the 2016 Bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance, if the 

Bond Payment Account contains insufficient funds for that purpose, and the City 

Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to make such withdrawal if and when 

needed.  In the event of a withdrawal from the 2016 Reserve Account, there shall be 

deposited to the 2016 Reserve Account in the month following such withdrawal all 

monies in the Seward Water Department Fund remaining after making the payments 

required to be made in such month to the Bond Payment Account and Operation and 

Maintenance Account and each month thereafter all remaining monies shall be 

deposited to the 2016 Reserve Account and used to restore the 2016 Reserve Account 

until the Required Balance has been restored, provided that any such credits shall be 

made on a pro rata basis (in accordance with the respective amounts of outstanding 

principal) with any credits required for the reserve sub-accounts for the Outstanding 

Bonds or any Additional Bonds, all as then outstanding.  Upon the issuance of any 

Additional Bonds pursuant to this Ordinance, there shall be established a sub-account in 

the Debt Service Reserve Account for such Additional Bonds, and the method of 

funding or accumulations of the same shall be determined pursuant to the ordinance 

authorizing each such series of Additional Bonds.  Anything in this Subsection 10(d) to 

the contrary notwithstanding, the amount required to be maintained in the Debt Service 

Reserve Account or the 2016 Reserve Account under the terms of this Ordinance shall 

not exceed the maximum amount the allowable for a “reasonably required reserve fund” 

under Section 148 of the Code and the current rules and regulations thereunder (as in 

effect from time to time), which results in no yield restrictions in the investment of such 

Account.  

 

(e) SURPLUS ACCOUNT - Monies in the Seward Water Department Fund 

remaining after the deposits required in the foregoing Subsections 12(b), 12(c), and 

12(d) shall be deposited to the Surplus Account.  Monies in the Surplus Account may be 

used to make up any deficiencies in the preceding accounts, to retire any of the 2016 

Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds or any additional bonds prior to their maturity, to pay 

principal of and interest on any junior lien indebtedness incurred with respect to the 

Water System or for any other lawful purposes of the City as directed by the Mayor and 

City Council. 

 

 The provisions of this section shall require the City to maintain a set of books and records in 

accordance with such accounting methods and procedures as are generally applicable to municipal utility 

enterprises, which books and records shall show deposits to and expenditures from the several accounts 

required by this section.  Monies deposited to the Debt Service Reserve Account shall, if maintained in a 

demand or time deposit account, be kept in a separate account and not commingled with other City or 

Water System funds.  If invested, monies credited to the Debt Service Reserve Account may be 

commingled with other City funds, including Water System funds, so long as the City maintains books 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 206 / 266



 15 

and records clearly identifying the specific investments, or portions thereof, which belong to the Debt 

Service Reserve Account. 

 

 Monies in any of the accounts except the Debt Service Reserve Account may be invested in 

securities eligible for investment of other City funds.  Monies in the Debt Service Reserve Account may 

be invested in Deposit Securities, as defined in Section 17 hereof, or in certificates of deposit, savings 

accounts or other interest bearing accounts in banks which are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation, (FDIC) except that whenever the amount so deposited exceeds the amount of the FDIC 

insurance available thereon, the excess shall be secured in the manner required by Section 16-716, R.R.S. 

Neb. 2012.  Investments made from or attributable, in whole or in part, to the Debt Service Reserve 

Account shall mature or be redeemable at the option of the holder, without penalty, in not more than ten 

years. Income from or profit realized from investment for any account shall be deposited to such account 

until such account contains any amount then required to be therein, and thereafter such income or profit 

shall be transferred to the Seward Water Department Fund and treated as other revenues from the 

operation of the Water System. 

 

 The pledge and hypothecation provided for the 2016 Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds in this 

Ordinance is intended to and shall provide for a first and prior pledge or lien upon and security interest in 

the revenues of the Water System superior to any pledge, lien or security interest made or given with 

respect to any other indebtedness of the City as to its Water System and is intended as a full exercise of 

the powers of the City provided for in Sections 18-1803 to 18-1805, R.R.S. Neb. 2012, as now or 

hereafter amended, with respect to the City’s Water System and the revenues and earnings thereof. 

 

 Section 13. So long as any of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any additional 

bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance shall remain outstanding and unpaid, the City covenants and 

agrees to establish, revise from time to time as necessary and collect such rates and charges for the water 

service furnished form the Water System adequate to produce revenues and earnings sufficient at all 

times: 

 

(a) To provide funds to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the 2016 

Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any additional bonds issued pursuant to the 

provisions of this Ordinance; 

 

(b) To pay all proper and necessary costs of operation and maintenance of the 

Water System and to pay for the necessary and proper repairs, replacements, 

enlargements, extensions, and improvements to the Water System; 

 

(c) To provide funds sufficient to make the credits into the accounts and at the times 

and in the amounts required by Section 12 of this Ordinance and by the similar sections 

of the Prior Ordinances. 

 

 Section 14. To provide funds for any purpose related to the Water System (or any additional 

utility permitted by this Section 14 to be combined therewith in the event that the revenues of such 

additional utilities are to be pledged to the payment of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds, any 

additional bonds then outstanding and the proposed additional bonds), the City may issue additional 

bonds payable from the revenues of the Water System having equal priority and on a parity with the 2016 

Bonds and the Outstanding Bonds (and any additional bonds then outstanding) only upon compliance 

with the following conditions: 

 

(a) Such additional bonds shall be issued only pursuant to an ordinance which shall 

provide for an increase in the monthly deposits into the Bond Payment Account in 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 207 / 266



 16 

amounts sufficient to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the 2016 Bonds, 

the Outstanding Bonds, any additional bonds then outstanding and such additional 

bonds and for any monthly deposits to the Debt Service Reserve Account as are required 

under Subsection 12(d). 

 

(b) The City shall have complied with one or the other of the two following 

requirements: 

 

(1) The Net Revenues derived by the City from its Water System 

for the fiscal year next preceding the issuance of the additional bonds 

shall have been at least equal to 1.25 times the average annual debt 

service requirements of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any 

additional bonds previously issued, as then outstanding, and on the 

proposed additional bonds.  For purposes of such determination “Net 

Revenues” shall mean the gross revenues derived from the ownership 

and operation of the Water System, including investment income, but 

not including any income from sale or disposition of the property of 

said system, less ordinary expenses of operating and maintaining the 

Water System payable from the Operation and Maintenance Account.  

Operation and maintenance expenses for such purpose shall not include 

depreciation, amortization or interest on any bonds or other 

indebtedness.  Such Net Revenues shall be shown by an audit for such 

fiscal year for the City’s Water System as conducted by independent 

certified public accountants.  Also for purposes of such determination, 

“average annual debt service requirements” shall be determined by 

adding all of the principal and interest due (taking into consideration 

any provisions for mandatory redemptions of term bonds) when 

computed to the absolute maturity of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding 

Bonds and any additional bonds previously issued, as then outstanding, 

and on the proposed additional bonds and dividing such total by the 

number of years remaining that the longest bond of any such issue of 

bonds (including the proposed additional bonds) has to run to maturity; 

or 

 

(2) The City shall have received a projection made by a consulting 

engineer or firm of consulting engineers, recognized as having 

experience and expertise in municipal utility systems, projecting that 

the Net Revenues of the Water System in each of the three full fiscal 

years after the issuance of such additional bonds will be at least equal to 

1.25 times the average annual debt service requirements of the 2016 

Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any additional bonds previously 

issued, as then outstanding, and the proposed additional bonds.  For 

purposes of such projection “Net Revenues” shall have the same 

meaning as provided in Subsection 12(b)(1) above, and average annual 

debt service requirements shall be computed in the same manner as 

specified in said Subsection 12(b)(1).  In making such projection, the 

consulting engineer shall use as a basis the Net Revenues of the Water 

System during the last year for which an independent audit has been 

prepared and shall adjust such Net Revenues as follows: (A) to reflect 

changes in rates which have gone into effect since the beginning of the 

year for which the audit was made, (B) to reflect such engineer’s 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 208 / 266



 17 

estimate of the net increase over or net decrease under the Net 

Revenues of the Water System for the year for which the audit was 

made by reason of: (i) changes of amounts payable under existing 

contracts for services, (ii) additional general income from sales to 

customers under existing rate schedules for various classes of customers 

or as such schedules may be revised under a program of changes which 

has been adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City, (iii) projected 

revisions in costs for labor, wages, salaries, machinery, equipment, 

supplies and other operational items, (iv) revisions in amount of service 

to be supplied and any related administrative or other costs associated 

with such increases due to increased supply from the acquisition of any 

new facility and (v) such other projections of revenues and expenses as 

the consulting engineer deems reasonable and proper.  Annual debt 

service on any proposed additional bonds to be issued may be estimated 

by the consulting engineer, but no additional bonds shall be issued 

requiring any annual debt service payment in excess of the amount so 

estimated by the consulting engineer. 

 

If the City shall find it desirable it shall also have the right when issuing additional bonds to combine with 

the Water System any other utilities of the City authorized to be combined under Sections 18-1803 

through 18-1805, R.R.S. Neb. 2012, and to cause all of the revenues of such combined utilities systems to 

be paid into the Seward Water Department Fund (which fund may be appropriately redesignated) and to 

provide that all of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any additional bonds previously issued and 

as then outstanding, and the proposed issue of additional bonds shall be payable from the revenues of such 

combined utilities and shall stand on a parity and in equality as to security and payment, provided, 

however, no utility shall be combined with the Water System as contemplated in this paragraph of this 

Section 14 unless the City is current with all the payments required to be made into the accounts described 

in Section 12 and the Net Revenues of such combined utilities systems shall satisfy one or the other of the 

requirements provided for in Subsection 14(b) above.  In the event of such combination of an additional 

utility and for purposes of meeting such test, the definition of Net Revenues shall be altered to include the 

gross revenues of the additional utility or utilities and the ordinary expenses of operating and maintaining 

the additional utility or utilities and for such purposes any engineer furnishing projections may take into 

consideration the factors described in (A) and (B) of Subsection 14(b)(2) with respect to such additional 

utility or utilities.  Net Revenues of the additional utility or utilities shall be based upon the report or 

reports of independent certified public accounts in the same manner as is required under Subsection 

14(b)(1) or 14(b)(2) above. 

 

 The City hereby covenants and agrees that so long as any of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding 

Bonds and any additional bonds are outstanding, it will not issue any bonds or notes payable from the 

revenues of the Water System except in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, provided, 

however, the City reserves the right to issue bonds or notes which are junior in lien to the 2016 Bonds, the 

Outstanding Bonds and any such additional bonds, with the principal and interest of such bonds or notes to 

be payable from monies deposited to the Surplus Account as provided in Subsection 12(e).  The term 

“additional bonds” as used in this Ordinance refers only to such bonds as are payable from the revenues of 

the Water System on a parity with the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and are issued in accordance 

with the terms of this Section 14 or refunding bonds which are issued in accordance with the terms of 

Section 15 of this Ordinance if and when such refunding bonds under the terms of said Section 15 become 

payable on a parity with the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and any additional bonds then 

outstanding.  Anything in this Section 14 or in Section 15 to the contrary notwithstanding, additional 

bonds for refunding purposes may be issued under the conditions set forth in this Section 14 as an 

alternative if such conditions can be met for their issuance. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 209 / 266



 18 

 

 Section 15. The City may issue refunding bonds, which shall qualify as additional bonds of 

equal lien to refund any of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds or additional bonds then outstanding, 

provided that, if any such 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds or additional bonds are to remain 

outstanding after the issuance of such refunding bonds, the principal payments due in any calendar year in 

which those bonds which are to remain outstanding mature, or in any calendar year prior thereto, shall not 

be increased over the amount of such principal payments due in such calendar years immediately prior to 

such refunding.  Refunding bonds issued in accordance with this paragraph of this Section 15 may be 

issued as additional bonds of equal lien without compliance with the conditions set forth in Subsection 

14(b) of this Ordinance. 

 

 The City may also issue refunding bonds which shall qualify as additional bonds of equal lien to 

refund any of the 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds or additional bonds then outstanding provided that 

if any 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds or additional bonds then outstanding are to remain outstanding 

after the application of the proceeds of the refunding bonds to the payment of the bonds which are to be 

refunded, such issuance must comply with the Net Revenues test set forth in Subsection 14(b)(1) of this 

Ordinance and, if the proceeds of such refunding bonds are not to be applied immediately to the 

satisfaction of the bonds which are to be refunded, then such refunding bonds must provide by their terms 

that they shall be junior in lien to all 2016 Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds and additional bonds outstanding 

at the time of issuance of such refunding bonds until the time of application of their proceeds to the 

satisfaction of the bonds which are to be refunded.  In computing average annual debt service requirements 

to show compliance with said Net Revenues test for such refunding bonds, all payments of principal and 

interest due on such refunding bonds from the time of their issuance to the time of application of the 

proceeds of such refunding bonds to the satisfaction of the bonds which are to be refunded shall be 

excluded from such computation to the extent that such principal and interest are payable from sources 

other than the revenues of the Water System (such as investment earnings on bond proceeds or bond 

proceeds themselves) or from monies in the Surplus Account and all payments of principal and interest 

due on the bonds which are to be refunded from and after the time of such application shall also be 

excluded.  For purposes of this paragraph of this Section 15, the time of application of the proceeds of the 

refunding bonds to the satisfaction of the bonds which are to be refunded shall be the time of deposit with 

the paying agent for such bonds which are to be refunded pursuant to Section 10-126, R.R.S. Neb. 2012 

(or any successor statutory provision thereto) or the time when such bonds which are to be refunded under 

the terms of their authorizing ordinance or ordinances are no longer deemed to be outstanding, whichever 

comes sooner. 

 

 Section 16. So long as any 2016 Bonds remain outstanding, the City hereby covenants and 

agrees as follows: 

 

(a) The City will maintain the Water System in good condition and will 

continuously operate the same in a reasonable and efficient manner, and the City will 

punctually perform all the duties with reference to said system required by the 

Constitution and statutes of the State of Nebraska, but this covenant shall not prevent 

the City from discontinuing the use and operation of all or any portion of the Water 

System so long as the revenue derived from the City’s ownership of the properties 

constituting the Water System shall be sufficient to fulfill the City’s obligations under 

Sections 14 and 15 of this Ordinance. 

 

(b) The City will not grant any franchise or right to any person, firm or corporation 

to own or operate a utilities system or systems in competition with the Water System. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 210 / 266



 19 

(c) The City will maintain insurance on the property constituting the Water System 

(other than such portions of said system as are not normally insured) against risks 

customarily carried by similar utilities, but including fire and extended coverage 

insurance in an amount which would enable the City to repair, restore or replace the 

property damaged to the extent necessary to make the Water System operable in an 

efficient and proper manner to carry out the City’s obligations under this Ordinance.  

The Mayor and Council shall annually examine the amount of insurance carried with 

respect to the Water System and shall evidence approval of such insurance by 

resolution.  The proceeds of any such insurance received by the City shall be used to 

repair, replace or restore the property damaged or destroyed to the extent necessary to 

make the Water System operable in an efficient and proper manner, and any amount of 

insurance proceeds not so used shall be credited to the Surplus Account.  In the event of 

any such insured casualty loss, the City may advance funds to make temporary repairs 

or provide for an advance on costs of the permanent repair, restoration or replacement 

from the Operation and Maintenance Account and any such advances shall be repaid 

from insurance proceeds received. 

 

(d)  The City will keep proper books, records, and accounts separate from all other 

records and accounts in which complete and correct entries will be made of all 

transactions relating to the Water System.  This City will have its operating and 

financial statements relating to the Water System audited annually by a certified public 

account or firm of certified public accountants.  The City will furnish to the original 

purchaser of the 2016 Bonds and to the original purchaser or purchasers of each series 

of additional bonds issued hereunder, within four months after the end of each fiscal 

year of the Water System, a copy of the financial statements of the Water System and 

the report thereon of the certified public accountants. 

 

(e) The City shall cause each person handling any of the monies in the Seward 

Water Department Fund to be bonded by an insurance company licensed to do business 

in Nebraska in an amount or amounts deemed sufficient by the Mayor and Council to 

cover the amount of money belonging to said system reasonably expected to be in the 

possession or control of any such person.  The amount of such bond or bonds shall be 

fixed by the Mayor and Council and the costs thereof shall be paid as an operating and 

maintenance expense from the Operation and Maintenance Account. 

 

 Section 17. The City’s obligations under this Ordinance and the liens, pledges, covenants, 

and agreements of the City herein made or provided for, shall be fully discharged and satisfied as to the 

2016 Bonds and any such bonds shall no longer be deemed outstanding hereunder if such bonds shall 

have been purchased and canceled by the City, or when payment of the principal of and interest thereon 

to the respective date of maturity or redemption (a) shall have been made or caused to be made in 

accordance with the terms thereof; or (b) shall have been provided for by depositing with the Paying 

Agent and Registrar or with another national or state bank having trust powers or trust company, in trust 

solely for such payment (1) sufficient money to make such payment and/or (2) Deposit Securities in such 

amount and bearing interest at such rates and payable at such time or times and maturing or redeemable 

at stated fixed prices at the option of the holder as to principal at such time or times as will ensure the 

availability of sufficient money to make such payment; provided, however, that with respect to any 2016 

Bonds to be paid prior to maturity, the City shall have duly given notice of redemption of such bonds as 

provided by law or made irrevocable provision for the giving of such notice.  Any such money so 

deposited with a bank, trust company or the Paying Agent and Registrar, may be invested and reinvested 

in Deposit Securities at the direction of the City, and all interest and income from such Deposit Securities 

in the hands of such bank, trust company or Paying Agent and Registrar in excess of the amount required 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 211 / 266



 20 

to pay principal of and interest on the bonds for which such monies were deposited, shall be paid over to 

the City as and when collected.  For purposes of this Section 17, Deposit Securities shall mean (a) direct 

obligations of or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the 

United States of America, and (b) bonds, debentures, notes, participation certificates, or other evidences 

of indebtedness issued by any of the Federal Home Loan Bank system, the Export Import Bank of the 

United States or the Government National Mortgage Association or any combination of any of the 

foregoing.  For purposes of this Section 17, such Deposit Securities shall be non-callable or callable only 

at the option of the holder. 

 

 Section 18. The terms and provisions of this Ordinance do and shall constitute a contract 

between the City of Seward and the holder or holders of the 2016 Bonds and no changes, variations or 

alterations of any kind, except for changes necessary to cure any ambiguity, formal defect or omission, 

shall be made to this Ordinance without the written consent of the holders of two-thirds (2/3rds) in 

principal amount of the 2016 Bonds then outstanding, provided, however, that neither the principal and 

interest to be paid upon any 2016 Bond nor the maturity date of any 2016 Bond shall be changed without 

the written consent of all holders of the 2016 Bonds then outstanding affected thereby.  The holder of any 

2016 Bond or 2016 Bonds may, either in law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus or other proceeding, 

enforce or compel performance of any and all of the acts and duties required by this Ordinance, and any 

court of competent jurisdiction may, after default in compliance with the terms of this Ordinance on 

application of any such holder, appoint a receiver to take charge of the Water System and operate the 

same and apply the earnings thereof to the payment of the principal of an interest on the 2016 Bonds, the 

Outstanding Bonds and any additional bonds then outstanding in accordance with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, the Prior Ordinances and any ordinance or ordinances authorizing additional bonds. 

 

 Section 19. The Mayor, City Clerk and Treasurer of the City are hereby authorized to do all 

things and execute all such documents as may by them be deemed necessary and proper to complete the 

issuance and sale of the 2016 Bonds as contemplated by this Ordinance, including but not limited to the 

calling and redemption of the Refunded Bonds.  Said officers or any one of them are further authorized to 

make any allocations or elections deemed necessary or appropriate related to the provisions of the Code 

and regulations thereunder. 

 

Section 20. The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will make no use of the proceeds of 

the 2016 Bonds which would cause the 2016 Bonds to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Sections 

103(b)(2) and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and further covenants 

to comply with said Sections 103(b)(2) and 148 and all applicable regulations thereunder throughout the 

term of said issue, including all requirements with respect to payment and reporting of rebates, if 

applicable.  The City hereby covenants to take all action necessary to preserve the tax-exempt status of 

the interest on the 2016 Bonds for federal income tax purposes under the Code with respect to taxpayers 

generally.  The City further agrees that it will not take any actions which would cause the 2016 Bonds to 

constitute “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code.  The City hereby 

designates the 2016 Bonds as its “qualified tax-exempt obligations” pursuant to Section 

265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) of the Code and covenants and warrants that it does not reasonably expect to issue 

bonds or other obligations aggregating in principal amount more than $10,000,000 during the calendar 

year or years in which the 2016 Bonds are issued (taking into consideration the exception for current 

refunding issues). The Mayor is hereby authorized to make, or cause to be made, any and all 

certifications deemed necessary in connection with the designation of the 2016 Bonds as “qualified tax-

exempt obligations”, including “deemed designating” the 2016 Bonds. 

 

 Section 21. The Authorized Officers or any one or more of them is authorized to approve, 

deem final and deliver a Preliminary Official Statement and a final Official Statement with respect to the 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 212 / 266



 21 

2016 Bonds for and on behalf of the City, all in accordance with the requirements of Reg. Sec. 240.15c2-

12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 

 Section 22. The City hereby (a) authorizes and directs that an Authorized Officer execute 

and deliver, on the date of issue of the 2016 Bonds, a continuing disclosure undertaking in accordance 

with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission in such 

form as determined necessary and appropriate by such Authorized Officer (the “Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking”) and (b) covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of 

the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution, failure 

of the City to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall not be considered an event of 

default hereunder; however, any Participating Underwriter (as such term is defined in the Continuing 

Disclosure Undertaking) or any Beneficial Owner or any Registered Owner of a Bond (as such terms are 

defined in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking) may take such actions as may be necessary and 

appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the City to 

comply with its obligations under this section, and under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  An 

Authorized Officer may appoint a Dissemination Agent for the 2016 Bonds in the Authorized Officer’s 

discretion. 

 

 Section 23. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held 

invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the other 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

 Section 24. All ordinances or resolutions of the Mayor and Council which are in conflict 

with the provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 213 / 266



 22 

 Section 25. This Ordinance is hereby determined to be a measure necessary to carry out the 

City’s contractual obligations with respect to the 2016 Bonds.  This Ordinance shall be in force and take 

effect from and after its passage and approval according to law.  This Ordinance shall be published in 

pamphlet form. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 5th day of January, 2016. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      _________________________________ 

       Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/  

Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 214 / 266



 23 

 Motion for adjournment was duly made, seconded and on roll call vote was declared adopted by the 

Mayor. 

 

 I the undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certify that the foregoing is a 

true and correct copy of the proceedings had and done by the Mayor and Council of said City on January 5, 

2016; that all of the subjects included in the foregoing proceedings were contained in the agenda for the 

meeting, kept continually current and readily available for public inspection at the office of the City Clerk; 

that such subjects were contained in said agenda for at least twenty-four hours prior to said meeting; that at 

least one copy of all reproducible material discussed at the meeting was available at the meeting for 

examination and copying by members of the public; that said minutes from which the foregoing proceedings 

have been extracted were in written form and available for public inspection within ten working days . the 

next convened meeting of said body; that a current copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act was available 

and accessible to members of the public, posted during the meeting or meetings reflected in the transcript 

described below in the room in which such meeting or meetings were held and that all in attendance at such 

meeting or meetings were informed that such copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act was available for 

review and were informed of the location of such copy in the room in which such meeting was being held; 

that all news media requesting notification concerning meetings of said body were provided advance 

notification of the time and place of said meeting and the subjects to be discussed at said meeting. 

 

 

  

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/  

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 [SEAL] 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 215 / 266



NOTICE OF PUBLICATION 

 

OF ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 

IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 

Public Notice is hereby given that at a meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Seward, 

Nebraska, held at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 5, 2016, there was passed and adopted Ordinance No. 

_____ entitled: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 

OF WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED ONE MILLION TWO 

HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,275,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF $1,255,000 OF OUTSTANDING WATER SYSTEM 

REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011; PROVIDING FOR NECESSARY RESERVE 

FUNDS AND PAYING COSTS OF ISSUANCE OF SAID BONDS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM, 

TERMS AND DETAILS OF SAID BONDS; PLEDGING AND HYPOTHECATING THE 

REVENUE AND EARNINGS OF THE WATERWORKS PLANT AND WATER SYSTEM OF 

SAID CITY FOR THE PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS AND INTEREST THEREON; 

PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION, SEGREGATION AND APPLICATION OF THE 

REVENUE OF SAID WATERWORKS PLANT AND WATER SYSTEM; ENTERING INTO A 

CONTRACT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY WITH THE HOLDERS OF SAID BONDS; 

REPEALING ANY CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION 

OF THE ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM. 

 

 

Said Ordinance was published in pamphlet form on January __, 2016.  Copies of said Ordinance as 

published in pamphlet form are available for inspection and distribution at the Office of the City Clerk, in 

the City of Seward, Nebraska. 

 

 

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/  

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

NOTE:  Publish in title form one time.

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 216 / 266



CERTIFICATE AS TO PUBLICATION IN PAMPHLET FORM 

 

 The undersigned City Clerk for the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certifies that 

Ordinance No. _____ as passed and approved by the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska, at 

their meeting held on January 5, 2016, was published in pamphlet form on January ___, 2016 and that a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance as so passed and published is attached hereto. 

 Dated this ____ day of January, 2016. 

 

 

             

       Bonnie Otte 

       Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/  

       Budget & Human Resource Director 

 (SEAL) 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 217 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G5

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE 
SALE OF LOT 4, REYNOLDS ADDITION TO SCOTT & 
TAMMY KOCIAN - City Atty Hoffschneider

Administrative Report: This is one of the five remaining residential lots for sale by the cemetery. 
Following review and discussion, approval of the purchase agreement and ordinance would be in 
order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 218 / 266



 

PUBLIC NOTICE  

OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

In accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. § 16-201 and Seward Municipal Code § 8-

102, public notice is hereby given that the City Council, pursuant to Ordinance 2015-___, 

has authorized the conveyance of the real property by the City of Seward to Scott A. 

Kocian and Tammy J. Kocian legally described as Lot 4, Reynolds Addition, City of 

Seward, Seward County, Nebraska.     

 

 Registered voters of the City of Seward shall have thirty (30) days from January 27, 2016 

to protest the conveyance of the Property in accordance with the procedures set forth in Neb. 

Rev. Stat. § 16-202 and Seward Municipal Code § 8-102.   

 

/s/Bruce Smith, City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Publish one time on each of the following dates: 

January 13, 20, 27, 2016 

One Proof of Publication 

 

 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 219 / 266



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-__ 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA  

 

AN ORDINANCE TO DIRECT THE CONVEYANCE OF REAL PROPERTY TO SCOTT A. KOCIAN AND 

TAMMY J. KOCIAN; TO PROVIDE FOR PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET 

FORM; TO PROVIDE FOR A TIME WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL TAKE EFFECT.  

 

SECTION 1.  The City of Seward, Nebraska (“City”) owns that certain real 

property legally described as: 

 

Lot 4, Reynolds Addition, City of Seward, Seward County, Nebraska 

(the “Property”). 

 

SECTION 2.  The City currently owns and maintains the Property, which is 

adjacent to the City Cemetery.   

 

SECTION 3.  The City desires to convey the Property to Scott A. and Tammy J. 

Kocian.   

 

SECTION 4.  The City hereby approves the conveyance and transfer of the 

Property to Scott A. and Tammy J. Kocian in accordance with Nebraska law and 

the Seward Municipal Code. 

 

SECTION 5.  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized to execute a Purchase 

Agreement and warranty deed and to take all actions necessary to effectuate 

the transfer of the Property to Scott A. and Tammy J. Kocian.   

 

SECTION 6.  Pamphlet Form; Publication, When Operative.  This ordinance shall 

be published in pamphlet form and shall be in full force and effective from 

after its passage, approval, and publication or posting as required by law 

and city ordinance. 

 

 Passed and approved this __ day of January, 2016 

 

  CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

ATTEST: 

  ___________________________ 

    Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

     ____________________ 

      Bonnie Otte 

      Administrator Assistant/ 

      Clerk-Treasurer 

 

(SEAL) 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 220 / 266



1 

 

 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

 

 THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into on 

January ___, 2016, by and between City of Seward, Nebraska (the “Seller”), and Scott A. Kocian 

and Tammy J. Kocian (the “Buyer”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. Seller is the owner of certain real property (the “Property”) legally described as: 

 

Lot 4 of Reynolds Addition, Seward, Seward County, Nebraska  

 

B. Seller desires to sell and Buyer desires to acquire the property subject to the terms 

 and conditions set forth herein. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of, and based on, the foregoing Recitals and the 

 mutual promises and agreements set forth below, the parties agree as follows: 

 

 1. Transfer of Property. 

 

1.1 Sale and Purchase.  At Closing (as hereinafter defined), Seller shall sell to 

Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase from Seller the Property. 

 

1.2 Purchase Price and Payment.  Buyer shall pay to Seller Forty Two 

Thousand Dollars ($42,000) (the "Purchase Price"), of which Five Hundred Dollars 

($500) has been delivered to the Seller, which will be delivered to (“Earnest Money 

Deposit”) Title Services of Blue Valley, LLC (“Title Company”), upon execution of this 

Agreement, and the balance, without interest, of Forty One Thousand Five Hundred 

Dollars ($41,500) shall be payable at Closing, subject to adjustments and prorations as 

herein provided.  

 

1.3 Closing.  The Closing of the purchase and sale of the Property shall take 

place on February 29, 2016 at the Title Company’s office located in Seward, Nebraska or 

at such other time, date and place as the parties may mutually agree (the “Closing”). 

 

1.4 Title and Possession.  Seller agrees to deliver at Closing a general 

warranty deed to the Property conveying to Buyer marketable title to the Property, free 

and clear of all mortgages, deeds of trusts, leases, encumbrances, liens, statutory rights or 

covenants, except for easements and restrictions of record that are acceptable to Buyer.  

Seller shall deliver possession of the Property to Buyer at the time of Closing.   

 

  1.5 Title Insurance.  Prior to Closing, Seller shall furnish Buyer with a 

commitment for an owner's policy of title insurance with copies of all easements in the 

amount of Purchase Price, which insures marketable title to the Property, subject only to 

easements and restrictions of record that are acceptable or deemed acceptable to Buyer.  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 221 / 266



2 

 

 

Absent timely objection, any easement or restriction identified in the commitment shall 

be deemed acceptable to Buyer.  Seller shall have a reasonable period to cure any 

unacceptable easement or restriction. The premium for the owner’s title insurance policy 

and the closing fee of the Title Company shall be divided equally between Seller and 

Buyer.   

  

1.6 Taxes, Assessments, and other Costs.  Seller shall be responsible for all 

taxes relating to the Property for the year preceding Closing and all prior years as well as 

all special assessments levied prior to Closing.  Taxes relating to the Property for the 

calendar year when Closing occurs shall be pro-rated as of the date of Closing.  Buyer 

shall pay the filing fee which becomes payable upon recordation of the warranty deed.   

 

1.7 Purchase Agreement Preparation and Legal Representation.  The cost of 

preparation of this Purchase Agreement shall be paid for by Seller, which shall be 

prepared by the law firm of Mattson Ricketts Law Firm.  Should Buyer choose to be 

represented by legal counsel, Buyer shall be responsible for all of Buyer’s own attorney 

fees and costs charged to Buyer by Buyer’s attorney.   

 

1.8.   Remonstrance Contingency.  The Closing of this sale is contingent upon 

the City of Seward not receiving a remonstrance against this sale within 30 days from 

January 26, 2016 in accordance with the procedures set forth in Neb. Rev. Stat. 16-202 

and Seward Municipal Code 8-102.   If the City receives such a remonstrance, this 

Agreement shall be null and void and the Buyer shall be entitled to a full refund of 

Buyer’s Earnest Money Deposit as Buyer’s sole recourse against the City for its inability 

to convey the Property to the Buyer.     

 

 2. Representations and Warranties. 

 

2.1 Representations and Warranties of Seller.  Seller represents and warrants 

to Buyer as follows: 

 

2.1.1  Hazardous Substances.  Seller hereby represents that the Property does not 

contain any known substances deemed hazardous under any applicable Local, State and 

Federal laws and regulations.   Seller specifically grants Buyer the right to conduct an 

environmental study at any time prior to Closing to determine whether any environmental 

hazards exist.  Seller acknowledges that it has made such representations and that such 

representations are a material inducement to Buyer to enter into this Agreement.  In the 

event hazardous substances are discovered on the Property, Buyer may terminate this 

Agreement by written notice to the Seller, and the Buyer shall receive a refund of all 

money deposited with the Title Company 

 

2.1.2 Maintenance of the Property.  Until possession is given to Buyer, Seller 

will keep and maintain the Property in as good condition as it now is, reasonable wear 

and tear excepted. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 222 / 266



3 

 

 

2.1.3 No Brokerage Agreement.  Seller has not entered into any contract, 

arrangement or understanding with any person or firm which may result in the obligation 

of Buyer to pay any finder’s fee, brokerage or agent’s commission or other like payment 

in connection with the negotiations leading to this Agreement or the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby.  Seller acknowledges that Kelly R. Hoffschneider of 

Mattson Ricketts Law Firm is a licensed real estate broker in the State of Nebraska, but 

has not been retained in that capacity. 

 

2.2 Representations and Warranties of Buyer.  Buyer represents and warrants 

to Seller as follows: 

 

2.2.1 No Brokerage Agreement.  Buyer has not entered into any contract, 

arrangement or understanding with any person or firm which may result in the obligation 

of Seller to pay any finder’s fee, brokerage or agent’s commission or other like payment 

in connection with the negotiations leading to this Agreement or the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby.  Buyer acknowledges that Kelly R. Hoffschneider of 

Mattson Ricketts Law Firm is a licensed real estate broker in the State of Nebraska, but 

has not been retained in that capacity. 

 

3. Default 

  

3.1 Default of Seller.  If Buyer shall perform all of its obligations and terms of 

this Agreement, and Seller shall default in the performance of any of the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, Buyer may elect to terminate this Agreement, and shall be 

entitled to a return of the Earnest Money Deposit under Paragraph 1.2 of this Agreement, 

and to pursue any other legal or equitable remedies against Seller, including, without 

limitation, a suit for specific performance. 

 

3.2 Default of Buyer.  If Seller shall perform all its obligations and terms of 

the Agreement, and Buyer shall default in the performance of any of the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, the Seller may, at their option, elect to terminate the 

Agreement and receive and retain the Earnest Money Deposit under Paragraph 1.2 of this 

Agreement, and pursue any other legal or equitable remedies against Buyer, including, 

without limitation, a suit for specific performance. 

 

 4. Miscellaneous. 

 

4.1 Binding Effect; Benefits.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall 

inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.  

 

4.2 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute 

one and the same instrument. 

 

4.3 Further Assurances.  Each of the parties hereto, without further 

consideration, agrees to execute and deliver such other documents and take such other 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 223 / 266



4 

 

 

action, whether prior to or subsequent to Closing, as may be necessary to more effectively 

consummate the intent and purpose of this Agreement. 

 

4.4 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Nebraska. 

 

4.5 Notices.  All notices, requests, demands, objections and other 

communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have 

been duly given when delivered personally or 48 hours after being mailed registered or 

certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the party at the following 

address or to such other address as any party hereto may from time to time in writing 

designate to the other parties: 

 

   If to Seller: City of Seward 

     P.O. Box 38 

     537 Main Street 

     Seward, NE  68434 

 

  With a Copy to: Kelly R. Hoffschneider 

     Mattson Ricketts Law Firm 

     134 South 13
th

 Street Suite 1200 

     Lincoln, NE  68508 

     krh@mattsonricketts.com 

     (402) 475-8433 

   

   If to Buyer: Scott A. and Tammy J. Kocian 

     547 West Jennifer Drive 

     Lincoln, NE 68521 

 

4.6 Survival and Nonmerger.  All terms, conditions, obligations,  

representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall survive the execution 

hereof and the Closing hereunder, including, but not limited to, the execution and 

delivery of any deed related to the Property to be conveyed hereunder and shall not 

merge into any deed. 

 

4.7 Time is of the Essence.  For purposes of the respective obligations of the 

parties hereto, the parties agree that time is of the essence in the performance of their 

respective obligations hereunder. 

 

4.8 Risk of Loss.  All risk of loss and damage to the Property or other casualty 

until Closing is assumed by the Seller. 

 

4.9 Severability.  If for any reason whatsoever any one or more of the 

provisions of this Agreement shall be held or deemed to be inoperative, unenforceable, or 

invalid, as applied to any particular case or in all cases, such circumstance shall not have 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 224 / 266

mailto:krh@mattsonricketts.com


5 

 

 

the effect of rendering such provision invalid in any case as of rendering any other 

provision of this Agreement inoperative, unenforceable, or invalid. 

 

4.10 Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are inserted only as matters of 

convenience and for reference and in no way define or limit the scope or intent of the 

various provisions therein, or conditions thereof. 

 

The rest of this page is left intentionally blank.  The signatures of the parties are 

on the following pages.   

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 225 / 266



6 

 

 

     SELLER: 

 

 City of Seward, Nebraska 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

      By:  Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 

) ss. 

COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of January, 2016, 

by Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor of the City of Seward, Seller. 

 

________________________________________ 

Notary Public 

        

       BUYER: 

 

 

            

       Scott A. Kocian 

 

            

       Tammy J. Kocian 

STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 

) ss. 

COUNTY OF ___________ ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of January, 2016, 

by Scott A. Kocian, Buyer. 

 

________________________________________ 

Notary Public 

 

STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 

) ss. 

COUNTY OF ___________ ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of January, 2016, 

by Tammy J. Kocian, Buyer. 

 

________________________________________ 

Notary Public       

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 226 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G6

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE FOR FINANCING 
THE PURCHASE OF THE GOLF COURSE CLUBHOUSE 
THROUGH A DIRECT BORROWING WITH A BANK 
PURSUANT TO  SECTION 18-201, R.R.S. NEB - City Attorney 
Hoffschneider
 

Administrative Report: The City received guidance from Gilmore & Bell on drafting the attached 
ordinance to allow the City to finance the purchase of the golf course assets through a local bank.

To note, the lease agreement for Nate’s on the Nine will need to be revised  before closing/funding on 
this financing to show that the lease agreement can be terminated upon notice of 50 days or less 
(currently written as 60 days notice).  This revision is necessary because of tax regulations on private 
use for property that is financed on a tax-exempt basis. 

Following review and discussion, a motion to adopt the ordinance would be in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 227 / 266



 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A LOAN FROM A BANK TO THE CITY, 

EVIDENCED BY A PROMISSORY NOTE, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 

NOT TO EXCEED THREE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($350,000) 

TO PROVIDE FINANCING FOR THE PURCHASE OF A GOLF CLUBHOUSE 

AND CERTAIN RELATED REAL ESTATE WITHIN THE CITY; PRESCRIBING 

THE TERMS AND FORM OF SUCH LOAN AND PROMISSORY NOTE; 

PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF THE INTEREST ON AND PRINCIPAL OF 

SUCH LOAN AND PROMISSORY NOTE; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF 

THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM; AND RELATED MATTERS 

 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA: 

 

 Section 1.   The Mayor and Council (the “Council”) of the City of Seward, Nebraska (the 

“City”) hereby find and determine as follows: 

 

(a) It is necessary for the City to purchase an existing golf clubhouse and surrounding real 

estate (the “Property”), as more fully described in the asset purchase agreement presented herewith; 

 

(b) The City and Jones National Bank & Trust Co. (the “Bank”) have proposed to finance the 

purchase of the Property through a loan (the “Loan”) to the City by the Bank, evidenced by a promissory 

note (the “Note”), pursuant to authority granted to the City in Section 18-201, Reissue Revised Statutes of 

Nebraska (the “Act”);  

 

(c) The City further finds and determines, pursuant to the requirements of the Act, that 

financing the purchase of the Property through traditional bond financing would be impractical and 

financing the purchase of the Property through a direct borrowing with the Bank would generate taxpayer 

savings over traditional bond financing; and 

 

(d) The municipal budget of the City for fiscal year 2015-16 is $ 43,148,282 and the City has 

no other indebtedness issued pursuant to the Act; and 

 

(e)   All conditions, acts and things required by law to exist or to be done precedent to the Loan, 

evidenced by the Note, in the principal amount of not to exceed $350,000 pursuant to the Act, for the 

purpose of purchasing the Property and related expenses, do exist and have been done in due form and time 

as required by law.  

 

Section 2.   (a) The Mayor and Council further find and determine that all conditions, acts and 

things required by law to exist or to be done precedent to the Loan, evidenced by the Note, pursuant to the 

Act, do exist and have been done as required by law.  The Note shall consist of one fully registered Note 

without coupons.  To evidence the Loan, the Note or any portion thereof is hereby authorized to be issued 

to the Bank pursuant to terms approved by the Mayor, City Administrator or Clerk-Treasurer of the City 

(each, an “Authorized Officer”).  In connection therewith, an Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to 

execute a Designation of Final Rates and Terms (the “Designation”) to specify, determine, designate, 

establish and appoint, as the case may be (i) any fee for the purchaser of the Note in an amount not to 

exceed $350,000, (ii) the title (including series designation), dated date, aggregate principal amount, and 

the final maturity date of the Note, which shall not be later than December 31, 2022, (iii) the amounts 

maturing in each year (iv) the rate of interest on the Note, provided that the interest rate shall not exceed 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 228 / 266



2.750%, (v) the principal payment dates and Interest Payment Dates, (vi) the date of original issue of the 

Note (the “Date of Original Issue”) and (vii) all other terms and provisions of the Note not otherwise 

specified or fixed by this Ordinance.   

 

 (b) The Note shall be subject to redemption at the option of the City prior to the stated maturi-

ties thereof at any time, as a whole, or in part from time to time in such principal amount and from such 

maturity or maturities as the City, in its sole and absolute discretion shall determine, and in the event that 

less than all of the Note is to be called for redemption, the portion of the Note to be redeemed shall be 

selected by lot, at a redemption price of the amount thereof, together with the interest accrued on such 

principal amount to the date fixed for redemption. 

 

If less than all of the principal amount thereof is to be redeemed, in such case upon the surrender of 

the Note there shall be issued to the registered owner thereof without charge therefor, for the then 

unredeemed balance of the principal amount thereof, a Note of like series, maturity and interest rates in any 

of the authorized denominations provided by this Ordinance. 

 

 Notice of redemption of the Note stating its designation, date, maturity and principal amounts shall 

be given by the Registrar by mailing such notice by first-class mail, postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) 

days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owners at their most recent addresses appearing 

upon the books of registry, but failure to mail such notice shall not affect the proceedings for redemption.  

Notice of redemption need not be given to the holder of any Note, whether registered or not, who has 

waived notice of redemption.  Notice of redemption having been given as provided above or notice of 

redemption having been waived by the owners of Note called for redemption who have not been given such 

notice as provided above, the Note so called for redemption shall become due and payable on the designated 

redemption date.  If on or before the said redemption date funds sufficient to pay the Note so called for 

redemption at the applicable redemption price and accrued interest to said date have been deposited or 

caused to have been deposited by the City with the Registrar for the purposes of such payment and notice of 

redemption thereof has been given or waived as hereinbefore provided, then from and after the date fixed 

for redemption interest on such Note so called shall cease to accrue and become payable.  If such funds shall 

not have been so deposited with the Registrar as provided on or before the date fixed for redemption, such 

call for redemption shall be revoked and the Note so called for redemption shall continue to be outstanding 

the same as though they had not been so called, and shall continue to bear interest until paid at such rate as 

they would have borne had they not been called for redemption, and shall continue to be protected by this 

Ordinance and entitled to the benefits and security hereof. 

 

 Section 3.  Interest on the Note at the respective rates for each maturity is payable 

semiannually as provided in the Designation (each of such dates an “Interest Payment Date”) from the Date 

of Original Issue or the most recent Interest Payment Date, whichever is later, until maturity or earlier 

redemption by check or draft mailed by the Registrar or its successor on such Interest Payment Date to the 

registered owner of each Note at such registered owner’s address as it appears on the Note Register 

maintained by the Registrar or its successor at the close of business on the fifteenth day preceding such 

Interest Payment Date (the “Record Date”) subject to the provisions of the following paragraph.  The 

principal on the Note and the interest due at maturity or upon redemption prior to maturity is payable in 

lawful money of the United States of America to the registered owners thereof upon presentation and 

surrender of such Note to the Registrar. 

 

 In the event that payments of interest due on the Note on an Interest Payment Date are not timely 

made, such interest shall cease to be payable to the registered owners as of the Record Date for such Interest 

Payment Date and shall be payable to the registered owners of the Note as of a special date of record for 

payment of such defaulted interest as shall be designated by the Registrar whenever moneys for the purpose 

of paying such defaulted interest become available. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 229 / 266



 

 If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on the Note shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of Seward, Nebraska, are authorized by law or 

executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a 

Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and 

payment on such day shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

 

 Section 4.   The Note shall be executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile 

signatures of the Mayor and Clerk and shall have the City Seal impressed or imprinted on the Note.  In case 

any officer whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature shall appear on the Note and shall cease to be 

such officer before the delivery of the Note, such signature or facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and 

sufficient for all purposes, the same as if he or she had remained in office until delivery.  Notwithstanding 

such execution, the Note shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to any security or benefit 

under this Ordinance unless and until a certificate of authentication on the Note has been duly executed by 

the manual signature of an authorized representative of the Registrar.  Certificates of authentication on 

different Note need not be signed by the same representative.  The executed certificate or authentication on 

the Note shall be conclusive evidence that it has been authenticated and delivered under this Ordinance.   

 

 Section 5.   The Note shall be in substantially the following form: 

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 230 / 266



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 PROMISSORY NOTE, SERIES 2016  

 

 Interest Rate Maturity Date Date of Issue  

 ____% __________, 20___ __________, 2016 

 

 

REGISTERED OWNER:  JONES NATIONAL BANK & CO. 

 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:_________________________________DOLLARS 

 

 The CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA (the “City”), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for 

value received promises to pay to the Registered Owner specified above or registered assigns, the Principal 

Amount stated above and interest thereon, at the Interest Rate per annum specified above, in lawful money 

of the United States of America on the dates and in the amounts as provided in the attached Payment 

Schedule. 

 

 The Principal Amount and the interest due at maturity or upon redemption prior to maturity is 

payable to the Registered Owner hereof in lawful money of the United States of America without deduction 

for services as paying agent at the office of the Note Registrar and Paying Agent, the City Treasurer of the 

City of Seward, Nebraska, (the “Registrar”), upon presentation and surrender of this note.  Interest on this 

note due prior to maturity or earlier redemption shall be paid by check or draft mailed by the Registrar on 

the date such interest is due and payable to the Registered Owner at such Registered Owner’s address as it 

appears on the registration books of the Registrar as of the close of business on the fifteenth day preceding 

the date on which interest on this note is payable (the “Record Date”).  Any interest not so timely paid shall 

cease to be payable to the person entitled thereto as of the Record Date such interest was payable, and shall 

be payable to the person who is the Registered Owner of this note (or of one or more predecessor notes 

hereto) on such special Record Date for payment of such defaulted interest as shall be fixed by the Registrar 

whenever money for such purpose become available.  For the prompt payment of this note, both principal 

and interest at the time the same becomes due, the full faith, credit, and resources of the City are hereby 

pledged.  

 

 This note is subject to redemption at the option of the City prior to the stated maturities thereof at 

any time, as a whole, or in part from time to time in such principal amounts and from such maturity or 

maturities as the City, in its sole and absolute discretion, shall determine, and in the event that less than all 

the note is to be called for redemption, the particular amount of the note to be redeemed shall be selected by 

lot at the redemption price of the principal amount thereof, together with the interest accrued on such prin-

cipal amount to the date fixed for redemption.  

 

 Notice of redemption of this note shall be given to the Registered Owner hereof by first-class mail, 

postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for redemption, all as more particularly 

set forth in the Ordinance (hereinafter defined).  Notice of redemption having been given as provided in the 

Ordinance (hereinafter defined), or notice of redemption having been waived, and funds for the payment 

thereof having been deposited with the Registrar, this note shall cease to bear interest from and after the date 

fixed for redemption. 

 

 This note is issued in the total principal amount of ___________ 

_________________________________________ Thousand Dollars ($_________) all of like date and 

tenor except as to denomination, date of maturity, rate of interest and priority of redemption which have 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 231 / 266



been issued by the City for the purpose of financing the purchase by the City of a golf clubhouse and certain 

related real estate and paying the costs of issuance of this note.  This note is issued under the authority of 

and in compliance with the laws of the State of Nebraska governing the City, and pursuant to Ordinance No. 

____ of the City (the “Ordinance”) duly enacted and by proceedings duly had by the Mayor and Council. 

 

 This note is transferable by the Registered Owner hereof as provided by the Ordinance and subject 

to the restrictions on transfer specified in Section 7 of the Ordinance and only upon delivery of an Investor 

Letter, as described in the Ordinance.  The City and the Registrar may deem and treat the Registered Owner 

hereof as the absolute owner for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof, 

premium, if any, and interest due hereon and for all other purposes.  

 

 If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on note shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal 

holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City of Seward, Nebraska, are authorized by law or 

executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a 

Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and 

payment on such day shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment. 

 

 The City has in the Ordinance designated such note as a “qualified tax-exempt obligations” 

pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

 

 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND WARRANTED that all conditions, acts and things required by 

law to exist or to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this note did exist, did happen and were done 

and performed in regular and due form and time as required by law, and that the indebtedness of the City, 

including this note, does not exceed any statutory limitation imposed by law.  The City agrees that this note 

shall be secured by and be payable from any and all general fund resources of the City, including but not 

limited to any and all authorized levies of taxes, and shall not, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be 

limited as to payment to the City’s general fund resources for any specific fiscal year, pursuant to Section 

18-201, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska.  The City reserves the right to provide for payment of 

principal and interest on the Note from the further issuance of notes, bonds or other methods of financing.   

 

 This note shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until it shall have been 

authenticated by the execution by the Registrar of the Certificate of Authentication endorsed hereon. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and Council have caused this note to be executed on behalf 

of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of its Mayor and Clerk and have caused the City Seal to be 

impressed or imprinted hereon, all as of the Date of Issue set forth above.  

 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

ATTEST: 

By:                  (Facsimile Signature)                       

 Mayor 

By:                    (Facsimile Signature)                      

 Clerk 

 

[S E A L] 

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 232 / 266



 

NOTE REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT’S 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

 This note is described in the within-mentioned Ordinance. 

 

CITY TREASURER, CITY OF SEWARD, 

NEBRASKA, Note Registrar and Paying Agent 

 

 

By:  ____________________________________ 

 

 

 

ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Print or Type Name, Address and Social Security Number 

or other Taxpayer Identification Number of Transferee 

 

the within note and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

____________________ agent to transfer the within note on the books kept by the Paying Agent for the 

registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 

 

Dated: ____________________ _______________________________________ 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must 

correspond with the name of the Registered 

Owner as it appears upon the face of the within 

note in every particular. 

 

Signature Guaranteed By: 

 

_______________________________________ 

(Name of Eligible Guarantor Institution as 

defined by SEC Rule 17 Ad-15 (17 CFR 240.17 

Ad-15)) 

 

By: ________________________________ 

Title: ________________________________ 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT: 

 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 233 / 266



 

 

Section 6.   The Note shall be executed on behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile 

signatures of the Mayor and Clerk.  In case any officer whose signature or facsimile thereof shall appear on 

the Note shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Note (including any note certificate 

delivered to the Registrar for issuance upon transfer), such signature or such facsimile signature shall 

nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer or officers had remained in 

office until the delivery of the Note.  The Note shall not be valid and binding on the City until authenticated 

by the Registrar.  The Note shall be delivered to the Registrar for registration and authentication.  Upon 

execution, registration and authentication of the Note, they shall be delivered to the City Treasurer, who is 

authorized to deliver them to the purchaser thereof specified in the Designation upon receipt of (a) the full 

purchase price of the Note less any costs of issuance of the Note to be withheld at closing and (b) delivery to 

the City of an investor letter in the form of Exhibit A hereto.    

 

 Section 7.   The City Treasurer of the City of Seward, Nebraska, is hereby appointed as Note 

Registrar and Paying Agent (the “Registrar”) for the Note.  The Registrar shall keep the books for the 

registration and transfer of Note at its office in Seward, Nebraska.  The names and registered addresses of 

the registered owner or owners of the Note shall at all times be recorded in such books.  The transfer of the 

Note may be registered upon the books kept for the registration and registration of transfer of Note only (i) 

upon presentation and surrender thereof to the Registrar together with an assignment duly executed by the 

registered owner or such registered owner’s attorney or legal representative in such form as shall be 

satisfactory to the Registrar, (ii) the City shall consent to such transfer in its discretion and (iii) the assignee 

is a bank or a qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A promulgated by the Securities and 

Exchange Commission and the registered owner has obtained from such proposed transferee and provided 

to the Registrar, prior to such transfer and assignment, an investor letter in substantially the form of Exhibit 

A hereto.  Upon any such registration of transfer, the City shall execute and the Registrar shall authenticate 

and deliver in exchange for such Note, a new Note of any denomination or denominations authorized by this 

Ordinance of the same series and maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount and bearing interest 

at the same rate.  Note may be exchanged at the principal office of the Registrar for a like aggregate prin-

cipal amount of Note and the City shall execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Note which 

the owner making the exchange is entitled to receive, numbered consecutively beginning after the last 

number then outstanding and of the same maturity and bearing interest at the same rate as the Note 

surrendered for exchange.  The Registrar may impose a charge sufficient to defray all costs and expenses 

incident to registrations of transfer and exchanges.  In each case the Registrar shall require the payment by 

the owner requesting exchange or transfer of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with 

respect to such exchange or transfer. 

 

 The Registrar shall not be required to transfer Note for a period of 15 days next preceding any 

interest or principal payment date or to transfer any Note for a period of 30 days next preceding any date 

fixed for redemption.  The Registrar shall also be responsible for making the payments of principal and 

interest as the same fall due upon the Note from funds provided by the City for such purpose.  Payments of 

interest due upon the Note prior to maturity or redemption shall be made by the Registrar by mailing a check 

in the amount due for such interest on each interest payment date to the registered owner of each Note as of 

the close of business on the fifteenth day of the month immediately preceding the month in which interest 

on the Note is payable, addressed to such owner’s registered address as shown on the books of registration 

as required to be maintained under this Section 7.  Payments of principal due at maturity or at any date fixed 

for redemption prior to maturity, together with any accrued interest then due, shall be made by the Registrar 

upon presentation and surrender of the Note at the office of the Registrar.  The City and the Registrar may 

treat the registered owner of the Note as the absolute owner of the Note for purposes of making payment 

thereon and for all other purposes.  All payments on account of interest or principal made to the registered 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 234 / 266



owner of the Note shall be valid and effectual and shall be a discharge of the City and the Registrar in 

respect of the liability upon the Note or claims for interest to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

 

 Section 8.   After the Note is executed by the City it shall be delivered to the Registrar for 

authentication and registration as to ownership, and in the denominations designated in writing by the 

purchaser thereof identified in the Designation.  After execution, authentication and registration of the Note, 

the City Treasurer is authorized and directed to deliver the Note to the purchaser upon receipt of the 

purchase price of the Note. 

 

 Section 9.   The City hereby agrees that the Loan, evidenced by the Note, shall be secured by 

and be payable from any and all general fund resources of the City, including but not limited to any and all 

authorized levies of taxes, and shall not, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be limited as to payment to 

the City’s general fund resources for any specific fiscal year.  The City reserves the right to provide for 

payment of principal and interest on the Note from the further issuance of notes, bonds or other methods of 

financing.   

 

 Section 10.   The Clerk shall make and certify one or more complete transcripts of the 

proceedings had and done by the City precedent to the issuance of said Note, one of which transcripts shall 

be delivered to the purchaser of the Note.  After being executed by the Mayor and Clerk, said Note shall be 

delivered to purchaser. 

 

 Section 11.   The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will make no use of the proceeds of 

the Note which would cause the Note to be an arbitrage bond within the meaning of Sections 103(b)(2) 

and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and further covenants to comply 

with said Sections 103(b)(2) and 148 and all applicable regulations thereunder throughout the term of said 

issue, including all requirements with respect to payment and reporting of rebates, if applicable.  The City 

hereby covenants to take all action necessary to preserve the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Note 

for federal income tax purposes under the Code with respect to taxpayers generally.  The City further 

agrees that it will not take any actions which would cause the Note to constitute “private activity bonds” 

within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code.  The City hereby designates the Note as its “qualified tax-

exempt obligations” pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) of the Code and covenants and warrants that 

it does not reasonably expect to issue bonds or other obligations aggregating in principal amount more 

than $10,000,000 during the calendar year or years in which the Note is issued (taking into consideration 

the exception for current refunding issues). The Mayor is hereby authorized to make, or cause to be made, 

any and all certifications deemed necessary in connection with the designation of the Note as “qualified 

tax-exempt obligations”. 

 

 Section 12.   The City’s obligation under this Ordinance shall be fully discharged and satisfied 

as to the Note authorized and issued hereunder, and said Note shall no longer be deemed outstanding 

hereunder when payment of the principal of such Note plus interest thereon to the date of maturity or 

redemption thereof (a) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof; or 

(b) shall have been provided by depositing with the Registrar or in escrow with a national or state bank 

having trust powers, in trust solely for such payment (i) sufficient moneys to make such payment or (ii) 

direct general obligations of, or obligations the principal and interest of which are unconditionally 

guaranteed by, the United States of America or obligations of an agency of the United States of America 

(herein referred to as “Government Obligations”), in such amount and maturing as to principal and interest 

at such times, as will insure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment, and such Note shall 

cease to draw interest from the date of their redemption or maturity and, except for the purposes of such 

payment, shall no longer be entitled to the benefits of this Ordinance; provided that, with respect to any Note 

called or to be called for redemption prior to the stated maturity thereof, notice of redemption shall have 

been duly given.  If moneys shall have been deposited in accordance with the terms hereof with the 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 235 / 266



Registrar as escrow agent in trust for that purpose sufficient to pay the principal of such Note, together with 

all interest due thereon to the due date thereof or to the date fixed for the redemption thereof, as the case 

may be, all liability of the City for such payment shall forthwith cease, determine and be completely 

discharged, and such Note shall no longer be considered outstanding. 

 

 Section 13.   Without in any way limiting the power, authority or discretion elsewhere herein 

granted or delegated, the Council hereby (a) authorizes and directs the Authorized Officers, the City 

Attorney and all other officers, officials, employees and agents of the City to carry out or cause to be carried 

out, and to perform such obligations of the City and such other actions as they, or any of them, in 

consultation with bond counsel, the initial purchaser of the Note and its counsel, shall consider necessary, 

advisable, desirable or appropriate in connection with this Ordinance and issuance, sale and delivery of the 

Note, including without limitation and whenever appropriate the execution and delivery thereof and of all 

other related documents, instruments, certifications and opinions, and (b) delegates, authorizes and directs 

the Mayor the right, power and authority to exercise his own independent judgment and absolute discretion 

in (i) determining and finalizing the terms, provisions, form and contents of any official statement utilized in 

offering the Note for sale to the public, (ii) determining and finalizing all other terms and provisions to be 

carried by the Note not specifically set forth in this Ordinance, and (iii) the taking of all actions and the 

making of all arrangements necessary, proper, appropriate, advisable or desirable in order to effectuate the 

issuance, sale and delivery of the Note.  The execution and delivery by the Mayor or by any such other 

officers, officials, employees or agents of the City of any such documents, instruments, certifications and 

opinions, or the doing by them of any act in connection with any of the matters which are the subject of this 

Ordinance, shall constitute conclusive evidence of both the City’s and their approval of the terms, provisions 

and contents thereof and all changes, modifications, amendments, revisions and alterations made therein and 

shall conclusively establish their absolute, unconditional and irrevocable authority with respect thereto from 

the City and the authorization, approval and ratification by the City of the documents, instruments, 

certifications and opinions so executed and the actions so taken. 

 

 Section 14.   If any one or more of the provisions of this Ordinance should be determined by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such provisions shall be deemed severable from 

the remaining provisions of this Ordinance and the invalidity thereof shall in no way affect the validity of 

the other provisions of this Ordinance or of the Note and the owners of the Note shall retain all the rights 

and benefits accorded to them under this Ordinance and under any applicable provisions of law. 

 

 If any provisions of this Ordinance shall be held or deemed to be or shall, in fact, be inoperative or 

unenforceable or invalid in any particular case in any jurisdiction or jurisdictions, or in all cases because it 

conflicts with any constitution or statute or rule of public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances 

shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable or invalid in any 

other case or circumstances, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained inoperative 

or unenforceable or invalid to any extent whatever. 

 

 Section 15. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 

of this Ordinance are to be extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 

Section 16. This Ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after its passage and 

publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 236 / 266



 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 5th day of January, 2016. 

 

 

 

              

ATTEST:      Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

 

       

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/ 

Budget & Human Resource Director 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

  

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 237 / 266



 

EXHIBIT A  

FORM OF INVESTOR LETTER 

 

______________, 2016 

City of Seward, Nebraska 

Seward, Nebraska 

 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

Omaha, Nebraska 

 

Re: $______________ Promissory Note, Series 2016, dated _______________, 2016 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The undersigned, _____________________________, as purchaser (the “Purchaser”) of the 

above-referenced note (the “Note”) issued by the City of Seward, Nebraska, (the “City”) pursuant to and 

on the terms set forth in Ordinance No. ____ of the City passed by the City Council on ______________, 

2016, and the Designation of Final Rates and Terms dated _________, 2016, and executed by officials of 

the City (together, the “Ordinance”), hereby represents and warrants to you that: 

1. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined are used with the meanings 

given such terms in the Ordinance. 

2. The Purchaser has duly authorized, by all necessary action, the purchase of the Note and 

the right to receive the payments of principal of and interest on the Note pursuant to the terms and 

provisions of the Ordinance (the “Payments”). 

3. The Purchaser is a qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A under the 

Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), because the Purchaser is [Insert Basis of 

Qualification]. The Purchaser has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business matters, 

including purchase and ownership of municipal and other tax-exempt obligations, to be able to evaluate 

the risks and merits of the investment represented by the Note, the Payments, and the Ordinance.  The 

Purchaser is able to bear the economic risks of that investment, including a complete loss of such 

investment. 

4. The Purchaser understands that the obligations of the City to make the Payments under 

the Ordinance and the Note are payable from the sources described in the Ordinance.    

5. The Purchaser acknowledges that it has either been supplied with or has been given 

access to information, including financial statements and other financial information, which it has asked 

for and the Purchaser has had the opportunity to ask questions and receive answers from appropriate 

officers of the City concerning the City, the Note, the Payments, the Ordinance and the security therefor, 

so that the Purchaser has been able to evaluate the risks and merits of purchasing the Note and make its 

decision to purchase the Note on the terms set forth in the Ordinance.   

6. The Purchaser made its own inquiry and analysis with respect to the Ordinance, the Note, 

the Payments, and the security therefor, and other factors affecting the security and payment of such 

payments set forth in the Ordinance.  The Purchaser is aware that the business of the City involves certain 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 238 / 266



economic variables and risks that could adversely affect the security for the payments to be made by the 

City to the Purchaser under the terms of the Ordinance and the Note.  The Purchaser has examined the 

legal documents relating to the Note and the Ordinance, including the proposed legal opinion to be 

delivered by Gilmore & Bell, P.C. as to the validity of and tax status of interest on the Note. 

7. The Purchaser understands that the Note (including the right to receive the Payments 

under the terms of the Ordinance) (a) are not being registered or otherwise qualified for sale under the 

securities laws and regulations of any state, (b) will not be listed on any securities exchange, (c) do not 

and will not carry a credit rating from any credit rating service and (d) will be delivered in a form which 

may not be readily marketable. 

8. The Purchaser understands that the Note (including the right to the Payments under the 

terms of the Ordinance) have not been registered under the Securities Act in reliance upon certain 

exemptions from registration.  The Purchaser represents to you that it is purchasing the Note for 

investment for its own account and not with a view toward resale or the distribution thereof, in that it does 

not now intend to resell or otherwise dispose of the Note or any part of its interest in the Note.  The 

Purchaser agrees not to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the Note or all or any part of its interest in 

the Note or the Ordinance unless the transferee executes a letter of representation in substantially the form 

of this letter and such sale, transfer or other disposition is in compliance with applicable securities laws 

and the provisions of the Ordinance. 

9. The Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City with respect to any claim 

asserted against the City that is based upon the Purchaser’s sale, transfer or other disposition of the Note 

or all or any part of the Purchaser’s interests in the Note or the Ordinance in violation of the provisions 

hereof or of the Ordinance, other than any claim that is based upon the gross negligence or willful 

misconduct of the City. 

10. The Purchaser has executed and delivered this letter in connection with issuance of the 

Note as an inducement to the City to cause the issuance of the Note and the execution and delivery 

thereof to the Purchaser. 

Only the addressees hereof may rely upon this letter. 

______________________________ 

 

 

By:  ______________________________________ 

         Authorized Officer 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 239 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G7

CONSIDERATION OF NAMING THE GOLF COURSE - Bruce 
Smith

Administrative Report: Tabled from 12-15-15

Following further discussion, Council can choose to officially name the golf course.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 240 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G8

CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FEES 
AT THE GOLF COURSE - Bruce Smith

Administrative Report: Staff looked at other community golf course fees and feel the proposed rates 
are appropriate. 

Following review and discussion, a motion to approve the resolution would be in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 241 / 266



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska may by resolution 

fix the amount of Golf Course fees, and 

    

 WHEREAS, it is deemed advisable to establish Golf Course use fees; 

    

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA THAT: 

 

 The amount of Golf Course fees shall henceforth be and are hereby fixed as 

follows to be in full force and effect on and after January 5, 2016: 

 

                        Daily Green Fees 

  9 Holes                                                 $  18.00              

 18 Holes                                $  25.00    

 

                               Annual Golf Fee 

 Single                   $ 600.00 

 Family                   $ 775.00 

 Age 19-25             $ 275.00 

 Grade/High School                 $ 150.00 

   

                     Daily Golf Cart Rental 

  9 Holes             $  12.00 

 18 Holes             $  20.00 

 

  

                        Annual Golf Cart Lease 

 Single                   $ 300.00 

 Family                   $ 400.00 

 

      Annual Golf Cart Storage With Trail Fee 

Gas Cart (Does not include gas)         $ 375.00 

Electric Cart            $ 400.00 

 

          Daily Trail Fee Only 

Cart Stored Off-Site           $  10.00 

 

          Annual Trail Fee Only 

Cart Stored Off-Site           $ 200.00 

 

 

  All previous resolutions in conflict with this resolution are hereby revoked.  

 

 The Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

 Dated: January _________, 2016 

 

  THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

  ____________________________ 

ATTEST: Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 ______________________________      

 Bonnie Otte 

 Asst Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer 

 Budget & HR Director 

 

 

(SEAL) 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 242 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G9

CONSIDERATION OF GOLF CART LEASE FROM 
NEBRASKA GOLF & TURF- Bruce Smith

Administrative Report: It is staff recommendation to get new carts and a new lease. The cost is the 
same as the current lease on the older carts. 

Following review and discussion, a motion to approve the lease agreement would be in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 243 / 266



Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 244 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G10

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 11 OF THE SEWARD CITY CODE TO 
RETITLE THE ARTICLE, TO ESTABLISH A GENERAL 
EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN COMMITTEE AND TO 
APPOINT CITY COUNCIL DESIGNATED MEMBERS - Bonnie 
Otte

Administrative Report: The City's Police Pension Plan has a separate Committee overseeing the 
fiduciary responsibility of the plan. Currently, there is no Committee providing this oversight for the 
General Employee Pension Plan. Scott Holechek of Ameritas (Plan provider) is advising that the City 
consider establishing a committee for the General Employee Plan. 

Attached is an ordinance that would create the General Employee Pension Plan Committee.

Following review and discussion, a motion to adopt the ordinance would be in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 245 / 266



 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 11 OF THE SEWARD CITY CODE TO 

RETITLE THE ARTICLE; TO ESTABLISH A GENERAL EMPLOYEE’S PENSION PLAN COMMITTEE 

“COMMITTEE”; TO APPOINT THE CITY COUNCIL DESIGNATED MEMBERS OF THE GENERAL 

EMPLOYEE’S PENSION PLAN COMMITTEE; TO REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 

ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO PROVIDE FOR 

PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEWARD AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

 ARTICLE 11 is hereby retitled: Police Pension Plan Pension Plans 

 

Section 1.   INCORPORATION OF PENSION PLAN.  The restated Police 

Officers Pension Plan for the City of Seward, is made a part of and 

incorporated into this Article as fully as if set forth at length herein and 

that said Pension Plan be effective January 1, 1984. (A copy of this plan is 

on file at the office of the City Clerk). 

 

Section 2.   PENSION COMMITTEE CITY MEMBERS.  The City Council 

designated members for the Pension Committee for the Pension Plans shall 

consist of the City Administrator and the Assistant Administrator/City Clerk-

Treasurer/Budget & Human Resources Director and that the persons holding 

those offices are hereby appointed and empowered to perform all 

administrative duties not specifically delegated, by ordinance, to the 

Retirement Committee. 

 

 SECTION 3.  GENERAL EMPLOYEE’S RETIREMENT PLAN COMMITTEE; GENERAL 

PROVISIONS is hereby established in the following manner:   

 

 There shall be one representative from each of the following City 

Departments: City Hall Administration, Park/Cemetery/Recreation, Building 

Inspection/Public Facilities/Civic Center/Senior Center, Street, Electric, 

Water/Wastewater, and Library on said “Committee”. Each representative must 

be a full-time employee currently participating in the City’s General 

Employee’s Retirement Plan. Representatives shall serve a two-year term, with 

establishment of the first “Committee” members in January, 2016. Initially, 

representatives of the City Hall Administration, Park/Cemetery/Recreation, 

Building Inspection/Public Facilities/Civic Center/Senior Center departments 

shall serve a three-year term and representatives of the Street, Electric 

Water/Wastewater, and Library shall serve a two-year term. The Representative 

shall be the voice for the respective department, gain additional knowledge 

about retirement plans and investments, and be the spokesperson back to the 

department and peers. 

 

 The “Committee” shall meet at least annually, or more often as deemed 

necessary, for the purpose of, but not limited to: selecting an array of 

appropriate investment options; monitor investment options; monitor the 

activities of prudent experts; document the investment review process and 

decisions, to develop and review an Investment Policy Statement. 

 

 The “Committee” shall annually elect a Chairperson and a Secretary from 

among the representatives. The Chairperson shall preside over all Pension 

Committee meetings and the Secretary shall give notice of all meetings and 

prepare written minutes of which a final copy shall be kept on file in the 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 246 / 266



 

office of Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/Budget & Human Resources 

Director. All members of the “Committee” have voting rights. 

 

 SECTION 4. REPEAL. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION 5.  WHEN OPERATIVE; PUBLICATION IN PAMPHLET FORM. This 

ordinance shall be published in pamphlet form and shall be in full force from 

and after its passage, approval and publication or posting as required by 

law. 

 

Dated this ___________ day of ____________, 2015 

 

 

    CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

    ____________________________ 

    Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: ____________________________     

    Bonnie Otte 

    Assistant Administrator/ 

         Clerk-Treasurer/ 

         Budget & Human Resource Director 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 247 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G11

CONSIDERATION OF INSTALLING AN EMERGENCY 
VEHICLE PRE-EMPTION SYSTEM - John Hughes

Administrative Report: The pre-emption system allows for emergency vehicles to control the three 
stoplights within the City. It is the recommendation of Olsson Associates  and NDOR not to pursue 
an immediate EVP project due to cost and NDOR plans of reconstructing US-34 and changes along 
Hwy 15.

Following review and discussion, Council to provide direction.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 248 / 266



Downtown EVP 
Seward, NE 

  1

MEMO 

 
Date: November 23, 2015 
 
To: John Hughes,  City of Seward 
 
From: Shane King, PE, PTOE 
 
Re: Seward Emergency Vehicle Pre-emption 
 OA Project No. 015-2742 
 
Cc:  Pat Sterns, NDOR 
 Kent Wohlers, NDOR 
  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 

This memorandum addresses and documents progress to date regarding the proposed EVP 
project in downtown Seward. At this time, the Engineer is not proceeding with design work due 
to the findings of the field review. Based on that review, it is the Engineer’s recommendation 
that the City of Seward not proceed with construction / implementation of this system.  
 
The project general scope is as follows: 
 
Olsson Associates will perform field verification, engineering design, and plan preparation for 
implementation of an Emergency Vehicle Pre-emption (EVP) system for three signalized 
intersections in Seward, NE.  This system will be capable of controlling traffic signals and 
providing green to approaching emergency vehicles equipped to communicate with the system.  
Design work will follow NDOR Standard Plans and Specifications.     
 
SITE RECONNAISSANCE AND FIELD REVIEW 

OA (Shane King) conducted a field review with NDOR representation (Pat Sterns) on October 
15, 2015. Prior to the visit, NDOR provided record drawings (July 2012) of the three signalized 
intersections. The plans identify pole, pull box, and cabinet locations as well as conduit size, 
paths, and contents. The following paragraphs outline conditions and findings at each 
intersection.   
 
US-34 & 5th Street 
This signal was constructed new in 2012 from the ground up including poles, mast arms, 
heads, and a new pole mounted cabinet in the SW corner. However, none of the underground 
components were replaced. One of the resulting obstacles is a lack of space in old, small 
conduit and a lack of access points (pull boxes) to the conduit system. Pictures 1 and 2 
illustrate the single entry point into the pole mounted cabinet (Picture 3).   
 

 

DRAFT

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 249 / 266



Downtown EVP 
Seward, NE 

  2

Conduits running to the cabinet from both directions are full and do not have the capacity to 
accommodate a cable for the EVP system. The solution in the SW corner would be to place a 
new pull box and run conduit to each of the other corners. However, this would have a trickle 
effect if a conduit were run to the SE corner for example; there is no path to then enter the pole 
foundation and up to the EVP receiver. Above ground pole entries would be necessary using 
RGS conduit which can be an obstruction and tripping hazard. It would be difficult to locate pull 
boxes in each of these corners given ROW constraints. This is likely the reason that pull boxes 
were not added when the signal work was performed in 2012.  
 
The intersection does have the capability of communicating back to US-34 & N-15.  However, it 
is over a 2-pair communication cable. This cable wouldn’t have the ability to allow the EVP 
system to “talk” between intersections. While there is very little room in the cabinet, 
components could be rearranged to provide space for the EVP phase selector. Picture 4 shows 
the back side of the cabinet (double doored).   
 
Picture 1 

 
 
Picture 2 

 

DRAFT

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 250 / 266



Downtown EVP 
Seward, NE 

  3

Picture 3 

 
 
Picture 4 

 
 

DRAFT

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 251 / 266



Downtown EVP 
Seward, NE 

  4

US-34 & N-15 
This is the main intersection of the three and would be the “master” regarding communications 
between the East and North intersections. This intersection controller is also contained in a pole 
mounted cabinet with the only entry for signal cables coming through the pole. The auxiliary 
conduit shown in Picture 5 is for service cables which come from the alley to the East. This 
cabinet does not have sufficient room for additional EVP equipment and would need to be 
replaced with a pad mount version to make the accommodations.  Picture 6 illustrates the 
cabinet contents.   
 
The work done at this location in 2012 involved the previously referenced communications 
cable. Field observations after pulling the pull box lid and examining the cabinet indicate that it 
is not feasible to pull additional cables into the existing conduit. To implement an EVP system, 
new conduits and pull boxes would need to be added to the intersection. This would prove 
difficult due to ROW constraints.   
 
Picture 5 

   
 

DRAFT

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 252 / 266



Downtown EVP 
Seward, NE 

  5

Picture 6 

 
 
 
N-15 & Seward Avenue 
This is an old signal system with two diagonal mast arm poles in the NE and SW corners.  
There are zero pull boxes in place.  All conduit is routed directly pole to pole and the controller 
equipment is housed in a free standing pedestal type cabinet.  Similar to the other intersections, 
conduit is full and without pull boxes, there is no means to access the conduit system.  This 
would force any pole entries to be external in lieu of entering the pole base.  Pictures 7 and 8 
show the cabinet and the entry point for signal cables coming from the poles. The cabinet at 
this intersection does not have capacity for the EVP equipment; it would be NDOR’s preference 
to upgrade to a new, pad mount cabinet should any modifications be made.  
 

DRAFT

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 253 / 266



Downtown EVP 
Seward, NE 

  6

Picture 7 

 
 
Picture 8 

 
 
 

DRAFT

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 254 / 266



Downtown EVP 
Seward, NE 

  7

MATERIALS NEED 

There are common needs at all three intersections to make this project feasible as intended 
when scoped and initiated by the City.  Those generally include existing conduit paths and 
cabinet space.  It was determined following the hands on field review that new conduits, pull 
boxes, and cabinets would be necessary to implement the EVP system.   
 
ADDITIONAL COST 

The preliminary estimated construction budget for this project was $12,000/intersection. The 
additional materials needed create a significant increase in project cost.  The estimates below 
of additional cost are based on planning level design and measurements, not a detailed layout. 
 

• Pull boxes - $4,000 
• Cabinets - $4,200 
• Conduit - $8,800 
• Fiber - $1,000 

 
FUTURE PROJECTS 

A common method of making traffic signal system improvements that are not immediately 
urgent is to program them for incorporation into future projects.  This approach is attractive for 
this proposed EVP project.  As documented, many of the traffic signal components are 
outdated (especially N-15 & Seward Avenue).  With the diagonal mast arm design at N-15 & 
Seward Avenue, it can be concluded that at some point, NDOR will elect to reconstruct the 
traffic signal (as was done at US-34 & 5th Street).  Any future traffic signal projects along N-15 
would likely address many (if not all) of the additional materials needed to make the intersection 
ready for EVP.  Not only would that translate to a construction cost savings but will also allow 
the City to retain dollars designated for design under this current contract.   
 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION 

It is uncommon that a field review will redirect the entire direction of a scope of work.  However, 
it is the Engineer’s recommendation (supported by NDOR staff), not to pursue an immediate 
EVP project at the three intersections studied.  The cost and impact to implement is deemed to 
exceed any realized benefit.  While an EVP system would promote priority to emergency 
vehicles at intersections, it does not seem that these three intersections are impassible for 
extended time periods.  This opinion is based on the Engineer’s multiple visits to Seward 
regarding Traffic Engineering issues/concerns over the last two years.   
 
Unless directed specifically otherwise, OA will not initiate the design of an EVP system. 
 
 
 
 
F:\Projects\015-2742\40-Design\Reports\TRFC\Doc\EVP Memorandum.doc 
 

DRAFT

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 255 / 266



Building critical 
traffic connectionssm

OpticOm™ pRiORitY cONtROL SYStEm 
OpticOm™ mODEL 1070 GpS inStaLLatiOn cabLE    
OPTICOM™ SYSTEM COMPONENT FOR ENVIRONMENTS WITH GPS TECHNOLOGY 

Description

The Opticom™ Model 1070 GPS Installation Cable is designed and manufactured explicitly for use with 
Opticom™ Radio/GPS units. The Opticom™ Model 1070 GPS Installation Cable has ten (5-pair) color-coded 
twisted conductors, a conductive shield and drain, and a black PVC jacket.

This durable, high-quality cable carries the appropriate power to the Opticom™ Radio/GPS unit from the 
Opticom™ Phase Selector and delivers the necessary quality signal to the phase selector up to 250 feet (76 m).

Global Traffic Technologies, LLC 

(GTT), formed in 2007 from  

3M’s pioneering Intelligent 

Transportation Systems business,  

is the manufacturer of Opticom™  

priority control systems and 

Canoga™ traffic sensing systems. 

Features and benefits

•  Optimized to interface Opticom™ Radio/GPS  
units to Opticom™ Phase Selectors

•  Ensures effective range of at least 2,500 feet  
(760 m) with Opticom™ GPS System components

• Durable construction

 – Suitable for direct burial

 – Suitable for conduit and mast arm pull

 – Suitable for exposed overhead installation*

Operating parameters

• 300 volt rating

• 90° C (194° F) temperature range

•  Outer Jacket: Black SR-PVC, UV and  
moisture resistant

•  Ten twisted pair conductors (5 pairs) AWG #20  
(7 x 28) stranded, individually tinned copper: 

 – Yellow/Yellow-Black

 – Blue/Blue-White

 – Orange/Orange-Green

 – Brown/Brown-White

 – Purple/Purple-White

• Aluminized polyester shield

•  Drain wire AWG #22 (7 x 28) stranded,  
individually tinned copper

• Controlled electrical characteristics

• UL and cUL recognized

physical Dimensions

• Outside diameter: 0.354 in. (9 mm)

• Minimum Bend Radius: 3.6 in (9.1 cm)

•  Available in 500 ft., 1,000 ft., and 2,500 ft.  
(152 m, 305 m, and 760 m) spools

 

*Separate messenger wire required

For complete warranty information  
visit www.gtt.com.

Opticom and the Gtt logo are trademarks of Global traffic technologies, LLc. Used under license in canada. please recycle. printed in U.S.A.
© Global traffic technologies, LLc 2013. All rights reserved.
76-1000-0834-0 (B)

Global Traffic Technologies, LLC

7800 Third Street North

St. Paul, Minnesota 55128-5441

1-800-258-4610

651-789-7333

www.gtt.com

Global Traffic Technologies Canada, Inc.

157 Adelaide Street West

Suite 448

Toronto, ON M5H 4E7

Canada

1-800-258-4610

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 256 / 266



Building critical 
traffic connectionssm

OpticOm™ priOrity cOntrOl SyStem 
OpticOm™ mOdel 768 AuxiliAry interfAce pAnel   
OpticOm™ SyStem cOmpOnent fOr envirOnmentS with infrared  
and GpS technOlOGy

description

Opticom™ Model 768 Auxiliary Interface Panel (AIP) provides a convenient method to interconnect Opticom™ Model 
762 and 764 Phase Selectors with terminals inside a traffic cabinet. The 768 AIP is designed specifically for use 
with the Model 762 and 764 phase selectors. It is not intended to be used with other model phase selectors.

 The Opticom™ Model 768 contains terminal blocks for wiring to the traffic cabinet signals, two DB-9 RS-232 
communication ports, and a 44-pin connector for connecting legacy auxiliary interface panels and auxiliary 
harnesses. A twelve foot cable is included which connects the AIP to the Model 762 or 764 Phase Selector.

Global traffic technologies, llc 

(Gtt), formed in 2007 from  

3m’s pioneering intelligent 

transportation Systems business,  

is the manufacturer of Opticom™  

priority control systems and 

canoga™ traffic sensing systems. 

features

•  Accessible interconnections to cabinet wiring along 
the edge of card

•  Rugged construction - circuit card affixed to 16 AWG 
aluminum mounting plate 

•  Connectors for auxiliary detector inputs and power 
can accommodate 16 to 28 AWG wires

•  Connectors for all other inputs and outputs can 
accommodate 16 to 22 AWG wires

• Easy-to-read terminal designations

 Applications:

The Model 768 AIP is used when any of the following 
features and/or capabilities is needed:

• Green sensing or green light verification

• Auxiliary infrared detector inputs

• Additional preempt outputs

 -  Turn signal dependent operation  
(For 764 in GPS operation)

 - Separate outputs for high and low priority

• Clock sync input (In IR operation)

• Clock sync output (For 764 in GPS operation)

• Confirmation light outputs

• Disable outputs

• Two additional RS-232 COM ports

 - GPS data input (In IR operation)

 - GPS data output (For 764 in GPS operation)

 - Additional Serial COM port

 

The Model 768 AIP includes a connector for  
connecting an existing auxiliary harness or auxiliary 
interface panel to green sense and/or auxiliary 
detectors. Simply remove the old AIP or harness and 
connect it directly to the 768. If the existing harness 
or AIP is being used for other functions, it will be 
necessary to move the wires to the Model 768 AIP. 

physical dimensions

Length: 7.25 in. (18.4 cm)

Width: 4.5 in. (11.4 cm)

Height: 1.0 in. (2.5 cm)

Weight (with cable): 1.4 lbs. (635 g)

Cable: 12 ft (3.6M)

For complete warranty information  
visit www.gtt.com.

Global Traffic Technologies, LLC

7800 Third Street North

St. Paul, Minnesota 55128-5441

1-800-258-4610

651-789-7333

www.gtt.com

Opticom and the Gtt logo mark are trademarks of Global traffic technologies, llc. Used under license in canada. please recycle. printed in U.S.A.
© Global traffic technologies, llc 2011 All rights reserved.
79-1000-0656-0 (A)

Global Traffic Technologies Canada, Inc.

157 Adelaide Street West

Suite 448

Toronto, ON M5H 4E7

Canada

1-800-258-4610

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 257 / 266



Building critical 
traffic connectionssm

OpticOm™ priOrity cOntrOl SyStem  
opticom™ model 764 multimode phase selector   
OpticOm™ SYStEm cOmpONENt FOR ENViRONmENtS WitH iNFRARED 
AND GpS tEcHNOLOGY

description

The Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector is a plug-in, four-channel, dual-priority, multimode 
encoded signal device designed for use with both Opticom™ infrared system (IR) emitters and detectors and 
Opticom™ GPS radio/GPS intersection units and vehicle equipment. It can be installed directly into the input files 
of Type 170 traffic controllers equipped with priority phase selection software and in virtually any other traffic 
controller equipped with priority phase selection inputs and related software. Phase selectors are powered 
from AC mains or 24 VDC and contain their own internal power supply to support Opticom™ IR detectors and 
Opticom™ GPS radio/GPS units.

The Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector may be used in IR only applications, GPS only applications, 
or IR and GPS applications simultaneously.

The Opticom™ Model 760 Card Rack is required when input file space is not available. When used in GPS only 
mode, the Opticom™ Model 1040 Card Rack may also be used.

Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector recognizes and discriminates among three distinct Opticom™ 
IR emitter frequency rates via Opticom™ detectors: high priority, low priority and probe priority. Within each of 
these three frequency rates, the phase selectors further discriminate among 10 classes of vehicle identification 
codes, with 1,000 individual vehicle codes per class — 10,000 total per frequency rate. The Opticom™ Model 
764 Multimode Phase Selector also recognizes three different priority levels transmitted by Opticom™ GPS 
vehicle equipment: high priority, low priority and probe priority. Within each of these three priority levels, the 
phase selectors further discriminate among 254 agency IDs, 15 classes of vehicle identification codes, with 
10,000 individual vehicle codes per class — for more than 38 million total per priority level.

Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector internally records each system activation. Each entry contains:

• Intersection name

• Date and time of the activity

• Vehicle class code of the activating vehicle

• Activating vehicle’s ID number

• Agency ID (GPS only)

• Channel called

• Priority of the activity

•  Final green signal indications displayed  
at the end of the call

• Time spent in the final greens

• Duration of the activation

• If preempt has been requested and reason if not

• Turn signal status at the end of the call (GPS only)

• Entry, exit and average speed (GPS only)

• Relative priority level

• Conditional priority level

Global traffic technologies, LLc 

(Gtt), formed in 2007 from  

3m’s pioneering intelligent 

transportation Systems business,  

is the manufacturer of Opticom™  

priority control systems and 

canoga™ traffic sensing systems. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 258 / 266



Features

•  IR only operation, GPS only operation, or simultaneous  
IR and GPS operation

• Four channels of detection 

• Two auxiliary detectors per channel (IR)

• Records green signal displayed at end of preemption

•  Compatible with encoded signal and non-encoded signal Opticom™ 
IR Emitters

• High and low priority as well as probe frequency discrimination

•  Conditional priority for Transit Signal Priority (TSP)  
(when used with compatible AVL and/or passenger counter)

• “First-come, first-served” priority within each priority level

• Priority-by-class setting via the interface software

• Priority-by-direction setting via the interface software

• Direct installation into CA/NY Type 170 input files

• Automatic range setting using an encoded emitter (IR)

• Call bridging for both IR and GPS calls including mixed mode

•  Low-priority output may be configured for first-come, first-served 
or all-channel active

• User-adjustable range setting up to 2,500 feet of operation

• Compatible with most traffic controllers

• 10/100Mb Ethernet communication on the front panel

• USB 2.0 communication on the front panel

•  RS232 communications front port, and rear backplane and 
Auxiliary Interface Panel

•  User-selected communications baud rate of 1,200 to 230,400 bits 
per second

• Customizable ID code validation

• Flexible programming options for priority control parameters

• Detailed current Opticom™ System parameter information

•  History log of most recent Opticom™  infrared and GPS system 
activities (10,000 entries)

• 30,000 frequency/class/vehicle code ID combinations (IR)

•  More than 38 million agency/class/vehicle code combinations (GPS)

• Front panel switches and diagnostic indicators for testing

• Accurate infrared signal recognition circuitry 

• Precise output pulse

• Definitive call verification

• Regulated detector power supply (IR)

• Optically isolated outputs

•  Two character display and keypad to enable diagnostics and test 
calls to each channel

• Display LED Indicators

 - High- and low-priority test calls

 - Reset to default parameters

 - Range setting

• User-settable range setting by ETA and/or distance (GPS only)

•  Varied outputs depending on turn signal status of requesting 
vehicle (GPS only)

• IR detector inputs may be mapped to any channel.

• Diagnostic test

• Advanced built-in diagnostics and testing

•  Tested to NEMA environmental and electrical test specifications

 

accessories

• Opticom™ On-site Interface software package

• Opticom™ Model 768 Auxiliary Interface Panel 

• Opticom™ Model 755 Four-Channel Adapter Card (optional)

• Opticom™ Model 760 Card Rack

operating parameters

• Four dual-priority and probe frequency channels 

•  “First-come, first-served” for vehicles with the same priority level 
(high or low)

• Priority override: always higher over lower 

• Opticom™ GPS Radio/GPS Unit input

•  Opticom™ Infrared System Detector input(s): one per channel on 
the card edge connector and two auxiliary per channel through the 
Opticom™ Model 768 Auxiliary Interface Panel

•  Optional interface software for flexible programming options and 
call history

• LED indicators

 - Status

 - Radio (GPS mode)

 - Link (GPS mode)

 - High signal/call per channel

 - Low signal/call per channel

 - Two-digit status display

•  Two character display and keypad to enable diagnostics and test 
calls to each channel

•  Voltage: 89 to 135 VAC, 60 Hz at up to 500mA or 24 VDC at up to 
1 Amp

• Temperature: -37°C to +74°C (-34.6°F to +165.2°F)

• Humidity: 5% to 95% relative

• CE certified

• NEMA TS-2 compliance

• FCC compliance

physical dimensions

Length: 7.0 in. (17.8 cm) x 8.2 in. (20.8 cm) including handle

Width: 2.3 in. (5.8 cm)

Height: 4.5 in. (11.4 cm)

Weight: 0.60 lbs. (272 g)

For complete warranty information visit www.gtt.com.

opticom™ model 764 multimode phase selector
OpticOm™ SYStEm cOmpONENt FOR ENViRONmENtS WitH iNFRARED  
AND GpS tEcHNOLOGY

Building critical 
traffic connectionssm

Global Traffic Technologies, LLC

7800 Third Street North

St. Paul, Minnesota 55128-5441

1-800-258-4610

651-789-7333

www.gtt.com

Opticom and the Gtt logo mark are trademarks of Global traffic technologies, llc. Used under license in canada. please recycle. printed in U.S.A.
© Global traffic technologies, llc 2013 All rights reserved.
79-1000-0524-0 (D)

Global Traffic Technologies Canada, Inc.

157 Adelaide Street West

Suite 448

Toronto, ON M5H 4E7

Canada

1-800-258-4610

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 259 / 266



Building critical 
traffic connectionssm

OpticOm™ pRiORitY cONtROL SYStEm 
OpticOm™ GpS SYStEm iNtERSEctiON EQUipmENt    
OPTICOM™ SYSTEM COMPONENTS FOR ENVIRONMENTS WITH GPS TECHNOLOGY 

Description

The Opticom™ GPS System assists authorized vehicles through signalized intersections by providing temporary right-of-way 
through the use of common traffic controller functions.

The Opticom™ GPS system consists of the following matched components:

intersection Equipment

•  Opticom™ Model 3100 GPS Radio Unit containing a GPS receiver with antenna and a 2.4 GHz spread spectrum 
transceiver with antenna

 –OR–

  Opticom™ Model 3101 GPS Radio Unit containing a GPS receiver and a 2.4 GHz spread spectrum transceiver,  
with Opticom™ Model 1050 GPS/Radio Antenna and Opticom™ Model 1072 GPS Cable Assembly

• Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector

• Opticom™ Model 768 Auxiliary Interface Panel

• Opticom™ Model 1040 GPS Card Rack or Opticom™ Model 760 Card Rack or Opticom™ Model 770 Card Rack

• Opticom™ Model 1070 GPS Installation Cable

Vehicle Equipment

•  Opticom™ Model 2100 High Priority Radio/GPS Control Unit

 –OR– 

   Opticom™ Model 2101 Low Priority Radio/GPS Control Unit

• Opticom™ Model 1050 GPS/Radio Antenna

• Opticom™ Model 2171 Vehicle Interface Cable

Opticom™ GPS system intersection equipment consists of the compact, weather resistant RF-energy-emitting Opticom™  
Model 3100 GPS Radio Unit containing a GPS receiver with antenna and a 2.4 GHz spread spectrum transceiver with antenna. 
The radio unit is connected to an Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector via an 11-conductor radio/GPS cable.

The Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector can be installed directly into a CA/NY Type 33X input file or most NEMA 
traffic controllers equipped with priority phase selection software, or into virtually any other traffic controller equipped with 
priority phase selection inputs and related software. 

When input file space is not available, an Opticom™ Model 760 Card Rack is required. An external 120 VAC power source 
provides the power that is required to operate the Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector. The phase selector 
provides power to the radio unit.

The Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector processes the signal from the Opticom™ Model 3100 GPS Radio Unit 
and activates outputs, which are connected to the preemption inputs on the traffic controller. There are four channel outputs 
accessible on the rear connector of the Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector and up to 12 additional channel 
outputs on the Opticom™ Model 768 Auxiliary Interface Panel.

Global Traffic Technologies, LLC 

(GTT), formed in 2007 from  

3M’s pioneering Intelligent 

Transportation Systems business,  

is the manufacturer of Opticom™  

priority control systems and 

Canoga™ traffic sensing systems. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 260 / 266

bhillis
Rectangle

bhillis
Rectangle

bhillis
Rectangle

bhillis
Rectangle

bhillis
Rectangle



OpticOm™ GpS SYStEm iNtERSEctiON EQUipmENt 
OPTICOM™ SYSTEM COMPONENTS FOR ENVIRONMENTS WITH GPS TECHNOLOGY 

Each channel output delivers a constant output for high-
priority activation, and a pulsed output for low-priority 
activation. A high-priority signal received on a channel will 
override any low-priority activation. In certain modes of 
operation, outputs may be activated that are dependent on 
the state of the requesting vehicle’s turn signal. Another 
mode provides separate constant outputs for high priority 
and low priority. The use of an Opticom™ Model 768 Auxiliary 
Interface Panel is required to access these additional modes 
and outputs.

Opticom™ GpS System intersection equipment  
has the following features:

•  Four channels of detection

• Radio range of 2,500 feet

• User-settable range setting by ETA and/or distance

• Call bridging

• Precise preemption output pulse

• Optically isolated outputs

•  Varied outputs depending on turn signal status of 
requesting vehicle

•  High and low priority as well as probe frequency 
discrimination

•  “First-come, first-served” priority within each priority level

•  Low-priority output may be configured for first-come, first-
served or all-channel active

•  Priority-by-class and priority-by direction setting via the 
interface software

•  10/100Mb Ethernet and USB 2.0 communication on the 
front panel 

•  RS232 communications front port, rear backplane and 
Auxiliary Interface Panel

•  History log of most recent Opticom™ GPS system activities 
(10,000 entries)

•  More than 38 million agency/class/vehicle code 
combinations

• Customizable ID code validation

•  Two character display, LEDs and keypad to enable 
diagnostics and place test calls to each channel

•  Flexible programming options for priority control parameters

• Direct installation into CA/NY Type 33X input files

• Compatible with most traffic controllers

•  Tested to NEMA environmental and electrical test 
specifications

• Meets FCC part 15 Class A specifications

physical Dimensions 

Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector

Length: 7.0 in. (17.8 cm) x 8.2 in. (20.8 cm) including handle

Width: 2.3 in. (5.8 cm)

Height: 4.5 in. (11.4 cm)

Weight: 0.60 lbs. (272 g)

Opticom™ Model 3100 GPS Radio Unit

Length: 9.0 in. (22.9 cm)

Width: 6.5 in. (16.5 cm)

Height: 6.0 in. (15.2 cm)

Weight: 1.8 lbs. (0.816 kg)

Opticom™ Model 3101 GPS Radio Unit

Length: 8.0 in. (20.3 cm)

Width: 4.5 in. (11.4 cm)

Height: 2.7 in. (6.9 cm)

Weight: 1.7 lbs. (0.771 kg)

Opticom™ Model 768 Auxiliary Interface Panel

Length: 7.25 in. (18.4 cm)

Width: 4.5 in. (11.4 cm)

Height: 1.0 in. (2.5 cm)

Weight with cable: 1.4 lbs. (635 g)

Cable: 12 ft (3.6 m)

Opticom™ Model 1040 GPS Card Rack/Opticom™  
Model 760 Card Rack/Opticom™ Model 770 Card Rack

Length: 8.25 in. (21.0 cm)

Width: 5.25 in. (13.3 cm)

Height: 5.1 in. (12.9 cm)

Weight: 2.3 lbs. (1.043 kg)

Opticom™ Model 1050 GPS/Radio Antenna

Diameter: 2.85 in. (7.2 cm)

Height: 1.4 in. (3.5 cm)

Cable length: 15.0 ft. (4.6 m)

Weight with cables: 0.6 lbs. (0.30 kg)

Electrical

Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector 
Voltage: 89 to 135 VAC, 60 Hz at up to 500mA or 
24 VDC at up to 1 Amp

Environmental

Opticom™ Model 764 Multimode Phase Selector

Temperature: -37°C to +74°C (-34.6°F to +165.2°F)

Humidity: 5% to 95% relative

 
For complete warranty information visit www.gtt.com.

Building critical 
traffic connectionssm

Global Traffic Technologies, LLC

7800 Third Street North

St. Paul, Minnesota 55128-5441

1-800-258-4610

651-789-7333

www.gtt.com

Opticom and the Gtt logo are trademarks of Global traffic technologies, LLc. Used under license in canada. please recycle. printed in U.S.A.
© Global traffic technologies, LLc 2013. All rights reserved.
75-0301-1343-7(D)

Global Traffic Technologies Canada, Inc.

157 Adelaide Street West

Suite 448

Toronto, ON M5H 4E7

Canada

1-800-258-4610

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 261 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G12

CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT-  Bruce Smith

Administrative Report: The City Council will receive an update on capital and other on-going 
projects.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 262 / 266



CITY ADMINISTRATORS REPORT – 1-5-16 

 Numerous meetings on the Seward Country Club.   Working on fees, 

getting an appraisal, golf cart lease, etc. 

 Department head meetings as well as many individual meetings with 

employees through the week. 

 Working on employee targets. 

 Attended the Seward Country Club meeting. 

 Attended the City Council Meeting. 

 Attended the Safety Committee Meeting. 

 Attended a TIF meeting. 

 Met with Chad from NPPD about Power Contract.  

 Met with Paul Grieger of DA Davidson about re-financing existing bonds, 

issuing a new street bond for projects already completed, and the golf 

course financing.   

 Met with Garrett Klein of Olsson on Roberts Street Project. 

 Conference call on Siphon Project. 

 Met and worked with Mueller’s (Sharon Hartman) on subdivision 

requirements.   

 Participated in new Police officer interviews 

 

The departments are working on the following projects to name a few: 

 Working on a surplus property list for a future sale 

 Working on 2016 contractor registration renewals 

 Conduct interviews with officer candidates and made employment 

offers to two individuals 

 Trimming street trees and trees in parks and cemetery. 

 Cleaned streets after storms 

 Helped move furniture at the Senior Center so the floor could be 

cleaned 

 Put up a fence on the north side of the retention cell on highway 15 

 Continuing the installation of LED street lights. 

 Met with Olsson on Roberts Street Project. 

 Replaced a transformer at the college 

 Installed a switch on East Seward Street 

 Repaired Muffin Monster at WWTP 

 Hauled sludge to city owned fields 

 Seward County Justice Center inspections. 

 Working on updating property maintenance code violation list. 

 Working with bonding agent on funding/refunding for general, 

electrical and wastewater projects 

 Registrations for Youth Wrestling and Youth Basketball is underway 

 Programs continue including 3 on 3 volleyball, and men’s basketball. 

 Painted trash cans and picnic tables. 

 General maintenance of all facilities, doing utility locates. 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 263 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G13

FUTURE REQUESTS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS OR 
ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION - Mayor Eickmeier

Administrative Report: This item is to allow Council members an opportunity to request future 
agenda items. To remain in compliance with the open meetings law, no discussion of an item will be 
allowed beyond what is necessary to clarify the request.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 264 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G14

ANNOUNCEMENT OF UPCOMING EVENTS - Mayor 
Eickmeier

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 265 / 266



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, January 5, 2016

Regular Session

Item G15

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 1/5/2016 Page 266 / 266


